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This Registration Document is a non-certified Estglversion of Tarkett's French-languatgcument
de référencewhich has been registered by therorité des Marchés Financie(the “AMF”) under
No. R-14-018. This English version has not beeieresd by the AMF.

This Registration Document is not an offer to selthe solicitation of an offer to purchase se@sit
of Tarkett. Any offer or sale of securities of Tatts if made, will be made only by a prospectus or
other offering document that describes the termsuoh offer or sale, and that will contain impottan
information on restrictions that may apply in carfarisdictions.

The annexes to thdocument de référendeve not been translated into English. Referenaaeno
such annexes in the Registration Document thus teferench-language documents not part of this
Registration Document. English versions of certafirthese annexes may be found in English on
Tarkett's website.

In case of any inconsistencies between statememiioed in this Registration Document and the
sections of the French-languadecument de référendkat have been presented in translated version
in this Registration Document, the text of the Eredocument will prevail.

Any reference to the date of the Registration Dosnimsuch as “as of the date of this Registration
Document”, “as of the filing date of this Registoat Document” or “at the date of the visa on this

Registration Document” is a reference to the regfien date of the official French-language

document de référeneeentioned above.

Copies of this Registration Document are availdl®#e of charge at Tarkett's offices at 2, rue de
'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, France, as wetirm$arkett’'s website (www.tarkett.com).




In this Registration Document, the terms “Compaiayid “Tarkett” mean Tarkett S.A., and the
“Group” means Tarkett and its consolidated subsikaaken as a whole.

Forward-looking Statements

This Registration Document contains statementsrdaga the prospects and growth strategies of the
Group. These statements are sometimes identifigtidoyse of the future or conditional tense, or by
the use of forward-looking terms such as “consigéisnvisages”, “believes”, “aims”, “expects”,
“intends”, “should”, “anticipates”, “estimates”,Hinks”, “wishes” and “might”, or, if applicable, ¢h
negative form of such terms and similar expressamsimilar terminology. Such information is not
historical in nature and should not be interpreted a guarantee of future performance. Such
information is based on data, assumptions, andhatts that the Group considers reasonable. Such
information is subject to change or modificatiorsdéh on uncertainties in the economic, financial,
competitive or regulatory environments. This infatian is contained in several sections of this
Registration Document and includes statementsimglab the Group’s intentions, estimates and
targets with respect to its markets, strategieswtr, results of operations, financial situatiordan
liquidity. The Group’s forward-looking statementgesk only as of the date of this Registration
Document. Absent any applicable legal or regulateguirements, the Group expressly disclaims any
obligation to release any updates to any forwaotiltg statements contained in this Registration
Document to reflect any change in its expectatiansany change in events, conditions or
circumstances, on which any forward looking statehmntained in this Registration Document is
based. The Group operates in a competitive andtaaths evolving environment; it is therefore
unable to anticipate all risks, uncertainties dreotfactors that may affect its business, theiepioal
impact on its business or the extent to which tbeuoence of a risk or combination of risks could
have significantly different results from those set in any forward-looking statements, it beingeab
that such forward-looking statements do not caustia guarantee of actual results.

Information on the Market and Competition

This Registration Document contains, in particiteChapter 6, “Business”, information relating to
the Group’s markets and to its competitive posijtiocluding with respect to sales volumes of the
various market participants in the regions wheee@noup does business, the Group’s market share,
product sales in various categories and the Grospare of those categories. Unless otherwise
indicated, the information contained in this Regison Document related to market shares and the
size of relevant markets are the Group’s estimameisare provided for illustrative purposes only. To
the best of the Group’s knowledge, there are nbagitative external sources providing exhaustive
and comprehensive coverage or analysis of the Gronprkets or product categories in the regions
where it does business. Consequently, the Groupesnaktimates based on a number of sources,
including studies and statistics from independbirdtparties (in particular Freedonia, the European
Federation of the Parquet Industry and the Europessilient Flooring Manufacturers’ Institute), data
published by other market participants and datanftbe Group’s operating subsidiaries. These
various studies, estimates, research and informatihich the Group considers reliable, have not
been verified by independent experts. The Groups due guarantee that a third party using other
methods to analyze or compile the market data woltdin the same results. In addition, the Group’s
competitors may define their markets and categaiiésrently.

Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risk fagtor Chapter 4, “Risk Factdrsbefore making a
decision to invest. The occurrence of all or anythe#fse risks could have a negative effect on the
Group’s business, results of operation, financ@ifion or prospects. Furthermore, additional risks
that have not yet been identified or that are woistdered material by the Group as of the datéisf t
Registration Document could produce adverse effects
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1. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FRENCH VERSION OF THE REGIST RATION
DOCUMENT

11 NAME AND POSITION OF THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FRENCH VERSION
OF THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Mr. Michel Giannuzzi, Chairman of the Company’s Mgement Board.

1.2 CERTIFICATION OF THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FRENCH VERSION OF
THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

“I certify, having taken all reasonable care to ens that such is the case, that the information
contained in this registration document is, to nmpwledge, in accordance with the facts and
contains no omission likely to affect its import.

| obtained a completion letter from the statutoryd#ors indicating that they have verified the
information relating to the financial condition arfthancial data included in this registration
document and that they have read the entire registn document.

The 2013 consolidated financial statements preseint¢he registration document have been the
subject of an auditors’ report, which contains aten@oncerning the changes in accounting
methods made as of January 1, 2013.

April 17, 2014

Michel Giannuzzi
Chairman of the Management Board

1.3 NAME AND POSITION OF THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Mr. Fabrice Barthélemy

Chief Financial Officer of the Group

2 rue de I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, France

Tel: +33 (0)1 41 20 40 40 Responsibility for Finahénformation

14 TENTATIVE FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE SCHEDULE

The financial information that Tarkett disclosesth® public will be available on Tarkett's
website (www.tarkett.com).

For informational purposes only, Tarkett’s finamclesclosure schedule through December 31,
2014 is expected to be as follows:

First quarter results April 17, 2014
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting May 13, 2014
First half results July 31, 2014
Third quarter results October 20, 2014
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2. RESPONSIBILITY FOR STATUTORY AUDIT
2.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS

KPMG Audit, a department of KPMG S.A.

Represented by Mr. Philippe Grandclerc

1, cours Valmy
92923 Paris La Défense

KPMG S.A. is a member of th€ompagnie Régionale des Commissaires aux Comptes de
Versailles(the Regional Association of Auditors of Versai)le

KPMG S.A!'s term as statutory auditor was reneweth@ Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of
the Company held on May 23, 2008, for a duratiosixfiscal years.

Its term will therefore expire at the close of thenual shareholders’ meeting convened to
approve the financial statements as of and foyéae ended December 31, 2013.

Praxor Audit
Represented by Mr. Florent Gesbert

23, rue Clapeyron
75008 Paris

Praxor Audit is a member of t@ompagnie Régionale des Commissaires aux ComptRarie
(the Regional Association of Auditors of Paris).

Praxor Audit’s term as statutory auditor was rerwatthe Combined Shareholders’ Meeting of
the Company held on May 23, 2008, for a duratiosixfiscal years.

Its term will therefore expire at the close of thenual shareholders’ meeting convened to
approve the financial statements as of and foytlae ended December 31, 2013.

2.2 ALTERNATE STATUTORY AUDITORS
Mr. Michel Seguin

1, cours Valmy
92923 Paris La Défense

Michel Seguinis a member of th&€€ompagnie Régionale des Commissaires aux Comptes de
Versailles(the Regional Association of Auditors of Versai)le

Mr. Seguin’s term as alternate statutory auditos wenewed at the Combined Shareholders’
Meeting of the Company held on May 23, 2008, fdueation of six fiscal years.

His term will therefore expire at the close of thenual shareholders’ meeting convened to
approve the financial statements as of and foytlae ended December 31, 2013.
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Mr. Henri Grillet

23, rue Clapeyron
75008 Paris

Henri Grillet is a member of theompagnie Régionale des Commissaires aux ComptBarie
(the Regional Association of Auditors of Paris).

Mr. Grillet was appointed alternate statutory aodét the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of the
Company held on October 2, 2013, for the remainfleis predecessor’s term.

His term will therefore expire at the close of thenual shareholders’ meeting convened to
approve the financial statements as of and foytlae ended December 31, 2013.
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3. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
3.1 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

The financial data presented below is derived ftbenGroup’s consolidated financial statements
as of and for the fiscal year ended December 313,2frepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, which are includedSéction 20.1, “Group Consolidated

Financial Statements”. The consolidated financiatesnents as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 have been audited by the Compatgtutory auditors. The report of the

Company's statutory auditors is included in Sectfnl.2, “Statutory Auditors’ Report on the

Consolidated Financial Statements as of and folds ended December 31, 2013".

The financial information shown below should bedréa conjunction with (i) the Group’s
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2013; (ii) the
analysis of the Group’s financial condition andutes presented in Chapter 9, “Management’s
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiemns”; and (iii) the analysis of the Group’s
cash position and equity capital presented in Ghial, “Liquidity and Capital Resources”. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements as offandhe year ended December 31, 2013 were
audited by KPMG and Praxor Audit, independent stayuauditors, as stated in their report dated
February 17, 2014, included in Section 20.1.2, ttStay Auditors’ Report on the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and fo#e Ended December 31, 2013".

Selected Group Consolidated Income Statement Data

For the year ended December 31,

(in € millions)

2012 2013
restated )
NEet reVENUES........vvveveeereeenrrernanns 2,291.5 2,516.4
Costof sales ......ccoceevveiriieiiiieens (1,765.8) (1,892.8)
Gross profit ......cccoeeeveviniieiiiees 525.7 623.7
Other operating income............ 7.6 8.9
Selling expenses..........ccccceeeenee. (213.5) (248.8)
Research and development expenses (19.8) (25.8)
General and administrative expenses (136.2) (162.3)
Other operating expenses....... (10.3) (14.8)
Operating inCOmMe..........cceeeeeereenne. 153.5 180.9
Net finance CostS.......cccovvvevienrinnnne. 4.0 (31.4)
Share in net income (loss) of equity
affiliates ........ccocoevvvneciiiiiecienas (1.9 (1.4)
Income tax exXpense ..........ccoceeueenee. (42.3) (47.9)
Net profit ... 85.2 100.3
Attributable to owners of the
Company.......ccceceeverceneenee e 83.6 99.1
Attributable to non-controlling
INTEIESES..cviiiveeerece e 1.6 1.2

(1) Reflects impact of adoption of IFRS 11 on 2@b#hparative information as well as different adjustits made in 201
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Selected Group Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

As of December 31,
(in € millions) 2012 restated1) 2013
Total ASSELS.....uveeiiveeecciiee et mmmemm e 1,863.7 1,826.5
Shareholders’ equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent............cccoovvee s e e e vveenns 683.6 690.2
Total non-current liabilities ............ccveceeeeneeen. 528.1 680.2
Total current liabilities ............cccocvvcemmmvveeecnnee. 641.9 450.0

M Reflects impact of adoption of IFRS 11 on 2012 carafive information as well as different adjustnsemiade in
2013.

Selected Group Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Ceat

For the year ended December 31,

(in € millions) 2012 restated) 2013

Net cash from operating activities ..........ccee... 230.7 205.6
Net cash used in investing activities .............. (343.3) (103.1)
Net cash from financing activities .................. 140.7 (83.8)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 81 2 18.8

) Reflects impact of adoption of IFRS 11 on 2012 carafive information as well as different adjustnsemade in
2013.

Selected Financial and Operational Data by Segment

For the year ended December 3

(in € millions) 2012 restated1) 2013
NEet REVENUES .....cooeeeeieeiieeeeeee e 2,291.5 2,516.4
679.0 669.6
477.4 673.6
874.1 887.5
260.9 285.8
262 310.0
76.3 71.3
30.1 74.0
180.0 190.1
Sports Surfaces 10.1 15.0
Central® ... (34.2) (40.3)
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 14.4 % 17.7 %
Net deb 441.8 429.0

End of Period

@ Reflects impact of adoption of IFRS 11 on 2012 parative information.

@ Adjusted EBITDA, which is not a standardized agtng term with a generally accepted definitionetpual to

operating income before depreciation, amortizatiod adjustments. Adjustments include, among othessructuring
costs intended to grow the Group’s future profifains or losses on significant asset sales; cektng to corporate
and legal restructuring, including legal fees amduésition costs as well as the impact on margihsecording

inventory of acquired companies in the Group’s bedasheet at fair value; management fees invoigedhb

shareholders of the Company; and expenses reltirsipare-based payments without any cash paymetjtisted

EBITDA is not a financial measure defined under &R should not be taken as a substitute for djperéncome, net
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income or cash flows from operating activities, sbould it be treated as a measure of liquidityjusitdd EBITDA

may be calculated differently by other companiethviiusinesses that are similar to or different fribv Group'’s.
Accordingly, the Group’s EBITDA calculation may no¢ comparable to that calculated by other issiB®s.Section
9.1.8.1, “Adjusted EBITDA", for a discussion of adjed EBITDA and a reconciliation to the most corapte IFRS
measure.

® ROCE corresponds to the ratio between (1) EBITickvithe Group defines as operating income beforantial

items and taxes and (2) capital employed (whichesponds to tangible and intangible assets (inegudoodwill),

plus working capital). ROCE is not a standardizedoanting term corresponding to a generally acceg&finition.

ROCE may be calculated differently by other companiith businesses that are similar to or diffefearh that of the
Group. Accordingly, the Group’s ROCE calculationynreot be comparable to that calculated by othareiss See
Section 10.8, “Return on Capital Employed”, foriacdssion of ROCE and a reconciliation to the nuashparable
IFRS measure.

®The Group defines net debt as the sum of non-cuinéerest-bearing loans and borrowings and curirerest-
bearing loans and borrowings, minus cash and casivaents. For more information on how net finahaebt is
calculated, see Section 10.3.1, “Net Debt".

3.2 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2014

The table below presents certain selected finara@h as of the dates and for the periods
indicated below. The selected financial data priesebelow has not been the subject of an audit
or of a limited review by the Company’s statutoug@ors.

Selected Consolidated Income Statement Information

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2014
(in millions of euros)

521.1 492.9

166.« 169.¢
14.0 140.8

179.¢ 157.¢

25.7 24.8

45.1 35.€

@ see definition in Note 2 to the table “Selectedafficial and Operational Data by Segment”, above.

Tarkett's performance in the first three month2014 demonstrated the solidity of its economic
model’s balance among geographical markets andusewd. In the CIS countries, the Group’s
teams also showed their capacity to take advamthtee Group’s leadership position and to react
rapidly to a difficult environment

Net Revenues

Net sales were €492.9 million in the first qua€R2014, a decrease of 5.4% as compared with
the first quarter of 2013. The first quarter isusturally the weakest of the year for the Group, in
particular in the Sports Surfaces segment andenCts region. In 2014, the first quarter was

marked by difficult economic conditions and strangrency devaluations in the CIS countries.

Despite these unfavorable circumstances, Tarket ade to limit the organic decrease in

revenues to 0.2%.
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Adjusted EBITDA

The Group’s adjusted EBITDA was €35.8 million iretfirst quarter of 2014, as compared with
€45.1 million in the first quarter of 2013. Adjudt&BITDA margin decreased by 140 points to
7.3%. This decrease was primarily the result oégative impact of €8.5 million from currency
effects in the CIS countries. Moreover, the coneerseffect of the U.S. dollar and other
currencies decreased EBITDA by an additional €3IBam. Costs of purchases and productivity

plans were in line with expectations. In the CI8& Group’s teams took additional measures to
reduce costs.
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4. RISK FACTORS

Investors should consider all of the informationfeeth in this Registration Document, including
the following risk factors, before deciding whetkeinvest in Tarkett's shares. Such risks are, as
of the date of this Registration Document, thegitkat the Company believes, were they to
occur, could have a material adverse effect onGhaup, its business, financial results, financial
condition and prospects. Additional risks that aret known at the date hereof, or that the
Group currently considers immaterial based on théoiimation available to it, may have a
material adverse effect on the Group, its busindissncial condition, financial results or
prospects.

4.1 RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS | NDUSTRY
4.1.1 Risks Relating to Economic Cycles

The flooring industry depends heavily on the conuia¢rand residential renovation market, and,
to a lesser extent, on the new construction makiile the renovation market is less cyclical
than the new construction market, it can be aftedig the cyclical nature of the general
economy. The renovation business tends to be mfkd in particular, by changes in consumer
confidence and disposable income, commercial aficeobccupancy rates, interest rates and the
availability of credit. These factors can causetfiations in demand, and, as a result, in the
Group’s sales volumes and margins.

The recent global economic downturn, along withdbe/nturn in the commercial and residential
renovation and construction market, had a negatiggact on the flooring industry and on the
Group’s business. The European crisis continuésite an unfavorable influence on the Group’s
level of activity in Europe, particularly in southheEurope, and on the profitability of some of its
segments, mainly wood floors. Although economicdittons have improved in certain regions,
new downturns could cause the industry to detasoagain in the future and have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financiatlition, financial results and prospects.

4.1.2 Risks Relating to Public Spending

A significant portion of the Group’s business catsiof sales to public sector end-users, in
particular educational and health care institutiand sports facilities. The Group’s activities in
these markets are significantly affected by pulspending levels. In a budget-constrained
environment, certain expenditures may be considered to be priorities. For example,
construction and renovation of sports infrastruetwere significantly affected by the contraction
of governmental budgets in North America and Euroyer the last few years. Moreover, public
institutions may decide to postpone certain reriomaprojects in order to concentrate on other
budgetary priorities. A decrease in public spendingld have a negative effect on demand for
the Group’s products and thus have a material adwveffect on its business, financial condition,
financial results and prospects.

4.1.3 Risks Relating to the Group’s Program for Optimizaion of Costs and Processes

In connection with its strategy of operational apgation, the Group has implemented a program
called World Class Manufacturing (“WCM”), with thebjective of increasing the Group’s
productivity and reducing production costs. Althouge WCM program has enabled the Group
to achieve significant cost savings over the last {ears, there can be no assurance that the
productivity efforts giving rise to such savingdlwie sustainable. Moreover, although the Group
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hopes to obtain additional savings in the futurepuld encounter difficulties and, as a result, fa
to achieve its objectives.

Moreover, certain of the Group’s business segm@misarticular wood floors in Western Europe

and the VCT business in the United States) arergodey turnaround plans, intended to improve
their performance and to return them to profitépiliThe Group has incurred, and may in the
future incur, restructuring and asset impairmergt£din connection with the implementation of
these turnaround plans. There can be no assutaaitcthése programs will succeed. If the Group
fails to return these business segments to prditiaht could be forced to recognize additional

impairment charges or incur additional restrucirtharges, which would have a negative
impact on its financial results and financial cdiuai.

4.1.4 Risks Relating to Fluctuations in Prices of Raw Matrials and Energy
The Group’s manufacturing processes use large ijeardf raw materials and energy resources.

A significant portion of the cost of raw materiabsspecially petrochemical products such as
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and plasticizers, as weals energy consumption and transportation
expense, is indirectly tied to crude oil prices amaffected by volatility of those prices. The
Group is also exposed to fluctuations in the priwfesther raw materials essential to its business,
such as wood.

In the event of a future increase in raw matenags, the Group’s business, financial condition
and financial results could be materially impadfdtlis unable to pass these additional costs on
to customers, in particular as a result of the ritaga of the cost increase, delays resulting from
backlogs, competitive pressures or market condition

4.15 Risks Relating to the International Nature of the Goup’s Business and the
Economic and Political Risks in the Countries in Wich It Does Business

The Group does business and maintains productipacig throughout the world, including in
countries outside of the European Union and theddnbtates. In particular, it is present in
Russia and in the other countries of the CIS. Feuntiore, the Group is developing its business in
Asia Pacific (in particular, in China), and in LatAmerica (in particular, in Brazil). These
countries have greater economic and political biktg, as well as greater exposure to social
unrest and infrastructure complications, than nmoa¢ure markets.

The Group’s commercial and financial results maydiectly or indirectly affected by any
unfavorable change in the economic, political gutatory environment in the countries where it
manufactures or sells its products. Thus, the timad indirect consequences of civil conflicts,
terrorist activity, political instability, healthsks, or instability in the economic and regulatory
framework in countries where the Group does busimesild have a material adverse effect on
the level of investment in renovation and new aarsion in such countries and, as a result, on
the Group’s business, financial condition, finahoésults and prospects. Such events could lead,
for example, to delays or losses in the deliverythef Group’s products or the supply of raw
materials, to a significant decrease in sales,oolr increase in security costs, insurance
premiums or other costs necessary to ensure cagtofioperations.

The Group is especially exposed to the risk of ritmt@ion in the economic, political or

regulatory environment of Russia and the other c@igtries. Together, these countries represent
approximately 84.6% of 2013 consolidated net reesnaf the CIS & Others segment, or
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approximately 29.8% of the Group’s total 2013 cdidsted net revenues. Adjusted EBITDA for

the CIS & Others segment was €190 million in 20d83approximately 61.1% of the Group’s

adjusted EBITDA. As a result, a material adversange in the CIS countries could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s revenuedinadcial results.

The Group’s international business exposes it toudtitude of local political and commercial
risks, and its success depends on its capacitgaptdo economic, social and political changes in
each of the countries where it is present. In &mtitegislative or regulatory changes (including
changes in tax law, capital controls, customs duiimport and export rules, employment law,
intellectual property protection and health, safetd environmental rules) could significantly
increase the Group’s costs in the various countsieere it is present or limit its capacity to
freely transfer capital and could, as a result,easily affect the Group’s business, financial
condition, financial results and prospects.

4.1.6 Risks Relating to External Growth

The Group’s strategy relies in part on externalgho Such growth may include acquisitions of

companies or assets, equity investments or thetieneaf alliances in its sector and in the

geographic regions in which the Group hopes eitloeincrease or reinforce its presence.
However, the Group may be unable to identify ativactargets or enter into transactions at an
opportune time or on satisfactory terms. Moreogamrn the competitive environment, the Group
may be unable to complete external growth transastthat meet its investment criteria, which
could have a material adverse effect on the impitation of its strategy.

Furthermore, to obtain the necessary authorizafimnacquisitions from competition authorities
in one or more countries, the Group could be fotoealccept certain conditions, such as the sale
of certain assets or segments and/or undertakésgsating the conduct of its business.

External growth creates risks that include theofsihg: (i) the business plan underlying the
acquisition valuations may be based on assumpti@igurn out not to be true, particularly with
respect to synergies, expected savings and theteobf the markets in question; (ii) the Group
may fail to effectively integrate the acquired canjes, their technologies, their product lines or
their employees; (iii) the Group may be unabledtin certain key employees or customers of
the acquired companies; (iv) the Group may incréssadebtedness in order to finance such
acquisitions and (v) it may carry out acquisiti@tsa time that proves inopportune in the market
in question. The anticipated benefits from futurgast acquisitions may not materialize within
the expected time periods or at the expected levdlich could affect the Group’s financial
condition, financial results and prospects.

4.1.7 Risks Relating to the Quality of the Group’s Produts

The success of the Group’s business depends ogutddy and reliability of its products and

customer relations. In the event that the Grouptedpcts repeatedly fail to satisfy customer
requirements, its reputation and sales volumesdcsufifer. For example, the Group was recently
faced with customer claims based on defects inrdihesed in manufacturing artificial grass.
Following these claims, the Group decided to emdelationship with its fiber supplier and began
internal production, which required significant @stment. Moreover, certain of the Group’s
vinyl products manufactured in Western Europe Haae problems with yellowing, a common

defect in vinyl products, in particular when protéermulations are changed. It is possible that
customers will encounter quality or reliability ptems with the Group’s products that are
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significant enough to have a material adverse effadts financial results, reputation, business,
financial condition or prospects.

In addition, in the event that the Group marketectéve products, the relevant subsidiaries could
incur tort or contract liability, which could lea adverse effects on the Group’s financial
results, business, financial condition and prospect

4.1.8 Risks Relating to Obtaining Product Certification

To market its products, the Group is required ttaimband maintain certifications in certain
markets. These may be required by law or by ingustandards that the Group must meet under
the terms and conditions applicable to its renavedir construction projects.

The process of obtaining product certification banlong and costly. There can be no assurance
as to the Group’s ability to obtain or maintaintifimations, or as to the length of time it willke

to obtain them. Moreover, certification requirengechange continually and require constant
monitoring. If the product certifications were degdd, refused, suspended or withdrawn,
marketing of these products could be delayed ohipited in the relevant countries. The Group
could then run the risk of losing sales in impottaarkets.

4.1.9 Risks Relating to Strong Competition in the RegionsNhere the Group Does
Business

The flooring industry is highly competitive. The daip faces significant competition from a few
large competitors, humerous local manufacturersiatgependent distributors. For a description
of the Group’s principal competitors, see Sectioh.46, “Tarkett's Competitive Position”.
Certain of these competitors have greater resowandsaccess to capital than does the Group.
The arrival of new competitors, new products or nteshnologies developed by competitors
could also affect the Group’s competitive positidhe Group can provide no assurance that it
will be able to maintain its margins in the facecompetition, particularly if new entranggin
access to one or more of its markets, or if cortipatiintensifies for any other reason.
Maintaining the Group’s competitive position couldquire additional investments in new
products, new manufacturing facilities or the depehent of the Group’s distribution network,
marketing and sales activities. These competitresgures could lead to reduced demand for the
Group’s products or force it to lower its pricesicB events could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, financial condition, ficiahresults and prospects.

4.1.10 Risks Relating to the Group’s Dependence on CertaiSuppliers

The Group relies on a limited number of suppliers dertain essential raw materials. This is
especially true for the manufacture of resilienbfing, for which the Group uses primarily raw
materials derived from crude oil, like PVC and glzgers, for which the suppliers are large
chemical companies, which are limited in numbepy contracts are periodically renewed or
renegotiated. An adverse change in the Group’'dioakhip with one of its suppliers, more
onerous terms (in particular payment terms), nangi@ance with undertakings under the
contracts, non-renewal of these contracts or rehemwdess favorable terms, the insolvency of a
supplier or any increased concentration of suppli@én particular after a merger between
suppliers that strengthens their negotiating pmsjtcould have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s business, financial condition, financiaduks and prospects.
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With respect to machines and equipment, althoughf #ise date of this Registration Document
the Group has not experienced significant probleiitis its suppliers, there can be no assurance
that this will remain true in the future. In pattiar, if one of the Group’s suppliers goes out of
business or terminates a supply contract, and ttoeigsis unable rapidly to fine substitute
supplier under satisfactory terms, the Group cduddbe difficulty obtaining the necessary
replacement parts to repair its equipment or egped project delays. Such a situation could
have an adverse effect on the Group’s businesandial condition, financial results and
prospects.

4.1.11 Risks Relating to Volumes and Production Capacity

In the past, there have been periods when highmeduordered by customers have led to
production capacity constraints. For example, tlieu@ faced capacity constraints when the
demand for flooring significantly increased in RassThe Group recently made significant
investments in Russia to respond to the growthemahd there. If such a situation were to recur,
the Group might not be able to benefit from growththe market in question and might be
required to make significant investments to meenated. If the Group were unable to make the
necessary investments to meet customer demand,tioe icosts of those investments proved
significant and/or were not offset by order volumteere could be an adverse effect on the
Group’s growth, financial condition, financial rétsuor prospects.

4.1.12 Risks Relating to Interruption or Security Breach d Information Systems

The Group uses complex information systems, formgte, in production management, sales,
logistics, accounting and reporting, which are esak for conducting its commercial and
industrial activities. Although the Group has bagk-computer systems and infrastructure, a
failure of one of them could have a material adeezffect on the Group’Business, financial
condition, financial results and prospects.

The Group could also be subject to attacks ondmputer networks. A growing number of
companies have recently been the victims of inbnsior attempted intrusions into their
computer security systems. The techniques usedtfacking, interrupting, degrading quality or
sabotaging information systems are constantly éwglvand it is often impossible to identify
them before an attack is launched. The Group ntightinable to arm itself in advance against
such techniques or rapidly mount an appropriate effiective response. Any breakdown or
interruption of the Group’s information systemsaasesult of such intrusions or attacks could
have a material adverse effect on its businesandial condition, financial results and prospects.

4.1.13 Risks Relating to the Group’s Retirement and Other Employee Benefit
Commitments

The Group incurs significant obligations in conmattwith its retirement and health plans and
other employee benefits, primarily in North Ameriaad Western Europe (in particular in
Germany, the United Kingdom and Sweden). As of Ddmr 31, 2013, these retirement, health
and other obligations totaled €205.2 milliaf, which €83.0 million was covered by dedicated
assets.

The Group’s financing requirements for these olliges depends on the future performance of
the dedicated assets, the discount rates used deungefuture obligations, actuarial forecasts,
changes affecting retirement plans and applicagelations. As a result of the large number of
parameters that determine the Group’s financialgatibns for retirement and other employee
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benefits and the difficulty in predicting them, ftgure requirements to finance retirement, health
and other employee benefit obligations could bgdarthan the amounts estimated as of
December 31, 2013. In that event, these finandbdations could have a material adverse effect
on the Group's financial condition and financiabults. For more information, see Note 21,
“Employee Benefits”, to the financial statementduded in Section 20.1.1, “Group Consolidated
Financial Statements as of and for the Year EndedeBber 31, 2013” and Section 9.1.8.2,
“Estimates and Assumptions Used in Preparing FiahBtatements”.

4.1.14 Risks Relating to Goodwill and Deferred Tax Assets

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s goodwill eta€425.6 million, of which €152.3 million
related to the acquisition of the Tandus groupufeutevents could lead to an impairment of
intangible fixed assets and/or goodwill. As a resfilthe substantial amount of intangible fixed
assets and goodwill on the Group's balance shegtsanificant impairment or depreciation
charges could have an adverse effect on its fiahrondition and financial results for the fiscal
year in which such charges were recorded.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s consolidatefiérded tax assets totaled €92.7 million.
These deferred tax assets are recorded on the Gimalpnce sheet in the amount that the Group
believes it can use within a reasonable periodno¢ {(five years) and, in any event, before the
expiration of any loss carry-forwards. Neverthel¢iss Group may be unable to use the expected
amount of deferred tax assets if its future taxabhb®me and the related taxes are lower than
expected. The Group also bases its projectionshiruse of deferred tax assets on its current
understanding of tax regulations, which could vaither due to changes in tax and accounting
regulations or due to audits or tax litigation tleauld affect the amount of these deferred tax
assets. If the Group believed that it could nofuinire years, use its deferred assets, it would be
required to write these assets down on its balaheet, which would have a material adverse
effect on its net financial results and financiahdition.

4.2 INDUSTRIAL RISKS

For a description of the principal safety and emwinental regulations applicable to the Group,
see Sections 6.1.9.3, “Standards Applicable toGhmup’s Products” and 6.1.10, “Environment
and Sustainable Development”.

421 Risks Relating to Compliance with Environmental andSafety Regulations

The environmental, health, hygiene and safety etguids with which the Group must comply
relate primarily to industrial safety, emissionsdscharge of chemicals or dangerous substances
(including industrial waste); their use, productidraceability, handling, transport, storage and
elimination or exposure to such substances; and rémeediation of industrial sites and
environmental clean-up. The Group is subject tictstequirements with respect to safety,
particularly concerning fire-prevention standarggleed to its products and manufacturing sites,
as well as standards relating to the slip-resigtari¢he flooring it produces.

Complying with these regulations requires the Groegularly to incur significant expense. A
violation of these rules could lead to fines oreotkivil, administrative or criminal sanctions,
including the withdrawal of permits and licensesessary to continue doing business. Changes
to these laws and regulations or to their integiieh could lead to significant expense and/or
investment, which could adversely affect the Grsupisiness, financial results and prospects.
Moreover, tightening regulations applicable to amrt substances that the Group uses to
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manufacture its products, in particular PVC andaierglues, could force the Group to use more
expensive substances, change its formulations hekfore decrease the profitability of its
products, which could have a material adverse eftec its business, financial results and
prospects.

4.2.2 Risks Relating to Industrial Accidents

Due to the toxicity and flammability of certain ramaterials, the Group’s finished products and
manufacturing or supply processes present a numbesafety, fire and pollution risks. In
particular, manufacturing processes using flammatdeerials (chemical products and wood, for
example) can create a significant risk of fire gplesion. The Group could be held liable in the
event of accidents involving its business or presluim that event, the adverse consequences for
the Group’s business, financial condition, finahoésults or prospects could be significant.

4.2.3 Risk Relating to Exposure to Toxic or Dangerous Sudiances

In the past, the Group has used significant quastdf chemical, toxic or hazardous substances
in manufacturing its products and has used varinsiglation materials (such as asbestos) in its
industrial facilities. Although the Group has impiented safety and oversight procedures at the
Group level as well as at the level of each prdducsite, its employees and, on occasion, third
parties may have been exposed to these substaniesguipment containing toxic or hazardous

substances prior to their progressive removal apllacement with substitute products. Such

individuals could develop diseases and seek to ti@dGroup liable (see Section 4.2.4, “Risks

Relating to Asbestos Exposure”). If the Group ikliable in connection with these proceedings

or other future proceedings, this liability may baa material adverse effect on its financial

condition and financial results.

Moreover, some of the Group’s products contain é¢balrsubstances that produce emissions
during at least part of the product’s life cycldthdugh these emissions are lower than applicable
thresholds under current regulations, they mayrbegn to have harmful effects on human health
at lower levels than those currently believed tesafe. If the Group is held liable in that event,
there could be a material adverse effect on thei@sdinancial results or financial condition.

424 Risks Relating to Asbestos Exposure

In the United States, the Group has been suediliy fiarties for past exposure to the asbestos
contained in certain products manufactured at sofmis sites until 1982. In the event that
current or future lawsuits require the Group to payounts greater than those covered by the
provisions it has recorded on its balance shest, irisurance and the indemnification
commitments provided by third parties, these prdicegs could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s financial condition and financial resul

For more information, see Section 20.4, “Legal Beafings”.

4.3 MARKET RISKS

431 Foreign Exchange Risk

As a result of the international nature of the G@feubusiness, foreign exchange fluctuations have

a direct accounting impact on its consolidatedraial statements, which results in settlement
risk impacting income and expenses incurred inigoreurrencies and risks relating to the
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conversion into euros of the balance sheets ammiacstatements of the Group’s subsidiaries
outside the euro zone.

In 2013, a significant portion of the Group’s remerwas earned in currencies other than the euro,
in particular the U.S. dollar (33% of consolidatet revenues in 2013), the Russian ruble (21%),
the Swedish krona (7%), the pound sterling (3%g, &ustralian dollar (2%), the Ukrainian
grivna (3%) and the Kazakh tenge (2%). The Groigs tto reduce the impact on its income of
such exchange rate variations in the short-termddoyeloping its production capacities in the
monetary zones where it sells its products, by izimg certain internal services in foreign
currency, and by centralizing risk management thinailne use of foreign-exchange derivatives to
offset the exposure recorded on its balance shekits future exposure relating to cash-flow in
foreign currencies that may be generated by pueshand sales in the succeeding six months.
However, significant and sustained movements irhamge rates could adversely affect the
Group'’s financial results, financial condition gmebspects. With respect to the Russian ruble, the
Group’s policy is to reflect exchange rate fluctoias between the ruble and the euro in its
product prices. The Group’s exposure to the rublgedds on the Group’s ability to maintain its
pricing policy, which it may not be able to do systtically in the future.

For more information, see paragraph 1.2 of Note'R#hancial Risks and Financial Instruments”,
to the financial statements included in Sectiorl 20.“Group Consolidated Financial Statements
as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013” Sedtion 9.1.4, “Exchange Rate
Fluctuations”.

4.3.2 Interest-Rate Risks

Interest-rate fluctuations have a direct impacthon Group’s financial results. As of December
31, 2013, the Group’s consolidated net detdich is the sum of non-current interest-bearing
loans and borrowings and current interest-beariragd and borrowings, minus cash and cash
equivalents) totaled €429 million, and its grosbtdeas €525.7 million, including €523.7 million

in floating-rate debt and €2 million in fixed-ratkebt or capped debt after taking into account
interest-rate hedges. The Group uses a hedgingypotiended to limit the impact of an increase
in interest rates on its financial expenses. Howeas of December 31, 2013, after hedging, a
simultaneous increase of 1% in all interest ratealdtranslate into an increase in net financial
expense of €3.5 million per year, before taxes,rediea simultaneous decrease of 1%, or to zero,
in interest rates would result in a decrease iffinahcial expense before taxes of €0.7 million.

For more information, see paragraph 1.1 of Note'Ri#hancial Risks and Financial Instruments”,
to the financial statements included in Sectiorl 20.“Group Consolidated Financial Statements
as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013'Saation 10.3 “Financial Debt”.

433  Liquidity Risk

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s consolidatembsy debt totaled €525.million and
consolidated net delbbtaled €429 million. In addition, the Group hadli€ million in available
credit lines as of the same date. The Group's daiyment schedule is included in Section
10.3.3, “Gross Financial Debt”. The Group’s nexgn#icant maturity date is in the second
guarter of 2016, when the €450 million syndicatestlit facility will expire and the last payment
under the €129 million term loan, for €77 milliomil be due.

The Group’s credit agreements (primarily its syatkd credit lines with a maximum available
amount of €450 million and its term loans with nmaMim amounts of €129 million and €360
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million) include certain covenants, including chargf control provisions and financial ratios, in
particular a net debt/EBITDA ratio of less than 8wer the preceding twelve months. These
provisions are described in Section 10.4, “Revg\vsyndicated Multi-Currency Credit Facility”.
Breach of these covenants or ratios could caus&thap’s creditors to accelerate the amounts
due under the credit agreements. In that evenGtbeap could be unable to repay these amounts,
or could be forced to refinance the debt on legsrible terms. Moreover, such a situation would
make it difficult to put new financing in place, oould make such financing significantly more
expensive, which could constitute an obstacle ¢oGhoup’s growth strategy and to its ability to
finance investments.

For more information, see paragraph 2 of Note Ehancial Risks and Financial Instruments”,
to the financial statements included in Sectiorl 20.“Group Consolidated Financial Statements
as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013” @&ction 10.4 “Revolving Syndicated
Multi-Currency Credit Facility”.

4.4 LEGAL RISKS
441 Risks Relating to the Protection of Intellectual Poperty

The Group’s future growth depends on its abilitydistain, preserve and protect its patents,
trademarks and other intellectual property rights.

Over the last several years, the Group has pursmeémbitious innovation policy, which
necessitates protection to ensure that the Graamsethe free use of its innovations and has the
necessary legal tools to fight patent infringensamd unfair competition.

As a result, the legal costs that the Group in¢argnforce compliance with its intellectual
property rights could prove significant.

Conversely, the Group cannot guarantee that itnailinfringe the rights of third parties. In that
event, the Group could be ordered to pay signifidamages, be forced to ceasdling products
that infringe the intellectual property rights inegtion and incur additional expenses to develop
technology that respects the intellectual propeidits of others, or be forced to enter into
licenses permitting it to use the disputed techgylo

Since the Group conducts part of its business imtizs where the protection of intellectual
property rights is less developed than in EuromkMorth America, it cannot guarantee the level
of protection that will be given to its portfolid patents and trademarks nor can it avoid the risk
of infringement, appropriation or illegal use « ibhtellectual property rights.

4.4.2 Risks Relating to Legal and Administrative Proceedigs

The Group is the subject of various legal procegglidescribed in Section 20.4, “Legal
Proceedings”. In the ordinary course of busindss Group is exposed to litigation relating to its
products, in particular sports flooring. MoreovierMarch 2013, thé\utorité de la Concurrence
(the French Competition Authority) launched invgations against several flooring
manufacturers, including Tarkett, in relation tesgible anti-competitive practices on the French
market for vinyl flooring. Such litigation and instigations could have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, financial results, finahoondition and prospects.
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The Group’s policy for covering these risks is digmal in Section 4.6, “Insurance and Coverage
of Risks”.

4.4.3 Tax Risk

As an international group doing business in mayntries, the Group is subject to multiple tax
laws and various regulatory requirements, whichedffits commercial, financial and tax
objectives.

Because tax laws and regulations in effect in #meous countries where the Group does business
do not always provide clear or definitive guidetinghe Group’s structure, the conduct of its
business and the relevant tax regime are basets ontérpretation of applicable tax laws and
regulations. The Group cannot guarantee that timsepretations will not be questioned by the
tax authorities, or that applicable laws and refjuts in certain of these countries will not
change, be interpreted differently or be appliezbiisistently. More generally, any violation of
tax laws and regulations in the countries whereGheup or its subsidiaries are located or do
business could lead to tax assessments or the payhéate fees, interest, fines and penalties.
This could have a negative impact on the Grouglcéfe tax rate and financial results.

Furthermore, the Group records deferred tax asseits balance sheet to account for future tax
savings resulting from differences between thevelyes and accounting values of its assets and
liabilities or tax loss carry forwards of Group ities. The effective use of these assets in future
years depends on tax laws and regulations, thewas of current or future audits and litigation
and the expected future financial results of thiéies in question.

4.5 RISK MANAGEMENT

451 Organization of Internal Control and Risk Managemert

451.1 Objectives

The Group considers risk management and intermdtado be closely linked. The Group’s risk
management and internal control process is disduasgection 16.7, “Organizational of Internal
Controls and Risk Management”.

452 Management of Significant Risks

The table below sets forth the most significarksito which the Group is exposed and how such

risks are managed. For detailed information onrtbks to which the Group is exposed, see
Sections 4.1, “Risks Relating to the Group andni¢ustry”, through 4.4, “Legal Risks”.

Risks Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to diversify in order to aehé balance among the various markets
where it does business.
Risks related The Group is present in:
to economic * several geographic regions;
cycles » several product categories;
*  both the commercial and the residential marketd; an
» the renovation market, which is less sensitive tmnemic cycles than the new
construction market.
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The Group develops preferred and sustainable eakttips with its suppliers.

The Group develops production processes that givdlekibility and reduce its
dependence on certain types of PVC suppliers.

The Group tries to reflect increases in the priteav materials in its product prices as
rapidly as possible.

Risks relating
to raw
materials

 The Group locates its production facilities closetihhe markets in which it sells its
Foreign products, and it pays production costs in locatency.
Exchange Risk ¢ The Group regularly adjusts product prices in dertaarkets to account for chances in
exchange rates, in particular between the rubletlzméuro.
»  Where possible, the Group uses s-term hedgefor certain currencies

Risk Relating ¢ The Group has put in place a testing and appronagss for developing new products
to Defective and changing the formulation of existing produets well as process for the approval of
Products new components.

» This risk is covered by specific insurance.

45.3 Compliance Procedures

In order to comply with all applicable laws andukions, the Group has developed compliance
procedures with respect to antitrust and laws amndiption risk.

45.3.1 Compliance with Antitrust Laws
The Group’s goal is to preserve dynamic, healthy/lonest competition.

To that effect, in 2011 the Group instituted anteurgt law compliance program, piloted by the
Group’s Legal Department and outside experts. Trisgram is intended to ensure strict
compliance by the Group’s employees with competitaavs, regulations and rules.

This program is deployed in a consistent and caotis manner, on a worldwide basis, through
distribution of the antitrust policy and through nmerous events promoting sensitivity to
competition issues. It is applicable in all of twuntries where the Group operates and covers all
of its activities, including where such activitia® carried out through joint ventures.

Local legal departments participate actively inifyarg that local competition regulations are
followed in each of the geographical regions whbeeGroup operates.

45.3.2 Prevention of Corruption and Fraud

The prevention of corruption and fraud is one & @&roup’s major priorities as it is for all of its
employees. Given the diversity of contexts in teegraphic regions in which the Group operates
and the significance of investments made, the Gisygarticularly vigilant against the risks of
corruption and fraud. Although the large majorifytlee Group’s customers in the most sensitive
countries operate in the private sector, whereuption is less present than in the public sector,
the Group is not immune from a potential instanfceooruption.

In 2012, supervised by the Group’s Legal Departnagt with the cooperation of the local legal
departments, the Group launched a specific actanmtp fight corruption.

In connection with this action plan, the Group pasin place anti-corruption policies, presented

in-person and electronic anti-corruption trainimglassued guidelines covering the delivery and
receipt of gifts and relationships with intermediar
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The fight against fraud is carried out as part led Group’s financial and internal control
processes, and verifications are carried out byAtdit and Internal Control Department. To that
effect, fraud prevention and detection guidelinegehbeen distributed to raise awareness of these
issues.

4.6 INSURANCE AND COVERAGE OF RISKS

The Group’s policy with respect to insurance isrdowated by the Legal Department, which is
responsible for identifying the main insurable sigthd quantifying their potential consequences.
This policy has the following objectives:

» limit certain risks by recommending preventive mgas in cooperation with the
Group’s other departments; or

» choose to cover risks of an exceptional natureujindnsurance, including risks with
high potential magnitude but low frequency.

In connection with the insurance program, the Gragfively mitigates industrial risks, by
collaborating with FM Global, its property and caky insurer, which provides expertise in
engineering and fire prevention.

Each of the Group’s subsidiaries is responsiblgfoviding the Group’s Legal Department with
the necessary information to identify and quanitifsured or insurable risks at the Group level,
and for implementing the proper methods to ensugniess continuity if an event occurs. On
these bases, the Legal Department negotiates létingjor insurance and reinsurance providers
to put in place optimal insurance coverage forifls-coverage needs.

The Group’s local subsidiaries also enter into llanaurance policies to cover risks suited to
local coverage, such as automobile insurance.

The Group purchases insurance based on reasorstibtates of probable liability resulting from
tort, property-casualty and other risks. This eatibn takes into account the analyses of
insurance companies as the risk subscribers. Thap&toes not insure against risks for which
there is no coverage available on the insurancekehafor which the cost of insurance is
disproportionately high compared with the poteniahefit or for which it believes the risk does
not require insurance coverage.

The Group's insurance programs generally take thenfof master policies. These are
complemented by local policies in certain countmdsere having only master policies is not
permitted. The master insurance policies apphh&Group’s overall operations, complementing
local policies (difference-in-conditions/differenae limits, or “DIC DIL"), if the coverage in
guestion proves insufficient or does not coverebent. The local policies are also entered into to
take into account local legislative specificities apnstraints in the country or countries in
guestion. The Group also has captive insurance ani@p, enabling it to reduce the premiums
paid to insurers and thus to reduce its insuranstsc

The Group’s insurance policies contain exclusimagms and deductibles that could expose it to
unfavorable consequences in the event of a sigmifievent or legal action against it. Moreover,
it may be required to pay indemnification that @& novered by its insurance policies or to incur
significant expenses that may not be covered, oy tm insufficiently covered, under its
insurance policies.
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The Group’s primary insurance policies, entered inith insurance companies of international
reputation, are the following:

general liability insurance, which includes opematil liability coverage and product
liability coverage. The maximum coverage amount€8) million. Professional
liability insurance is also included in this poljcgnd is subject to a specific limit.
General liability insurance covers all damages edus third parties, such as bodily,
tangible and intangible damages;

property-casualty and business interruption instgaimaximum combined coverage
of €400 million). All of the Group’s facilities areovered by this policy if and to the
extent that values of local sites exceed the contleductibles;

director and officer liability insurance;

environmental liability insurance; and

transport insurance, covering inventory and invenito transit.
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5. INFORMATION RELATING TO THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
5.1 HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

511 Company Name

The Company’s name is Tarkett.

5.1.2 Place of Registration and Registration Number

The Company is registered with the Nanterre Trauk @mpanies Register under number 352
849 327.

5.1.3 Date of Incorporation and Duration

The Company was incorporated on December 29, 188@ fduration of ninety-nine years as
from its registration with the Trade and ComparRegister, or until December 29, 2088, unless
dissolved earlier or extended.

5.1.4 Registered Office, Legal Form and Applicable Legisition

The Company’s registered office is located at 2, da I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, France.
The telephone number of the registered office & €31 41 20 40 40.

The Company is a French limited liability corpooati(société anonymewith a Management
Board and a Supervisory Board, governed by apgickbench laws and regulations, including
the provisions of Book Il of the French Commer@&alde, as well as by the Company’s Bylaws.

5.1.5 History of the Group

The Group takes its name from Tarkett AB, its Swkdiubsidiary that began its operations in the
late 19th century.

The Group was formed in 1997 through the mergehef-rench company Sommer Allibert S.A.
and Tarkett AG (which were at the time listed oe tharis and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges,
respectively). Sommer Allibert S.A. was itself tlesult of the merger of two French companies
created in the early 20th century. The members@Meconinck family, who own SIC56ciété
d’'Investissement Deconingkhe majority shareholder of the Group, are thieshof Mr. Allibert,
the founder of one of these companies.

Beginning in 1997, the Group gradually sold off iten-flooring businesses, in particular
Sommer Allibert S.A.’s automotive business in 2G@1grder to focus its business exclusively on
flooring.

At the same time, the Group began a strategy ohmiya growth in the flooring sector through a
strategy of acquisitions and joint ventures. In2afe Group strengthened its business in Eastern
Europe by forming a partnership with the Serbiamgany Sintelon AD (then listed on the
Belgrade Stock Exchange), which had a particulathpng presence in Russia. The Group
gradually acquired Sintelon AD’s shares over tinmal dought out the remaining minority
interests in 2009. In 2003, the Group delistedCigmadian subsidiary, Domco -Tarkett, from the
Toronto Stock Exchange. In 2004, it acquired thglish Company Marley Floors Limited, a
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specialist in commercial flooring, and took a mibtorinterest in the Canadian company
FieldTurf, a manufacturer of artificial grass, aicong control of that company the following
year.

In 2005, the Group continued to pursue its develmnstrategy by entering into two joint
ventures: one with the Aconcagua group, to deviHepGroup’s production of laminate flooring
in North America, and another with Sonae IndusB@PS, S.A., to develop the Group’s
production of laminate flooring in Western Europée Group also acquired the U.S. company
Johnsonite Inc., a manufacturer of resilient flogriand accessories, which strengthened its
presence in North America.

In 2006, the Group finalized the delisting of itdsidiary Tarkett AG from the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange.

In 2007, investment funds advised and managed bllb€oy Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P.
(“KKR") indirectly acquired approximately 50% ofeéhCompany’s shares while the Deconinck
family retained approximately 50% of the share &dpthe remaining shares being held directly
or indirectly by management. Also in 2007, Mr. MitlGiannuzzi was appointed as Chairman of
the Management Board, and the Group began theggad@verhauling its management team.

In the same year, the Group acquired the U.S. coymnpaefargo, which specialized in
manufacturing sports surfaces. It also began tbegss of selling its wood flooring business in
North America, which was completed in 2009.

In 2008, the Group acquired the U.S. company BeySmorts Surfaces, a specialist in
manufacturing athletic tracks, bought out the reringi minority shareholders in FieldTurf and
sold its share of the laminate-flooring joint venetin North America.

In 2009, to consolidate its leadership in sport$ases in North America, the Group acquired
Atlas Track, a U.S. company specialized in the rfesture of athletic tracks.

It also accelerated its international expansioregions with strong growth potential. In order to
strengthen its presence in Turkey, the Group adeatdistribution center through a joint venture
with the company Aspen. In Brazil, the Group acegirFademac, the leading Brazilian
manufacturer of vinyl flooring.

The Group also applied to delist its subsidiaryt&an from the Belgrade Stock Exchange in
20009.

In order to strengthen its positions in the rediidémarket in Europe and to enrich its trademark
portfolio, in 2010, the Group acquired some of Ammisg’s assets in the UK. Next, the Group
acquired Centiva, a U.S. company specializing endbsign of LVT. ltalso acquired control of
the Spanish company Poligras lberica, the Spaestier in the manufacture and distribution of
sports surfaces, and a specialist in the manufcfuartificial grass.

In the same year, the Group entered into two jeémtures. The first was with the U.S. company
EasyTurf, a specialist in the distribution of adi#l grass for the U.S. landscaping market. The
second was witthe German company Morton Extrusionstechnik, aigfistin producing fibers
for artificial grass. These two partnershigsnforced the Group’s artificial grass businesd an
allowed it to in-source fiber production for itdificial grass.
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In 2011, the Group continued to reinforce its posi by acquiring Parquets Marty, a French
wood flooring manufacturer, and creating two joigntures: one with a Dutch distributor of
artificial grass called AA SportSystems and theeottvith a Chinese distributor of resilient
flooring, now called Tarkett Floor Covering (Shaagh

In 2012, the Group acquired Tandus, a U.S. compghay designs, manufactures and sells
carpeting for the commercial market. This acquisitenabled the Group to establish itself as a
major player in the North American commercial céingemarket.

In 2013, the Group carried out an internal reorgaion in connection with Tarkett's initial
public offering on Euronext Paris. The steps inedin this reorganization are described briefly
below.

Société d’'Investissement FamiligitSIF”) was merged into the Company, thus enab®if'’s
shareholders—KKR International Flooring and the dhack family (previously grouped within
Société d’'Investissement DeconingID")-to become direct shareholders of the Comypa
Next, Partholdi was also merged into the Compangr & detailed description of these
reorganization transactions, see Section 18.1.5gs¢Bption of the November 21, 2013
Reorganization Transactions”.

5.2 INVESTMENTS
5.2.1 Principal Investments in 2012 and 2013
Cash used in investing activities was €343.3 nnillim2012 and €103.1 million in 2013.

The level of investment in tangible and intangiliked assets remained relatively stable over the
period. Investments in property, plant and equipmieelude acquiring, constructing new
factories and manufacturing facilities. They alsclude “ongoing investments”, which consist of
all investments in property, plant and equipmehieptthan those relating to new factories and
acquisitions. The Group's objective is to maintés ongoing investments on the order of
approximately 3.5% of annual consolidated net raesn

The table below shows the Group’s principal investta in 2012 and 2013.

For the year ended

Decembrr 31,
(in millions of euros) 2012 2013
restated
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired.......... 259.2 3.5
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment................ 84.8 100.5
ONgoiNg INVESIMET.......cciiiiiiiieeie e 84.4 87.¢
Long-term inVestmMen..........ccccoeeerieienienieceeie e 04 12.7
(01 = USROS 0.7y 0.9
Net cash from investing activities..........ccoccevverieeiinenn, 343.3 103.1

5.2.1.1 Principal Investments in 2013

The Group’s principal investments in 2013 were twdtions of projects begun in 2011 and
2012. They include:
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5.2.1.2

CIS & Others Completion of a fifth production line at the Risssite of Otradny, for
which construction had been launched in the sedwifiof 2012 and which became
operational in August 2013.

Deployment and standardization of SAR 2013, the Group continued to roll out its
standardized SAP platform in North America and ted rollout in the CIS & Others
segment.

EMEA In 2013, the Group continued the restructuringitefwood floor business in
Western Europe.

North America In 2013, the Group announced plans to consolitteemanufacture of
vinyl tile flooring (VCT and LVT) at its Florencédlabama site in order to optimize the
use of its production capacity, improve efficienayd reduce costs. As a result, the
Group announced the planned closure of its Hou3texas site in 2014.

Luxury vinyl tiles (LVT)In 2013 The Group continued to invest in extegdin acquiring
production capacity for new product lines of luxwinyl tiles in all of its geographic
segments.

Tandus acquisitionin 2013, the Group paid a purchase price adjustmadating to the
September 2012 Tandus acquisition.

Principal Investments in 2012

The following represent the Group’s principal invesnts in 2012:

Tandus acquisitionThe U.S.company Tandus specializes in the design, productial
sale of commercial carpeting in North America arglaA This acquisition enlarged the
Group’s commercial carpeting product line. See @aP, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsQOgferations”, in particular Sections
9.1.7, “Acquisitions” and 9.2.2.2.2, “North America

Deployment and standardization of SAR 2012, as in 2013, the Group continued the
process, which it began in 2011, of rolling outtandardized SAP platform across the
EMEA region and in North America.

Luxury vinyl tiles (LVT) In 2012, the Group invested in extending or atqgi
production capacity for new product lines of luxwipyl tiles in all of its geographic
segments.

CIS & Others In 2012, the Group began construction on a fifthduction line, which
became operational in August 2013, and also comtiradding capacity for additional
finishing processes, such as calendaring, forieasiflooring.

North America In addition to acquiring Tandus, the Group comich to invest in its
manufacturing capacity in the United States.
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5.2.2 Principal Investments Underway

The principal investments underway as of the en®@f3 are the continuation of projects
launched in previous years, primarily the continueitbut of the standardized SAP platform in
North America and CIS & Others and the restructuofthe Group’s wood flooring business in
Western Europe.

These investments are financed by available casketisas by drawdowns from the Group's
credit facilities. For more information on the Gplaicredit facilities, see Chapter 10, “Liquidity
and Capital Resources”.

5.2.3 Principal Future Investments

The Group continually seeks new investment oppdiés) rigorously analyzing the potential for
a strong return on its investment. With respedht@stments, the Group’s main objectives are
continually improving competitiveness, reinforciogerational excellence, and acquiring and
modernizing equipment in order to support the Giwegpected growth.

The Group intends to pursue a strategy of extegnawth based on two main objectives:
geographical development and the expansion of risslyzt lines. For more information, see
Section 6.1.3, “Strategy”.

As of the date of this Registration Document, tlieup has entered into a preliminary agreement
with the Polish group Gamrat S.A. to acquire Ganfilabring, Gamrat S.A.’s vinyl flooring
subsidiary. Gamrat Flooring specializes in comnareinyl flooring, in particular for the health
care, educational and hotel sectors. The planmeddction would include the manufacture and
distribution of existing product lines. Gamrat Hiog had revenues of €20 million in 2012.
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6. BUSINESS

6.1 BUSINESSOVERVIEW
6.1.1 Overview

6.1.1.1 Tarkett's Business

The Group is a leading global flooring and spout$esces company, providing integrated flooring
and sports surface solutions to professionals amtusers in the residential and commercial
markets. Leveraging over 130 years of experiertoe,Group offers fully-integrated flooring
solutions that it believes represent one of theesticdand most innovative product ranges in the
industry. The Group currently sells in the aggrega average of 1.3 million square meters of
flooring per day, and operates 30 manufacturingssibcated around the world in each of its
principal geographic regions. The Group has thetrdo®rsified geographical footprint in the
industry, which enables it to capture growth oppaittes wherever they arise. The Group holds
leading positions in each of its principal prodoategories and geographic regions, built through
robust organic development, as well as successtupeofitable external growth.

In 2013, the Group generated net consolidated t@saf €2,516.4 million, adjusted EBITDA of
€310 million and net profit attributable to ownefsthe Company of €99.1 million. The Group’s
segment reporting is based on four operational satgr-three of which relate to its flooring
products and their geographic regions (EMEA, Ndtherica and CIS & Others), and one of
which relates to its sports surfaces products.nk@re information on the Group’s segments, see
Section 9.1.2, “Principal Factors Affecting the Gps Results of Operations” and Note 4,
“Segment Information”, to the consolidated finahc@#atements included in this Registration
Document.

6.1.1.2 Tarkett's Markets

The Group sells its products in more than 100 aiesit With local sales forces and
manufacturing facilities in each of its principaagraphic regions, the Group is able to match its
products to local and regional demands and tastleibe wninimizing manufacturing and
transportation costs and customs duties. The Gsagles are well balanced geographically, with
26.6% of 2013 sales realized in EMEA, 26.8% in Rokimerica and 35.3% in CIS & Others.
The remaining 11.4% was realized in the global tspgurface segment.

The Group serves residential and commercial engstiseoughly equal proportions, mainly for
renovation projects, which typically account fopagximately 80% (in volume) of the Group’s
sales. The Group sells residential products in eddts geographic regions, with designs and
styles that are adapted to each market that iesefWhe Group’s largest geographic region for
residential products is the Commonwealth of Indeleaih States (CIS), where it has realized
robust and profitable growth through substantialesiments made progressively over many
years. The Group’s products for commercial endsisee sold mainly in North America and
Western Europe, although the Group’s businessoiwigg in the promising CIS, Asia Pacific and
Latin American markets. The Group’s commercialdurcts benefit from its substantial research
and innovation capacity, which is essential for timgethe technical specifications of commercial
end-users such as schools, universities, hospitaldth care facilities, offices, hotels and retalil
establishments. The Group’s capacity for innovaisoalso key to its success in the sports surface
market, where it holds leading positions in aridicurf and athletic tracks in North America, as
well as leading positions in artificial turf in kepuntries in Europe.
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The Group has strong global and national brands$ #nmae recognized by end-users and
professionals and adapted to the distribution egsatised in each market. The Group uses a
diversified mix of distribution channels that indkiwholesalers, specialty chains, installers and
contractors, independent retailers, DIY (do-it-yarlf) retailers, direct key accounts and builders-
merchants. The quality of the Group’s productseisognized by architects, installers and
contractors who are instrumental in specifying ahdosing flooring solutions, particularly for
commercial applications. The Group’s distributidrategy is tailored to each market in which it
operates, and includes service centers that putGtioeip close to its customers and training
facilities that generate brand loyalty and enshie lighest quality installation services for the
Group’s products. The Group has a network of 68ssahd marketing offices with a local sales
force in each of its main markets.

6.1.1.3 Tarkett's Products

The Group offers products with innovative desigmsl daextures adapted to local tastes and
demand in each of its markets. It designs, manuifast markets and sells five key types of
flooring:

» Resilient Flooring (Vinyl and Linoleum) (60% of 2013 revenues)lhe Group’s
resilient products include a broad range of flogrmptions, including vinyl sheet,
vinyl tile, safety and static-control vinyl floown luxury vinyl tiles (LVT) that
simulate wood, ceramic or stone flooring, and kmwh products. The Group’s
resilient products are offered to both residerdiadl commercial end-users and have
experienced strong growth in recent years. The fBsostrength in design and
innovation allows it to offer vinyl floors in a weédvariety of styles and colors,
providing end-users with ease of installation, dility and reduced maintenance. The
Group is currently the leading supplier of resilieimyl flooring solutions worldwide.

e Carpet Flooring (12% of 2013 revenues)rhe Group’s carpet products include a
wide range of modular, broadloom and hybrid prosiystuch as Powerbofdfor
commercial end-users such as offices, universifelspols, health care facilities and
government facilities. The Group’s presence indhget market was strengthened by
the 2012 acquisition of Tandus, a leading designersupplier of commercial carpets
in North America.

e Wood and Laminate Flooring (10% of 2013 revenues)rhe Group’'s wood and
laminate flooring products are used primarily isidential renovation projects and, to
a lesser extent, in commercial applications suchresail, hospitality, offices and
indoor sports facilities. The Group’'s wood produange includes high-quality
engineered wood floors in a variety of wood speadeors, tones and finishes. The
Group’s laminate product range offers a functiai@rnative to wood flooring that is
both stylish and affordable. The Group is a leadsngplier of wood flooring in
Europe and the CIS countries.

* Rubber Flooring and Accessories(7% of 2013 revenues)The Group’s rubber
flooring products and rubber and vinyl accessaaiessold mainly to commercial end-
users in North America, primarily in the healthgagducation, industrial and indoor
sports sectors. They include rubber tiles and shestyl baseboards, stair nosing,
stair borders, tactile warning strips, decorativallvekirting and other accessories.
They are shock-absorbent and slip-resistant arat afitural acoustic properties with
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low maintenance requirements. The Group is cuyeh leading supplier of vinyl
accessories in North America.

» Sports Surfaces(11% of 2013 revenues)The Group’s sports products include
innovative synthetic turf and track solutions fowie range of sports venues ranging
from community multi-purpose sports fields to pssi®nal football, soccer and rugby
stadiums. The Group’s sports product offering idel artificial grass and
polyurethane athletic tracks, as well as produesigihed for indoor and landscaping
applications. The Group has been recognized byritegnational Rugby Board and
FIFA (Fédération Internationale de Football Associafiofor the quality of its
patented FieldTurf technology. The Group is culyetite leading global supplier of
artificial turf for sports surfaces worldwide arttetleading provider of athletic tracks
in North America.

6.1.1.4 The Tarkett Group

Tarkett's business began in Sweden in 1886. In 188ikett was acquired by Sommer Allibert, a
French company that was a leader in flooring artdraative interiors, which itself was formed
through the combination of Sommer and Allibert, tta@nch companies that merged in 1972.
The automotive interiors business was subsequelitbsted in 2001, and the Group took the
Tarkett name in 2003. The Deconinck family (heifghe founder, Mr. Allibert) has supported
the Group’s growth for over a century and remaisipiincipal shareholder today.

6.1.2 Competitive Strengths

The Group has realized significant growth in recgedrs, while maintaining a high level of
profitability and a sound financial structure.dtgccess is the result of a number of factors tieat t
Group believes make it unique in the internatidlwalring market. The competitive strengths that
have contributed to its profitable growth inclutie following:

* Global Market Leadership. The Group occupies leading positions in its core
businesses and geographic regions. While the Gimuhe number three flooring
company worldwide (based on 2013 sales), the Gsompain competitors focus their
operations either in North America or Europe andegelly concentrate on a more
limited number of products. Scale is essentiahim Group’s markets, providing raw
material purchasing power (particularly for PVCagtlcizers and polyurethane) and
allowing the Group to leverage research and innowahvestments. The Group is the
number one vinyl flooring company worldwide and thenber one global supplier of
sports surfaces. It is also the leading floorinmmpany in Russia and more generally in
the CIS, as well as in a number of major Europeamties, including France and
Sweden. In each of the Group’s principal geograpkgions, it is one of the few
flooring suppliers with the local scale and critio@ass necessary to invest in design,
innovation and marketing capabilities that givantadvantage in responding to local
tastes and demand. The Group believes it has ot diroadest product offerings in
the flooring industry, including vinyl, linoleum,a@d and laminate, commercial carpet
and rubber products, featuring one of the strongestd portfolios, which is critical to
the success of its multi-brand distribution strgtethe breadth of the Group’s product
range allows it to create fully integrated flooriaglutions that companies with less
diverse offerings cannot match. The Group belieitesproduct and technology
development capabilities and in-house researchrammyation teams are best-in-class,
allowing it to provide innovative products that daflored to the needs and demands
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of each of its markets, while promoting environnadlgt responsible solutions that
keep it ahead of regulatory and industry norms. Gmeup’s intellectual property
portfolio includes 162 patents, including 15 bioen&tls patents filed since 2010.

Attractive Geographical Footprint with Substantial Growth Potential. The Group
has the widest geographical reach among its pestfs thousands of customers and
end-users in over 100 countries and productionsalteb facilities close to one another
in Europe, North America, the CIS countries, Lakmerica and Asia. It has built its
geographical footprint through substantial investteerealized over many years.
Today, this is a unique differentiating factor aessential to the Group’s lasting
success, for the following reasons:

0 The Group is able to capture growth wherever gegri—it can take advantage of
the budding economic recovery in the United Staths; substantial stock of
residential flooring that requires renovation insBia; the most innovative market
segments in Northern Europe, France and Germaaypfésence in Southern
Europe represents less than 2.3% of Group consetideet sales); and the early
stage markets for sophisticated commercial floograglucts in China and Brazil.

0 The Group is intimately familiar with the local tes and design and technical
preferences that drive market demand, allowing itaflor its product range and
obtain a competitive advantage over suppliers whaoat have the same scale and
presence.

0 The Group’s local manufacturing capacity in eachisoprincipal regional markets
allows it to enhance customer service by reducaagl Itimes, while optimizing
transportation costs, minimizing customs duties &émiting working capital
requirements.

The Group’s success in Russia and the other cesntf the CIS provides a stark
example of these advantages. Over many years, fiv¢pGhas developed marketing
capabilities that provide it with close relationshiwith key distributors, retailers and
installers. Its service centers allow it to cover vast expanse of the region efficiently
and with a high level of customer service. It hasal manufacturing capacity, unique
among international flooring suppliers, which giviesa competitive cost base and
allows its products to satisfy stringent legal aedulatory requirements. Replicating
these investments today would be difficult and nega substantial amount of time.

Balanced Geographic and End-Market Exposure Providig Resilience to Cycles
The Group’s broad product range allows it to offeoring solutions that are adapted
to meet varied technical specifications, budgetdety and design requirements,
opening up a broad range of attractive end-marftedasing, health care, education,
offices, stores and shops, hospitality and spo#tgproximately 80% of the Group’s
product sales, in terms of square meters, areefoovation projects, a market that is
subject to less volatility than the new construttimarket. The Group serves
residential and commercial end-users in roughlyakquroportions and sells its
products to vast numbers of customers worldwideh Wwitle concentration risk; in
2013, no single customer represented more than fotecGroup’s consolidated net
revenues. The Group believes its unique producgeamliversified exposure to
attractive end-markets, extensive customer base giodal footprint reduce its
dependence on any one industry, region or sectihreaéconomy.
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Scale and Execution Excellence Across the Value GhaProviding Strong
Competitive Advantages The Group’s global reach and size enable it aaiga close

to customers, leverage research and innovationbendhmark best practices across
the Group’s global operations. The Group seekseterhge its scale through the
following initiatives, among others:

0 lIts three regional design teams continuously monitcal trends to adapt product
designs and meet customer preferences. The Grsalgs force of approximately
1,300 is in regular contact with distributors aethilers, providing them with the
selection, quality, brands and service that makeGtoup’s products an attractive
choice for their end-user customers.

0 The Group maintains close long-term relationshipth varchitects, designers,
installers and contractors, who play an essentild in the choice of flooring
solutions, particularly in the commercial markeheTGroup’s training programs
for building sector professionals and installers-aridett Academies"—develop
loyalty to its brands and ensure that end-usergivecinstallation services
commensurate with the quality of the Group’s prasluc

0 The Group's World Class Manufacturing (WCM) programanaged by a
dedicated team that regularly visits and benchm#ér&sGroup’s operating units,
spreads expertise and best practices while ensugoglity, operational
optimization, cost efficiency and best-in-class/iss.

Track Record of Profitable Growth, Strong Cash FlowGeneration and Return on
Capital Employed (ROCE). Building on the strengths described above, theu@r
has demonstrated a consistent ability to grow fablfy, both organically and
externally, even through periods of economic dowmtult has, for example,
successfully integrated 12 acquisitions over thest plive years. Since 2007,
consolidated net revenues and adjusted EBITDA aven at a compounded annual
growth rate of 3.2% and 5.3%, respectively, withsmidated net revenues growing at
a compounded annual growth rate of 10.2% since Zb@fuding external growth).
The Group has maintained an adjusted EBITDA mairgthe range of 9.2% to 12.3%
since 2007, which it believes is more stable theat bf most of its key competitors.
Over the 2007 to 2013 period, the diversificatibnhe Group’s business allowed it to
limit the volatility of its adjusted EBITDA marginluring the financial crisis. The
Group’s profitability has been enhanced by the petiglity improvement aspects of
the WCM program, which include reducing raw matedasts and streamlining
operations. As an example, the Group has redueesduimber of PVC products that it
purchases, which allows it more easily to subtitstippliers in order to negotiate
prices, thereby limiting costs. The WCM program lgaserated approximately €40
million of incremental cost savings per year betwé&®10 and 2013 and has the
potential to deliver significant additional bengfih the coming years. The Group’s
profitable operations, combined with disciplinedetsmanagement, have translated
into strong cash generation and return on capitgdl@yed. The Group’s cash flow
generation ratio (which it defines as adjusted HBAT plus or minus changes in
working capital, minus ongoing capital expenditurdisided by adjusted EBITDA)
averaged 70% over the 2010 to 2013 period, and R®EEh the Group defines as
earnings before interest and tax divided by the sfitangible and intangible assets
(including goodwill) and working capital) has avged 14.7% over the past six years,
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allowing the Group to maintain a strong financialisture and giving it the financial
capacity to invest in future development.

» Experienced and International Management Team Leadlig a Decentralized and
Agile Organization. The Group’s internationally diverse managemeatrntés deep
and has extensive experience, leading the Compaiay ientrepreneurial spirit. The
current management team has been instrumentakisubcessful implementation of
the Group’s internal development strategy, whilecsssfully managing several
turnaround projects (such as the sports surfaceesgigand European wood business),
and acquiring and integrating 12 targets over tast five years. The management
team includes a mix of experience in the flooringsihess as well as in other
industries such as the automotive and chemical®rsecThe efforts of the Group’s
management team have received the strong backitig @roup’s family shareholder,
which has supported the Company as it has growmemnédins its largest shareholder.

6.1.3 Strategy

The Group’s vision is to be the global leader inovative flooring and sports surface solutions
that generate value for customers in a sustainable The Group creates safe and inspiring
flooring and sports surfaces that enhance its metg return on investment and quality of life.
The Group’s goal is to grow faster and be moreifaiole than its competitors in comparable
geographies or market segments.

The Group intends to achieve these objectives Wyndaadvantage of regional growth
opportunities, expanding its offerings of innovatigroducts and solutions, selectively seeking
complementary acquisitions, and constantly optingiziperational performance.

» Regional Growth. The Group intends to take advantage of its stpogjtions in key
markets to benefit from anticipated regional grawth

(0]

In North America, the Group’s growth strategy isiteged on taking advantage of
the recovery underway to grow across the boartsiresidential, commercial and
sports businesses. The Group has maintained a stanging strategy of

positioning itself with products that best enahl¢oirealize the potential of this

market. This was demonstrated most recently byatlogiisition of Tandus, which

has made the Group a leader in the North Americamuercial carpet market and
provides it with future cross-sales synergy opptties in the United States, with
potential additional synergies in Europe and a rfeaturing facility in China.

In the CIS region, the Group intends to take adcgetof its leading position,

brand recognition and unique local manufacturingacity to tap growth in a

market that is estimated to have approximately bilbon square meters of

residential flooring in need of refurbishing in Rigsalone. As a large majority of
Russian citizens own their own housing, home imgnoents represent one of the
top uses of disposable income. The Group also Jelighat the commercial

flooring market shows significant potential, as mammmercial end-users that
initially used residential products to cut costsenéound those products ill-suited
to the heavy traffic of commercial establishmenthe ever more stringent

regulatory norms and standards being applied irsi@ughould also favor a high-
quality supplier such as the Group.
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0 In Europe, where the economic outlook is less oerthe Group believes that the
industrial adaptation processes that it has pytlace over the past few years
position it well to benefit from medium-and long#e economic growth while
maintaining strong market positions and good leeélprofitability in the near-
term. In this respect, Tarkett has made signifidaméstments in its European
design and manufacturing capabilities to fully captthe strong growth of the
LVT market.

o In other high-potential markets such as Asia Paeifid Latin America, the Group
is looking to take a disciplined and selective apph in order to capture
profitable growth potential with increased penératof resilient products. In
particular, the Group believes there is potentiatlpng future demand in China
and Brazil for high-quality commercial resilienippiucts where its innovation and
added value provide a differentiating factor thadidd serve it well as it develops
in these markets. The Group also expects to takenagge of the Tandus
manufacturing facility to expand its Asian business

Expansion Through New Products and CollectionsThe Group intends to build on
its long history of innovation, which dates backhe 1940s, when it first introduced
three-layer hardwood flooring, continuing into th@50s, with its offering of durable
vinyl flooring and a wide choice of decorationsdathen into the 1990s, with the
launch of the first infilled artificial turf for &tetes, and into recent years, with the
Group’s creation of various ecologically sustaiealiboring solutions. The Group
currently maintains one international research smdvation center and numerous
product and process development labs, and empl6@siridividuals who are fully
dedicated to research and innovation (R&l). TheupBralso has a scientific council
that brings together its senior R&I officers witRkternal scientists, professors and
other experts to review and challenge its technolmg@dmap, and maintains formal
partnerships with suppliers to involve them in &l process. The Group's future
product innovation and development efforts are $ecduon renewing its offer with
projects that it believes have significant marketieptial and ecologically sustainable
qualities. Going forward, the Group is looking &pand its LVT capabilities to gain
strong market positions worldwide, launch phthafede products for all European
vinyl products in 2014, take advantage of the upognreplacement market in
artificial turf in North America and boost the Gpisi landscaping activities.

M&A Growth Potential and Integration Upside. The Group plans to continue its
strategy of complementing its internal developmaith targeted acquisitions, which
it has successfully used to accelerate its prdétapowth through a broader product
portfolio of solutions, as well as through an exeth presence in fast-growing
markets. The Group’s acquisition strategy focusetaegets that allow for immediate
leverage of their industrial and commercial stréegtaking advantage of the expertise
of existing management whenever it is feasible semkible to do so. Going forward,
the Group will continue to apply its disciplined papach by targeting profitable,
growth-oriented acquisitions that serve similacomplementary markets to its own,
with a view to reinforcing its portfolio of prodwctind solutions, expanding into new
geographies, leveraging industry consolidation té existing markets and seeking
immediate synergies.

Constant Operational Optimization. The Group focuses on operational optimization
throughout its business. This strategy involvesoastant effort to improve the
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6.1.4

Group's day-to-day operational processes, as wdhaimplementation of turnaround
action plans where required.

(o]

The Group’s ongoing optimization strategy invoha@mstantly seeking ways to
improve manufacturing efficiency, such as throughtimued implementation of

the WCM program. The Group believes its WCM prograas the potential to

produce significant additional cost savings througfitiatives such as

geographical optimization of raw material sourcifgr example, the Group is
seeking to take advantage of low petrochemicaleprilh the United States
resulting from the shale gas boom to benchmarRW€ and plasticizer pricing in

other markets, even if the Group currently contintee source PVC supplies in
Europe. The Group also maintains a dedicated WE&&Mmt that compares
methods and procedures between sites, helps leaaist at each manufacturing
site implement the program, adapts the program otall specificities and

supervises the program’s process. The Group’s bvelgective is to achieve

savings from the WCM program of approximately 2%co$t of goods sold per
year on average over the next few years, althodgtoorse the Group cannot
guarantee that it will meet this objective. The @rads also implementing a
comprehensive supply chain strategy in order terdffie best service and lead
time in the most economical way. It is in the psxef completing the rollout of

its SAP system, with a goal of becoming the industference for supply chain
management.

The Group's optimization strategy also includesirtgkaffirmative measures
where necessary to ensure that its existing busdsesuccessfully weather
changing economic and market conditions. The Ghoap largely achieved the
turnaround of its Sports Surfaces segment, whicht frem negative adjusted
EBITDA of €11 million in 2011 to positive adjusté&BITDA of €15 million in
2013. The Group is restructuring its European woosiness through initiatives
such as transferring parts of the manufacturingwofod products sold in
Scandinavia to a site in Ukraine, which is closethie source of the raw materials,
allowing the Group to reduce its transportationtsgespecially since raw wood
carries substantial volumes of water) and manufaxgflcosts. The Group is also
consolidating its U.S. production of vinyl tile phacts into its Florence, Alabama,
facility in order to reduce overall costs, and etpeo complete this process in
mid-2014. Going forward, the Group expects to catplthe efforts already
underway and continue to implement restructuringgaiives such as these when
necessary.

Market Description

Unless otherwise noted, the information includethis section is based on Group estimates for
2012 and is provided solely for informational pusps. The Group is currently in the process of
updating its estimates for 2013. To the best ofGhaup’s knowledge, there are no authoritative
external sources providing exhaustive and comprekencoverage or analysis of the flooring
market. Consequently, the Group makes estimatesdbas a number of sources, including
studies and statistics from independent third art{in particular Freedonia, the European
Federation Parquet Industry Federation and the Bwan Resilient Flooring Manufacturers’
Institute), data published by other market partaips and data from the Group’s operating
subsidiaries. These various studies, estimatesarelh and information, which the Group
considers reliable, have not been verified by irthelent experts. The Group does not guarantee
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that a third party using other methods to analyzeampile the market data would obtain the
same results. In addition, the Group’s competitoray define their economic and geographic
regions differently.

6.1.4.1 General Presentation of the Flooring Market

The Group estimates that approximately 12.2 bilsgonare meters of flooring were sold globally
in 2012, excluding sales of specialized producthsas concrete, bamboo and metal flooring.
The categories of products that the Group sellswatcfor approximately 28% of the total global

flooring market, or approximately 3.5 billion sqaaneters in 2012.

The table below presents an estimated breakdowtheofglobal flooring market in 2012 by
product category, based on the number of squarersnet product sold.

Volume in millions Percent of g|oba|
of square meters market
Vinyl, linoleum and rubber ........................ 994 8%
Wood and laminate flooring ..............ccvvm.... 1,606 13%
Carpet (commercial) .....c.cooeeeeeeiiiiiiiiienenes 873 7%
Total for product categories sold by the Group 3,474 28%
Carpet (residentic.............ccocvvvvvenerrrennnnns 2,62( 22%
CeIaMIC ...vveie et e 6,033 49%
Other ... 86 1%
TOtal e 12,212 100%

The market segments in which the Group is presentesilient flooring (vinyl, linoleum and
rubber), wood flooring, laminate flooring and caipe products for the commercial market, an
area that the Group strengthened with the 2012isitiqn of Tandus. The Group believes that its
current product categories benefit from strong ghopotential, but it may expand its portfolio to
new categories if they present opportunities faofitable growth in line with the Group’s
strategy. For more information, see Section 6. 58ategy”.

The flooring market is divided into residential asmimmercial end-users. In 2012, for the product
categories in which the Group is present, the ezgidl market represented approximately 60%
of global sales in square meters, while the comimlentarket represented approximately 40% of
sales volume. In these two primary market categptlee vast majority of sales (approximately
80%) are for renovation projects, while a minor&yor new construction.

6.1.4.2 General Presentation of the Sports Surfaces Market
In 2012, global sales of the categories of spom$ases that the Group offers represented
approximately 27.9 million square meters in NortmeXica and Western Europe. The table

below breaks down 2012 sales in the product caEeg@nd geographic regions in which the
Group is present, as well as the Group’s estimaizdket shares.
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Volume in millions

Estimated market share of

of square meters the Group
North America
Artificial Turf ..o 6.8 46%
Athletic tracks........ccooeeiiieieeee e 3.0 56%
INdOOr SPOrts SUrfaces ........cccocceeveevienieeesieees 1.6 7%
Western Europe
Artificial Turf ..o 16.5 17%

The Group’s sports surface products are generatgnded for commercial use, primarily by
universities, schools and in public facilities. TBeoup also sells artificial turf for residentiadce
users, particularly in the southern United States.

6.1.4.3 Flooring

The demand for a particular flooring product canysgnificantly from one geographic region to
another as a result of cultural differences, asl wasel differences in climate and regulatory
requirements that can vary from region to regi@eg Section 6.1.9.3, “Standards Applicable to

the Group’s Products” for a description of the pifial standards applicable in the geographic
markets where the Group is present.)

The table below presents a breakdown of the glfdbating market in 2012 by product category
and geographic region, based on the number of sgueters of product sold.

North
(in millions of square meters) EMEA America CIS & Others Total
Western Middle ClSand Asia Latin
Europe™  East/Africa Balkans Pacific America
Vinyl, linoleum and rubber 256 36 235 208 236 23 499
Wood and lamina................. 34C 18€ 162 154 67¢ 86 1,60¢
Carpet (commercial) ................ 178 49 318 14 260 55 873
Total for product categories sold by the
Group 774 270 714 376 1,174 165 3,474
Carpet (residential)................... 533 146 539 42 781 165 2,620
16 3,47
587 69C 187 3 4 931 6,03:
56 2 2 0 25 0 86
1,949 1,109 1,857 582 5,455 1,261 12,212

The countries included in Western Europe are @eymAustria, Belgium, Luxembourg, Denmark, Finland
France, Italy, the Netherlands, Norway, PolandiR@d, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, the United Korgdand
other Central and Southern European countries.

The information below presents the principal chemastics of the geographic regions in which
the Group sells its products.

6.1.4.3.1 Flooring in Western Europe (EMEA Segment)
In 2012, demand for flooring in Western Europe a8 billion square meters, representing

16.0% of global demand for flooring. The categonéproducts that the Group sells accounted
for 774.0 million square meters in 2012, or appmately 39.7% of flooring products sold in
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Western Europe, including 17.4% of sales for wood laminate products and 13.1% for resilient
flooring. Products in these categories are usdmbih the residential and commercial markets.

In Western Europe, demand for different categasfeffooring products varies significantly from
country to country, especially between Northern &wdithern Europe. For example, carpet is
frequently used in the United Kingdom, whereas whtlodrs are more popular in Scandinavian
countries and ceramic is more in demand in thelSdsdles of wood and laminate flooring in
Norway, Sweden and Finland represent, respectié€¥, 40% and 48% of total flooring sales
in those countries. Ceramic is a very popular pcoduSouthern Europe, representing 52%, 51%
and 66% of demand in ltaly, Spain and Portugalpeesvely. In Germany and France, the
breakdown by product category is more balanced.

The Group sells primarily vinyl resilient flooringjood flooring and laminate flooring in Western
Europe, mainly in France, Sweden, Germany and thitet! Kingdom. Most of the Group’s sales
of resilient flooring are in France, Germany and tnited Kingdom, while the majority of its
wood and laminate flooring sales are in Scandinavia

6.1.4.3.2 Flooring in North America

In 2012, demand for flooring in North America wa8 billion square meters, representing 15.2%
of global demand for flooring products. Demand iorth America is dominated by carpet, which
represented 68.4% total volumes sold in 2012. Tdtegories of products that the Group sells
represented 714.0 million square meters in 2012pproximately 38.5% of the total volume of
flooring sold in North America, including 8.7% aftal flooring sales for wood and laminate
products and 12.7% of sales for resilient flooritgNorth America, the Group sells products
primarily to commercial end-users and, to a lessgent, to residential end-users. Commercial
carpet represents 17.1% of total North Americanatein

The Group'’s flooring sales in North America areididd fairly evenly among commercial carpet,
resilient, rubber flooring, and vinyl and rubbercessories, with wood and laminate flooring
accounting for a smaller portion of sales. The @realls its products primarily in the United

States (86%), with the remaining 14% being sol@€#&mada. The Mexican market is considered
to be part of Latin America, in the CIS & Othergsent.

6.1.4.3.3 Flooring in the CIS and the Balkans (CIS & Otheeg®ent)

In 2012, the demand for flooring in Russia, theeot@IS countries and the Balkans (the former
Yugoslavia) was 582 million square meters, reprizsgrd.8% of global flooring demand. In
these countries, resilient flooring is most populapresenting 35.8% of total flooring demand, as
compared with 8.1% for the global market as a wh@iher than resilient flooring, the main
products sold are ceramic tiles (28.0% of totabffieg demand), wood and laminate flooring
(approximately 26.5%) and carpet (9.6%).

Unlike Western Europe and North America, resiliéooring is used primarily by the residential
market in the CIS countries. Most of the residaitthese countries became the owners of their
homes following the dissolution of the Soviet Uni&ior these new homeowners, renovation is a
high priority, and resilient flooring is both wedlited to local tastes and attractive for household
budgets.

The commercial market in this region has been glawedevelop, but shows strong growth
potential. Commercial end-users initially choseidestial resilient flooring for their first
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renovation projects. These floors are not well &sthpo high-traffic commercial premises.

Moreover, Russia has adopted stringent fire reguiatfor commercial products. As a result of
these factors, the resilient flooring market haswsh moderate growth in recent years, although
its size remains modest compared to the residentiaket.

In Russia and the other CIS countries, the Grollp ggmarily vinyl flooring to residential end-
users, and to a lesser extent wood and laminatéritp

6.1.4.3.4 Flooring in Latin America and Asia Pacific (CIS &l@rs Segment)

In 2012, demand for flooring in Latin America am tAsia Pacific region reached 1,261 million
and 5,455 million square meters, respectively,asgnting 10.3% and 44.7% of global flooring
demand. Ceramic is the most frequently used materigatin America and Asia Pacific, as a
result of local climate, ease of manufacture aedlltiplicity of local suppliers.

In Latin America, the Group does business printjpial Brazil, where most of its sales are vinyl
products for commercial end-users. In Asia, theupreells primarily carpet and vinyl flooring to
commercial users in Australia and China.

6.1.4.4 Sports surfaces

In 2012, demand for the three principal categoofesports surfaces in North America (artificial
turf, athletic tracks and indoor sport surfacesk ve@proximately 11.4 million square meters.
Demand for artificial turf in Western Europe in 20tvas approximately 16.5 million square
meters.

The Group’s sports surfaces are sold primarily dommercial applications (95%), while the
remainder (5%) is sold for residential applicationsthin the sports surfaces segment, the Group
primarily sells artificial turf, athletic tracks dnindoor sports flooring. The Group sells sports
surfaces mainly in the United States and Canadt,almo sells elsewhere, particularly in
European countries (France, Spain and the Netlksjan

6.1.4.5 Growth Drivers and Future Prospects

The Group uses many sources to analyze growthrdraved future prospects for the market. This
analysis is performed annually, most recently inrdla2013. The Group uses the trends shown
by these analyses in preparing its budgets antkgicaplans, as well as for internal allocation of
resources. These prospects are based on data,ptissignand estimates that the Group considers
reasonable, but they could evolve or be modifiecaa®sult of uncertainties relating to the
economic, financial, competitive and regulatory iemvment, among others. The Group can
provide no assurance or give any guarantee ag tiklihood that the prospects described below
will prove to be accurate.

6.1.4.5.1 Growth Drivers and Principal Market Trends in thioBring Market

Since 2010, global sales volumes in the Group'slyecb categories have remained stable, with
varying trends in each geographical segment. Thasebeen significant growth in the CIS and,
in 2012, in North America. Volumes have decredsefsia Pacific and Latin America, as well

as in Western Europe in 2012. Tarkett's managerhbelitves that global sales of the product
categories in which the Group is present could grom approximately 3.5 billion square meters
to approximately 4.0 billion square meters betwg6th2 and 2016. This estimate reflects the
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trends in each of the markets described in thif@ecThese estimates could prove inaccurate,
particularly in the event that growth in gross dstieeproduct in one or more regions is weaker
than expected.

The graph below presents the evolution of saless@mare meters) of the product categories
shown between 2010 and 2012, as well as the egiimsaised in preparing the Group’s strategic
plan for 2016.
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The table below presents the estimated annual geegeowth rates in each geographic region
between 2012 and 2016, calculated on the basied@@16 volumes shown in the above graph.

North

(in square meters) EMEA America CIS & Others Total

Western Middle CIS and Asia Pacific Latin

Europe East/Africa Balkans America
Vinyl, linoleum and rubbe 1% 5% 5% 4% 6% 5% 4%
Wood and laminate flooring ... (1)% 5% 5% 7% 4% 2% 3%
Carpet (commercial)................ 0% 3% 6% 3% 4% 4% 4%
Total for product categories
sold by the Groug 0% 5% 5% 5% 4% 3% 4%

The following sections describe recent trends thex the Group’s principal geographic regions,
as well as expected growth drivers and future proisp

6.1.4.5.1.1 Flooring in Western Europe (EMEA Segment)

Recent trends in this geographical region vary famantry to country. In the United Kingdom,
total construction activity has decreased in regeyars, despite an increase in do-it-yourself
improvements and home renovations. The Frenchifigondustry suffered as a result of an
uncertain economic environment, while flooring dechavas less affected by the economic crisis
in Scandinavia and Germany (although there wascaedse in sales of wood and laminate
flooring in a highly competitive environment). Denthfor wood and laminate flooring in
Scandinavia remained stable between 2010 and 2012.
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The Group believes that flooring demand in thisaeds currently stable, despite an economic
context that continues to be uncertain. Demandviowd floors may stabilize during this period,
in particular in Scandinavia, although it may desee slightly in France and Germany. On the
other hand, sales volumes of laminate flooring ldwly to decline slightly. The sources the
Group analyzed indicate, however, that there maygtmwth in resilient flooring for the
commercial market, in particular in Germany andWméted Kingdom.

6.1.4.5.1.2 Flooring in North America

Between 2006 and 2011, North American demand éarithg fell, in particular as a result of the
decrease in new construction in that region. Howethe U.S. construction market grew in the
fourth quarter of 2012 and continued to improv@® 3, due primarily to the residential market.

In the coming years, the Group expects signifignotvth to result from the U.S. economy’s
recovery. The sources that the Company analyzedateda potentially significant increase in
demand for all products, including the Group’s pifial products in this geographical segment:
residential and commercial resilient flooring, rebkand vinyl accessories for the commercial
market, and commercial carpeting.

6.1.4.5.1.3 Flooring in the CIS and the Balkans (CIS & Otheeg®ent)

As indicated above, following the dissolution oftBoviet Union in 1991, most homes were
given to their occupants, resulting in a homeowmprsate of more than 80%. Due to economic
growth in these countries, renovation demand hawmisignificantly in recent years. This trend

is expected to continue. Today, two-thirds of flagrin the Russian residential sector is in need
of substantial renovation, according to Rosstag Russian government statistics agency.
Moreover, over the last several years Russians bagen to buy laminate floors in order to give

the appearance of wood floors while remaining withireasonable budget.

In the CIS countries, residential and commercisilisnt flooring demand is expected to continue
to grow, as is demand for wood and laminate flaprifoday, residential renovation represents a
significant growth area, with approximately twolibih square meters requiring renovation out of
the three billion square meters currently installeéRussian residential housing stock, according
to Rosstat.

6.1.4.5.1.4 Flooring in Latin America and Asia Pacific (CIS &l@rs Segment)

The Group believes that demand for the productgcaites that it offers in Latin America could

grow. In Brazil, in addition to structural factothe economy could benefit significantly from the
2016 Olympic Games and from the 2014 Soccer Wodp. @ this region, sales of luxury vinyl

tiles continue to grow at a faster pace than tmege flooring market.

With respect to Asia Pacific, governmental initias in China should continue to sustain the
construction market, according to a market study tie Group conducted in collaboration with a
consulting firm. The aging of the Chinese populatshould also fuel growth in the retirement
home sector, in addition to projected growth frdra healthcare and education markets. Given
the size of its residential housing stock, Chinabig volume, the largest in the world. Vinyl
flooring’s market penetration is still limited, biltis product category may grow in the future.
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6.1.4.5.2 Growth Drivers and Principal Market Trends in Smo8urfaces

Since the financial crisis, this market has beearatterized by a downturn caused by a
significant decrease in public spending in both tNoAmerica and Europe. The resulting
overcapacity generated extremely intense competitidnich had a significant impact on prices.
Given this market environment, customers are letydsted in innovations and novelties, and
instead seek functional products at attractiveggtic

The first signs of a North American recovery appdam 2012. Following the expiration of
numerous manufacturers’ warranties and given thetfat many surfaces will be approaching
the end of their useful lives, a significant amowftartificial turf will need to be replaced,
resulting in increased demand, which could increélaseésroup’s sales. Demand for athletic tracks
may see moderate growth beginning in 2014. Growtlthé landscaping market will depend
primarily on the condition of the residential reatien market, and especially on economic
recovery in the warmest regions of North America.

6.1.4.6 The Group’s Competitive Position
6.1.4.6.1 Overview

Over the course of the Group’s history, it has tgyed significant competitive advantages in
both the residential and commercial markets. Inréisé&dential market, key factors in the Group’s
success include its design and marketing skillgh{guality customer service, and close
proximity to its customers. In the commercial maykesy competitive advantages include the
fact that the Group’s products satisfy stringechtiécal standards that vary by country and its
close relationships with the key decision-makeed tthoose flooring solutions. The Group also
has a proven ability to maintain a competitive aiaticture while providing excellent customer
service in both the residential and commercial ik

The following sections present the Group’s positibaomparison with its main competitors. For
more information on the Group’'s competitive stréisgt see Section 6.1.2, “Competitive
Strengths”.

6.1.4.6.2 Tarkett's Market Position in Flooring

In general, the global flooring market is relativétagmented, with a few large international
companies, including the Group, operating alongsidenerous local suppliers. The Group
believes, however, that the main categories, inchlii does business, in particular resilient
flooring, are less fragmented.

The Group believes that it has solid market sharés geographic regions. Furthermore, it has
one of the largest product portfolios and the misersified geographical footprint in the
industry. Its main competitors generally focus @her North America or Europe and concentrate
on a more limited number of products.

6.1.4.6.2.1 Flooring in Western Europe (EMEA Segment)
The Group is a leader in the Western Europeanifigandustry. It is a leader in vinyl flooring in
Europe and a leading flooring company overall iarfee and Sweden. It is also the third largest

manufacturer of wood and linoleum flooring in West&urope. While market shares are difficult
to estimate, based on 2012 sales volumes, the Gaeligves that it sells between 25% and 30%
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of all vinyl flooring products sold in Europe. It@unts for less than 5% of laminate flooring
sales in most countries. However, it is a leadewdod and laminate flooring in Scandinavia,
with approximately 15% of sales in that region.

The Group’s main competitors are European groups;hwgenerally concentrate their businesses
on a limited number of countries and productsmnitst important competitors in this region are
Forbo (resilient flooring), Gerflor (resilient floag), Kahrs-Karelia Upofloor (wood flooring),
Beauflor (resilient flooring), James Halstead (rest flooring) and Bauwerk-Boen (wood
flooring). The American groups Mohawk (Unilin/Magdzand Armstrong Flooring (DLW) are
present in Europe, but with relatively modest bestmvolumes compared with their presence in
North America. Moreover, in certain countries the@ faces local competitors. Economies of
scale for the most complex products tend to lihdése competitors’ activities in the Group’s
main geographic regions.

6.1.4.6.2.2 Flooring in North America

The Group has a strong presence in several prodtegories in North America. In this region, it
is also the second largest resilient flooring comyp@ncluding LVT, following the acquisition of
Centiva at the end of 2010) and the second largésier flooring company. Following the 2012
acquisition of Tandus, it is also the fourth latgegsmmercial carpet company in North America.
The Group’s Johnsonite products occupy a leadeggsjtion in the vinyl accessories market.

The Group’s main competitors on the U.S. market Mighawk, Shaw Floors, Armstrong
Flooring, Interface and Mannington, which generalbycentrate a large majority of their sales in
North America. In keeping with the strong North Ainan preference for carpet, this product
category represents a significant share of thesganies’ sales (this is particularly the case for
Mohawk, Shaw and Interface). However, some of thesmpanies, including Mohawk,
Armstrong and Mannington, also market resiliendffing, as well as wood and laminate flooring.
Johnsonite’s competitors include Nora, a rubbeporftgy manufacturer, as well as local
manufacturers. The Group believes that its prodacteunt for approximately 18% of resilient
flooring sold in North America.

6.1.4.6.2.3 Flooring in the CIS and the Balkans (CIS & Otheeg®ent)

The Group has been doing business for more thame&® in the CIS and the Balkans, primarily
in Russia, Serbia, Ukraine and Kazakhstan. As altred its long-standing presence in this
geographic region, the Group considers itself ta becal company and a market leader. It is the
number one resilient flooring company in Russiardilie, Kazakhstan, Serbia and Belarus, and
the number one wood flooring company in the CISs lilso the number four laminate flooring
company in Russia.

Tarkett's market leadership in the Russian redililmoring market is the result of its well-known
brands, local production, well-developed distribatplatforms and deep understanding of local
tastes. In the Group’s opinion, Komiteks and Judsulieu, two local companies, are the other
leading companies in this region, alongside theridtional suppliers IVC and Forbo. The Group
is a significant distributor of laminate flooringowever, it is not as strong in laminate floorirgy a

it is in resilient flooring. In the laminate flooy market, Chinese manufacturers occupy a leading
position due to their ability to offer low-cost entevel products. The other principal companies
in this market are Kronostar, Kronospan, Classehlmilin.
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6.1.4.6.2.4 Flooring in Latin America and Asia Pacific (CIS &l@rs Segment)

The Group’s position in Latin America and Asia Fiads in a development phase. Its position in
Latin America was strengthened in 2009 with theudsition of Fademac, a Brazilian vinyl
flooring manufacturer; it is now the number one oawmarcial vinyl flooring manufacturer in this
country. The Group recently strengthened its presén Asia by acquiring its primary distributor
there. It also gained a commercial carpet prododite in China with the acquisition of Tandus.

The Group’s main competitors in vinyl flooring iratin America are Gerflor and Forbo. Its main
competitors in Asia Pacific for vinyl flooring arsrmstrong, Gerflor, LG and Forbo, as well as
local Chinese manufacturers.

6.1.4.6.3 Tarkett's Position on the Sports Surfaces Market

The Group is the leading provider of artificial ftim North America and the leading provider of
athletic tracks in the United States. It has numgrcompetitors in this market, including small
companies and resellers who outsource the manuéaofusynthetic fiber. In the artificial turf
market, the Group’s strongest competitors in Ndktherica are AstroTurf, Hellas, Shaw and
Sprinturf. In Europe, the Group is the second iaidif turf player behind Tencate, and its other
large competitors include Polytan, Limonta and Dott®principal competitors in athletic tracks
are Hellas, APT, Stockmeier and Mondo.

6.1.4.7 The Group’s Brands

The Group’s products are sold under known brandgetad at each geographic region. The
Group sells its flooring products under the braacha Tarkett, which enjoys a global reputation,
but also employs product-specific internationalnoisy such as FieldTurf. The Group also
markets its products under a variety of local braaches, which enjoy strong name-recognition
in their various markets, such as Johnsonite irtiNamerica and Sinteros in the CIS. In certain
markets, the Group uses a multi-brand strategygudifferent brands for different distribution
channels, to cover the entire market and optimazexistence between the Group’s different
distributors.

6.1.5 Products

The Group offers a diversified range of floorindutions, enabling it to tailor its products to the
needs of each market and region. The choice afoaiflg solution depends heavily on the type of
premises where the product is used. In additianptioducts demanded by both professionals and
individuals tend to vary significantly from one ggaphic region to another, due primarily to
cultural differences but also due to differenceslimate and environmental factors.

The Group designs and sells products as a funcfiche needs, tastes and budgets of various
end-users and differentiates its products throuwgiice of materials, design and compliance with
differing regulatory standards, as well as resistato varying levels of foot traffic. Its large
product range allows it to offer integrated dedeeatand functional solutions using several
product categories in a single project, by cootiligaaccessories with floor coverings. By
combining and coordinating its products, the Groap respond to several different needs at a
single site.

Each of the Group’s products features technologiohlancements that improve product quality
for end-users. Each of the Group’s products isr@®gied with environmental sustainability in
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mind through a focus on the raw materials used iiadyction, environmentally sound
manufacturing processes and ecologically safe ptadisposal. The Group designs-in the use
of renewable and recycled resources whenever pessibhe Group's products are also designed
to protect indoor air quality. For example, thedsvof volatile organic compounds emissions
(VOC) given off by the Group’s products are lowkeart current standards, and the Group uses
phthalate-free plasticizers for its vinyl floorshd Group’s products are also designed to be
recyclable, either within its own production chain in other uses. The Group’s production
process is designed to minimize the use of watéreaiergy at its production sites.

The Group has been doing business for decadesgtiwati the world, and its brands are
internationally and locally recognized, associatéth high quality at competitive prices. The
Group provides training to local installers to aptie the performance of the products purchased
by commercial end-users, thereby improving instiallaquality. The Group’s customer service
representatives provide support throughout theofifiécs products.

The Group sells the following types of flooring:
» Resilient flooring (vinyl and linoleum), including:

o resilient flooring for residential end-users, irdihg heterogeneous (multi-layer)
vinyl, which can be sold in rolls or as tiles, esp#ly high-end vinyl tiles (luxury
vinyl tiles, or “LVT"), and

o resilient flooring for commercial end-users, inéhglheterogeneous vinyl, which
can be sold in rolls or as tiles, including LVT,nmageneous vinyl (single-layer),
and linoleum floors;

« wood and laminate flooring, including plain wooddeangineered wood floors as well
as multi-layer laminate floors using several maisrisold to both residential and

commercial end-users;

» carpets for commercial end-users, a product linewas strengthened by the Group’s
September 2012 acquisition of the U.S. company tdsind

* rubber flooring and accessories; and
» sports surfaces (primarily artificial turf and attit tracks).

The following table presents the breakdown of theup’s 2013 consolidated net revenues by
product type.

2013 Net Revenues (in millions of euros) % of 2013 Net
Revenue
Resilient flooring (vinyl and linoleum).......cccccovoieviieieeiieniiens 1,507.3 60%
Wood and laminate flooring .........cocvevveereiiniiece e 239.2 10%
(O o 1= T PP P PO UR TR 318.1 12%
Rubber and acCeSSOries ........covvviiiiicrerceee e 166.0 %7
SPOMS SUMACES .....veiiciie ittt 285.8 11%
TOMALL ettt e 2,516.¢ 100.0%
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The Group’s business is organized into four segsaetitree geographical segments for flooring
(EMEA, North America and CIS & Others) and one globegment for sports surfaces.

The following table presents the breakdown of thleup’'s 2013 consolidated net revenues by
segment.

2013 Net Revenues (in millions of euros) % of 2013 Net
Revenues
EMEA ..ottt 669.¢ 26.6%
NOMh AMENICA........eiiiieiiiiiecie e emecmre e 673.6 26.8%
CIS & OtNEIS ...ceiiiieiieiieeec et e 887.5 35.3%
SPOIS SUMACK......cccieiiie e 285.¢ 11.3%
TOLAD e 2,516.4 100.0%

6.1.5.1 Resilient Flooring (Vinyl and Linoleum)

The Group offers a large range of resilient flogriimcluding homogenous and heterogeneous
vinyl and linoleum. Both residential and commeraald-users purchase heterogeneous vinyl.
Homogeneous vinyl and linoleum, on the other had, purchased primarily by commercial
end-users.

Residential end-users and commercial end-usershase resilient flooring with similar
characteristics, and the Group’s LVT products fesidential end-users are very similar to the
resilient flooring that it sells to commercial easers in terms of design, price ranges and the
materials used.

The Group has a very strong position in the retiliooring market as a result of being the
largest vinyl flooring manufacturer in the worlde&tlient flooring represents the largest portion
of the Group’s sales in the EMEA and CIS & Othargions, and also accounts for a significant
share of its sales in North America. In particuthg Group is the largest manufacturer of resilient
flooring in France, Germany, Sweden, Russia, Ukralfazakhstan and Belarus. It is also the
number two North American manufacturer of resiliinbring, and it offers these products in

Latin America (in particular in Brazil, where it the largest manufacturer of commercial vinyl

flooring) and in Asia Pacific (in particular in Amalia and China).

6.1.5.1.1 Residential Vinyl Flooring

The Group offers a variety of heterogeneous vigbrs for the residential market, which
includes apartments and houses (the common areasuiltiffamily residences and apartment
buildings are considered commercial premises).

Design, appearance and price ranges of residemidlflooring must be adapted to the budgets,
uses and tastes of the residential users in eamrayghical region, which can be very culturally
specific.

Heterogeneous vinyl flooring is composed of feltfiberglass backing covered with compact

PVC and foam padding for insulation, covered susigely with a printed decorative layer, a
wear layer coating and a scuff-resistant finistinegtment.
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Heterogeneous residential vinyl

Compact Foam
PVC 7

Printed

Glass design

fibre

Foam backing
layer
treatment

Heterogeneous vinyl flooring for residential en@sscontains a thin wear layer, which enables it
to be sold at competitive prices while maintainthg level of durability needed for residential
use.

In terms of the pattern printed on the flooringface, the Group offers its end-users a variety of
colors and designs. In order to keep up with ddcwrdarends, the Group must tailor its product

lines to conform to prevailing styles and fashionhjch can vary widely from one geographic

region to the next. In order to reflect changingides and fashions, the Group updates its
product line on a rolling basis approximately evimge years.

Heterogeneous vinyl products offer several advasag terms of livability and remain attractive
over a long period of time. Residential heterogesednyl flooring can be sold in rolls or in
modular format (tiles or plates). Rolls are gergialstalled with glue, whereas modular products
may be installed using glue, self-adhesive attactisner they may be snapped together, which
facilitates installation and repair.

The Group helps customers choose and coordinabeirfp through its rollout of the iSelect
Continuity and Coordination Flooring System, in theited States. iSelect is a computer program
designed to simplify the decision-making procesdlevpiving consumers a one-stop-shopping
option that allows them to sample colors or pageand match them with performance features
and finishing accessories. Tarkett also designadi&br Click, a line of modular, easy-to-install
LVT with a solid click-locking installation systethat is resistant, durable and adapts well to
different types of architecture.

The Group also offers LVT on the commercial markag, described in Section 6.1.5.1.2,
“Commercial Resilient Flooring” below.

6.1.5.1.2 Commercial Resilient Flooring

Resilient flooring for commercial uses includesé range of products, including homogeneous
and heterogeneous vinyl and linoleum flooring.

Commercial resilient flooring is specifically desay for high-traffic areas and can withstand
numerous shocks. It is used in commercial premirsglading offices, administrative buildings,
schools, hospitals, retirement homes, hotels, stthe common areas of apartment buildings and
in train stations and factories.

6.1.5.1.2.1 Heterogeneous Vinyl Flooring
Heterogeneous vinyl flooring for commercial uselésigned to withstand intense foot traffic. In
particular, a thicker wear layer is applied to fweduct than is used on the Group’s residential

resilient flooring products in order to reinforcdiet product and ensure its durability.
Heterogeneous vinyl flooring is suitable for almasy commercial use.
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Heterogeneous commercial vinyl

Fibreglass non PUR reinforcement for
woven reinforcement easy maintenance
for dimensional Compact PVC
stability wear layer

Compact

Backing Solid homogeneous calendered
sheet for an optimum resistance to
tearing and curl stability

The Group classifies its heterogeneous vinyl flogrproducts into two types: acoustic products,
which are designed to absorb ambient noise (sufboésteps and talking) and compact products,
which reinforce the floor’'s robustness.

Design
layer

The Group offers a diverse range of designs antknmat printed on the decor layer, for both
rolled and modular products (including LVT, as hat described in the next paragraph, and loose
lay tiles). These frequently updated product ligiee end-users a wide product selection.

Among the Group’s other heterogeneous vinyl floggmoducts, it has developed LVT, which is
a high-end modular product designed primarily foe tommercial market. This product offers
high precision printing of designs and patternsictvltan simulate wood, ceramic or stone, using
sophisticated graphics techniques. Luxury vinygdilre available at prices that are extremely
competitive compared to the cost of the matertady tmimic.

LVT (modular heterogeneous vinyl)

Design
(printed PVC film or print) Transparent

PVC wear-layer

PVC compact or

acoustic middle +
backing layers, with
fibreglass support

Top surface
treatment

6.1.5.1.2.2 Homogeneous Vinyl Flooring

Unlike heterogeneous flooring, homogeneous vingbring is made in a single layer with the
pattern embedded directly into the material. Tlsetof flooring is covered with a layer of
pigment and reinforced by a polyurethane surfaeatmnent that prevents metallization and
facilitates maintenance.

Homogeneous vinyl

Surface treatment "
Pur: Polyurelhanel Colour pigments

4

<

Homogeneous vinyl flooring has many advantagesregsstance to wear-and-tear makes it a
durable solution for high-traffic areas. It comasaicompact version for high-traffic areas and in
an acoustic version. The absence of multiple lajreits composition makes the design simple
and offers advantages in terms of hygiene and eadnice.
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As a result of its particular acoustic benefitsti-bacterial properties and reinforced durability
homogeneous vinyl flooring is frequently used ie tiealthcare and educational sectors, as well
as in aged-care facilities.

6.1.5.1.2.3 Linoleum Flooring

The Group has been making linoleum for more thantamdred years. Linoleum is composed of
a jute backing treated with renewable raw matesgath as linseed oil, rosin, cork flour or wood
flour, to which a surface treatment is added.

Urethane polymer
based surface
Solid treatment

linoleum

Jute
backing

Linoleum is a natural product covered with a siefaeatment that makes it extremely robust and
easy to maintainThe Group’s linoleum products are extremely duradhe therefore well
adapted to intense use of flooring that is typmfatommon areas in educational buildings and
healthcare facilities, as well as offices and indsports facilities.

6.1.5.2 Wood and Laminate Flooring
6.1.5.2.1 Wood flooring

The Group has been making wood flooring for morantla century. Originally, the most
frequently manufactured type of flooring was plaiood, but it has been increasingly replaced by
multi-layer (or “engineered”) wood products, sotditoth residential and commercial end-users
(including stores and boutiques, hotels and indports facilities).

The Group sells wood flooring in Europe (EMEA segiheprimarily in Scandinavia. It also
markets these products in the CIS countries andBtikans and, to a lesser extent, in North
America. The Group is a leading manufacturer of dvlooring in Europe and is number one in
wood flooring in the CIS. Wood floors are generalyld in the residential market. Although
most of the wood the Group uses comes from Euridpgses a staining process to adapt to
demand in different markets and regions, in paldichy offering wood flooring that resembles
exotic wood.

The engineerewood flooring that the Group sells is composed of thregn layers: the bottom
stabilizing layer; a middle layer in soft wood swpine or spruce or HDF (high density fiber);
and a top layer of high-quality wood. This compiositresults in a more responsible use of the
high-quality wood in a thin layer and allows theoGp to optimize the hidden layers of fast-
growing species of wood.
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These three stacked layers ensure the longevitth@fGroup’'s wood floors, in addition to
reinforcing their structural integrity. The Groupeas high-performance protection techniques,
such as the Protecto surface treatment, compostidedfiyers of solvent-free photo reticulated
finishing coat, which reinforces resistance to wtras and wear, due to its stabilizing veneer.
Engineered wood helps limit the use of high-grad®dysuch as ogkwhich requires relatively
long regeneration cycles. In this way, the Grouptidoutes to sustainable forest management.

The Group offers several engineered wood produess|igiving consumers greater freedom of
choice: single, double or triple floorboard. Stykesd collections are adapted for each market.
Tarkett also offers both matte and glossy lacquéstes.

The Group’s wood floors rely on technical know-himwood-working in the service of natural

beauty and are composed of natural, renewable rawerials (different species of wood),

harvested from monitored, responsibly- and sudt&rmanaged forests. After many years of
use, the Group’s wood floors may be dismantledréoise or recycling, in order to respect the
environment.

Installation is facilitated by the “2-Lock Click’ystem, which allows installation without glue.
This system is used with the under-layers thaGtmip offers.

6.1.5.2.2 Laminate Flooring
Laminate flooring is primarily sold to end-userstlie residential market and can be designed to
reproduce the pattern that the end-user wants—w&todge, ceramic or a graphic design—but

with enhanced durability and at a lower cost.

Laminate flooring consists of a paper balancingtag core board of high-density particles or
HDF, a decor layer of printed paper and an ovadgyrotect the visible surface.

Overlay
Core board
made of high l

density floor board

Balancing layer —————— "8

Decor layer =
impregnated

"8 paper
-
,f"/‘f

4

Laminate flooring is sold at competitive prices gared to wood and provides a durable flooring
solution. The Group offers a large range of designend-users to satisfy all of their wishes,
although this product type is intended primarily tbe residential market through DIY (do-it-
yourself) distribution channels and constructionierials, in particular.
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Laminate flooring is easy to install thanks to tBeoup’s 2-Lock Click and T-Lock systems,
which make it possible to lock the plates to eatiferowithout gluing them to the supporting
layer. Laminate flooring can also be adapted tosfiexific needs of each end-user: heavy use and
weight, high resistance to shocks or high-traffieas. Laminate flooring also allows users to
easily change their flooring without incurring pioitive costs as a result of the fact that it is
modular.

6.1.5.3 Carpet

The Group offers carpets for use in commercial eapaich as office buildings, governmental
institutions, hospitals and schools. In Septemi22 the Group acquired the U.S. company
Tandus, a leading designer, manufacturer and s#llearpet for the commercial market, which
has enabled it to enlarge its product portfolicoffgring commercial carpet products. As a result,
Tandus's historical market, North America, is cathethe Group’s principal geographic region
for commercial carpeting.

The Group offers three types of carpeting, whichiespond to three generations of the product:

» broadloom carpet, which is made from a polypropgl&acking and fibers that are
either tufted or woven;

* modular carpet, which is sold in tiles, and madexofinyl or urethane backing and
tufted (nylon) fibers; and

* hybrid resilient sheet flooring, which is an insegide structure made of a resilient
base, a nylon carpet and a specific foam that innées to its performance and
enhances design options.

Broadloom

Tufted or
woven
fiore

Structured
backing
(polypropylene)

Structured
backing
(vinyl or
urethane)

Carpet is a shock-absorbent floor covering withcdyaooustic properties that adds comfort and
warmth to an interior environment. The Group offerside selection of colors and patterns that
are frequently updated and tailored to appeal &totners in different geographic regions. The
different carpet products also offer acoustic priies and high-performance resistance to rolling
and heavy traffic, as well as ease of maintenance.

6.1.5.4 Rubber Flooring and Accessories
The Group sells a wide range of rubber flooringval as rubber and vinyl accessories. Flooring
products include rubber sheets and tiles, whileesswmries include stair nosing, tactile warning

strips, tactile paving tiles, warning tiles, basmfals, decorative wall skirting, thresholds and
adhesives.
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Sold primarily in North America, these products ased mostly by commercial end-users in the
healthcare, educational and industrial sectorsyadkas in indoor sports facilities. The Group is
the leading supplier of vinyl accessories in Néktherica.

As part of the Group’s sustainable developmentaitiite, it can produce these products with
recycled rubber.

Rubber tiles/sheets Stair nosing Drain

H &=

The Group offers rubber flooring and accessories iwide variety of colors, patterns and
textures, in order to coordinate with its othemfiog solutions. These products and accessories
are slip-resistant and shock-absorbent and proaidegh level of safety. They have natural
acoustic properties, require little maintenance, ame easy to install and replace.

6.1.5.5 Sports Surfaces

The sports surfaces that the Group manufacturessae throughout the world by amateur and
experienced athletes, providing safety, comfortfgseiance and aesthetic enjoyment. Sports
surfaces are installed at universities, schools poblic sports facilities. North America
represented 79.5% of the Sports Surfaces segme@18 sales, while Europe, in particular
France, Spain and the Netherlands, representeadyapyately 19.1% of this segment's 2013
sales.

The Group has a strong presence in the sports hduketo the diversity of its products. It is one
of the only flooring manufacturers able to proveileh a wide range of sports surface solutions.

The Group’s sports surfaces include three produmeist artificial turf, athletic tracks and indoor
sports flooring.

6.1.5.5.1 Artificial Turf

Artificial turf represents the largest portion etGroup’s sales of sports surfaces. The Group is
the leading artificial turf manufacturer in the Wehrand particularly in North America. Artificial
turf can be used for both sports surfaces and tamisg.

The Group is certified as an artificial turf manetiarer by FIFA Fédération Internationale de
Football Associatiopand the International Rugby Board, and its terused for training and
competition fields by some of the leading Europsaccer clubs, such as FC Barcelona, as well
as for rugby (including at Cardiff Arms Park Stadi hockey, tennis and other multi-purpose
sports facilities. However, the principal end-usefr¢his product are universities and high school
facilities, and to a lesser extent, local munidifed for landscaping purposes.

The manufacture of artificial turf is a three-stpmcess for which the Group has numerous
patented innovative processes: fiber productiditintuand backing coating.
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For sports facilities, the Group produces high-iydibers, whose properties result from the
chemical composition, extrusion parameters andugnigarefully designed geometry. The Group
has become a leader in fiber extrusion technologes2010, when it entered into a joint venture
with Morton Extrusionstechnik, a German compapecialized in fiber extrusiorrhis joint
venture("MET”) enables the Group to control the fiber puation process for its artificial turf.
The extrusion process, which the Group developeth WIET and now owns, allows it to
significantly reduce the deterioration of the fiheand the excellent quality of the polymers used
ensures both superior durability and comfort.

Artificial turf is a cost-effective solution for avers or maintenance personnel of sports facilities
because it is less expensive to maintain than aaturf. From a sustainable development
standpoint, it also reduces water use and elinsntite need for fertilizers and herbicides. The
life cycle of a field made of artificial turf is éended by this fiber's resistance to wear and tear
from constant, year-round play. The fiber and limfilality contribute to comfort on the field and
to a reduction in both the risk and the severityimpdiries in the event of falls. Thanks to a
technique that the Group developed, it is alsoipes$o customize artificial turf by inserting a
team logo, for example, while maintaining the apapee of natural grass.

The Group also offers an innovative range of laadsw products with a variety of designs that
respond to the specific needs of end-users, iricpiat hotels and commercial campuses. The
Group also sells these products to residentialussds, particularly in the southern United States.

6.1.5.5.2 Athletic Tracks

The Group offers athletic tracks that promote athkpeed, safety and comfort. It sells them
principally in North America, where it is the leadimanufacturer.

Athletic tracks are composed of successive shosksaing layers of composite rubber, to which
a polyurethane layer is applied, with the surfa@ntworked on to give a particular color and
external appearance, whether smooth or rough.

Track

[Ereers————
'mmm—n

Because of the polyurethane surface layer, the [Bsathletic tracks are extremely durable and
provide athletes with important safety advantagegarticular due to their stability and shock
absorption. In addition, these tracks improve dithlperformance by reflecting the athlete’s
energy. The track surface essentially acts likeampoline, propelling the athlete slightly with
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each stride. Easy-to-install, these tracks carsked in any weather conditions and also have good
acoustic properties.

6.1.5.5.3 Indoor Sports Flooring

The Group offers indoor sports surface productsvd@od, vinyl or linoleum for multi-purpose
sports venues and gymnasiums.

Within the vinyl flooring line, the Omnisports cetition is adapted to multi-purpose sports

venues. It is available in several thicknesses$paond to the technical requirements of a wide
range of sporting events, and to offer performameadities adapted to the needs of its end-users.
The Group also offers lines of wood flooring forogs such as basketball, handball, dance,
volleyball, squash and matrtial arts.

The Group’s wide range of indoor sports surfacéisfes the requirements of both experienced
athletes and amateurs in terms of shock absorgihpounce and anti-slip surfaces. Certain of
the Group’s wood flooring product lines are popuiar their ease of installation, such as its
removable wooden floors, Sportable.

Indoor sports surfaces are marketed by a dedicsabab force in the North America sports
segment and by the general flooring sales forcasthiar regions. These indoor sports sales are
then recorded in the corresponding segments.

6.1.6 Distribution and Sale of the Group’s Products
6.1.6.1 Overview

The indoor flooring market is split between comnmrand residential end-users. Residential
users buy the Group’s products primarily to renewatisting homes, but they may also purchase
them in connection with new construction proje@emmercial users choose flooring for areas
that are generally open to the public, in connectiwith both renovation and construction
projects.

In general, residential purchases of flooring aradenin DIY stores. Residential end-users
generally have a limited ability to distinguish Wween different products’ various qualities and
attributes and are therefore relatively dependenthe salesperson at the point of sale to select
the appropriate flooring type. These products nyyever, also be purchased from specialized
construction material suppliers, especially when general contractor or installer is making the
purchase. Therefore, brand awareness among imstaled salespeople may have a large
influence on product choice.

The commercial market ranges from large-scale pt®j@ shopkeepers with small surface areas,
such as artisans and boutiques, whose purchasitegnsatend to be similar to residential users.
This market is markedly more heterogeneous tharrdbielential market in terms of technical
requirements, but less varied in terms of desigra tommercial project, each space is designed
for a very specific purpose, and materials musrofie supplied in large quantities. For example,
in a hospital project, the flooring solutions moshform to strict hygiene requirements to prevent
the spread of nosocomial infections. A hospitabfflavill also be required to meet minimum
standards of slip-resistance, static-absorptionrenisk absorption. A large department store or a
mall, however, would require an ultra-resistantoflog to bear intense foot traffic without
showing signs of wear. Office flooring must posséesability to absorb sound, withstand high
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foot traffic and contribute to temperature contidiost importantly, public areas are subject to
explicit regulations, in terms of interior enviroemntal health and safety, which can vary
considerably from one country to the next, everhiwita single economic zone such as the
European Union, or from state to state as in thiiedrbtates.

On the commercial market, construction materialstraomply with many requirements in terms
of design, cost, utility, durability and public ligha General contractors must make purchases in
accordance with the terms dictated by the spesjfigho choose flooring in consultation with the
end-user. Specifiers can include almost any typeoastruction industry professional: they may
be architects, interior decorators, installers,jgmto managers or general contractors. These
professionals are tasked with studying each prodadt understanding the relative advantages
and disadvantages of the various flooring solutioffisred. As a result, specifiers are often open
to examining the relative strengths and meritspafcific technological innovations. The Group
has teams dedicated to maintain close relationsWifis specifiers at all stages of project
development and management. These relationshipstittda a key factor in the Group’s sales
success on the commercial market.

Because of the way products are chosen, the corrahBooring market has other particularities
in terms of distribution channels. Unlike the resitdal market, where consumers go to a physical
point of sale and order products immediately upeledion, commercial buyers plan their
purchases in detail prior to placing an order. é&meyal, a project will begin with a detailed
planning phase, during which the quantities anditipg of each type of construction material
will be determined, and delivery and installatiamedules for each phase of the project will be
estimated. It is during the planning phase thatamufacturer has the opportunity to act as a
consultant to the specification team and desigmexstop, customized solution based on the
project’s technical and aesthetic requirementss&lmnsulting services enable project managers
to focus primarily on the factors that they feelstncomfortable with, such as design elements or
cost considerations, depending on their areaspdréige. Once the building materials have been
selected and the quantity specified, the instalewply places the order with a wholesaler or
directly with the manufacturer, and takes deliviergccordance with the construction calendar.

6.1.6.2 Distribution of the Group’s Products
6.1.6.2.1 Distribution Strategy

Distribution channels in the residential and conuiar markets differ as a result of the
characteristics of each market. The Group uses ‘patsh” and “pull” strategies within both of
these markets.

* Push The Group has specialized teams to implementptsh” strategy, whose
objective is to encourage wholesalers to buy itedpects. To that end, the Group’s
sales force meets with them to discuss the advestafjits flooring and present the
brands under which it markets its products. TheuBrbas entered into numerous
agreements with the principal wholesalers in eaalkat. In the residential market, in
addition to wholesalers, this strategy also inctudé&Y chains, and specialty retailers.

» Pull. The Group also has teams to implement its “mtHategy, whose objective is to
encourage the sale of products stocked by wholssdiethe commercial market, the
sales force concentrates on the main specifiech, asl architects, interior design firms
and construction companies.
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The following flow charts illustrate how the Grospdistribution strategy works for the
residential and commercial markets.

Residential Market
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The Group’s distribution strategy for the commedroiarket is complemented by training centers,
called “Tarkett Academies”, which promote awarenasthe Group’s products among specifiers
and ensure the highest quality installation in otdereinforce the Group’s image. There are 14
Tarkett Academies throughout the world. These imgincenters train building industry
professionals, such as flooring installers and garm®ntractors.

In these training centers, installers learn hovedarectly install Tarkett-brand products, which

often influences them to choose or recommend Tapmiducts for their future projects. By

ensuring proper installation of its products, theo@® also improves its reputation, increases
brand loyalty, develops relationships with its coenoml partners and improves customer
satisfaction by ensuring optimal installation &f fiiroducts.

6.1.6.2.2 Distribution Channels

The Group’s products are distributed primarily listiibutors, retail chains, installers, specialized
chains and independent stores. The weight of ed&thibdition channel is different in each
geographic region:

* Most of the Group’s sales in North America and i CIS & Others segment are
through distributors. Buildings in these markete aharacterized by large interior
spaces, providing significant economies of scaléeeims of logistics, with services
being provided by distributors to a large numberredhil stores. In Europe, on the
other hand, a smaller share of sales is throughilditors, though the number still
remains significant.
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» Large retail chains are common in Europe and Ndktherica, representing a
significant share of the Group’s sales in theseketar This distribution channel is
currently less significant in the CIS countriest bould grow in the years to come.

* Independent stores represent a relatively sigmifishare of the Group’s distribution
in Europe and in the CIS & Others segment, withamdr presence in high-end
products such as wood flooring.

» Installers and builders represent a significantestwd sales in Europe, particularly in
the commercial sector.

6.1.6.2.3 Customers

The Group has a large and diversified customer ,bemdéuding, in particular, distribution
companies and leading large retail chains. Distoitsuare the Group’s principal customers and
represent the majority of sales volume, followeddtyil chains (including DIY chains).

The Group is not dependent on its principal custsmmgo single customer represented more than
5% of the Group’s revenues in 2013.

6.1.6.2.4 Organization of the Group’s Sales Force

The Group’s 60 sales offices employ approximateBpQ sales professionals dedicated to selling
the Group’s products. They are spread over 38 degntenabling the Group to adapt to local

differences and better understand the needs of macket and region. Each sales office has its
own organization, responding to the requirements structure of the local region. One of the

strengths of the Group’s sales force is its abititpdapt to local demand.

6.1.6.3 Logistics
The Group’s logistics are organized around thr@gciples:

» improving the quality of customer service, in pautar by offering a wide product
selection and rapid delivery;

» reducing costs, in particular storage, transpastcand customs duties; and
» adapting the distribution network to the charasta$ of local markets.

The Group works with its distributors to supporitHogistics needs and limit the Group’s costs.
For example, the Group recently extended its lagigtlatforms in the CIS with the opening of
nine new regional service centers located clogestprincipal distributors, with a tenth planned
for 2014. This unique approach to distribution githe Group a significant advantage over its
competitors in the CIS. This proximity to customalso results in a clear improvement in service
through a reduction in lead times and better tngindf the Group’s customer service teams,
giving the Group a strong competitive advantagekdth was named Russia’s “Best Supplier of
the Year” in both 2010 and 2011 by the Annual BesinForum.
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6.1.6.3.1 Logistics and Transport

Transport of the Group’s products is organized \fitb objective of improving the quality of
customer service while managing transportationsdosth upstream and downstream.

Upstream, for delivery of raw materials and otheterials needed to manufacture products, the
Group negotiates framework agreements with itscgsad suppliers covering prices and lead
times and tries to locate its production sites ftsasuppliers’ manufacturing sites.

Downstream, for delivery of products to custom#s,primary objective of the Group’s logistics
organization is to offer short lead times so thatemers can optimize their inventory levels. In
some countries the Group uses outside serviceqemui

Most of the Group’s production sites are locatethi regions in which it sells its products. By
reducing the distance between products and cussprtter Group improves customer service,
significantly reduces transportation costs, savesnport duties and shortens lead times.

6.1.6.3.2 Logistics and Information Systems

The Group’s information systems include variousligppons, including applications to manage
purchases and product life cycles, resource plgnnicustomer relations, supply-chain
management, accounting and financial informatiath lutTman resources.

In 2010, the Group launched a wide scale programationalize, consolidate and secure its
information systems Group-wide. To do this, it istexl in the deployment of an SAP system,
which improves monitoring and management of theu@oactivities, to make internal processes
uniform, simplify the services offered to end-usansl develop the Group’s Internet presence.

The Group also made its computer infrastructurdoomi with a single network and security

system and a consolidation of data centers, wililging on a significantly strengthened risk

management program for its information systems.

6.1.7 Manufacturing

The Group’s production facilities are located asselas possible to product delivery sites, while
maintaining competitive production costs. The Grbiag 30 production sites in 15 countries in
order to be close to its markets, minimize transpasts and customs duties and remain
competitive with local players.

The Group tries to constantly improve its manufanty processes to reduce production times,
improve product quality and reduce manufacturingtxo

It uses flexible assembly lines so that it can agapduction to changes in end-user demand.
6.1.7.1 Production Sites

6.1.7.1.1 Location of Production Sites

The Group has 30 production sites; of these, itso@® and rents one (in the United Kingdom).

To the Group’s knowledge, as of the date of thigiReation Document, the Group’s tangible
fixed assets at production sites are not subjeghyomaterial liens or other security interests.
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As a result of the Group’s historical presencéas ten production sites in EMEA, including two
major sites with more than 500 employees each iremmbourg and Sweden. The Group’s
production sites supply the products it marketthis region: resilient flooring, laminate flooring,
wood flooring and sports surfaces. A small portaddrEuropean production is also marketed in
North America, the Middle East, Latin America ansi&

The Group owns nine production sites in North Aregriwhich produce resilient flooring as well
as, to a lesser extent, sports surfaces. With épeeSber 2012 acquisition of Tandus, the Group
became a significant manufacturer of carpet titestlie U.S. commercial market. The Group is
currently in the process of consolidating the putisen of both VCT and LVT into its Florence,
Alabama site and closing its Houston, Texas site.

The CIS & Others segment also has a substantiabeumf production sites to satisfy local
demand. In the CIS & Others segment, the Groupshaproduction sites, including one site in
Russia that has more than 1,000 employees. Thkiha# the largest production capacity of vinyl
flooring in the world. Other production sites iret@IS & Others regions make resilient flooring,
wood flooring and laminate flooring. The Group alss a carpet production site in China as a
result of the Tandus acquisition. In Brazil, wh#ére Group is the leading supplier of commercial
vinyl flooring, it has a factory that produces #disfy local demand.

The sports surfaces segment includes five produdii@s. Three of them manufacture artificial
turf (one in the United States and two in Westeanoge), and one makes athletic tracks in the
United States. The remaining production site ibar extrusion factory for artificial turf in
Germany. This last is MET, a joint venture in whtbe Group holds a 51% interest.

The following table presents the Group’s manufaotursites and the main products
manufactured at each site.

Site Product line Location
GERMANY
Laminate-Park-German' Laminate Floorin Eiweiler
MET-Germany Atrtificial turf Absteinach
Tarkett-Germany Resilient flooring Konz
BRAZIL
Tarkett Fademac-Brazil Resilient flooring Jacarei
CANADA
Johnsonite-Canada Resilient flooring Waterloo
Tandus-Canada Carpets and rugs Truro
Tarkett-Canada Resilient flooring Farnham
CHINA
Tandus-China Carpets Suzhou
SPAIN
FieldTurf Poligras-Spain Artificial turf Valls
UNITED STATES
Beynon-US Athletic tracks Hunt Valley
FieldTurf-US Artificial turf Calhoun
Johnsonit-US Resilient flooring Chagrin Falls
Johnsonite-US Resilient flooring Middlefield
Tandus-US Carpets Calhoun
Tandu-US Carpets Daltor

Weaving and dyeing of carpets Dalton
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Tarkett-US
Tarkett-US

FRANCE
FieldTurf-France
Marty-France
Tarkett-France

ITALY
Tarkett-ltaly

LUXEMBOURG
Tarkett-Luxembourg

POLAND
Tarket-Polanc

UNITED KINGDOM
Tarket-UK

RUSSIA
Tarkett-Russia
Tarkett-Russia

SERBIA
Tarkett/Sintelon-Serbia

SWEDEN
Tarkett-Sweden
Tarkett-Sweden

UKRAINE
Tarkett-Ukraine

Carpet finishing
Resilient flooring

Resilient flooring (Centiva)

Resilient flooring

Avrtificial turf
Wood flooring
Resilient flooring

Resilient flooring (linoleum)

Resilient flooring

Wood flooring

Resilient flooring

Laminate Flooring
Resilient flooring

Resilient flooring
Wood flooring
Carpets and rugs

Wood flooring
Resilient flooring

Resilient flooring
Wood flooring
Carpets
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Florence
Florence
Houston

Auchel

Cuzorn
Sedan

Narni

Clervaux

Orzechow:

Lenhan

Mytischi
Otradny

Backa Palanka
(2 plants)

Backa Palanka
(2 plants)

Hanaskog
Ronneby

Kalush
(3 plants)



6.1.7.1.2 The Group’s Investments in Production Sites

Over the last three years, the Group has made arages of €80 million per year in ongoing
investments in its production sites in order topoesl to increasing demand, maintain
competitiveness and continue reducing productictsco

The Group’s investments have been spread amorsifets worldwide. However, to support the
growth in local demand in the CIS & Others segmémtparticular Russia, this region has
received a significant share of these investments.

The Group has also undertaken other targeted pspjsach as a new rubber flooring line in
North America and the construction of a new wareledn Russia for storing laminate flooring. It
has also invested in the Sports Surfaces segnmepériicular by creating the joint venture MET
described above, fain control over the production of fibers for tBeoup’s artificial turf.

6.1.7.2 Continued Improvement of Manufacturing Processes

The Group continually works to improve its manufeicty processes, with the goals of
improving worker safety and customer satisfactiod seducing costs.

In February 2009, the Group launched its World €Msanufacturing (“WCM”") program, which
is inspired by similar successful programs in thmobile sector.

This program seeks to improve:
e product quality and customer service;
» the safety and performance of production sites; and
» the Group’s financial profitability, while reduciritg impact on the environment.

In connection with the WCM program, the Group isrgiag out initiatives to improve product
guality, on-time delivery and production yieldd,wahile limiting effects on the environment.

The Group has appointed WCM directors for all efgites. These directors coordinate ongoing
improvement projects on-site and develop relatedhowwlogies. They can then share their
experiences within the WCM network, thus spreadifficiency improvements throughout the
Group’s production network to improve profitabiliffhe Group also has a dedicated WCM team
that travels to each production site to help laeams deploy the WCM improvements. By
traveling to the various production sites, the W&dm can adapt the program’s methodologies
to local conditions, while at the same time manggiction plans centrally.

The Group has seen positive results from the WCMgmam. A study conducted by an
independent party confirmed significant improvemémtcustomer satisfaction in 14 of the
countries where the Group sells its products. There been a very substantial decrease in
accidents at the Group’s production sites and aedsed environmental impact from the
manufacture of its products. In addition, the WCkbgram has improved management of the
Group’s supply chain and led to a cumulative reidncof €165 million in production costs over
the course of the last four years.
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The Group believes that the WCM program will conéinto generate substantial savings in
production costs in the coming years.

6.1.7.2.1 Special Attention to Worker Safety

The WCM program emphasizes accident preventiothen Group’s factories by requiring
systematic analysis of all incidents, identificatiof principal causes and implementation of a
rigorously monitored action plan.

At the same time, the Group conducts training tser@mployee and management awareness of
safety issues. The Group’s Executive Committeartiqularly sensitive to employee safety and
discusses the subject with employees when it ist®ries.

Between 2008 and 2013, the accident rate fell fiéh8 per million hours worked to 2.5 per
million hours worked, which is better than the istty average.

6.1.7.2.2 Strengthened Quality Control

The Group has implemented a quality-control stmectin its factories to ensure rigorous
monitoring of its products. In connection with tA&CM program, the Group’s teams
systematically analyze the principal causes ofarnst complaints and quality defects and create
action plans to remedy the problem. In particutlae, Group is working towards a reduction in
customer complaints, which still represents a suttistl cost-reduction opportunity.

6.1.7.2.3 A Manufacturing Process That Respects the Envirohme

The Group takes the environment into consideragibrevery stage of product design. For that
reason, it does its best to select the materiats hesent the least risk to end-users and the
environment, and that can be part of a biologigatezhnical cycle. It prioritizes the use of
renewable and recyclable materials in manufactutggroducts.

The Group has also developed a system for colleetim recycling of flooring, ReUse/ReStart
and Floore (for Tandus), which consists of gathledlean flooring waste at the production sites
and offices in order to re-use it to manufacture fleoring.

The Group has also entered into a partnership egmeewith the German research institute
Environment Protection Encouragement Agency (“EPEIR’ order to deploy the Cradle to
Cradle® concept. This program aims to reduce thér@mmental impact of industrial activities
and to design products with materials that proteaghan health and the environment and that
allow for indefinite recycling of the products atceof use.

Please see Section 6.1.10, “Environment and Safi@irDevelopment” for more information
about the Group’s environmental program and susitdéendevelopment.

6.1.8 Raw Materials and Suppliers

The Group uses several categories of raw matetdalsmanufacture its products: PVCs and
plasticizers for vinyl flooring, wood for wood arddminate flooring, polymers and fibers for
carpets and artificial turf, rubber for rubber ftimg and accessories (such as baseboards) and
artificial turf, and cork for linoleum flooring. h Group builds and maintains close and
structured relationships with all of its suppliefhie structure of its long-term relationships with
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suppliers enables it to optimize purchasing terntsadapt the Group’s procurement policy to the
specific needs of each country.

6.1.8.1 Raw Materials
6.1.8.1.1 PVC and Plasticizers

The Group primarily uses two raw materials to mantifre its products PVC and plasticizers:
These are used to manufacture homogenous and deeaus vinyl.

PVC and plasticizers together represented appraalynawo-thirds of the Group’s raw material
costs in 2013. The PVC and plasticizers marketgkngal with regional differences relating to
the relationship of supply and demand in diffeigedgraphies.

The evolution in the price of these commoditiesrabe last two years has mainly been tied to
that of their respective raw materials, ethylene RYC and naphtha and orthoxylene for
plasticizers.

Moreover, when the Group makes acquisitions, iumssthat it is able to reduce raw material
costs by asking the target's suppliers to honoptites negotiated with the rest of the Group.

The Group is currently evaluating raw material apyaities in its various geographic regions.

Raw material prices are decreasing in North Amediga to the use of shale gas there. Although
the Group still favors local procurement in Europemarily because of transportation costs, the
lowered cost of raw materials in North Americaikgly to have a positive impact on negotiations
with European raw material suppliers.

6.1.8.1.2 Other Raw Materials

Wood represented approximately 10% of the Grougpis material costs in 2013. The Group uses
wood to make wood and laminate flooring. The wdodring market remains very local, due to

the significant cost of transporting logs or roudghber. The Group is therefore subject to local
fluctuations in the price of wood.

The Group purchases other raw materials, in pdatidiberglass for vinyl flooring; rubber for
rubber flooring, accessories and artificial turglypropylene for carpet; melamine and decor
paper for laminate floors; and linseed oil, jutel aork for linoleum floors.

6.1.8.2 Supplier Relationships and Purchasing Policy

Suppliers are essential partners of the Group, witiom it develops close and durable
relationships. The Group has chosen to develop -femg relationships with all of the
participants in its supply chain. The Group orgesiits relations with suppliers around strategic
partners with global scale and local suppliers &bkdapt to local demands.

6.1.8.2.1 Supplier Relations

For each category of raw materials, the Group la®ldped relationships with several partner

suppliers at the global level. In 2013, its teryéeat suppliers accounted for 53% of raw materials
purchases.
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The Group is careful to maintain relationshipsraét over the long term with all of its suppliers.
These relationships enable the Group to negotiat@réble commercial terms, to obtain
productivity gains and to realize economies ofescal

In order to adapt its procurement structure toedéit geographic regions, the Group has put
supplier partnerships in place at different levels:

» It buys PVC and plasticizers from the leading inggional chemical companies, such
as Vinnolit, Ineos, Vestolit, BASF, Eastman and ko which supply the Group
throughout the world.

e It also buys raw materials from local suppliers,particular wood, the majority of
which is purchased from local sawmills.

It maintains interdependent relationships with a@ertsuppliers, especially sawmills, based on
their dependence on sales to wood and laminaterftpéactories. The Group’s relationships with
these suppliers often become long-term partnerships

For artificial turf, the Group joined with a fibextrusion specialist to produce high-quality fibers
with a unique geometry. This enables the Grouprtmlyce the fiber it needs to manufacture
artificial turf without depending on an externapplier.

In order to limit transport of certain raw matesiathe Group tries to locate its factories close to
suppliers. Accordingly, the wood and laminate flogrfactories are built close to local sawmills
to avoid excessive costs from wood transport.
6.1.8.2.2 Purchasing Policy
The Group tries to centralize its purchases atdglobal level for the most important raw
materials, in particular PVC and plasticizers, adlvas for fiberglass and titanium dioxide
purchases, which are used to manufacture vinytifigo
In the Group’s supplier agreements, pricing is kaeto market prices of the raw materials used
in manufacturing its products. Most of these age®s have one-year terms, with three-year
terms in certain cases. The Group is not obligtgdhese agreements to purchase specific
guantities of materials.
The Group’s purchasing policy is based on fourgpies:

» active management of its portfolio of suppliers;

e annual review of its principal contracts;

« diversification of raw materials; and

e collaboration with key suppliers.
The Group actively manages its portfolio of parteappliers. It has significantly reduced the

number of PVC grades that it uses, which allowis itegotiate more easily with the various PVC
suppliers, in particular with respect to price. T@®up has increased the number of plasticizer
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suppliers it uses, with the increase in supplieiaoéng it to improve its negotiating power over
price. This supplier diversification gives the Goawom to maneuver in negotiating prices.

The Group reviews its main contracts annually ideorto renegotiate prices and determine
supplier availability. Price formulas give the Gpouisibility as to price evolution over several
years. Diversification of the raw materials tha¢ tBroup uses enables it to substitute inputs
between several suppliers and thus reduce its depea on certain specialized suppliers.

The Group tries to cooperate closely with its kegmiers on technical issues and innovations. It
explains its growth objectives to them in ordeetwsure that they increase production capacities
sufficiently to respond to increased demand.

6.1.9 Research and Development, Innovation, Standards Afipable to the Group’s
Products and Intellectual Property

The Group has a long history of research and dpuedat. Innovations are incorporated into new
products and procedures in order to provide resimleand commercial end-users with new
solutions.

To the extent permitted by local law, the Groupteystically patents, trademarks or registers its
industrial know-how and research and developmeamivations in order to protect its intellectual

property.
6.1.9.1 Research and development
6.1.9.1.1 The Group’s Research and Development Policy

Research and innovation are among the Group’s iopties. As a result, the Group has created
many innovative flooring solutions, for which itaon several awards. Spending on research
and development increased from €15.6 million in@@1 €25.8 million in 2013, demonstrating
the Group’s commitment to making research and dgweént of one of its pillars of success.

In order to position its products to respond to tharket's demands and to anticipate future
needs, the Group includes in its research and denw&nt initiatives a quality-assurance process
as well as a graphic-design service that targetkeh&rends.

The Group’s policy with respect to research andettgament is discussed in Sections 6.1.9.1.2,
“Organization of the Group’s Research and Develagndetivity” through 6.1.9.2.4, “Awards
for the Group’s Innovations”.

6.1.9.1.2 Organization of the Group’s Research and DeveloprAetivity
6.1.9.1.2.1 A Network of Internal Experts

The Group’s research and development activitiesparéormed by more than 150 employees
throughout the world. Research and developmentgarnized around an international research
and innovation center located in Luxembourg, aslvasl 24 development and application
laboratories located in more than ten countriesradothe world. This enables the Group to
develop products that respond to the needs andstastlocal end-users, while relying on its
center for excellence in research and innovation.
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The directors of the research and development ttepats meet frequently to discuss product
innovation, development and portfolio.

6.1.9.1.2.2 Close Relationships With Outside Scientific Expédstaversities and Suppliers

In order to create the most innovative flooring usioins, the Group has developed close
relationships with outside experts. For examplerdéated a scientific advisory board including
both Tarkett experts and internationally known mi&®xperts. The Group's directors of research
and development can therefore consult with scisnfrem the world to validate their strategic
research and development plans and to improve thep innovation strategy on a larger scale.
Experts within Tarkett can also meet frequenthhwésearch and development project managers,
as well as with technical supervisors, to identifyerging technologies and market trends.

Approximately 25% of the Group’s total research deglelopment budget is devoted to external
activity. For example, it has entered into parthiggs with research laboratories at some of the
leading universities and engineering schools in Wwld (in particular the University of
Michigan, the University of Strasbourg, the Univgref Potsdam, th&coles des Minem Paris,
the CEMEF, the EPEA, ESPCI Paris Tech, and Hoele Nationale Supérieure des Arts
Décoratifsin France).

Through innovation partnership agreements, it s @eveloped close relationships with certain
suppliers to develop specific technical improveragatich as monitoring odors or improving the
environmental attributes of the Group’s flooringgucts.

6.1.9.2 An Effective Innovation Process
6.1.9.2.1 Key Principles
The Group’s innovation strategy is based on thegegkinciples.

First, it strongly emphasizes eco-design. To im@etthis principle, the Group constantly seeks
new materials and processes that protect the emagnt and end-users. For more information,
see Section 6.1.10.3.1, “Deployment of the CradleCtadle® Concept”. The Group is also
working towards significantly increasing the shafeenewable, abundant and recycled materials
used in the manufacture of its flooring productsalso aims to provide clear and precise
information to consumers about its products’ desidsing its own rating system, the Group
labels its products with the proportion of reneveabhd natural materials used in the product’s
manufacture. The Group also indicates whether thdyzt can be recycled, as well as its levels
of VOC emissions.

The second principle on which the Group basesnit®vation strategy is the development of
modular solutions. Modular solutions are well addpto both residential and commercial users
who want ease of use combined with a wide selecifatesigns and decorations. Therefore, the
Group has developed a full range of modular sahstioffering a large choice of models and
design.

Finally, the Group aims to maintain its positionaasindustry leader. In order to accomplish this,
the Group constantly creates new manufacturinggases to achieve operational excellence and
optimal competitiveness. It strives to acquire riavow-how for implementing and designing
flooring, and develops partnerships with univeesitand experts throughout the world to model
these manufacturing processes.
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6.1.9.2.2 An Integrated Innovation Process

To offer innovative products to its clients, theoGp regularly launches new product lines. To
design and develop these new lines, the Group &dsqged a four-phase innovation process.
During the exploratory phase, the Group monitors thtest flooring, design and interior
decorating trends. The Group also monitors tectyyoémd legal developments to ensure that the
products it develops in the future will comply wabplicable regulations.

Following the exploratory phase, the Group entbesttial phase. During this phase, the Group
tests the designed product for market suitabilityarket demand, materials performance,
technical feasibility and manufacturing process.

If the product is approved, the Group moves indbvelopment phase. At this point, it creates
the first prototypes for the new product.

Then the Group enters the production phase, whickubject to approval by the new product
department, in charge of launching and marketing tlew product. Once the product is

industrially approved, the Group begins to manufiacthe new product so that end-users can
begin to benefit from the new innovation as soopassible.

6.1.9.2.3 The Group’s Numerous Innovations

The Group’s research and development strategy hadpeide its end-users with excellent
flooring products. As early as 1942, the Group tipyed a new process for manufacturing wood
flooring that reduced the amount of wood used. &itieen, the Group has always worked to
develop products and concepts that simplify endsisiéves while reducing environmental

impact.

Among its numerous recent innovations, in 2009 @Gmwup created iQ Natural, the first
homogenous vinyl with more than 75% natural anceweable components. The entire iQ line
reduces water and detergent use and has extreonelVOC emissions compared with European
standards.

Through its innovations, the Group also improves filerformance of its products. For example,
Cool Play, recently launched by FieldTurf, is ategs that enables the Group to significantly
reduce the temperature of its artificial turf whitaintaining the same level of quality.

6.1.9.2.4 Awards for the Group’s Innovations

The Group has received numerous awards demongtithi@t its innovations are internationally
recognized.

Over the last five years, the Group has receiveatdsvin numerous areas.
* Green Good Design Award in 2009 for the Group’dagical linoleum;
* Cradle to Cradle® certification for production tddring. In 2011, the Group obtained
Cradle to Cradle® silver-level certification forsitvood products manufactured in

Sweden and Poland, as well as for its linoleum2042, the Group received basic-
level certification for its rubber products manutaed in the United States. The
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Group was the first linoleum and wood flooring miauturer to receive Cradle to
Cradle® certification;

 BFM Green Business Award in 2011, for the Group&bgl sustainable development
strategy, and the strategic development trophy @seaby theAgence Francaise de
I'Environnement et de la Maitrise de I'Energierench Agency for the Environment
and Energy Management) and by Ernst & Young in 2ah#

* A.T. Kearney’s Best Innovator prize in 2013, foe tBroup’s innovation management
strategy.

6.1.9.3 Standards Applicable to the Group’s Products
6.1.9.3.1 The Different Standards Adhered to by the Group

The Group complies with a large number of regutatjcstandards and certifications in its various
markets. These standards vary depending on theapgdg region, the type of building in which

a product is installed and the type of flooringeT&roup also uses a monitoring process to ensure
that its products comply with applicable regulaspstandards and certifications.

6.1.9.3.1.1 Mandatory Standards and Standards with Which theu@Complies Voluntarily

The Group is subject to two types of standards:damny standards based on legal requirements,
and voluntary standards that it has chosen to comiph to respond to its customers’ needs.

In most cases, compliance with mandatory standandst be certified by independent

laboratories and/or organizations as well as bgvemmental authority. Their principal objective

is to ensure the safety and protect the healthndfusers by demonstrating that the product
complies with regulatory requirements, which relptamarily to fire-resistance, slip-resistance

and limits on toxic fumes.

Voluntary standards are primarily testing standatds determine a product's technical
characteristics such as acoustic properties orriiioral stability, and specifications relating to
minimum thresholds for a specific use. These statsdaary depending on the product and its
intended use, such as schools, hospitals or homes.

Especially in the commercial market, specifierenfstipulate compliance with non-mandatory
standards in their order specifications. Moreowempliance with non-mandatory standards is
also required by certain national or municipal goweents for the construction or renovation of
buildings that will be used as public administrai@r government agencies.

Set forth below is information about the variousnstards that the Group has voluntarily chosen
to follow. The use of such standards allows buyspecifiers and end-users to be informed of the
characteristics of the Group’s flooring in order hetter differentiate between the Group’s

products and those of its competitors. The teclhrspacifications that the Group chooses to
communicate vary depending on the requirementseofitarket in question.

6.1.9.3.1.2 Standard Organizations and the Standards Used ffef2int Geographical Markets

Standard organizations define the technical charatits and performance that a product must
meet, as well as the tests to be used.
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At the international level, the principal organipat in charge of publishing the applicable
standards is the International Organization fom&adization (“ISO”). Compliance with ISO
standards is based on the principles developedhbyWorld Trade Organization, and is
technically voluntary, although is often requireg drchitects and contractors, in particular for
government contractors. Furthermore, agreementsebet ISO and the European Union enable
the transposition of an ISO standard into a Euroéandard.

In Europe, standards are established by the Eunofeanmittee for Standardization (“CEN”).
These standards, called “EN” standards, are mandatten referenced by a European
regulation.

European directives also define requirements foh gaoduct. “Harmonized” EN standards may
be either mandatory or optional. They concern thalth and safety of end-users as well as
energy savings. If a product is shown to complyhwiertain harmonized standards, it is
automatically deemed to comply with requirementdesiricuropean directives.

Compliance with harmonized standards enables a faectower to obtain the “CE” label,
governed by Regulation (EC) No. 305/2011 of Ap4l 2011, which went into effect on July 1,
2013. The Group markets its products in Europe wtide standard. The CE label indicates that
the Group certifies that the product complies wtfite various harmonized standards and that the
flooring has undergone adequate testing. Amongntia@datory harmonized standards, fire-
retardant and fire-resistance standards, antistéipdards and toxic emissions standards are the
most important. For example, the Group complieshviiN Standard 14041, which details
requirements for resilient and laminate flooringl @arpets.

In addition, the Group can be required to complthwgtandards issued by national organizations
in various European Union member states, suchea8gbociation Francaise de Normalisation
(“AFNOR") in France and th®eutsches Institut fliir Normur(@DIN") in Germany. The Group

is subject to national standards in the countrieere it sells its products.

In the United States, environmental and workpladetg regulations are established at the federal
level, whereas safety features such as fire remistatandards are generally regulated at the state
or city level. The American Society for Testing avdterials (“ASTM”") develops most of the
voluntary standards applicable to flooring prodictthe United States. Both the federal and state
governments may decide to adopt ASTM standardseltgemaking them mandatory. ASTM
standards are mandatory when referenced in fedesthte regulations.

In Russia, flooring products must comply with numer technical standards imposed by various
federal laws and technical regulations, includiimgparticular, Federal Law No. 184-FZ on the
verification and compliance system for flooring;deeal Law No. 123 of July 22, 2008 on fire
safety standards; and Technical Regulations No-FI28n fire safety requirements.

Countries such as Australia, New Zealand, JapanGCinida also develop standards as well as
national regulations with which the Group may beuieed to comply. Finally, certain
laboratories and private sector organizations restablished procedures for labeling products
that comply with certain standards. The Group abfiparticipates with organizations such as
ASTM, ISO and CEN in the process of developing daads.

82



6.1.9.4 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has a significant portfolio of trademadssd patents that it constantly works to
protect, which gives it a strategic advantage d@gezrompetitors.

6.1.9.4.1 Trademark Portfolio

The Group has a significant portfolio of internatily known trademarks (in particular Tarkett
and FieldTurf) and regionally known trademarks (@& Sintelon and Johnsonite), in addition to
trademarks for particular product categories (irtipalar, Marty for wood flooring, Easyturf for
artificial turf, and Beynon for athletic tracks)h@ Group’s trademarks are protected in most of
the markets where it does business.

Protection of the Group’s trademarks can be base@gistration or prior use of the marks. Such
protections are subject to local laws and marks beagubject to national, European Community
and international registration. The durations afhsprotection vary by country.

6.1.9.4.2 Patent Portfolio

The Group holds full rights to a portfolio of 162time patents in more than 42 countries. The
Group’s patents cover flooring and sports surfapedpcts as well as technologies for the

development of new products. The Group’s patenisrcapproximately 15 different systems and

technologies. Each year the Group files ten toe\s patent applications. The average age of the
patents in the Group’s portfolio is approximateight years, which is the same as the average
life span of its competitors’ patents.

The geographical distribution of the Group’s patemittfolio is very diversified, with 71 patents
in Western Europe, 11 in Eastern Europe and 52aitiNAmerica. Finally, the Group holds 28
patents relating specifically to its sports surfabasiness.

Given the Group’s research and development activiitpelieves that it is not dependent on
patents filed by third parties.

6.1.10 Environment and Sustainable Development

Environmental concerns and sustainable developarerdt the heart of the Group’s strategy. The
Group has developed manufacturing processes thg¢cethe environment and has launched an
eco-design program to improve end-users’ living dittons and promote recycling of the
Group’s products when they are replaced.

6.1.10.1 Environmental Regulations

In connection with its business, the Group may ulgext to environmental laws and regulations
in each of the countries where it does businesesdHaws and regulations impose binding
standards, in particular with respect to air padint noise reduction, wastewater, and industrial
waste, and may impose particular methods for ehiiig wastes or for environmental cleanup.
6.1.10.2 Environmental Policy

Respect for the environment is integrated intoodlthe Group’s activities. The manufacture,
packaging, installation and recycling of the Graugroducts are designed to respect the
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environment and end-users. The Group’s commitnmettié environment includes four principal
objectives: the use of environmentally friendly rawaterials, environmentally conscious
resources management, end-user well-being andliregyc

6.1.10.2.1 Use of Environmentally Friendly Raw Materials

The Group takes the environment into consideragibrevery stage of product design. For that
reason, it does its best to select the materiakspgresent the least risk to end-users and to the
environment, and that can be part of a biologicateghnical cycle at end of use. The Group
prioritizes the use of quickly renewable and realtd materials.

6.1.10.2.2 Resource Management

In order to reduce its impact on the environmehg Group is committed to developing a
responsible approach to the use of natural andrexyclable resources in manufacturing its
flooring. To that effect, the Group is committedrémlucing its energy and water consumption, as
well as its emissions of greenhouse gases. In 2013,Group reduced its consumption of
drinking water by 2%, after taking into account tomsolidation of Tandus.

The Group has also developed a simplified methodasbon accounting that enables it to
account for its greenhouse gas emissions. The Gimupmmitted to the greatest possible
reduction of these emissions at the source andffsetting the remaining necessary carbon
dioxide creation. In 2013, the Group reducedritsrgy consumption by close to 6%.

6.1.10.2.3 Well-Being and Quality of Life

The Group seeks to design and develop productsctiradtantly improve its end-users’ well-
being and quality of life, during both use and neiance.

Accordingly, the Group creates products and salgtithat aim to improve indoor air quality and
the health and well-being of its end-users. It dmye products with lower requirements for

chemical cleaning agents, water and energy. AthefGroup’s products, moreover, have low or
extremely low levels of VOC emissions. For examphe, Group’s vinyl and linoleum products

manufactured in Europe have VOC emissions levelsssfthan 100 micrograms per cubic meter,
and are between ten and 100 times lower than ticgest standards.

6.1.10.2.4 Recycling

In accordance with circular economy principles, @mup tries to reintegrate both its industrial

waste and its products at the end of their lifeleyato a biological or technical process, so as to
limit the production of waste destined for landéll incineration and reduce the consumption of
raw materials.

To do this, the Group has developed two systenmeelédction and recycling of flooring, ReUse /
ReStart and Floore (for Tandus), which consist athgring fallen flooring at the Group’s
production sites and offices in order to re-uge inanufacture new flooring.

In connection with the ReUse / ReStart programednl’ installation waste is collected at a

sorting center and then sent to a production orlitet transformed into new raw materials for the
manufacture of flooring.
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In these programs, end-of-use flooring removednsyallers and construction companies can be
dropped off at one of the Group’s or its exterraitipers’ collection points. In Europe, these used
products are then treated and recycled by the AgRRociation for the Recycling of PVC Floor-
Coverings), a consortium for the recycling of PVIGofing, in which Tarkett is an active
participant. In North America, these products, atl ®f use, are sent to one of the Group's
collection centers to be reused in the manufaajysiocess.

The Group has also put a reuse and recycling systgiiace for the rubber and sand that fill its

artificial turf (FieldTurf). By recycling up to 95%f the turf, the Group is able to reduce waste
production and limit the use of raw materials, whilroviding consumers with a lower-cost,

environmentally friendly product.

In connection with these different programs, theuprcollected 17,400 metric tons of clean and
used flooring waste worldwide in 2013 and reduderldamount of waste discharged by close to
17%.

6.1.10.3 Environmental Innovations

Respect for the environment is one of the Grou@g &co-innovation principles. The Group
benefits from its team’s expertise and know-howrtplement best environmental and eco-design
practices and ensure profitable and responsiblerthrorhis approach to continual progress was
concretized by the deployment of the Cradle to &@daoncept to evaluate a product’s impact at
each stage of its life, select the “right matetijatgptimize the use of resources and contribute to
improving indoor air quality and end-users’ welifige The Group is the company of reference
for eco-innovations in the flooring industry.

6.1.10.3.1 Deployment of the Cradle to Cradle® Concept

In January 2011, the Group entered into a partigeragreement with the German research
institute EPEA in order to deploy the Cradle to dle® concept to evaluate its materials and
manufacturing processes. This program aims to eedlne environmental impact of industrial
activities and to design products with materialst throtect human health and the environment
and that allow for indefinite recycling of the praris at end of use.

In 2011, the Group obtained Cradle to Cradle® silegel certification for its wood and
linoleum product lines, thereby becoming the fisstod and linoleum flooring manufacturer in
Europe to be Cradle to Cradle® certified. In 20th2, Group obtained the same certification for
its glued wood flooring line. The Group also ob&irCradle to Cradle® basic-level certification
for its Johnsonite rubber flooring line.

In 2013, the Group became one of the first comattdgoin the Ellen MacArthur Foundation’s
“Circular Economy 100” program, which promotes ansition to a circular economy that reuses
materials in order to conserve natural resources.

6.1.10.3.2 Use of Phthalate-Free Plasticizers

The Group has embarked on a program to replacigitrzal plasticizers with a new generation of
phthalate-free plasticizers in the production afyiflooring. This began with the Group’s North
American production sites in 2010, followed by Seedn 2011, and the Group decided to
extend the program to its European sites by 20favi®usly, in 2009, the Group had launched its
first phthalate-free vinyl product, iQ Natural, tvia new plasticizer made from natural resources.
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As the use of phthalates becomes increasingly dinéind controversial as a result of their
potential effects on health and the environmens ithitiative enables the Group to become a
sustainable development leader in the flooring stiduand helps improve the environmental
reputation of the flooring industry among consumers

6.1.10.3.3 VOC Emissions Below Quantifiable Levels

All of the Group’s vinyl and linoleum flooring mafactured in Europe has levels of VOC
emissions ten to 100 times lower than current Eemaopstandards. These flooring solutions
contribute to better indoor air quality, and theo@r sets the standard in the flooring industry
with respect to environmental sustainability andG/@missions.

6.1.10.3.4 An Intelligent and Visionary Flooring

Analysis of a product’s potential impact on the ismvment at every stage of its life cycle helps
the Group select materials and determine manufagtwronditions. As a result, in 2009 the
Group created the homogenous PVC floor iQ NatwalVC floor that is composed of 75%
natural and renewable materials.

The Group seeks to reduce the impact that its ptechave on the environmental at every stage
of iQ Natural's life cycle. The Group uses recyclethterials (clean factory waste) to
manufacture these products as well as natural afgtthfree plasticizers made from castor oil.
The iQ Natural floor is also easy to maintain, whieduces maintenance costs by at least 30% as
compared with a standard PVC floor, and limits uke of detergents, water and electricity. The
iQ Natural PVC floor is also entirely recyclable.

6.2 EXCEPTIONAL EVENTS HAVING A SIGNIFICANT |IMPACT ON THE ACTIVITIES AND
MARKETS DESCRIBED ABOVE

None.

6.3 INFORMATION CONCERNING THE GROUP'S DEPENDENCE ON PATENTS, LICENSES,
AND |NDUSTRIAL , COMMERCIAL AND FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS

None.

6.4 BASIS FOR THE COMPANY 'S STATEMENTS CONCERNING THE GROUP'S MARKETS

AND COMPETITIVE POSITION

See Section 6.1.4, “Market Description”.
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7. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
7.1 SIMPLIFIED ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF THE TARKETT GROUP

The following simplified organizational chart showv& Group’s ownership structure as of the
filing date of this Registration Document.

Tarkett
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l':-o‘. l 100 l 100% 100
x
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7.2 M AJOR SUBSIDIARIES

7.2.1 Principal Subsidiaries

The Group consists of Tarkett and its subsidiafieskett is the Group’s parent company and the
head of the French tax consolidation group thatde@s in place since January 1, 2009.

The Company’s principal direct and indirect sulmidis are described below. None of the
Group's subsidiaries is a listed company.

Tarkett GDL S.A. is a Luxembourg limited liability corporatiosdciété anonymewith share
capital of €274,123,080, the registered office dfick is located at 2, Op der Sang, L-9779,
Lentzweiler, Luxembourg. It is registered with fiimde and Companies Register of Luxembourg
under number B 92.165. Tarkett holds all of therstepital and voting rights of Tarkett GDL
S.A., the principal activity of which is the mandfiare of resilient flooring, primarily for the
residential market. Tarkett GDL S.A. is the headtl® group of subsidiaries making up the
EMEA segment, and also houses the Group’s reseaitidevelopment activities.
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Tandus Centiva Inc. (formerly Tandus Flooring Inc.) is a U.S. companighwshare capital of
$10, the registered office of which is located argdrate Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, DE, 19801, County of New Castle, Unit8thtes of America. It is incorporated in
Delaware under number 58 2151061. Tarkett Enterpriac. directly holds all of the share
capital and voting rights of Tandus Centiva Inbg principal activity of which is the design,
manufacture and sale of carpet flooring and the sALVT manufactured by another subsidiary
of the Group, mainly in the United States.

ZAO Tarkett is a Russian non-listed stock company with shapialeof RUB 376,000,000, the
registered office of which is located at 1, Pror@shya zona, Otradny, Samara Oblast 446300,
Russia. It is registered under number 10263032Q7R2&ett directly and indirectly holds all of
the share capital and voting rights of ZAO Tarkekte principal activity of which is the
manufacture of vinyl flooring, primarily for residgal customers in the CIS region.

ZAO Tarkett RUS is a Russian non-listed stock company with shapialeof RUB 10,000, the
registered office of which is located at prospektdfopova, d. 18, korp. 7, 115432, Moscow,
Russia. It is registered under number 10277398927&fkett indirectly holds all of the share
capital and voting rights of ZAO Tarkett RUS, thénpipal activity of which is the distribution
of flooring (primarily vinyl, wood and laminate)nbughout Russia.

Tarkett AB is a Swedish limited liability company with shazapital of SEK 43,000,000, the
registered office of which is located at 10 Bleldfim 372 81 Ronneby, Sweden. It is registered
with the Ronneby Trade Register under number 556@83. Tarkett indirectly holds all of the
share capital and voting rights of Tarkett AB, gracipal activity of which is the production of
resilient flooring for the commercial market, aslivas the production of wood flooring. This
company also carries out the distribution in Swedéflooring products manufactured at the
EMEA segment’s other sites.

Tarkett France is a French simplified stock comparso€iété par actions simplififavith share
capital of €7,700,000, the registered office of abhis located at 2, rue de I'Egalité, 92000
Nanterre, France. It is registered with the Naetdmade and Companies Register under number
410 081 640. Tarkett indirectly holds all of theashcapital and voting rights of Tarkett France,
the principal activity of which is the manufactusmd marketing of vinyl flooring for the
commercial market and the marketing of flooring darcts manufactured by other EMEA
segment sites in France.

FieldTurf Tarkett SAS is a French simplified stock compargo€iété par actions simplifige
with share capital of €8,639,050, the registerdt@fof which is located at 2, rue de I'Egalité,
92000 Nanterre, France. It is registered with tleatsrre Trade and Companies Register under
number 452 835 242. Tarkett directly holds allte# share capital and voting rights of FieldTurf
Tarkett SAS, the principal activity of which is tmeanufacture, marketing and installation of
sports surfaces.

See Section 20.1, “Group Consolidated Financigke8tants”, for a complete list of the Group’s

consolidated subsidiaries. A breakdown of the Gioapnsolidated net revenues by geographic
zone is set forth in Section 9.2.2.2, “Net revernineSegment”.
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7.2.2 Recent Acquisitions and Disposals

7221 Acquisitions

The Group’s 2013 acquisitions are described ini@e&. 1.7, “Acquisitions”.
7.2.2.2 Simplification Transactions

In January 2013, Installations Sportives Defargo merged with Tarkett Inc.

As of July 1, 2013, Tandus Group, Inc. was mergéth Wandus Flooring, Inc., and Tarkett
Texas Holding Inc. was merged with Texas Tile Mactdiring LLC.

As of January 1, 2014, CAF Extrusion was mergedh Wwiatndus Flooring, Inc., which became

Tandus Centiva Inc. as of the same date. As ofargnl, 2014, Tarkett IFA Inc. was merged
with Tarkett Enterprises Inc., and Johnsonite Wwas merged with Tarkett USA Inc.
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Information on the Company’s property, plant andiipment is included in Sections 6.1.7,
“Manufacturing” and 6.1.10, “Environment and Sus#dile Development”.
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9. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following information concerning the Group’adincial condition and results of operations
should be read in conjunction with the consoliddieedncial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and the notes theretokEfrgésh language translations of which are
included in Section 20.1.1, “Group ConsolidatedaRirial Statements as of and for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013".

The consolidated financial statements were preparadcordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union for the fiscal year in question. thasolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013 have beeteduay the Company’s statutory auditors.
The report of the Company’s statutory auditors isspnted in Section 20.1.2, “Statutory
Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial &ta¢nts as of and for the Year ended
December 31, 2013".

Except where otherwise indicated, the figures ia fiection are presented on a historical basis,
including the results of operations of Tandus foreé months following its acquisition on
September 28, 2012.

The comparative information as of December 31, 2td2been restated to take into account the
impact of the early application of IFRS 11. For manformation, see Section 20.1.1, “Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and fo¥de Ended December 31, 2013".

9.1 OVERVIEW
9.11 Introduction

The Group is a global leader in flooring and speudaces, with the most extensive geographical
base and the widest product line in the industhye Group’s financial results are presented in
four operational segments—three of which relatétddlooring products and their geographic
regions (EMEA, North America and CIS & Others), amge of which relates to its Sports
Surfaces products.

In 2013, the Group’s consolidated net revenue viZas16.4 million, as compared with €2,291.5
million in 2012. Adjusted EBITDA was €310.0 millian 2013, as compared with €262.2 million
in 2012. For more information on key figures foethears 2012 and 2013, see Chapter 3,
“Selected Financial Information”.

9.1.2 Principal Factors Affecting the Group’s Results ofOperations

9.1.2.1 Revenues

Consolidated net revenues are equal to revenuedldaxg taxes, on sales of the Group’s
products and services, as well as transportati@iscand customs duties that are invoiced to
customers, net of rebates, discounts, returnsrarajroup sales.

The countries and regions where the Group opehates different demand trends, primarily as a
result of local economic conditions, which affeleé renovation and construction markets. The

choice of flooring solutions in each market is ulgihced by local lifestyles, end-user tastes,
climate and the condition of existing flooring, amyoother factors.
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The Group estimates that the large majority ofétgenues for the financial years under review
were generated by renovation projects. The cortgrucof new housing and commercial
buildings represented a small percentage of rexedueng this period.

Organic revenue growth—growth due to increasesalassvolumes and prices, excluding the
effects of changes in scope of consolidation andhamge rates—depends mainly on the
following factors:

 The Group’s competitive advantage in its principarkets, which in turn depends
primarily on its ability to offer a wide range oésidential products that satisfy
consumer trends and tastes in each country; iex aff commercial products that
comply with the specifications of renovation prageand applicable regulatory
standards; maintaining close relationships withtamusrs, such as distributors and
DIY stores and specifiers, such as architects asidliers; the quality of the Group’s
products and services; and the competitiveneds pfices.

» The growth potential and structure of each of theup’'s markets. For example,
demand in the Russian residential market and iardfS countries results from the
large volume of residential flooring in need of @eation, as well as a consumer
preference for vinyl flooring due to its durabilignd lower cost. In the European
Union, demand for the Group’s products is mostipaemtrated within the northern
countries (Scandinavia, Germany and the United #dng), with consumers in the
southern countries tending to prefer ceramic flobreaddition, in North America and
Europe, public spending policies have a signifigemgact on the commercial flooring
market in public hospitals, schools and universijtes well as on the Sports Surfaces
market.

» The Group’s product promotion strategy in each mark certain markets, the Group
concentrates its sales efforts on products witln liidded-value and strong margins,
while in other markets it may pursue a volume-maziing strategy in order to gain or
retain market share.

» Economic conditions more generally, as buyers tendarry out renovation and
construction projects during periods of economimagh.

9.1.2.2 Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales is composed primarilyariable costs, due to the large effect of the
cost of raw materials, and, to a lesser extenhspartation and logistics costs. The primary
components of cost of sales include the following:

» Raw materials used in the Group’s manufacturinggsses. The Group primarily uses
PVC and plasticizers, the cost of which is relategart to the price of crude oil.
Wood is another raw material that the Group use&0IL3, approximately 45% of the
Group’s raw material expenses related to PVC (aqimately 34% for PVC paste and
approximately 11% for PVC suspension), 25% relateglasticizers, 13% related to
wood, 8% related to fiberglass, 3% related to pgickpand 5% related to other raw
materials. For a discussion of recent trends inpties of raw materials used by the
Group, see Section 6.1.8, “Raw Materials and Sapgli
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» Labor costs, consisting principally of salaries dmhefits of production personnel.
These costs vary depending on the number of empsogied average level of salaries
and benefits. In order to control labor costs, @reup uses temporary workers in
certain factories to handle the seasonality ofaderof its activities. Excluding the
acquisition of Tandus, which has a slightly differeost structure from the rest of the
Group, labor costs remained stable as a percemaget sales between 2012 and
2013.

e Transportation and logistics costs, which dependfum prices and the Group’s
operational efficiency (including, for example, @bility to ship products in fully
loaded trucks, the location of production sites #melr distance from the points of
delivery to final customers).

e Other costs, including energy costs such as etégtrand gas, maintenance costs
associated with the Group’s various factories aedrekciation and amortization of
production and logistics assets.

Purchases of raw materials and similar productgrlaosts and transportation and logistics costs
represented 61.4%, 14.1% and 9.9%, respectivetipeoGroup’s 2013 cost of sales.

Five years ago the Group launched its WCM progralase main objectives are the following:
» reinforcing quality and customer service;

» reducing work-related accidents and the impacthef Group’s operations on the
environment; and

e improving the productivity and performance of the@’s production sites.

The success of this program depends on systentataqallying best practices at the Group’s 30
production sites, actively managing purchases i(pgatly PVC and plasticizer purchases) and
optimizing the Group’s raw material supply chairheTGroup believes that this program has
enabled it to achieve a cross-fertilization stratagd realize cumulative savings of €165 million
over the 2010-2013 period (more than 2% of costtés each year).

9.1.2.3 Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses include compensation of the Geosples force, advertising and marketing
costs and the cost of providing samples to custeraed decision-makers such as architects and
installation companies. The level of selling exgenis tied in part to the number of product or
collection launches, which require specific saklfsrts.

General and administrative expenses include adiratiiee personnel costs at the Central and
division levels, which are managed through a deebm¢d model. Expenses relating to the
management of information systems as well as amadidn and depreciation of related

investments are also included in administrativecases.

9.1.24 Research and Development Expenses

Innovation is critical to the Group’s success, emgu product quality, compliance with
regulatory standards and reduced environmentaldtnppae Group seeks to maintain the highest
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level of excellence while controlling Research dbevelopment costs, which are small as
compared with other operational expenses. Thess aodude compensation of Research and
Development personnel as well as amortization ampretiation of patent-related expenses.
Research and Development expenses representedfidsolidated net revenues in 2013, only
a small portion of these costs remaining capitdlize the Group’s balance sheet.

9.1.2.5 Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs include interest expense dueocomWwings, interest income on investments of
cash balances, discounting charges relating tcene¢éint commitments, and gains and losses on
financial and hedging instruments, to the exteobgeized in the Group’s income statement.

9.1.2.6 Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense includes corporate income tpagable by the Group’s entities, as well as
withholding taxes on dividends paid (in particuldividends paid by the Group’s Russian and
Serbian entities), as well as changes in the dafdex assets on the Group’s balance sheet.

9.1.3 Segment Information

Until December 31, 2012, segment information wamiged into two segments, one for flooring
and the other for sports surfaces.

The Group decided, however, that it would be bera@fto present more detailed information to
enable readers of its financial statements to ewalits performance in the three geographic
regions where it manufactures and distributes fhgoproducts: Europe, Middle East & Africa
(“EMEA"), “North America” and “CIS & Others”.

As of January 1, 2013, the Group’s segment regpitnbased on four operational segments—
three of which relate to its flooring products dheir geographic regions (EMEA, North America
and CIS & Others), and one of which relates tejisrts surfaces products.

Segment information for 2012 is presented for campse purposes using this new

segmentation, as described in Note 4, “Segmentrrdton”, to the annual financial statements
included in Section 20.1.1, “Group ConsolidatedaRirial Statements as of and for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013".

In this section, the Group’s results are analyz@dgithis segmentation.
The Group’s four segments are as follows:

e EMEA (26.6% of revenues in 2013)The EMEA flooring segment concentrates
essentially on the production of vinyl resilienbdting, wood flooring, laminate
flooring and other products in Europe. Resilienbfing represents the large majority
of the Group’s consolidated net revenues in thggresmt (more than 80% in 2013),
wood and laminate flooring representing almostoélthe remainder. These products
are used in the residential and commercial markeits, commercial market sales
higher in 2013. Sales are divided among severattces, largely in northern Europe.
In 2013, France was the largest country in the segrbut represented only about a
guarter of the segment’s consolidated net reve(iass than 6% of the Group’s 2013
consolidated net revenues). The Nordic countriese@@®n, Norway, Finland and
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Denmark) together represented slightly more revehaa France and slightly more
than a quarter of the segment’s consolidated neentees, with the principal
contributors being Sweden and Norway. The othearifsigint countries are Germany
and, to a lesser extent, the United Kingdom. Thantiees of southern Europe
(including primarily Spain and lItaly) represented0% of the Group’s 2013
consolidated net revenues (8% of the EMEA segmentisolidated net revenues).

* North America (26.8% of revenues in 2013)he North American flooring segment
offers products to both commercial end-users (spréng about three-quarters of the
segment’s 2013 consolidated net revenues) andergsd end-users. Historically, the
Group's products in this market have been primanillgber flooring and accessories
(sold under the Johnsonite brand name) and resflaaring, including vinyl flooring
for the residential market and VCT flooring, theoGp’s lower cost homogenous vinyl
product for the commercial market. More recenthg Group introduced additional
lines of resilient flooring for the commercial matk supplied by its European
factories. It complemented its resilient flooririgels in 2010 with the acquisition of
Centiva, which manufactures LVT for the commeraiaarket. Finally, with the
acquisition of Tandus in September 2012, the Grbapame a major supplier of
commercial carpeting (which in 2013 became the @mdeading category of
products sold in North America).

 CIS & Others (35.3% of revenues in 2013)yhe CIS & Others segment includes
flooring sales in all other countries. The CIS dnias (primarily Russia, Ukraine and
Kazakhstan) represent the large majority of thgnmnt's revenues—about 80% in
2013. Residential vinyl flooring is the primary prect sold in these countries. The
Group also sells wood and laminate flooring in éhesarkets, as well as other
products. The CIS & Others segment also includes sa Latin America (principally
Brazil) and in Asia Pacific (in particular, in Aualia and China).

» Sports Surfaces (11.4% of revenues in 201Bhe Group’s sports surface segment
includes the production, distribution and instadlatof artificial turf, primarily for
sports fields, and athletic tracks, as well as moffieducts (such as artificial grass for
residential landscaping purposes and indoor splmtsing). The Group sells sports
surfaces primarily to public establishments, eletagnschools, high schools and
universities, mainly in North America (79.5% of tlsegment’'s consolidated net
revenues in 2013) and, to a lesser extent, in Eurglpst of the Group’s sales in this
segment consist of “turnkey” solutions, includingtbsale and installation.

9.1.4 Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Exchange rate fluctuations have a direct impadhenGroup’s consolidated financial statements.
This impact is mainly due to the conversion of imeostatement and balance sheet items of the
Group'’s foreign subsidiaries located outside th® @one into euros. The principal currencies for
which the Group bears this risk are the U.S. dqB&:4% of consolidated net revenues in 2013),
the Swedish krona (7.0%), the Canadian dollar (2.4k& pound sterling (2.0%), the Brazilian
real (1.8%) and the Australian dollar (1.4%).

The Group seeks to develop production capacithengeographic regions where it distributes its
products in order to hedge a significant portiorit®fgross margin and operating income against
exchange rate fluctuations. However, the Group camedge the entirety of its risk in this
manner. It therefore enters into derivative caritfdo manage the remaining exchange rate risk
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(especially the risk related to the lag betweentitne customers are invoiced and the time the
Group is paid), although the Group does not usiwatéres to manage its exposure to the Russian
ruble, the Ukrainian hryvnia, or the Kazakh tenge.

The functional currency of the Group’s entitiesRnssia and the other CIS countries is the euro.
Products are sold in rubles, but the Group’s pdbdyp reflect exchange rate fluctuations between
the ruble and the euro in its product prices. Tmeu@'s exposure to the ruble depends on its
ability to maintain this pricing policy. Only thenpact of the lag between the exchange rate
fluctuation and the price increase is treated aexahange rate effect in the analysis at constant
scope of consolidation and exchange rates presentegsection 9.2.2.2, “Net Revenues by
Segment”. Although a significant portion of the Gpés Russian operating expenses are in euros
(since PVC and plasticizers are imported from th@ogean Union), labor, logistics and
transportation costs, as well as other productamtscsuch as energy and maintenance, are almost
entirely in rubles.

9.1.5 Seasonality

The Group’s activities are to some extent seasovitl, an increase in sales generally occurring
in the second and third quarters of the year, vaweliés working capital requirements are

generally higher in the first two quarters of theay Sales of sports surfaces are particularly
influenced by seasonality, as installation workniginly done between May and October, with a
peak in activity during the summer. Moreover, inta® geographic regions, winter climate

conditions can affect work sites and, thereforeorfihg installation. In the educational sector,

demand is generally higher during school vacation.

In 2013, 55.9% of the Group’s consolidated net mees was generated in the second and third
guarters, as compared with 44.1% in the first anuith quarters.

9.1.6 Turnaround of Certain Business Divisions

Despite overall growth in recent years, the Groap bncountered isolated situations in which
certain divisions have required intervention taretto profitability. Recent turnaround programs
include the following:

e Sports Surfaces segmenBeginning in 2009, the Sports Surfaces segmerg wa
affected by a reduction in public spending as altesf the financial crisis. At the
same time, the Group’s principal supplier of tHeefs used in manufacturing artificial
turf decided to pursue a strategy of downstrearticaiintegration, thereby becoming
a competitor. The Group’s artificial turf produetso had certain defects (relating to
the UV protection of the fibers supplied by thampetitor), resulting in warranty
claims against the Group. In order to return thertsp surfaces business to
profitability, the Group pursued a turnaround sggt that included: moving
production of fibers for artificial turf in-housarbugh the 2010 formation of the joint-
venture Morton Extrusionstechnik (MET) GmbH, in wiithe Group holds a majority
interest, with the remainder held by Morton Extomsi which specializes in the
extrusion of fibers; pursuing significant reducsonin selling, general and
administrative expenses; adapting the Group’s Spasubsidiary’s marketing and
production activities to the local economic climateaking changes to the corporate
structure of the segment, including merging twdedit track production companies;
developing artificial turf production capacity ihet Group’s Serbian factories; and
reorganizing the Group’s research and innovatiamteAs a result, orders recovered
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in 2012 — the sports surfaces segment’s adjustdd[EB was positive beginning in
that year — and increased sharply (by 48%) in 2@h®&wing the success of the
turnaround strategy.

 Wood flooring in Western EuropeThe European market for wood flooring was
affected by reduced levels of activity as a resfithe economic climate, as well as by
a particularly competitive environment. In resporteethis situation, the Group
adopted certain initiatives in its wood flooringsimess to reduce production costs,
including transferring a portion of its engineeredlti-layer wood flooring production
from Hanaskog, Sweden to sites in Poland and U&rathereby bringing the
manufacturing sites closer to the sources of wamtl enabling the Group to reduce
transportation and manufacturing costs. The woaarithg turnaround plan was
launched in 2012 and is still underway.

e VCT business in the United State®ecause the VCT vinyl floor market in the United
States is currently in a situation of overcapadig Group decided to consolidate its
VCT production at its Florence, Alabama site arubelits Houston, Texas site in mid-
2014. This transfer of production should generageificant savings, particularly with
respect to factory production costs, as well aseduction in working capital
requirements.

9.1.7 Acquisitions

The Group has completed 12 acquisitions in the fiast years in connection with its growth
strategy. Most of the companies the Group acquiree moderate-sized and had product lines or
activities in markets that complement those of @eup. For more information, see Section
5.2.1, “Principal Investments in 2012 and 2013".

The Group carried out its largest external growdimsgaction in recent years with the acquisition
of the U.S. company Tandus, which was complete8aeptember 28, 2012. Tandus specializes in
the design, production and sale of commercial ¢engén North America and Asia. Following
its inclusion in the Group’s scope of consolidatidrandus contributed $85.6 million to the
Group’s 2012 consolidated net revenues (€66.1anillor 2.9% of revenues) and $14.5 million
to the Group’s 2012 adjusted EBITDA (€11.2 milliofgr a margin of 16.9%). Tandus's
consolidated net revenues for the full year endeceihber 31, 2012 were $351.5 million (€271.8
million) and its adjusted EBITDA was $60 million4&.5 million, for a margin of 17.1 %). If
Tandus had been included in the Group for the yelhr in 2012, the Group’s pro forma
consolidated net revenues, restated to reflece#inly application of IFRS 11, would have been
€2,497.2 million, and its pro forma restated adjdsSEBITDA would have been €297.5 million
(or 11.9% of pro forma revenues).

It should be noted that the minority shareholdérslorton Extrusionstechnik (MET) GmbH and
AA SportSystems (which has since become FieldTeridBux BV) hold put options that enable
them to require the Group to acquire their respecshares. As a result, the Group has fully
consolidated these companies since acquiring darfttbem, as if the minority interests had also
been acquired. The Group records the present wdltiee put options’ estimated exercise price
under “other liabilities” in its balance sheet.
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9.1.8 Presentation of Accounting and Financial Information
9.18.1 Adjusted EBITDA

To evaluate its business performance, the Group wase indicator that it calls “adjusted
EBITDA”, which is equal to operating income befatepreciation, amortization and adjustments,
including:

» restructuring costs intended to grow the Grouptari profits;
e gains or losses on significant asset sales;

e costs relating to corporate and legal restructyiimgjuding legal fees and acquisition
costs as well as the impact on margins of recoriingntory of acquired companies in
the Group’s balance sheet at fair value;

e  costs relating to the Company’s initial public affiy during fiscal year 2013;
* management fees invoiced by the shareholders @dnepany; and
» expenses relating to share-based payments withguetated cash payment.

Management believes that adjusted EBITDA is a uskfdicator because it measures the
performance of the Group’s activities without takiimto effect past expenditures (depreciation
and amortization) or unusual costs that are naesgmtative of trends in the Group’s results of
operations. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are not daized accounting terms with generally
accepted definitions. They should not be takensshatitute for operating income, net income or
cash flows, nor should they be treated as a measuligquidity. Other issuers may calculate

EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA differently.

The following table reconciles adjusted EBITDA tpesating income for the 2012 and 2013
fiscal years.

Fiscal year endecDecember 31

Adjusted EBITDA

(in millions of euros) 2012 2013 Change
restatec
Operating income 153. 180.¢ +17.9 %
Depreciation and amortization 88.8 105.5 +18.8%
EBITDA 242.2 286.4 +18.2 %
Adjustments
Restructuring cos 6.6 5.2
Gains/losses on asset s - (0.2)
Unusual items from business combinations 7.6 0.5
IFRS share-based expenses charges 25 6.1
Charges relating to the initial public offering - 6.2
Othef!) 3.2 5.7
Adjusted EBITDA 262.2 310.0 +18.2 %

(1) “Other”includes management fees invoiced by treedolders of the Company.
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The adjustments used in determining adjusted EBIT@rAeach fiscal year are described in the
comparative analyses of the Group’s results ofatfmers presented below.

9.1.8.2 Estimates and assumptions used in preparing fiabsigitements

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated finahatatements in accordance with IFRS
requires it to make a number of estimates and g#soms that have an effect on the amounts of
its assets and liabilities, as well as on its ineand expenses. Management continually revisits
these estimates and assumptions based on its expernd other reasonable factors used in its
evaluation. The Group’s actual results may diffenf these estimates.

These estimates and assumptions relate primarihetfollowing:
e impairment of goodwill;
» provisions for retirement and other employee bembligations;
» other provisions for litigation, warranties and grttal liabilities;
» deferred tax assets (tax loss carryforwards, itiquéar);

» the fair value of consideration paid, acquisitiasminority interests, and acquired
assets and liabilities; and

e accounting treatment of financial instruments.

The management estimates used in connection withpthparation of the Group’s financial
statements, particularly those relating to the igppbn of accounting techniques and the
inclusion of uncertainties, are described in moetaill in Note 1.2.2 “Use of Estimates and
Judgments” to the Group’s consolidated financiateshents included in Section 20.1.1, “Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and fo#e Ended December 31, 2013".

9.1.8.2.1 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between the obst business combination and the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable assatguired and liabilities assumed on the date
control is transferred, corresponding, for examfaehe value that the Group assigns to expected
synergies and profits. Therefore, evaluation ofdyah may rely on assumptions relating to
future cash flows (see Notes 1.5.10, 1.5.15 aradtBe Group’s consolidated financial statements
included in Section 20.1.1, “Group ConsolidatedaRirial Statements as of and for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013").

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (103, whose accounting value is tested for
impairment annually or whenever there is any intiicaof an impairment loss. Impairment tests

seek to determine whether the net recoverable \@la® asset or CGU is less than its net book
value. If the net recoverable value is lower thle het book value, an impairment charge is
recorded in the income statement in the amounthef difference, allocated first to reduce

goodwill of such CGU.

The recoverable value of an asset or a CGU is @quék higher of the market value minus cost
to sell, or the value in use. Value in use is deteed by discounting estimated future cash flows
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for each CGU using certain assumptions and estgmadtenanagement. Market value is the price
that could be obtained under normal competitiveddams from an informed buyer minus the
cost to sell.

The calculations used to determine value in usesabgect to management’s judgment. Cash
flows used to calculate value in use are derivethfthe Group’s budgets and business plans,
which are in turn based on assumptions relatingtenues, adjusted EBITDA, working capital
requirements and investments. If other assumptiorgredictions were to be used, impairment
testing would produce different values in use.

Management conducts impairment testing using ¢ &égtimate of the future activity of the CGU
in question over the next three years, discourdgatdsent value. The pre-tax discount rates used
in 2012 and 2013 were 10.0% and 11.0%, respectiVély primary assumptions for sales growth
through 2017 range from 1% (for certain CGUs indpa) to 11% (essentially in emerging
markets). The value in use calculation also indutlee CGU’s end value, which projects
standard cash flows to infinity with an annual gtiowate of 3%. In 2013, the combination of an
increase of 100 basis points in the discount rattaadecrease of 100 basis points in the growth
rate would result in recording an additional lassalue of €12.1 million for the Laminates CGU
in the CIS & Others segment.

For more information, see Notes 1.5.15, 2 and #BadGroup’s consolidated financial statements
included in Section 20.1.1, “Group ConsolidatedaRirial Statements as of and for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013".

9.1.8.2.2 Provisions
9.1.8.2.2.1 Provisions for retirement and similar obligations

In accordance with the laws and practices of eacimtty where the Group operates, it maintains
retirement, health and disability plans and reteatrpackages for eligible employees and former
employees, as well as for their beneficiaries wheetmequired conditions. As of December 31,
2013, the Group had such retirement commitmentthénUnited States, Canada, the United
Kingdom and Germany, as well as in France, ltalye@&n, Serbia and Russia.

In accordance with IAS 19, these commitments alee¢hor updated every six months by
independent actuaries. Accounting for actuarialieslis based on predicted changes in salaries,
medical costs, long-term interest rates, averag®sy and life expectancy. An expected rate of
return on funds invested is calculated for eacim laaccordance with its composition and the
projected return of comparable markets. Actuari@ues and rates of return are sensitive to
changes in predictions and estimates, which aredbas assumptions. IAS 19 was modified in
2011, and this modification is reflected in the Qamy’s consolidated financial statements as of
and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 201% iffipact of this modification is not
significant for the Company. For more informaticege Note 1.2.1 to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements included in Section 20.1.1r0(p Consolidated Financial Statements as of
and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013".

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had €205.2aniliin liabilities relating to employee benefit
commitments, of which €83.0 million is covered lmds invested pursuant to the Group’ various
plans, and the remaining €122.2 million relatesinéunded or partially funded plans for which
provisions have been recorded. The most signifioatihese liabilities are in the United States,
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Canada, the United Kingdom and Germany; the estitiethese countries maintain sufficient
externally-managed investments to cover nearly 60%eir liabilities.

For more information, see Note 21 to the Group’ssatidated financial statements included in
Section 20.1.1, “Group Consolidated Financial Stetets as of and for the Year Ended
December 31, 2013".

9.1.8.2.2.2 Provisions for Litigation, Product Warranties ané$ructuring Costs

In accordance with IAS 37 (Provisions, Contingeiatbllities and Contingent Assets), provisions
for litigation, warranties and other potential ligles are recorded when, at the close of theafisc
year, there exists a legal or implicit obligati@sulting from a past event that is more likely than
not to result in a cash outflow to a third partgdavhose amount can be reliably estimated. The
amount recorded as a provision is management’s dsshate of the expenditure required to
settle the current obligation as of the closingedaWhere the time value of money has a
significant effect, future outflows are discounted present value. These provisions relate to
environmental, legal, tax and other risks.

The probability of an outflow is calculated basedneanagement’s analysis and assumptions and
estimates that depend, in turn, on the natureefitk. For example, in determining the amount
of provisions for litigation, the Group’s managermanust evaluate the probability of an
unfavorable decision, as well as the amount ofrg@edamages. These items are by their nature
uncertain. On the other hand, a warranty provigaecorded at the time a given product is sold,
with the amount based on historical data on wayrgr@tyments. An additional provision is
recorded when an event occurs that may give riseatoanty claims for greater amounts than the
hypothetical provision. A restructuring provisioa fecorded when management approves a
detailed restructuring plan and the restructurisgannounced publicly or implemented. The
provision may prove higher or lower than the amaugttally incurred, and may be reversed, if
necessary.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had €39.0 millia provisions for warranties,
restructurings, claims and litigation. For moreoimhation on estimation of and accounting for
provisions or their impact on the Group’s resulfsoperations, see Note 20 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements included in $ac20.1.1, “Group Consolidated Financial
Statements as of and for the Year Ended Decemh&03B”.

9.1.8.2.3 Deferred Tax Assets

In accordance with IAS 12 (Income Taxes), the Groepognizes deferred tax assets and
liabilities on its balance sheet. A deferred taseasmust be recognized for all temporary
differences deductible in the future, unused tas loarryforwards or income tax credits if it is

probable that the Group will have future taxablefits that will allow these future tax savings to

be utilized.

A deferred tax asset is recognized when it is fsleb¢hat the Group will use it in the future.

Management must use its judgment in determiningatheunt of the net tax asset to recognize.
Projected net taxable profits are estimated omésés of Management's budget and assumptions,
as well as models relating to market conditionsesehassumptions and models may have a
significant impact on the amounts of deferred tssess recognized on the Group’s balance sheet.
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The Group had €54.5 million in deferred tax asselsting to tax loss carryforwards and unused
tax credits as of December 31, 2013, of which €3%iBion related to the Group’s North
American tax consolidation group and €7.0 milliefated to its Canadian subsidiary.

For more information, see Note 7, “Income Tax” ahote 19, “Deferred Tax” to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements included in $ec20.1.1, “Group Consolidated Financial
Statements as of and for the Year Ended Decemh&03B".

9.1.8.2.4 Application of IFRS 10, 11 and 12 as from JanuargQi13

The Group adopted IFRS 10, 11, and 12, which com@w methods for consolidating and
accounting for joint ventures, during year endedddeber 31, 2013 (before being required to do
s0). IFRS 11 defines the accounting treatment &tnerships that are jointly controlled by at
least two parties. Under the new standards, onbytiypes of joint arrangements are identified:
joint ventures and joint operations. Classificat@ra joint arrangement is made on the basis of
the rights and obligations of each of the parties.

Under IFRS 11, arrangements that qualify as joertures must be accounted for using the
equity method, as the proportional method is ngéorpermitted.

Laminate Park, a company in which the Group hol88% interest, had been consolidated using
the proportional consolidation method in the Greup012 consolidated financial statements, but
is accounted for under the equity method in theu@® consolidated financial statements as of
and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20¥8rriration concerning the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012 presented for comparative pusposdhis Registration Document was

therefore restated to account for the retroactp@ieation of the new method for consolidating

Laminate Park. For the fiscal year ended Decemibe@13, adoption of IFRS 11 resulted in a
€22.7 million decrease in the Group’s consolidatetirevenues and a €0.4 million increase on
operating income, with no effect on net operatiesguits.

For more information, see Notes 2.3 and 1.5.24¢0Group’s consolidated financial statements
included in Section 20.1.1, “Group ConsolidatedaRirial Statements as of and for the Year
Ended December 31, 2013".

9.2 COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER
31,2012AND DECEMBER 31,2013

The analysis presented below compares the Groegults of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 on a iba@tdoasis (with Tandus’ results
consolidated into those of the Group for the ldsed¢ months of 2012), restated to reflect
application of IFRS 11.

9.21 Overview

Consolidated net revenues increased significanti®0il3 (9.8%), reaching €2,516.4 million. Of
this increase, 3.3% was due to organic growth,ltiegurom volumes, product mix and selling
price increases, and 9.0% was due to the chantie iscope of consolidation resulting from the
September 2012 Tandus acquisition. These increesespartially offset by a 2.5% unfavorable
change in exchange rates, including the sudderindeicl the ruble and the corresponding sale
price adjustment by the Group, detailed in Seci@n2.2.3.
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Adjusted EBITDA also progressed strongly, both is@ute terms (with an increase of 18.2%)
and as a percent of consolidated net revenues.@upaints), continuing the strong performance
seen in 2012. This performance is explained byth@ full-year consolidation of Tandus, as
compared with 2012, when it was included only ia tast quarter; (ii) the Group’s continued
industrial productivity efforts under its WCM pragn; and (iii) a positive inflation balance
(defined as the difference between changes in métes and changes in prices paid for raw
materials) for the year. Sales volumes (which iaseel in all of the Group’s segments except for
EMEA) and an improvement in the mix of productsdsalso contributed favorably to growth in
2013. The inclusion of Tandus also positively affeicthe Group’s margins. These positive
factors more than offset unfavorable changes irekohange rates to which the Group is exposed
as well as an increase in selling, general and r@dtrative costs incurred to enable the Group to
grow, as detailed below.

Tarkett Consolidated Fiscal year ended December 3
Results of Operations 2012
(in millions of euros, except for percentages  restated A Cliernge
Net REVENUES........ccoveeiieeieerie e 2,291.5 2,516.4 9.8 %
Gross Profit.......cccceeceieineniiiiiieciese 525.% 623.% 18.6%
As a percentage of consolidated net
FEVENUE ...oeiiieiie e 22.9% 24.8 %
Adjusted EBITDA .....ccooeieiieeineieenen 262.2 310.( 18.2%
As a percentage of consolidated net
FEVENUE ..ottt 11.4% 123 %
Operating iNCOME.........ccccovieeienieieinie e 153.5 180.9 17.9%
As a percentage of consolidated net
FEVENUI ..t 6.7% 7.2%
Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the
COMPANY....oiiiiecieeiee e 83.€ 99.1 18.5%
9.2.2 Net Revenues

By convention, where figures are presented at eohstxchange rates, the most recent year's
revenues (in this case, 2013) are adjusted toctete previous year's exchange rates (in this
case, 2012).

9.2.2.1 Consolidated Net Revenues

Consolidated net revenues increased 9.8% to €25flion in 2013, as compared with
€2,291.5 million in 2012. Tandus, whose consolm@aton September 28, 2012 added €66.1
million in revenues during the last quarter of 20&@ntributed an additional €206.5 million in
2013.

At constant scope and exchange rates, consolidatetvenues grew 3.3%, primarily as a result
of the following:

* increased volumes in most geographical marketpaiticular due to the continued

recovery in the North American market, continuedwgh in the CIS countries of the
CIS & Others segment as well as in strong-poteetia¢rging markets such as Brazil
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and China, and a strong rebound in sales of sporfaces in all geographical markets
where the Group is present, especially in North Acae This growth was partially
offset by a slight decrease in volumes in the EMEgment, particularly in Spain and
France, as well as in Australia; and

* an optimization of the product mix in all geograggiimarkets (in particular in North
America and CIS), with the exception of EMEA.

However, exchange rate fluctuations of the primamyrencies in which the Group sells its
products were more unfavorable against the eurmomparison with 2012. The total negative
impact, due essentially to fluctuations in the WiSllar, the Australian dollar, the Norwegian
krona, the Brazilian real and the Russian rublel{toextent not covered by price increases that
follow several weeks later) was €60.9 million, d8% of 2012 consolidated net revenues.

9.2.2.2 Net Revenues by Segment

The following table presents consolidated net reesrby segment for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2013.

Fiscal year ended Change
December 31,

Current Constant

Scope Scope
and and

Net Revenues Exchange Exchange
(in millions of euros, except for percentages 2012 2013 Rates Rates
EMEA 679.0 669.6 (1.4)% (0.9)%
North America 477.4 673.6 41.1% 3.0%
CIS & Others 874.1 887.5 1.5% 4.1%
Sports Surfaces 260.9 285.8 9.5% 12.0%
TOtAl oo 2,2915 2,516.4 9.8% 3.3%

9.22.21 EMEA

EMEA’s consolidated net revenues totaled €669.@aniin 2013, a slight decrease as compared
to €679.0 million in 2012. Exchange rates fluctoasi (primarily in the Norwegian krona and the
pound sterling) had an overall negative impact#€nillion; the decrease in revenue at constant
exchange rates was thus €6 million. There was g in the scope of consolidation in this
segment between 2012 and 2013. The figures for 2012 and 2013 reflect early adoption of
IFRS 11 (see Section 9.1.8.2.4 for more informatiwith the 2012 figures restated. Revenues in
2012 before restatement were €27 million higher.

The decrease in the EMEA segment’s consolidatedevenue from 2012 to 2013 was primarily
the result of a slight decrease in volumes, esfydia Spain, whose economy remains in a
depression. Business volumes in France were afsated by the general slowdown of the
economy and public spending. In addition, the wilooring market continued its negative trend
throughout the segment.
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9.2.2.2.2 North America

Consolidated net revenues in North America incrédsem €477.4 million in 2012 to €673.6
million in 2013, principally due to the effect dfe full-year consolidation of Tandus, which had
been consolidated only for the last quarter of 2012

On the other hand, the decline in the U.S. and @ianadollars against the euro decreased this
segment’s consolidated net revenue by €13.6 mibietaveen 2012 and 2013.

At constant scope and exchange rates, revenuesagert 3.0% in 2013 over 2012. This increase
principally reflects a significant increase in colidated net revenue from commercial products,
in particular Johnsonite products (vinyl accesspriabber accessories and baseboards), as well
as from commercial resilient flooring imported frotdestern Europe (primarily homogenous
vinyl and linoleum), and lastly, from LVT productd-his growth results from the double effect
of increased volumes and a favorable product mix.

9.2.2.2.3 CIS & Others

Consolidated net revenues continued to grow int& & Others segment, from €874.1 million
in 2012 to €887.5 million in 2013 (an increase &%4).

The 2013 fiscal year was negatively affected bytiitme lag between the sudden decline of the
ruble at the end of May and beginning of June dma Group’s corresponding sale price

adjustment. In accordance with its general polibg, Group increased prices twice, in early June
and early October, to counter the decline in therafter the second price increase. The time lag
between the decline in the ruble and full offsettludit decline by the two successive price

increases had an impact of approximately €21 mildlaring 2013.

Unfavorable fluctuations in the Australian dollandethe Brazilian real also had a negative effect
on the segment’s net revenue of approximately €iliom

At constant exchange rates and scope of consaliddtxcluding Tandus, which has a small
amount of activity in Asia and is thus includedtlie CIS & Others segment), revenues would
have increased 4.1%.

This growth continued to reflect dynamic econominditions in the CIS region, where
approximately three-quarters of the segment’'s ne@enwere realized. The growth results to a
lesser extent from increases in sales in Brazil@nida.

Growth in consolidated net revenues in Russia hadother CIS countries continued to relate
primarily to residential resilient flooring, the @mp’s leading product category in these countries.
This favorable trend reflects higher volumes inaket that continued to grow, as well as higher
average prices due to a more favorable product with the increased strength of high-end

(LVT) products.

In China, growth continued due to the full-yeadiision of Tandus, reinforcing the Group’s 2011
acquisition of the distributor Tarkett Floor CovagiCo., which enabled the Group to increase its
sales of resilient flooring. In Australia, wherenmagenous resilient flooring is the leading
product, sales continued to reflect the effectstiafing competition.
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In Latin America, consolidated net revenue contihte increase in Brazil as a result of the
growth in LVT products.

9.2.2.2.4 Sports Surfaces

Consolidated net revenues of the Sports Surfaggeesd increased 9.5%, from €260.9 million in
2012 to €285.8 million in 2013.

There were no changes in the scope of consolidaidnis segment in 2013. However, as with
the North America segment, fluctuations in the UdBllar had an unfavorable impact of
approximately 2.5% on net revenues in this segméxtluding this negative effect, organic
growth would have been 12% in 2013.

As in previous years, North America accounted fose to 80% of the segment’s consolidated
net revenues in 2013.

The strong performance in the Sports Surfaces setigreonsolidated net revenues in 2012 and
2013 primarily reflects the following:

* an increase in volumes of artificial turf sold fgports fields in North America, as
public spending continued the recovery begun in228&fter five years of significant
budgetary restrictions;

e agrowing market for athletic tracks; and

» the beginnings of a recovery in Europe, after sdvgears of contraction. This
recovery was particularly marked in Germany, Fraarog Spain.

9.2.2.3 Gross Profit
The Group’s gross profit increased 18.6% from €628illion in 2012 to €632.7 million in 2013.
Gross profit represented 24.8% of revenues in 2043, gain of almost two points as compared
with 22.9% of revenues in 2012.
This improvement is primarily the result of theléoving factors:
» the continued effort to increase productivity thgbuthe WCM program, which
generated net cost savings of €35 million, in liwéh the annual cost savings

generated during the four previous fiscal years;

» the overall slight decrease in raw materials cdsitowing significant increases in
2010, 2011 (principally) and 2012; and

» the consolidation of Tandus, whose average grasf#t 8 larger than the gross profit
of the rest of the Group

9.2.2.4 Operating income
The Group’s 2013 operating income was €180.9 mijlian increase of 17.9% compared with

€153.5 million in 2012. Operating income represérme% of revenues in 2013 compared with
6.7% of revenues in 2012.
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Operational explanations for this increase arerilestt in Section 9.1.8.1, “Adjusted EBITDA”".
The main income statement items that contributeéteancrease are the following:

9.2.25

the increase in gross profit, described above;

an increase in selling expenses, which were €24dI®n in 2013 as compared with
€213.5 million in 2012, due mainly to Tandus’ irglen for the full year, which had
an estimated impact of €28.8 million, as well assébected investments aimed at
increasing revenues;

an increase in general and administrative expefisas €136.2 million in 2012 to
€162.3 million in 2013, again due in part to theliision of Tandus for the full year,
which had an estimated impact of €15.2 million,hatlte remainder essentially due to
costs incurred in connection with the Group’s alipublic offering;

an increase in depreciation and amortization fr@8.& million in 2012 to €105.5
million in 2013, for three principal reasons: tleeaognition in 2013 of an impairment
charge of €5.1 million on tangible assets relatioghe wood flooring business in
EMEA,; the full-year inclusion of Tandus, for aniesited impact of €8.0 million; and
the first amortization of certain investments rielgtto the Group’s information
systems projects.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA was €310.0 million in 2013—an inase of 18.2% as compared with €262.2
million in 2012. The ratio of adjusted EBITDA torolidated net revenues went from 11.4% in
2012 to 12.3% in 2013, which represents the highistbrical level achieved by the Group.

The main driver for the improvement in the Groupdjusted EBITDA in 2013 was the
improvement in gross profit, for the reasons désctiabove, which more than offset the targeted
increase in selling, general and administrativecasps, also described above.

The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to consolidated netereues increased across all of the Group’s
segments in 2013 with the exception of EMEA. Thiéofaing table presents adjusted EBITDA
by segment in euros and as a percent of consdiidaterevenues in 2012 and 2013.
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Fiscal year ended December 31,

Adjusted EBITDA 2012 2013 ch
(in millions of euros, except for percentages) restated ange
EMEA .o en e 76.3 71.3 (6.5)%
As a percentage of consolidated net rever
.............................................................. 11.2% 10.€%
NOrth AMErica .......cooeeevviieneiine e, 30.1 74.C 146.0%
As a percentage of consolidated net rever
............................................................... 6.3% 11.0%
CIS & Others ....ccooiieiiiiricieee e 180.0 190.1 5.6%
As a percentage of consolidated net rever
............................................................... 20.6% 214 %
SPOrtS SUMacesS.........coeeveeinieeiieesiie e, 10.1 15.0 47.9%
As a percentage of consolidated net rever
.............................................................. 3.9% 5.2%
Central ..oocee e (34.2) (40.3) (17.9)%
Group Total .......ccoociiiciccc 262.2 310.0 18.2%
As a percentage of consolidated net rever
............................................................... 11.4% 123 %

The main factors that affected adjusted EBITDA riraing the Group’s segments are as follows:

EMEA: the strong negative impact of currency fluctuatjomih this segment being
affected by unfavorable fluctuations both in therencies in which it makes sales (in
particular the Norwegian krona and the pound sigyliand in the currencies of the
countries in which it sells its products in theatBegments, essentially in Asia-Pacific
(primarily the Australian dollar). The productivityenerated was not able to fully
offset these negative currency fluctuations combiwéh the slight volume decrease
described above.

North America the relative effect of the full-year consolidatiof Tandus, which has
relatively higher margins; an increase in salesuwals, as described above; and
productivity gains in all of the segment’s factsried to a strong performance, which
was very slightly offset by an increase in selliggneral and administrative expenses
incurred for growth purposes.

CIS & Others: the increase in volumes, together with a favoraisteduct mix that
included a higher proportion of high margin prodyets described above, as well as
continued productivity gains more than offset thegative impact of the time lag
between the decline of the ruble and the correspgreklling price increases, whose
net impact on adjusted EBITDA was an estimatedZrbllion.

Sports Surfacesa rebound in sales volumes over all geographieakets combined
with continued productivity efforts as to both puotion costs and selling and
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administrative expenses led to a continued straegatl performance in this segment,
whose recovery had begun in 2012.

Central costs increased from €34.2 million in 204 Z40.3 million in 2013, due in particular to
increased resources allocated to innovation arthieéoGroup’s information systems, as well as
increased costs relating to asbestos litigation.

9.2.2.6 EBITDA

EBITDA increased by 18.2% from €242.2 million in120to €286.4 million in 2013. EBITDA
represented 10.6% of revenues in 2012 and 11.4%vehues in 2013.

The increase in EBITDA is due to the same factertha increase in adjusted EBITDA, partially
offset by a slight increase in net adjustmentstems that do not affect the Group’s cash flow,
and that are therefore excluded from adjusted EBITDhese items totaled €23.6 million in

2013, as compared with €20.0 million in 2012. Thesecharges included:

e in 2013, restructuring costs of €5.3 million, reigt primarily to the transfer of
production of VCT tiles to Florence, Alabama, réisigl in the 2014 closure,
announced in 2013, of the Group’s Houston sitewall as the centralization of a
portion of the North America segment’s sales amgistics departments; €6.1 million
in charges relating to share-based payments; a@dniBion in charges relating to the
Group'’s initial public offering; and

e in 2012, restructuring costs of €6.6 million, raigt to the partial transfer of
production of wood floors sold in Scandinavia tmgurction sites in Poland and
Ukraine; costs of €7.6 million relating to extermgabwth (in particular, the Tandus
acquisition and a price adjustment for the 2010t@anacquisition); and fees and
other expenses of €5.8 million, including €1.7 ioiilin fees paid to shareholders and
€2.5 million share-based payment expenses.

9.2.2.7 Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs increased from €24.0 million @12 to €31.4 million in 2013. This increase

was primarily due to an increase in financing exggsnfrom €26.5 million in 2012 to €33.0

million in 2013. The difference is principally egohed by a €3.3 million increase in interest
expense, due in turn to the increase in averagesgtebt between 2012 and 2013 following the
acquisition of Tandus in late 2012, as well as §2# million increase in net financing expenses
relating to retirement commitments, due to the stdjent in rates of return on funds invested in
accordance with changes in IAS 19 applicable au ffanuary 1, 2013.

9.2.2.8 Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for 2013 was €47.9 million, 2%3increase as compared with €42.3
million in 2012. This increase relates essentitdlyhe increase in the Group’s operating income,
as the additional recognition of deferred tax assethe American tax consolidation group was
almost totally offset by additional provisions takan France and Germany. Current tax was
€51.9 million in 2013, as compared with €52.5 miilin 2012.
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9.2.2.9 Net Profit

The Group’s net profit was €100.3 million in 2083, compared with €85.2 million in 2012. Net
profit attributable to non-controlling interests svfi1.2 million in 2013 as compared with €1.6
million in 2012.

Net profit attributable to owners of the Companys89.1 million in 2013 and €83.6 million in
2012. This large increase is the result of theofacset forth above.
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10. LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For a description of the Company’s share capitdlfarancial structure, see Notes 13, 14, 15 and
16 to the Group’s consolidated financial statememduded in Section 20.1.1, “Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as of and folyds Ended December 31, 2013".

10.1 OVERVIEW

The Group generates significant net cash fromperating activities. This cash flow represents
the Group’s principal source of liquidity and is mothan sufficient to finance its ongoing
investments.

The Group’s objective is to maintain its ongoingdstments on the order of approximately 3.5%
of consolidated net revenues. The Group definegdimy investments” as investments in
property, plant and equipment other than thoseimgld#o new factories and acquisitions.

Investments in the Group’s growth (primarily fagt@onstruction and acquisitions) are financed
through debt and the Group’s own financial resasirie line with its policy of maintaining a
sound financial structure. The Group’s most resa@mtificant acquisition, the purchase of Tandus
in September 2012, was financed in part througbvaaredit agreement.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s net debt wid4€million, a decrease of €12.8 million

from net debt of €441.8 million as of December 3Q12. The Group’s shareholders’ equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent tata@90.2 million as of December 31, 2013, as
compared with €683.6 million as of December 31, 20%sulting in a ratio of net debt to

shareholders’ equity of 0.62x (as compared wittb%.8s of December 31, 2012) and a ratio of
net debt to adjusted EBITDA for the 12-month per@ttied December 31, 2013 of 1.4x (as
compared with 1.7x for the 12-month period endeddbeber 31, 2012).

The Group’s liquidity position is strong. As of Bmuober 31, 2013, cash and cash equivalents
totaled €96.7 million, as compared with €81.1 roillias of December 31, 2012. In addition, the
total amount available under the Group’s bank loassof December 31, 2013 was €642.3
million.

In connection with its reorganization at the tinfethe initial public offering, the Group decided
to distribute a dividend of €130 million to its sbholders. (The net amount of the dividend was
€124.8 million after deducting the portion of thgidend allocated to Partholdi, which merged
into Tarkett as part of the reorganization.) Theawet of this dividend on the Group’s net debt
was partially offset by the net proceeds of thes dal its majority shareholder, SID, of the
Company's shares held by Tarkett GDL S.A. at thgainpublic offering price, for a total of
€38.1 million.

Moreover, in October 2013 the Group entered intoeav syndicated loan agreement for a
maximum amount of €450 million, as discussed iniBerd0.3.3, “Gross Debt".

The Group believes its available credit lines affigent to cover its liquidity needs for the next
fiscal year.
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10.2 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOw

As of December 31,

2012
(in millions of euros restatec 201<
Cash flow before changes in working capital requiats an
other operating items ..........c.cooiuiet et 250.0 296.4
Changes in working capital requirements ................... 47.2 (16.3)
Other operating iten ..........cc.ooooeieveeeieeeeeee e (66.5) (74.5)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities................ 230.7 205.6
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities................. (343.3) (103.1)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities ................ 140.% (83.8)
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations and changes i
ACCOUNTING -.evtievieiieeie e etee et e et e e e e e e e (0.6) 3.2
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.... 28.1 18.8

@ Primarily net interest paid and net tax paid

Cash and cash equivalents increased by €18.8 miliQ013, slightly less than in 2012. In 2013,
cash flow from operating activities decreased, Mgaidue to increased working capital
requirements. In addition, cash flow from investawgivities was lower in 2013 than in 2012 as a
result of the September 2012 acquisition of Tand&nally, cash from financing activities,
traditionally affected by repayments of revolvingahs in the event of available cash, was
impacted by the dividend paid to the shareholdeferk the initial public offering and by a loan
entered into in 2012 in order to acquire Tandus.

10.2.1 Cash Flow From Operating Activities

As of December 31,

2012
(in millions of euros) restated 2013
Net cash from operating activities
Net profit before tax ......ccoccvvie s iceemmeeee e 127.5 148.2
Cash flow before changes in working capital
requirements and other operating items................... 250.0 296.4
Changes in working capital requirements................. 47.2 (16.3)
Cash generated from operations ..........cccceeceeeeeoeenne. 297.2 280.2
Other operating iten™............cooovveeeeeeeeeee e, (66.5) (74.5
Net cash from operating activities 230.7 205.¢

@ primarily net interest paid and net tax paid

Net cash from operating activities was €205.6 miillin 2013, a slight reduction of €25.1 million
as compared with 2012. The €46.4 million increaseash flow before changes in working
capital requirements and other operating items,civhivas primarily due to the increase in
adjusted EBITDA described in Section 9.2.2.5, “/sigd EBITDA”, was more than offset by the
growth in working capital requirements, which grbwa total net amount of €63.5 million (see
Section 10.2.1.1, “Changes in working capital regmients").

10.2.1.1 Changes in working capital requirements
Changes in the Company’s working capital requireméad a negative effect on net cash flow

from operating activities of €16.3 million in 2018 compared with a positive effect of €47.2
million in 2012, resulting in a net total changeg6f3.5 million from 2012 to 2013. This change is
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mainly explained by the unusual nature of 2012, wiverking capital requirements were lower
in a context of organic growth. This performanceslae result of the following factors, whose
effect on improving working capital requirementtated only to the year in which these events
took place:

» a significant effort to improve collection of acets receivable, including (i) a decrease
in payment terms from the Group’s customers in Ruasd Ukraine following a new
policy of reducing prices in return for early paymethus enabling the Group to
substantially decrease its recoverability risk; @ijdmproved management of accounts
receivable and receipt of certain late payments fnaunicipalities in the Sports Surfaces
segment;

» reduced inventory levels in Russia, principally do¢he fact that the Group began using
its factories at full capacity following an increas volumes sold; and

» an advance payment on a major purchase order drilted States.

In 2013, these actions continued (with the exceptiothe advance payment described above, for
which delivery of the goods ordered took place @13, which enabled the Group to limit the
increase in its working capital requirements to.81illion, representing 7.2% of the increase in
the Group’s net revenue between 2012 and 2013udird only the organic growth in the
Group’s net revenue, since the increase in balaheet items relating to the acquisition of
Tandus had already been taken into consideratiar ysar-end 2012, this represents an increase
in working capital requirements of 21.5% of thigiamic growth, with one-third resulting from
the delivery of the order paid in advance at thet @2012 in the United States and the remainder
resulting directly from the increase in activityd013.

10.2.2 Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities

As of December 31,

(in millions of euros) 2012 2013
restated

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acqu............ (259.2 (3.5)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, niet o

SAUES ..eiiiii e e (84.1) (99.6)
ONgoiNg INVESIMENIS........coivieieieieee e eeeee s (84.4) (87.8)

Net cash used in investing activitieS..........c.ccceeeueennee. (343.3) (103.1)

Cash used in investing activities decreased frod3£3 million in 2012 to €103.1 million in
2013. This decrease was primarily due to the Sdpter®012 acquisition of Tandus for €258.3
million. In 2013, the Group paid a €3.5 million @i adjustment relating to the Tandus
acquisition. The Group’s principal investments dgrthe period are described in Section 5.2,
“Principal Investments”.
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10.2.3 Cash from Financing Activities

As of December 31,
(in millions of euros) 2012

restated A

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Acquisition of non-controlling equity investments.... - (4.4)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings. 211.8 504.0
Repayment of loans and borrowings........ (70.3) (496.3)
Repayment of finance lease liabilil...............ccc......... (0.8) (0.4)
Sales (purchases) of treasury sales .........ccccceeeeeeee. - 38.1
DIVIAENGAS Pai.....eoveeeereeeeeieeeeeseeeeereee e - (124.8)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activitie 140.7 (83.8)

Net cash used in financing activities was €83.8iomilin 2013, as compared with €140.7 million
in 2012. This significant reduction was the resfithree major factors:

» the borrowings incurred to finance the Tandus aition in September 2012. These
borrowings include a bridge loan of €150 milliontaibed in August 2012 and an
additional €124 million drawdown of the Group’s okxing credit facility. The Group
also repaid €70.3 million of borrowings in 2012jnmarily repayments of drawdowns
under the revolving credit facility. In 2013, thed@p used its new term loan agreement
for the early repayment of the French private plemet as well as the Tandus bridge
loan. Therefore, these transactions did not hasigraficant impact on net cash generated
by financing activities in 2013;

« payment of a €124.8 million dividend to Tarkettlsassholders prior to its initial public
offering;

» the sale to its main shareholder, SID, of a portiérthe Tarkett shares held by its
subsidiary Tarkett GDL S.A. for €38.1 million.

10.3 FINANCIAL DEBT
10.3.1 Net Debt
As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s net debt wi294nillion. The Group's gross debt as of

the same date was €525.7 million. Net debt decdeas2013 despite the payment of a €124.8
million dividend in November 2013.

118



As of December 31,

(in millions of euros) 2012 restated 2013
Total Gross Debt 522.9 525.7
Cash and Cash Equivalents........... (81.1) (96.7)
Net Financial Debt.............cc.......... 4418 429.0

10.3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, aagdhcash equivalents totaled €96.7
million and €81.1 million, respectively. As of Denber 31, 2013, available cash was located
primarily in Serbia (€40.8 million), in China (€B5million) and in the United States (€8.4

million). As of December 31, 2012, available casisviocated primarily in the same countries:
Serbia (€34.1 million), the United States (€10.8iam) and China (€9.0 million).

10.3.3 Gross Debt

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s gross debtosagosed principally of two term loans of
which €360 million and €129 million, respectivelyad been drawn down, and a syndicated
revolving credit facility with a maximum amount ®450 million, of which €25 million had been
drawn down as of December 31, 2013. The table bplesents the Group’s total gross debt as of
the dates indicated.

As of December 31,

(in millions of euros 2012 restates 201z
Revolving Credit Facility (RCI.............. 219.% 25.0
French private placement..................... 114.0 -
Term Loan (Multi-currency).................. 150.0 129.0
Term Loan (EUR) ....ccocceevvveieeiieeseeee - 360.0
Factoring agreeme...........ccoocveeeeneeneenn. 25.2 -
Other bank credit lines and overdrafts. 4.3 8.7
Other debt (including finance least....... 10.1 3.0
Total Gross Debt........ccooveiiiiiniicnnen, 522.9 525.7

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s principal sesrof debt were the following:

» Syndicated revolving credit facility (‘RCF%)The Group has a €450 million floating rate
revolving multi-currency credit facility that inakes two swingline loans for a total
amount of €60 million. This credit facility will ntare in June 2016.

» October 2013 term loarthe Group entered into a new €450 million fivexyeyndicated
loan agreement, which includes a €360 million trenand a €90 million tranche, in
order to grow its capacity and to increase the amyermaturity of the Group’s
borrowings. Pursuant to this loan, the Group isuiregl to comply with the financial
covenants described in Section 10.4, “Revolving diyated Multi-Currency Credit
Facility”. This loan was used in part for the early repaynoémihe Group’s €114 million
French private placement, which was to mature iy Rl 4.
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* May 2013 term loanThe Group entered into this syndicated loan, tviicludes a €100
million tranche and a $40 million tranche and mesun May 2016, in order to repay the
€150 million Tandus bridge loan signed in 2012.sBant to this loan, the Group is
required to comply with the financial covenantsadi®d in Section 10.4, “Revolving
Syndicated Multi-Currency Credit Facility”.

» Factoring agreement This revolving financing arrangement is the Greupnly
significant source of secured financing. The ségusi in the form of an assignment of
receivablesdréances Dailly, which are recorded in accounts receivable foppses of
calculating working capital requirements (with difsetting liability being recorded on
the Group’s balance sheethe Group can borrow up to €55 million under tlzisility at
a floating rate of one-month Euribor plus 0.45%, ises the facility only to supplement
its other sources of funds. As a result, there wereamounts outstanding under the
facility as of December 31, 2013, and only €25.Rion was outstanding as of December
31, 2012.

The following table provides a summary of the miéies and interest rates applicable to the
Group’s debt as of December 31, 2013:

merest _ASOl GTCE® 2yeas  3tos GRE
Currency rate December until until years until 5

(in millions of euros) Sl Al 12/31/2014 (ARIEUS JAELAIG years
Revolving Credit Facility 1.0% -
(RCF) i EUR/USD 1.1% 25.0 - - 25.0
Term Loan (EUR)................. EUR 2.8% 360.0 - - 360.0

_ 2.1% -
Term Loan (Multi-currency). EUR/USC ~ 2.6% 129.( 19. 32.2 77.4
Factoring agreemeft........... EUR 0.6% - - -
Other bank credit lines and 0.7% -
overdraftS .........coceveeiiniciienn - 5.2% 8.7 4.4 1.5 2.7
Other debt (including 0.5% -
finance leases)........cccccceeuene - 0.9% 3.C 0.7 0.7 14 0.2
Interest-bearing loans.......... - - 525.7 245 34.5 466.5 0.2

@ £33.6 million of this arrangement is automatigaénewable annually.

104 REVOLVING SYNDICATED MULTI-CURRENCY CREDIT FACILITY

The Group’s principal source of financing is thelR@hich is available for a term of five years
as from June 27, 2011. This credit facility waseidjby Tarkett as well as by its U.S. subsidiary
Tarkett Finance Inc. in order to enable the Grauméke drawdowns directly in U.S. dollars and
in the United States, as described in Section 1@8,Balance Sheet Commitments“. This credit
line had €25.0 million outstanding as of DecemlirZ)13, as compared with €219.3 million as
of December 31, 2012. The RCF includes a €450 amilfioating-rate credit line that can be
drawn in several currencies for periods of betweae week and six months, which itself
includes two swinglines in an aggregate amount6®f ®illion, which can be drawn for periods
of one to five days.

Interest Rates
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The effective interest rate for each drawdown urtderRCF is composed of a base rate plus an
applicable margin. The applicable margin is detaedibased on the Group’s leverage ratio (as
defined below) at the end of the most recent ha#fryperiod. The relationship between the
leverage ratio and the applicable margin is sunmadrin the table below.

Leverage Ratio Applicable Margin
<1.00x 0.70%
1.00x<1.50x 0.80%
1.50%x<2.00x 0.90%
2.00x<2.50x 1.05%
2.50%<3.00x 1.25%

Financial Covenants

The RCF requires the Group to comply with seveirsrfcial covenants so long as the funds
remain available. The same ratios are applicableddsroup’s May 2013 and October 2013 term
loan agreements. Failure to comply with these camencould result in the loans’ repayment
being accelerated.

Leverage Ratio

The first financial covenant limits the Group’s @dedness and leverage. Under this covenant,
known as the “leverage ratio”, the Group’s net debbf the end of each half-year must be less
than three times its adjusted EBITDA (as definethimloan agreement) over the twelve months
preceding the end of the relevant half-year. ABPetember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
the Group was in compliance with this covenanthwli¢verage ratios of 1.4x and 1.7,
respectively, adjusted EBITDA over the period. Thieverage ratios are in line with the Group’s
historical levels.

Net Interest Cover

The second financial covenant concerns the Grotn®s interest cover”, which is the ratio of

adjusted EBITA to net interest expense. This comemaquires the Group to maintain gross
operating income (adjusted EBITA) at least 2.5 #rite total net interest on financial debt and
cash flows. As of the end of 2013 and the end df226he Group was in compliance with this
covenant, with a ratio of net interest cover touat§d gross operating income (“adjusted
EBITA") of, respectively, 14.1x and 14.8x.

The table below presents the status of the Grdinmescial covenants as of December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2013.

As of December 31,

(in millions of Definition® Required 2012 2013
euros ratio

Actual ratio
Leverage Rati Net debt to Adjusted EBITD Ratio <3.0; 1.7» 1.4
Net Interest Cover Adjusted EBITA to net interegtense Ratio >2.5x 14.8x 14.1x

@ These ratios apply to the RCF, the French pripkteement and the May and October 2013 term loans.
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Change of Control Provisions

The RCF syndicated credit facility contains a cleamg control cause in the event that the
Deconinck family ceases to control the Company. fhis purpose, the Deconinck family is
defined as “Ms. Catherine la Bonnardiére (née Db, Mr. Bernard-André Deconinck, Mr.
Didier Deconinck, Mr. Eric Deconinck and their ahién, acting individually or collectively and
directly or indirectly through a company held exilely by them”. If the Group were to fail to
reach an agreement with its banks in such casé, leader would have the right to demand
immediate repayment of its portion of the loan. Ward “control” as used in this clause is
defined by the French Commercial Code and inclu®ns “in concert”, as defined in such
Code.

10.5 NEW TERM L OAN

The Company signed a new term loan (the “Euro Tleoan Facility” or “ETLF”") with a group

of banks on October 16, 2013, with respect to Tmank, and on December 6, 2013, with respect
to Tranche B. The total amount of the facility 450 million, of which €360 million is in
Tranche A and €90 million is in Tranche B.

A portion of Tranche A (€114 million) was used imWmber 2013 to repay the French private
placement.

The ETLF's maturity date is five years as from signature date of Tranche A.

The agreement contains, in all material respehts,same covenants as the RCF, in particular
those relating to leverage ratio and net interegec

The interest rate for the first drawdown was seB-atonth Euribor plus a margin of 1.75%.
Going forward, the base interest rate (3-month lurbr 6-month Euribor) will be determined
depending on the period chosen by the borrower. 8ffextive interest rate will be equal to
Euribor plus an applicable margin based on the @Gsoleverage ratio for the most recent half-
year period. The relationship between the leveratie and the margin applicable to the ETLF is
summarized in the table below.

Leverage Rati Applicable Margit
<1.00x 1.25%
1.00x<1.50x 1.50%
1.50»<2.00» 1.75%
2.00x<2.50x 2.00%
2.50x ancmore 2.25%

The ETLF agreement contains a change of contralselahat can result in acceleration of
repayment. The change of control provision will lgppnly in the event that the Company is
controlled by a person or “group in concert” othigan the Deconinck family. The mere loss of
control by the Deconinck family, without acquisitiof control by a third party, will not trigger
the provision.

10.6 OTHER DEBT

The minority shareholders of Morton Extrusionstékh(MET) and FieldTurf Benelux BV
(formerly AA SportSystems) hold put options thatlele them to require the Group to acquire
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their respective shares. The Group fully consodisdhese companies in its financial statements,
as if the minority shares had been acquired by&tarkhe Group records the present value of the
estimated exercise price of the put options unadéner liabilities” in its balance sheet. As of
December 31, 2013, the total amount of other litdsl corresponding to these options was €2.1
million.

10.7 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Shareholders’ equity was €696.3 million and €698iflion as of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively. Changes in shiaeisd equity in 2013 resulted primarily
from changes in the Group’s net income, as destriheSection 9.2.2.9, “Net Income”. In
addition, in connection with its reorganizatiore Broup decided to distribute a dividend of €130
million to its shareholders prior to the initial lic offering and to sell a portion of its treasury
shares.

10.8 RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

In order to monitor its profitability, the Group as an indicator known as return on capital
employed, or “ROCE”, which measures the Group'ditgbio provide a return on funds made
available to it by its shareholders and lenders.

ROCE is the ratio of (1) earnings before interest taxes to (2) capital employed, which is the
sum of tangible and intangible assets (includingdyall) and working capital.

ROCE is not a standardized accounting term corretipg to a generally accepted definition. It
should not be taken as a substitute for operatiogme, net income or cash flows from financing
activities, nor should it be treated as a meastifigudity. ROCE may be calculated differently
by other companies with businesses that are sirilaor different from that of the Group.
Accordingly, the Group’s ROCE calculation may net dbmparable to that calculated by other
issuers. The following tables reconcile ROCE tmimys before interest and taxes for 2012 and
2013.

Operating income before financial items and tagemlculated as follows:

For the year ended December 3

2012 2013
(in millions of euros) restated
Operating iNCOME.........cccvvvierineeenenene e 153.5 180.9
Exceptional items
ReStructuring COStS ........ueeveiueeieee e 6.6 5.3
Gains/losses on asset sales/impairment.......... 1.7 6.1
Unusual items from business combination..... 7.6 0.5
Share-based payment 2.5 6.1
Consulting fees and other provisions.............. 3.2 11.9
Operating income before financial items and
tAXES (A).rivie it 175.2 210.9

123



Capital employed is calculated as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2012 2013
(in millions of euros restatec
Tangible assets ........cccovvveevienineseeseeee 428.7 415.4
Intangible assets ........cccovveiiiincceeeeee 98.4 110.9
GOoOAWIll ... e 449.1 425.6
Working capital ........ccccoovvveriiieiiiirieeniee e 239.4 236.4
Total capital employed (B).........ccoccrervinnenne 1,215.6 1,188.2

The Group’s ROCE (before taxes) is as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2012 2013
(in millions of euros restatec published
Return on capital employed (ROCE) (before
taXeS) (A/B ...cvoveceiieeieeceee e 14.4% 17.7%

10.9 OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS
Lease Commitments
The Group’s lease commitments mainly relate todbugs, vehicles, computer equipment and

software, as well as offices. Total future minimlease payments pursuant to the Group’s
operating leases totaled €38.9 million as of Deam3li, 2013, and included the following:

Future minimum payments pursuant to operating leasg

(Group level) As of December 31, As of December
(in millions of euros) 2012 restated 31, 2013
Less than 1 Year.........ccccoveiiiiii i (14.2; (13.6)

1to 5 years (24.3) (21.9)

More than 5 Years..........cccccviurieii e e, (3.1) (3.4)

TOLAD et rremee ettt (41.6) (38.9)

The total net carrying amounts of assets undernfilah leases included in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet totaled €9.7 millioofd3ecember 31, 2013, and the present value of
future minimum payments was €2.6 million.

Guarantees and Off-Balance Sheet Commitments
The following table presents guarantees given kg @ompany as of December 31, 2013

(including those relating to financial debt alreadgluded on the balance sheet), as well as
guarantees received from customers:

Group Off-Balance Sheet Commitments As of December As of December
(in millions of euros 31, 201. 31, 201:

RCF EUrope Credit LNt .. oo e - -
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Federal INSUrance COMPANY ..........ccveeeeeeereeieererereseesssesesesessesesenes (56.7) (38.9)

[ Lo (o 1T SRS (25.2)

Pri-PONSION. ...t eee st e et ee e s e (17.4) (18.4)
(@1 1= ST SRR URR TR (13.8) (7.2)
Corporateguarantee 0f TArKEtt S/ .........cvvveveveveeeeemeeseeesseeeeeeeenen (113.1) (64.5)
COMMIMENTS PIOVIOEM ........eveeeoeeeeeees e e (121.7Y (82.4)

Corporate or persor guarantees from clients or other dek. 11.8 11.0
COMMItMENTS FECEIVEA ........eeeiiiieiiiet e ettt e e e e naee e, 11.8 11.0

@ Includes a corporate guarantee given by Tarkett In
The foregoing commitments include the following:

e a counter guarantee provided to Federal Insurarmmp@ny (“FIC") pursuant to a
general indemnity agreement for a maximum amour7&.0 million to permit FIC to
issue bonds on behalf of FieldTurf Tarkett Inc. éfsthe end of the fiscal year, the
amount outstanding subject to this guarantee waivaent to $38.9 million;

* a guarantee covering 50% of a maximum €10 millicedit line granted to the Group’s
Laminate Park joint venture;

e a guarantee given to the retirement insurance compai-Pensions to insure Tarkett
AB’s employee benefit commitments in the amounSBK 163.2 million;

e a guarantee for raw materials provided by a supplighe Group’s subsidiary MET in
order to secure its debt for an amount of up ton8kon;

e a guarantee given to Tarkett Finance Inc. to enhéebecome an additional borrower
under the RCF in an amount not to exceed the Wiardequivalent of €100.0 million.
However, no drawdowns under this guarantee werganding as of year-end,;

e aguarantee that Tarkett gave to a lender in thma & an assignment of receivables with
a maximum authorized amount of €55 million. Tarlgdtve the guarantee because the
facility, whose purpose is to finance the Group,swvegned by Tarkett France for
technical reasons. However, no drawdowns undergidsantee were outstanding as of
year-end; and

e a guarantee provided to certain lenders by the @ompn behalf of Tarkett Limited
(United Kingdom) and FieldTurf Poligras (Spain) ander to enable them to obtain
financing in an amount of €3.8 million.

Other

One of the Group’s subsidiaries is a defendantgroap of cases in the United States relating to
injuries caused by asbestos. In addition to prowmsirecorded, the Group maintains three funds
(for a total amount of $26.6 million as of DecemiBdr 2013) as well as insurance policies in

respect of this litigation and the possibility oflditional cases being brought. For more

information, see Section 20.4, “Legal Proceedings”.

In addition, the Group is currently engaged in@cpeding to rectify conditions relating to a 2008
sale of preference shares of FieldTurf Tarkett bycTarkett France to Tarkett Inc. for a total of
U.S.$36.2 million. Pursuant to Canadian tax legjisia the capital gains realized in connection
with the Tarkett France transaction should haventiemated by Tarkett Inc. as a distribution of
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dividends subject to withholding tax at a rate 5% As Tarkett Inc. did not pay this withholding
tax, it could be required to pay approximately CADgillion to the Canadian tax authorities.
Tarkett Inc. and Tarkett France filed a motion tstitute proceedings for rectification of
documents and declaratory judgment before the Quetnarts in order to reduce the price of the
sale by U.S.$21.3 million. Given the timeframe anel uncertainty as to whether the requested
rectification will be granted, the Group’s finarniciiatements as of December 31, 2013 include a
provision for CAD$6 million.
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11. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, PATENTS AND LICENSES
Information about the Group’s research and devetopmpatents and licenses is included in

Section 6.1.9, “Research and Development, Innowat®tandards Applicable to the Group's
Products and Intellectual Property”.
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12. INFORMATION ON TRENDS AND FORECASTS

For purposes of preparing its internal budgets ql@nning its operations and investments, the
Group makes estimations regarding outlook and settin objectives relating to its results of
operations. These estimations and objectives, suinedabelow, are based on information,
assumptions and estimates that the Group’s managecmmsiders to be reasonable as of the
filing date of this Registration Document. Thedinegtions and objectives are not projections or
profit forecasts, but result from the Group’s sagitc orientation and action plan.

12.1 MARKET TRENDS

For a detailed discussion of the Group’s 2012 a@ti32results of operations, see Chapter 9,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations”.

12.2 MEDIUM -TERM OUTLOOK
12.2.1 Macro-Economic Climate

The Group expects its growth to depend to a cedsient on increases in gross domestic product
(“GDP”) in the main geographic regions in whiclofierates.

GDP growth for each of these regions, based omratienal Monetary Fund (“IMF”) estimates
published at the beginning of 2014, is expectdakttas follows:

* Inthe EMEA segment, GDP is expected to grow sigltty 1.2%, in 2014. This trend is
expected to continue in 2015 and 2016, with arei®e of approximately 1.5% per year.

* The IMF estimates that the average annual GDP ¢roate for North America during
the 2013-2016 period should be approximately 3.1%.

* For the CIS & Others segment, the average annud Gidwth rate during the 2013-
2016 period was expected to be approximately 312%hé main CIS countries (Russia,
Kazakhstan, Ukraine and Belarus). Furthermorendutie same period, the IMF expects
sustained annual GDP growth in the other major t@min this segment.e., in Brazil
and China.

12.2.2 Outlook for the Group

The recent events in Ukraine could modify the fasts of GDP growth in the CIS region,
although it is impossible currently to estimate fh&tential impact on the Group’s activity.
However, thanks to the quality of the Group’s pmtduand services, its broad geographic
footprint and its exposure to diversified markélt® Group believes that it is well positioned to
continue to grow over the coming years. Barring am@jor fluctuations in global macroeconomic
conditions, the Group’s objective during the 20D4-2 period is to continue growing its average
annual revenues at a higher rate than the averageabGDP growth of the regions in which it
operates.

» Based on IMF estimates relevant to the EMEA segntkatGDP growth rate in Western
Europe is projected to be approximately 1.2%. Eotogecovery is expected to begin in
2015 with an estimated GDP growth rate between 1% 206. However, austerity
programs in certain countries could reduce publjgeeditures even further and could
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potentially negatively impact the commercial marikeparticular. The Group expects to
continue to raise prices for certain products (Whidegan to do in 2013) through 2016,
in order to anticipate the effects of inflation gratential increases in raw material costs.
Starting in 2015, the Group expects an increasmlimmes sold in this region thanks to
sales growth in its LVT product line.

In its North American segment, the Group expecttake advantage of the economic
recovery in the U.S. construction market that hesnbunderway since the fourth quarter
of 2012. The Group believes that the acquisitionTahdus will allow it to achieve
commercial synergies in North America, a process$ began in 2013. The Group also
expects to increase its position in the resideamal commercial vinyl flooring categories
as a result of its wide geographic exposure actiessUnited States, its significant
capacity for innovation, its environmental leadgrshs well as its close relationships
with customers. In addition, the Group intendsrtemsify its integrated multi-product
and multi-surface marketing strategy in North AroariThe Group feels that it should be
well positioned to take advantage of major growtpested in certain product lines—
primarily LVT and modular commercial carpeting.

As indicated above, based on IMF estimates conugnd the CIS & Others segment,
annual GDP growth is expected to remain relativédyh during the 2014-2016 period in
the major countries in this region. Within the Ciige Group believes its local production
capacities are unigue compared to its competitord s network of distribution
platforms gives it a significant advantage. Funth@re, in Russia, two-thirds of
residential flooring surfaces are in need of sulisghrenovation, translating into roughly
two billion square meters of potential demand. Theoup believes it is very well
positioned in this country due to its close relasioips with the country’s primary
distributors, and this should allow the Group tketaadvantage of significant growth
opportunities. In Latin America, the Group expetdstake advantage of the strong
potential of resilient flooring, especially the irasing demand for luxury vinyl tiles in
this market. The Group also hopes to take advarifigiee growth potential in the Asia
Pacific region, where, as in Latin America, resitiélooring is becoming increasingly
popular, especially among commercial users.

For the Sports Surfaces segment, economic conglifiofNorth America showed initial
signs of recovery as early as 2012, as indicategteabAs a significant number of sports
fields will cease to be covered by manufactureratranties and reach the end of their
useful lives, the Group expects there to be aream® in demand for replacement. In
Western Europe, reductions in public spending duehtllenging economic conditions
are expected to ease in 2014 and reverse begirini®P15. Should the Western
European economy gradually recover as anticipabedGroup believes that an increase
in Sports Surfaces sales could begin in 2014 acele@te in 2015.

See Section 6.1.4, “Market Description”, for a maoletailed analysis of the structural factors
discussed above. For a detailed discussion andsamadf the factors affecting the Group’s
results, including macro-economic conditions, \#ig in raw material prices, exchange rate
fluctuations and changes in the scope of consaidatsee Section 9.1.2, “Principal Factors
Affecting the Group’s Results of Operations”.

Concerning margins, the Group achieved an adjus&d DA margin of 12.3% in 2013. The
Group expects to achieve additional productivityngaas a result of operational initiatives
already in place, such as completing the turnaroafnthe Group’s European wood flooring
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business, consolidating U.S. VCT production andtinaing to strengthen the Sports Surfaces
business worldwide (see Section 9.1.6, “Turnarousfd Certain Business Divisions”).
Furthermore, the Group expects to optimize its peam distribution network by increasing
supply-chain flexibility and improving logistics magement. The Group’'s WCM program,
launched in 2009 to increase productivity and redpooduction costs, has already generated
significant savings that the Group expects to cmmtiover the coming years. See Section 6.1.7.2,
“Continued Improvement of Manufacturing Process&xie to these factors, the Group aims to
achieve an average annual adjusted EBITDA margavelli2% and average annual Return on
Capital Employed (ROCE) above 15% during the 200B62period.

The Group's external growth strategy should alsutréioute to an increase in revenues. Although
it is always difficult to assess the impact of fietuacquisitions given the importance of
identifying targets and partners and successfutbceting transactions, the Group’s objective
over the 2013-2016 period is to complete acquisitidghat will allow it to broaden and
complement its existing product lines while corgating its presence in certain markets and
expanding into new regions. These acquisitionsccallbw the Group to increase its consolidated
revenues by approximately €300 million over the2@016 period. As of the filing date of this
Registration Document, the Group has entered imp@kminary agreement with the Polish group
Gamrat S.A to acquire Gamrat Flooring, Gamrat S.Aihyl flooring subsidiary (see Section
5.2.3, Principal Future Investments”).

Through its strong cash generation capacity asageills disciplined approach to external growth,
the Group seeks to keep its level of debt below tiwes its adjusted EBITDA over the 2013-
2016 period, excluding transformational acquissi@nd after taking into account the Group’s
dividend distribution policy (see Section 20.3, Vidiend Policy”).

Ongoing investments represented 3.5% of consotidaét revenues in 2013 and 3.6% in 2012.
The Group defines “ongoing investments” as investsi@n tangible and intangible assets, other
than those relating to new factories and acquisstion order to address increased demand and
improved manufacturing processes, the Group aimmedimtain its annual ongoing investments
on the order of 3.5% of consolidated net revenuemg the 2013-2016 period.

The data, assumptions and estimates set forth henaly change as a result of uncertainties
related to, among other things, the Group’s ecomprfinancial, competitive or regulatory
environment or as a result of other factors of Wwhike Group may be unaware as of the filing
date of this Registration Document. In additione thccurrence of one or more of the risks
described in Chapter 4, “Risk Factors”, could neigaty affect the Group’s business, income,
financial situation or prospects, and hence undemnits ability to meet the objectives set forth in
this section. Furthermore, the estimates expreabege are based on the assumed success of the
Group’s strategy as presented in Section 6.1.3rat8gy”. Therefore, the Group can give no
assurances or provide any guarantee that the objegiset forth above will be met, and does not
undertake to publish corrections or communicateatesl to this information in the future.
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13. PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

None.
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14. MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

14.1 MANAGEMENT BOARD, SUPERVISORY BOARD AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company is a limited liability corporatiosogiété anonymaewith a Supervisory Board and a
Management Board. A description of the main prawisiof the Company’s Bylaws relating to its
functioning and powers, as well as a brief desicnipbf the main provisions of the Internal
Regulations of the Supervisory Board and its sgieeh committees, is included in Chapter 16,
“Operation of Management and Supervisory Boardstl am Chapter 21.2, “Incorporation
Documents and Bylaws”.

14.1.1 Management Board

In accordance with Articles 11 and 12 of the ConyfmmBylaws, the Management Board is
composed of a minimum of two and a maximum of fivembers. Its members are appointed by
the Supervisory Board, and their term in officettisee years. The age limit for serving as a
member of the Management Board is currently ssixat-five years.

As of the date of this Registration Document, thanklgement Board is composed of three
members. The tables below show the compositionhef Management Board and the main
positions and offices held by the members of thendg@ment Board outside the Company
(whether inside or outside the Group) during ttet five years.

Michel Giannuzzi BUSINESS’ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
(49) 2, rue de I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre 204,158Y
Cedex, France

Member and Chairman of the Management Board

Michel Giannuzzi was appointed Chief Executive Officer of TarkatSeptember 2007.

ur

He has spent his entire career in various indgstbieginning in 1988 with Michelin. From his inlt@iverse industrial responsibilitie|
in France and the United Kingdom, he went on toagana tire production unit using very innovativehteologies before taking o
the responsibility of re-engineering the supplyicha Europe and becoming CEO of Michelin Japan.

=]

In 2001, he joined the Valeo Group as Vice Pregided Member of the Executive Committee, succebsinecharge of the globa
Electrical Systems and Wiper Systems businesses.

Mr. Giannuzzi is a graduate Btole Polytechniquand Harvard Business School.

FIRST APPOINTMENT: CURRENT TERM:
September 7, 2007 From November 26, 2013 to November 26, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN THE TARKETT GROUP POSITIONS AND

. OFFICES
Current positions: OUTSIDE THE
TARKETT
GROUP

France
- Member and Chairman of the Management Board, Tarket
Abroad
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Chairman of the Board of Directors, Tarkett CapBAl (Luxembourg)

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Tarkett GDL @&xembourg)

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Zao Tarkettg8la)

Board Member, Tarkett Asia Pacific Ltd (People’Relic of China)

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Fademac SA{Bra

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Tarkett Honghgd.imited (People’s Republic of China)
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Laminate Parkb® & Co KG (Germany)

Member of the Supervisory Board, Morton Extrusiesshik GmbH (MET) (Germany)

Board Member, Tarkett Inc. (Canada)

During the last five years:

None.

France

Abroad

France

Abroad

May 23, 2008

Cedex, France

Member of the Management Board

FIRST APPOINTMENT: CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 to November 26, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN THE TARKETT GROUP

Current positions:

Member of the Management Board and Chief Finar@féiter, Tarkett
Member of the Executive Committee, FieldTurf Tatl@AS

Board Member, Tarkett Australia Pty. Ltd (Australia

Board Member, Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG (Germany)
Board Member, FieldTurf Poligras (Spain)

Board Member, Somalre (Luxembourg)

Board Member, Tarkett Capital SA (Luxembourg)

Board Member, Tarkett GDL SA (Luxembourg)

Board Member, Zao Tarkett (Russia)

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Tandus Floo@@. Ltd (People’s Republic of China)
Board Member, Tarkett Inc. (Canada)

Board Member, Fademac SA (Brazil)

Board Member, Tarkett Asia Pacific Ltd (People’Relic of China)

During the last five years:

N/A

France
- N/A
Abroad
- N/A
Fabrice Barthélemy BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
46) 2, rue de I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre 37,276

Fabrice Barthélemy, 46, joined Tarkett as Chief Financial Officer 2008. He started his career as an industrial cthertravith

Safran and joined Valeo in 1995 as Financial Cdletrof a division in the United Kingdom. From 208® 2003, he helped tur
around Valeo’s Lighting Division in France, thencbening Financial Director of Valeo Connective Systeand, subsequently
Financial Director of Valeo Wiper Systems. Mr. Beifemy is a graduate of ESCP - Europe.

POSITIONS AND
OFFICES
OUTSIDE THE
TARKETT
GROUP

None.
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- N/A

Member of the Management Board

Born in 1964,Vincent Lecerf joined Tarkett in 2008. Mr. Lecerf has spent mofhis professional career in human resourfes
management. Before joining Tarkett, he was DireofoHuman Resources of the Norbert DentressanglapgrPrior to that, Mr.
Lecerf held various human resources roles withmmanies such as Rhodia, Poclain, Hydraulics andd/air. Lecerf is a graduate
of EDHEC and has a post-graduate diploma in orgaioizal sociology from Paris Dauphine.

FIRST APPOINTMENT: CURRENT TERM:
May 23, 2008 From November 26, 2013 to November 26, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN THE TARKETT GROUP POSITIONS AND
. OFFICES
Current positions: OUTSIDE THE
France TARKETT
- Member of the Management Board and Executive ViesiBent of Human Resources, Tarkett GROUP
Abroad None.
- None.

During the last five years:

France

- N/A

Abroad
- N/A

@ shares held by the executive and related persons.
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14.1.2 Supervisory Board
14.1.2.1 Composition of the Supervisory Board

In accordance with Articles 17 and 18 of the ConymmBylaws, the Supervisory Board is
composed of a minimum of three and a maximum ohteign members. Its members are
appointed by the ordinary shareholders’ meeting), i@ length of their term of office is four
years. Part of the Supervisory Board is renewet gaar, such that the entire Supervisory Board
is renewed on a rolling basis over a period of fgears. By way of exception, the general
shareholders’ meeting may decide when appointimaicemembers of the Supervisory Board
that their term of office will be shorter than foggars, in order to permit rolling renewal of the
terms of the various members of the Supervisorydioa

Pursuant to the Company’s Bylaws, each member efSipervisory Board must hold at least
1,000 Company shares. Until he or she holds 1,0@0es, each member of the Supervisory
Board must use half of his attendance fees to ezqiompany shares.

No natural person older than seventy-five (75) rhayappointed to the Supervisory Board if
following such appointment more than one-thirdhef members of the Supervisory Board will be
older than such age.

The tables below show the composition of the Sipery Board and the main positions and
offices held by its members outside the Group éngast five years.

Didier Deconinck BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
2, rue de I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, | 1,004

(67)
France

EXPERIENCE AND EXPERTISE

Chairman and Member of the Supervisory Board

Didier Deconinck has been Chairman of the Company’s SupervisorydBsiace 2005. He has been a member of the Manageme
Board and of thBureau des Assemblégs representative of DDA) of SID, a family compdmolding shares of the Company, since
2013. He was a Managing Director ®6ciété Investissement Familig®lF), a holding company controlling the Compaumytil its
initial public offering in 2013. He is also the ¥i®resident and Managing Director of Monin, a Fhemardware manufacturer for th
building and industrial sectors, which he also acorded.

[v]

From 1979 to 1984, Mr. Deconinck was the Managirgdor of Allibert-Mobilier-de-Jardin a garden furniture manufacturer. He
then became Managing Director of the Video divis@inThompson and an executive officer of its Gernhafding company,
DAGFU, until 1987, then, until 1990, General ManageDomco, a company traded on the Toronto StaathBEnge and the largest
Canadian flooring manufacturer.

Mr. Deconinck is also a member of the Board of Etives of theConseil International de la Chasse et de la Fauaev@geand the
Musée de I'Armée

Born in 1947, Mr. Deconinck holds an engineeringrde fromEcole Polytechnique de Zuridnd received additional training in
marketing at the Wharton Business School and amiie at INSEAD.

TERM OF OFFICE

FIRST APPOINTMENT: CURRENT TERM:

January 2, 2001 From May 30, 2012 until the annual shareholdergting
called to approve the financial statements foryter ending
December 31, 2013

LIST OF POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD IN FRENCH AND FO REIGN COMPANIES DURING THE LAST FIVE
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POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP

THE TARKETT GROUP
- Member of the Management Board &utreau des Assemblé@s a representative

Current positions: of DDA), SID
France - Manager, DDA (France)
- Chairman and Member of the | - Chairman of the Supervisory Board and Chairmdnth®@ Nominations and
Supervisory Board Compensation Committee of ARDIAN Holding SAS (Frapc permanen
representative of DDA (France)
Abroad - Managing Director, Monin SAS (France)
- None. - Board Member, Musée de 'Armée (France)

POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

During the last five years: ARE NO LONGER HELD

Fran(fe None - Member of the Management Board and Managing BireSociété Investissement
' Familiale (S.I.F.) (France)
Abroad
- None.
Jacques Garaialde BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
7) Kohlberg Kravis & Co. Ltd, Stirling Square, 7 1,004

Carlton Garden, London SW1 5AD, Great
Britain

Vice President and Member of the Supervisory Board

Jacques Garaialdehas been a partner of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts &<iice 2003. Before joining Kohlberg Kravis RobestCo.,

Mr. Garaialde was a partner of Carlyle responsibteEuropean Venture Partner funds. Between 19822890, he worked for th
Boston Consulting Group, serving as Senior Vicesigent responsible for Belgium (from 1992 to 1996 then France an
Belgium (from 1995 to 2000).

Between 1979 and 1981, he held various positiotis B§so France.

O

Mr. Garaialde is also a member of the Board of @as of KKR Flooring COMP, Visma AS and SMCP SA# is also President d
theEcole Polytechniqu€haritable Trust and a member of the Board of &nes of theFondation de I'Ecole Polytechnique
Born in 1956, Mr. Garaialde holds an M.B.A from /D and is a graduate of tii&ole Polytechnique

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
January 10, 2007

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements forytrer ending

December 31, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Board Member, KKR Flooring COMP (Luxembourg)
Current positions: - Board Member, Visma AS (Norway)

France - Board Member, SMCP SAS (France)

- Vice President and Member of

the Supervisory Board
; Member of the Nominations POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

and Compensation Committee ARE NO LONGER HELD

- Chairman of the Management BoaiSiociété Investissement Familia(8.I.F.)
Abroad (France)
- Chairman and CEO, Mediannuaire Holding (France)
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- None. - Chairman of the Board of Directors, Pages Ja@respe (France)*
- Board Member, Nexans (France)*

During the last five years: - Board Member, Pages Jaunes Groupe (France)*

- Board Member, Legrand SA (France)*

France )
- None. - Board Member, Sorgenia Spa (Italy)
Abroad
- None.
Eric Deconinck BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
(65) 2, rue de 'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, | 1,004

France

Member of the Supervisory Board

Eric Deconinck is a member of the Company’s Supervisory Boardh&tebeen a member of the Management Board andn@ima
of theBureau des Assemblégss representative of Demunich) of SID, a famdynpany holding shares of the Company, since 2
He was a Managing Director &ociété Investissement Familig®lF), a holding company controlling the Compamytil its initial
public offering in 2013. At Sommer Allibert, he wikanaging Director of the subsidiary Sommer Brésiin 1976 to 1981, and the|
President of Allibert Habitat from 1993 to 1997.

Mr. Deconinck began his career with Publicis arehttvorked as a Budget Manager for Euro-Advertiiom 1972 to 1976.

He subsequently joined Loréal, where he was Mamga@imector of Garnier from 1981 to 1985 and thennlging Director of
Lancdme from 1985 to 1988. He then joined LVMH aasitlent of Christian Lacroix from 1990 to 1991.

He founded and developed the consulting firm Mankeand Business from 1998 to 2013.

Born in 1948, Mr. Deconinck holds a degree fromHEoele Supérieure de Commerce de Lgod served in the military as a part
theChasseurs Alpins

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements forytrer ending

December 31, 2015

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
January 2, 2001

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Member of the Management Board @uteau des Assemblé@s a representativ|
Current positions: of Demunich), SID
France - Representative, Demunich (France)
- Member of the Supervisory - Representative of Demunich, SO ACTIVE (France)
Board
Abroad POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT
_ None. ARE NO LONGER HELD
) ] - Member of the Management Board and Managing freSociété Investisseme
During the last five years: Familiale (S.1.F.) (France)
France - Board Member, Attractive (France)
- None. - Chairman, Marketing & Business (taken over by Daich) (France)
Abroad
- None.

nt
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Member of the Supervisory Board

Bernard-André Deconinck is a member of the Company's Supervisory Boarac&i2013, he has been Chairman of fthe
Management Board and member of Biereau des Assemblégss the representative of Heritage Fund) of SlEjraily company
holding shares of the Company. He was a membeneoManagement Board &ociété Investissement Familig®lF), a holding
company controlling the Company, until its init@lblic offering in 2013. He began his career wité Group in 1969 as an engineer
then held positions in operational management dfaes and divisions), then in as vice-presidenpuwifchasing, investing, stylg
research and Group development.

Born in 1944, Mr. Deconinck holds a degree fromEiele Centrale de Paris

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
January 10, 2007

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements foryter ending

December 31, 2015

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Member of the Management Board éduteau des Assemblé@s a representativ|

m

Current positions: of Heritage Fund), SID
France - Co-manager, Heritage Fund SPRL (Belgium)
R Member of the Supervisory - Manager, Société Val Duchesse SPRL (Belgium)
Board
Abroad POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT
- None. ARE NO LONGER HELD

) ] - Member of the Management Board and Managing fareSociété Investissement
During the last five years: Familiale (S.1.F.) (France)
France

- None.

Abroad
- None.

Member of the Supervisory Board

Josselin de Roquemaureis a Vice-President of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Gvhere he has worked since 2005. He has beg¢n in
charge of investments in various European countfigsm 2001 to 2005, he was employed with JPMo&ap. as an analyst an
then as an associate in the Investment Banking thegat.

Born in 1976, Mr. de Roquemaurel is also a Direofokcteon Group Ltd (United Kingdom).
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FIRST APPOINTMENT:
May 26, 2010

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN
THE TARKETT GROUP

Current positions:

During the last five years:
France
- None.

Abroad
- None.

Mr. de Roquemaurel is a graduate of Brzele Normale Supérieure de Fontenay/Saint-Clend holds a degree from HEC.

France
- Member of the Supervisory
Board
- Member of the Audit
Committee
Abroad
- None.

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements foryter ending

December 31, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP

- Representative5ociété Investissement Familig®l.F.) (France)
- Board Member, Acteon Group Limited (United Kingalo

POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT
ARE NO LONGER HELD

- Member of the Management Boar8pciété Investissement Familia(&.l.F.)
(France)

- Board Member, Visma AS (Norway)

- Chairman, Partholdi (France)

Member of the Supervisory Board

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
November 26, 2013

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN
THE TARKETT GROUP

Current positions:

France

Jean-Philippe Delsolhas provided legal and tax advice for over thyggrs, focusing on large family-owned companies.

Born in 1950, Mr. Delsol holds degrees in literatand law.

CURRENT TERM:

From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements foryter ending
December 31, 2013

POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP

- PSELARL DELSOL Law Firm (France), Partner
- Board Memberinstitut de Recherches Economiques et FiSGdREF) (France)
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- Member of the Supervisory
Board
POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

Abroad ARE NO LONGER HELD

- None. - None.
During the last five years:
France

- None.
Abroad

- None.
Sonia Bonnet-Bernard BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
1) Ricol Lasteyrie, 2 avenue Hoche, 75008 Par| 4

Independent Member of the Supervisory Board

Sonia Bonnet-Bernardhas been a managing partner of Ricol Lasteyrigndependent financial advisory and corporate \aloa|
firm, since 1998.

She began her career in 1985 as an auditor fdirtheSalustro, and then continued on to Leon Cartgtan New York. After having
managed the International Section of @enseil Supérieur de I'Ordre des Experts Comptaltles French National Association ¢
Chartered Accountants) for seven years, she jdimedrnaud Bertrand Committee (which became tharkiial Markets Departmer]
of the French Professional Auditors Body, also knoas the “CNCC”) where she coordinated the techracaounting and
professional policy positions of the major intefoaal audit networks.

—~ S

Ms. Bonnet-Bernard has been a member of the Bohwiutoriti€é des Normes Comptabléthe formerConseil National de Ig
Comptabilitg (the French National Accounting Standards Autigbsince 1998 and has actively participated irefferts since 1990
She is Vice President of th&ociété Francaise des Evaluate &-EV), a member of thassociation Professionnelle des Expefts
Indépendant$APEI) and a member of the Board of DirectorshAlFrance.

Born in 1962, Ms. Bonnet-Bernard is a French dedifaccountantExpert Comptableand holds an M.A. from the University of
Paris IX Dauphine in accounting and finance. She avdecturer at the University of Paris IX Dauphémal at IAE of Poitiers from
1986 to 1994.

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
July 12, 2011

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements forytrer ending

December 31, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Managing Partner, Ricol Lasteyrie (France)

Current positions: - Vice-President of th8ociété Frangaise des Evaluate(Fsance)
France - Member of the Board of Directors of the associatMA France (France)
R Independent Member of the - Member of theCollege de I'Autorité des Normes Comptal{lesince)

Supervisory Board
- Chairman and Independent
Member of the Audit POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

Committee ARE NO LONGER HELD

- None.

Abroad
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- None.

During the last five years:

France
- None.
Abroad
- None.
Frangoise Leroy BUSINESS ADDRESS NUMBER OF SHARES HELD:
62) 2, rue de I'Egalité, 92748 Nanterre Cedex, | 1,001

France

Independent Member of the Supervisory Board

Francoise Leroybegan her career in 1975 as Secretary Generaéddriton Industrielle d’EntrepriseShe joined EIf Aquitaine in
1982, where she held various positions in finantiahagement. In 1998, she became the Directomain€ial Communications, and
then, in 2001, she became Director of Chemical idyges Operations in the finance department dalffmllowing its merger with
Elf Aquitaine. She has also been the secretaryrgemé Total's Chemical division since 2004 and @&mber of its Steering
Committee since 2006. From January 2012 to Jun®, 20 was Director of Mergers and Acquisitionspogals.

Born in 1952, Mrs. Leroy holds a degree fromEuwole Supérieure de Commerce et d’ AdministratianEtatreprises de Reims

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements forytrer ending

December 31, 2014

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
November 26, 2013

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Member of the Supervisory Board and Chairwomanthaf Audit Committee,
Current positions: HIME (Saur Group)

France
R Independent Member of the POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

Supervisory Board ARE NO LONGER HELD

- Independent Member of the - Chairwoman of the Board of Directors, Bostik HolfiSA (France)
Audit Committee - Managing Director, Bostik Holding SA (France)
- Independent Member of the - Board Member, Bostik Holding SA (France)
Nominations and Compensation- Chairwoman of the Board, Elf Aquitaine FertilissuiiFrance)
Committee - Managing Director, EIf Aquitaine Fertilisants éfrce)
- Board Member, EIf Aquitaine Fertilisants (France)
Abroad - Member of the Supervisory Board, Atotech BV (MNethnds)
- None. - Board Member, Société Chimique de Oissel (France)
- Board Member, Bostik SA (France)
During the last five years: - Board Member, Hutchinson SA (France)
France - Board Member, Grande Paroisse SA (France)
- None. - Board Member, GPN (France)
- Deputy CEO, Total Raffinage Chimie (France)
Abroad - Board Member, EIf Aquitaine (France)
- None. - Board Member, Cray Valley SA (France)

- Board Member, Financiére Elysées Balzac SA (Fepnc
- Board Member, Total Petrochemicals France
- Board Member, Total Petrochemicals Arzew (France)
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- Board Member, Rosier SA (Belgium)

Independent Member of the Supervisory Board

Gérard Buffiére is a Director of Imerys, a member of the Supenyi®oard of Wendel and a Senior Adviser of the $dgh Ergon
Capital Partners fund. He also managesiété Industrielle du Pa@nd GyB-Industries, which he founded.

Mr. Buffiere began his career in 1969 in the Mesgand Acquisitions department of Banexi beforeijmjrOtis Elevator in 1974. In
1979, he was appointed CEO of the Electricity Gandivision of Schlumberger, and then, in 1989, i@han of the Electronid
Transactions division. From 1996 until late 1994 dleted as CEO of the Industrial Equipment brarfi€degelec.

In early 1998, he joined Imetal, which then becamerys, as a member of the Management Board refierisr the Materials and
Construction and the Minerals for Ceramics divisiceind then, in 2000, the Pigments and Additivession. In 2002, he became th
Chairman of the Management Board of Imerys, and thas appointed as CEO upon the change in the grastmicture in 2005, g
position which he held until 2011.

]

Born in 1945, Mr. Buffiére holds a degree from Eeple Polytechniquas well as a Master of Science from Stanford Usite

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
November 26, 2013

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldreeting
called to approve the financial statements forytrer ending

December 31, 2014

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Board Member, Imerys (France)*

Current positions: - Member of the Supervisory Board, Wendel (France)*
France - Chairman, GyB-Industries (France)
- Independent Member of the | - Chairman, Société Industrielle du Parc (France)

Supervisory Board
- Chairman and Independent
Member of the Nominations

and Compensation Committee
POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT

Abroad ARE NO LONGER HELD

- None. - CEO, Imerys (France)*

During the last five years:
France
- None.

Abroad
- None.
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(33) 75018 Paris

Observer on the Supervisory Board

Eric La Bonnardiére began his career in 2006 as a consultant fortthgegic consulting firm Advancy where he focusadpoojects
relating to industries and distribution. In 200% hofounded Evaneos.com, and he is currently itefChxecutive Officer.
Evaneos.com, a website focusing on travel andrieisias generated €20 million in business sinceréation, with an average annual
growth rate of 100% since its founding.

Born in 1981, Mr. La Bonnardiére holds degrees fRupélec and HEC.

FIRST APPOINTMENT:
November 26, 2013

CURRENT TERM:
From November 26, 2013 until the annual sharehsldeeeting
called to approve the financial statements forytser ending

December 31, 2016

POSITIONS AND OFFICES WITHIN POSITIONS AND OFFICES OUTSIDE THE TARKETT GROUP
THE TARKETT GROUP

- Chairman and CEO, Evaneos SA (France)
Current positions:

France
- Observer on the Supervisory
Board
Abroad POSITIONS AND OFFICES HELD DURING THE LAST FIVE YEA RS THAT
R None. ARE NO LONGER HELD
- None.
During the last five years:
France
- None.
Abroad
- None.

French listed companies

14.1.2.2 Balance in the Composition of the Supervisory Board

In order to comply with the Company's Bylaws, a$ ineeting on October 9, 2013 the
Supervisory Board accepted the resignation of MaiMVourch effective as of November 26,
2013. The Combined General Meeting of the Compafyiareholders held on November 4,
2013 appointed three new members to the SupervBoayd: Francoise Leroy (appointed for a
term of two years) and Gérard Buffiere (appointed d& term of two years) as independent
members, and Jean-Philippe Delsol (appointed ferra of one year), proposed by SID. Pursuant
to Article 26 of the Bylaws and Article 10 of th@&d’s Internal Regulations, the Shareholders’
Meeting also appointed Eric La Bonnardiére to thpe®visory Board as an observer for a term
of four years.

In addition, the Shareholders’ Meeting of NovemieR013 voted for the early renewal of the
terms of Ms. Sonia Bonnet-Bernard, an independeaamiper (appointed for four years) and of
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Messrs. Bernard-André Deconinck (appointed forehyears), Eric Deconinck (appointed for
three years), Jacques Garaialde (appointed for jmars) and Josselin de Roquemaurel
(appointed for four years) as members of the Sugpamnw Board. The terms were proposed in
order to permit the rolling renewal of the membefr¢he Supervisory Board, in accordance with
the Afep-Medef Code and Article 18 of the ComparBsgaws.

The Supervisory Board ensured that the selectiahethree new members complemented the
Board’s current composition so as to reflect a it of skills as well as balanced representation
of men and women, in proportions that comply witl kegal requirements in effect since January
1, 2014. As of December 31, 2013, women represe2f2éa of the members of the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board is currently contiguio work towards gender balance, with the
objective that women will represent 40% of its menship by 2017, in accordance with the
Afep-Medef Code.

Furthermore, with these new nominations, the Sugpery Board has three independent members
in addition to the six members of the Supervisoaf@l appointed on the proposal of the
Company'’s two main shareholders. Thus, one-thirthefmembers of the Supervisory Board are
considered independent under the criteria set fartArticles 17-19 of the Company’s Bylaws
and Article 1 of the Supervisory Board’s Intern@grlations.

14.1.3 Members of the Executive Committee

14.1.3.1 Executive Committee

The composition of the Group’s Executive Commiiteas follows:

Michel Giannuzzi,Chief Executive Officer;

Fabrice BarthélemyChief Financial Officer;

Vincent Lecerf,Executive Vice President of Human Resources;

Antoine PrévostExecutive Vice President of Operations;

Stéphanie CoutureGroup General Counsel,

Anne-Christine AyedExecutive Vice President, Research, InnovationEmdronment;

Remco TeulingsPresident, Tarkett EMEA,

Slavoljub Martinovic, President, Tarkett Eastern Europe;

Jeff Buttitta, President, North America; and

Eric Daliere, President, Tarkett Sports.

14.1.3.2 Biographical Information about the Members of thegltive Committee

Michel Giannuzzi,Chief Executive Officer (see Section 14.1.1, “Magmgnt Board”).

Fabrice BarthélemyChief Financial Officer (see Section 14.1.1, “Mgement Board”).
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Vincent Lecerf, Executive Vice President, Group Human Resourceg (Section 14.1.1,
“Management Board”).

Antoine Prévost43, French, is the Group’s Executive Vice Predidé®perations, a position he
has held since 2011. He held different managenaltipns with Vallourec between 1995 and
2011. He holds a degree from theole Nationale Supérieure des Mines de Paris

Stéphanie Coutured4, Canadian, is the Group General Counsel andéas with the Group
since 2000. She was previously a lawyer in thd eivil administrative courts of Canada and was
in-house counsel for Unibroue. She holds a degma the University of Montréal and has been
a member of the Quebec bar since 1993.

Anne-Christine Ayed, 52, French-Canadian, is the Executive Vice Presid# Research
Innovation & Environment, a position she has hefttes 2009. Previously, she held various
managerial and R&D positions with Dow ChemicalsSwitzerland, Germany and the United
States. She has a doctorate in polymer chemistry.

Remco Teulings43, Dutch, has been President of the EMEA divisimte December 2012. He
was the Marketing Director and then the Managinge&or of Central Europe for Knauf
Insulation from 2006 to 2012. He received a Masiarsociology from the University of
Amsterdam, a Bachelor's degree in economics andva®.A from the Asian Institute of
Technology.

Slavoljub Martinovic, 43, Serbian, has been President of the Group'seEag&urope division
since January 2013. Previously, he worked for &intédrom 1996 until its acquisition by the
Group in 2002. He holds a degree from the Novi Bachnological Faculty.

Jeff Buttitta, 66, American, has been the President of the Granpith America division since

2005. Previously, he was the Managing Directoratinsonite from 1990 until its acquisition by
the Group in 2005. He holds an accounting degrem fBaldwin Wallace College (United
States).

Eric Daliere, 46, American, has been the President of the Tafgedits division since 2009.
Previously, he spent ten years working on complmjepts for KKR Capstone, after having
started with the Boston Consulting Group. He resgian M.B.A from the J.L. Kellogg School of
Management of Northwestern University

14.1.3.3 Meetings

The Group’s Executive Committee meets monthly teiene the Group’s operational and
financial performance and to discuss strategic yrtsland business operations.

14.2 STATEMENT RELATING TO THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD
Conflicts of Interest

To the Company’s knowledge, other than the famdiationships among Didier Deconinck
(Chairman and Member of the Supervisory Board) nBef-André Deconinck (Member of the
Supervisory Board) and Eric Deconinck (Member &f 8upervisory Board), as well as between

these three members of the Supervisory Board aicd_BrBonnardiére (observer), their nephew,
there are no family relationships among the Comisanificers.
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To the Company’s knowledge, over the course ofpghst five years: (i) none of the above
persons has been convicted of fraud; (ii) nondefabove persons has been associated with any
bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation; (iii) nocausation or official public sanctions have been
pronounced against any of the above persons bytatator regulatory authorities (including
designated professional bodies); and (iv) nonehefabove persons has been disqualified by a
court from acting as a member of the administrativeanagement or supervisory body of any
company, or from being involved in the managementperformance of business of any
company.

Independence of Members of the Supervisory Board

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Afep-MedaefeCArticle 1.1 of the Internal Regulations
of the Supervisory Board provides that at the toheach renewal or nomination of a member of
the Supervisory Board and at least once per yéar orthe publication of the Company’s annual
report, the Board must evaluate the independenceach of its members. The process for
evaluating the independence of each member of tper8isory Board was reviewed by the
Nominations and Compensation Committee at its mgedf October 9, 2013 and then by the
Supervisory Board at its meeting of the same date.

The determination of independence is discussed yenhby the Nominations and Compensation
Committee, which prepares a report relating thefetadhe Supervisory Board. Each year, the
Supervisory Board examines, based on such reperstatus of each member of the Supervisory
Board with regard to the independence criteria. Theervisory Board must inform the
shareholders of the conclusions of its analysthénannual report.

Based on this analysis, for the fiscal year endedeihber 31, 2013 and since the Company’s
initial public offering, three members of the Supsory Board are independent. Ms. Sonia
Bonnet-Bernard, Ms. Francoise Leroy, and Mr. GéRaftfiére.

In addition, this analysis showed that for thedlsgear ended December 31, 2013 and since the
Company'’s initial public offering, the Audit Comn@e includes two independent members:
Sonia Bonnet-Bernard (Chairwoman) and FrancoiseyLdfor the fiscal year ended December
31, 2013 and since the initial public offering, theminations and Compensation Committee has
two independent members: Francoise Leroy and G&affiere (Chairman).

At its meeting of September 17, 2013, the Superyif®pard evaluated the independence of
Francoise Leroy and Gérard Buffiere with regarthe criteria set forth in the Afep-Medef Code

and concluded that they were independent. For rimdoemation on the independence criteria,
see Articles 17 to 19 of the Company’s Bylaws amticke 1 of the Internal Regulations of the

Supervisory Board. As Sonia Bonnet-Bernard has baenindependent member of the

Supervisory Board since her appointment by the ansliareholders’ meeting of July 12, 2011,
her independence was reconfirmed by the Boardedirtie of her proposed renewal for a term of
four years. As a result, 33.33% of the members®Rupervisory Board are independent.

14.3 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AMONG MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS
AND SENIOR M ANAGEMENT

To the Company’s knowledge, other than as desciib&gction 14.2, “Statement Relating to the
Management Board and Supervisory Board” and ini@ect6.2, “Information on Service

Contracts Linking Members of the Management Boar8upervisory Board to the Company or
Any of Its Subsidiaries”, as of the date of thisgR&ation Document there are no potential
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conflicts of interest between the duties of the iiners of the Management Board or Supervisory
Board to the Company and their private interests.

To the Company’s knowledge and subject to the gionts of the Shareholders’ Agreement (see
Section 19.1.1, “Shareholders’ Agreement”), thexe r@o pacts or agreements of any kind with
shareholders, clients, suppliers or others purseanhich any of the members of the Company’s
Supervisory Board or Management Board has beerirppaas such.

As of the date of this Registration Document andeex as described in Section 17.2.3, “Free
Shares”, the members of the Management Board dpervisory Board have not agreed to any
restriction on their right to sell shares of then@pany, with the exception of the rules relating to
the prevention of insider trading and the recomraéinds of the Afep-Medef Code with respect
to the obligation to retain shares.
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COMPENSATION AND
BENEFITS OF SENIOR
EXECUTIVES
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15. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

15.1 COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES AND COMPANY
OFFICERS

The Company’s policy is to comply with all of thecommendations of the Corporate
Governance Code for Listed Companies of the AFEPtlae MEDEF (the “Afep-Medef Code”).

The tables below show the compensation and bengfisny kind paid to members of the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board in azimme with their offices, by (i) the
Company; (ii) companies controlled by the Compd(ii); companies controlled by companies
that control the Company; or (iv) companies thattad the Company, all within the meaning of
Article L. 233-16 of the French Commercial Codenc®i the Company belongs to a Group as of
the date of this Registration Document, this infation includes amounts due by any company in
the Group’s control structure and relating to tffece held in the Company.

15.1.1 Total Compensation of Members of the Management Bod for Fiscal Years
2012 and 2013

The table below shows compensation paid and optimus shares granted to Messrs. Michel
Giannuzzi, Fabrice Barthélemy and Vincent Lecenfirduthe fiscal years ended December 31,
2012 and 2013.

Table 1 - Summary Table of Compensation and Opti@m Shares Granted to Each Member
of the Management Board

(in euros) 2012 2013

Michel Giannuzzi, Chairman of the Management Boari

Compensation due for the ygaee Section 15.1.2) 1,754,458 1,555,689

Valuation of stock options granted during the - -

Valuation of performance shares granted durinydze 573,300 1,777,410
Total 2,327,75 3,333,09

Fabrice Barthélemy, member of the Management Board

Compensation due for the ye(see Section 15.1. 516,23( 776,25.

Valuation of stock options granted during the year - -

Valuation of performance shares granted dithe yea 200,20( 449,84¢
Total 716,430 1,226,100

Vincent Lecerf, member of the Management Board

Compensation due for the ye(see Section 15.1, 494,08: 489,64t

Valuation of stock options granted during the year - -

Valuation of performance shares granted duringydas 200,200 448,949
Total 694,283 938,595
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15.1.2 Compensation of Each Member of the Management Boarfbr Fiscal Years 2012
and 2013

The following table sets forth a breakdown of casimpensation paid to Messrs. Michel
Giannuzzi, Fabrice Barthélemy and Vincent Lecenrfirduthe years ended December 31, 2012
and 2013 into fixed, variable, and other compenagati

Table 2 - Summary Table of Cash Compensation of E&éember of the Management Board

2012 2013
(in euros) Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts
due® paid® due® paid®
Michel Giannuzzi, Chairman of the
Management Boarc
Fixed compensatidh 645,000 645,000 700,000 700,000
Variable compensatiéh 1,105,000 648,062 851,900 711,011
Exceptional compensati® - - - 62,37:
Benefits in Kind 4,458 4,458 3,789 3,789
Total 1,75445¢ 1,297,52C 1,555,689 1,477,172
Fabrice Barthélemy, member of the
Management Board and Chief Financial
Officer
Fixed compensatidh 275,385 275,385 295,000 295,000
Variable compensatiéh 238,000 161,668 178,328 146,770
Exceptional compensatih - - 300,000 300,000
Benefits in Kinc 2,84t 2,84t 2,92¢ 2,92¢
Total 51€,23C 43¢,89¢ 776,252 744,694
Vincent Lecerf, member of the Management
Board and Executive Vice President of Human
Resources
Fixed compensatic® 266,15 266,15 280,00! 280,00!
Variable compensati® 225,12 155,30: 166,741 134,81
Exceptional compensatifh - - 40,000 40,000
Benefits in Kind 2,809 2,809 2,906 2,906
Total 494,08z 424,264 489,64¢ 457,72¢

@ Gross compensation before tax.
@ Compensation due in respect of relevant fiscal,yegardless of payment date.
® Compensation paid during fiscal year.

Compensation of Michel Giannuzzi, Chairman of tren&fjement Board

In 2012 and until November 21, 2013, Mr. Giannuzd an employment contract wiociété
d’Investissement Familial€SIF), which was terminated as of the Companyisiainpublic
offering in accordance with the recommendationthefAfep-Medef Code. Since November 22,
2013, Mr. Giannuzzi has received compensationsrchpacity as Chairman of the Management
Board.

In such capacity, Mr. Giannuzzi currently receiamsannual base salary of €700,000, which will
be subject to change beginning on January 1, 20&5s also eligible for a performance-based
bonus payable no later than March 31 of the follmyear and composed of two parts:

(i) the first part is contingent on the Companythiavement of quantitative performance goals
defined at the beginning of the fiscal year by Sgpervisory Board upon proposal of the
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Nominations and Compensation Committee. For 20&se performance goals were linked to
adjusted EBITDA and operating cash flow of the @xothis part is calculated as 70% of his
base salary times a multiple between 0% and 200%tefore, to the extent these performance
goals are exceeded, Mr. Giannuzzi could receivecdamum of 140% of his base salary.

() the second part is based on Mr. Giannuzzi'hieeement of individual performance goals
defined at the beginning of the fiscal year by Sgpervisory Board upon proposal of the
Nominations and Compensation Committee. This adalculated as 30% of his base salary
times a multiple between 0% and 100%. Thereforahéoextent these performance goals are
achieved or exceeded, Mr. Giannuzi could receir@aimum of 30% of his base salary.

No exceptional compensation was awarded to Mr. i@&ian for the year ended December 31,
2012. As a result of the termination of his empleynagreement, Mr. Giannuzzi received
payment for his remaining 2013 paid vacation, whhagment is included in Table 2 - Summary
Table of Compensation of Each Member of the ManaggnBoard (Table 2 of the AMF
Recommendation) under “Exceptional Compensation”.

Mr. Giannuzzi also benefits from a company car.

Mr. Giannuzzi will receive an additional €300,00énkis to be paid in November 2017, provided
that he remains within the Group until the paynuate.

Compensation of Fabrice Barthélemy

Mr. Barthélemy receives no compensation for hiseduas a member of the Management Board,
but is instead compensated for his role as Chiwdrigial Officer of the Group.

Mr. Barthélemy has an employment contract withGmenpany. Under this contract, he receives
fixed compensation as well as variable compensdias®ed on award criteria that are reviewed
annually by the Nominations and Compensation Cotemjitand the amount of which is fixed by
the Supervisory Board upon such Committee’'s prdpoSaventy percent of his variable

compensation depends on the Group’s achievemeogrtdin economic performance measures
based on adjusted EBITDA and operating cash flow, 80% depends on the achievement of
individual objectives. Mr. Barthélemy's variablenapensation may vary between 0% and 85% of
his fixed compensation depending on the achieverotmiiese targets set by the Supervisory
Board.

No exceptional compensation was awarded to Mr.hHédetny for the year ended December 31,
2012. In 2013, Mr. Barthélemy received exceptic@mhpensation of €300,000 for his essential
contribution to the success of the Company’s ihfizblic offering. This bonus was fixed by the
Chairman of the Management Board following the recwndations of the Nominations and
Compensation Committee, which had voted on theestibjt its meeting of September 9, 2013.
Mr. Barthélemy also benefits from a company car.

Compensation of Vincent Lecerf

Mr. Lecerf receives no compensation for his dutie® member of the Management Board, but is
instead compensated for his role as Executive Fiesident, Group Human Resources.
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Mr. Lecerf has an employment contract with the Canmyp Under this contract, he receives fixed
and variable compensation based on award critesizare reviewed annually by the Nominations
and Compensation Committee, and the amount of wkifiked by the Supervisory Board upon
such Committee’s proposal. Seventy percent of lidable compensation depends on the
Group’s achievement of certain economic performaneasures based on adjusted EBITDA and
operating cash flow of the Group, and 30% depemndhe achievement of individual objectives.
Mr. Lecerf's variable compensation may vary betwéét and 85% of his fixed compensation
depending on the achievement of these targety/sbelSupervisory Board.

No exceptional compensation was awarded to Mr. ifdoethe year ended December 31, 2012.
In 2013, Mr. Lecerf received exceptional compemsatf €40,000 for his contribution to the

success of the Company'’s initial public offerindhis’ bonus was fixed by the Chairman of the
Management Board following the recommendations lef Nominations and Compensation
Committee, which had voted on the subject at itsting of September 9, 2013.

Mr. Lecerf also benefits from a company car.

15.1.3 Fees and other Compensation Received by Members thfe Supervisory Board
for Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013

The following table sets forth the attendance faed other compensation received by members
of the Supervisory Board. At the shareholders’ ingevf May 30, 2012, the maximum amount
of attendance fees for 2012 was fixed at €35,0000fawhich was granted to Ms. Bonnet-
Bernard in exchange for her service as ChairwonhidmeoAudit Committee. At the shareholders’
meeting of November 4, 2013, the total amount ofuah attendance fees for Supervisory Board
members was set at €450,000, until otherwise redohOn October 9, 2013, subject to the vote
of the shareholders’ meeting, the Supervisory Baktegrmined the allocation of this amount as
follows:

- a base amount of €35,000 per year is allocatechth ef the members of the
Supervisory Board, with each absence from a boagéting resulting in a
deduction of €3,000 from such amount;

- an additional €35,000 is allocated to the Chairwfthe Supervisory Board;

- an additional €10,000 is allocated to the Vice @han of the Supervisory Board,;

- €5,000 per year is allocated to each member of ezfchhe specialized
committees of the Supervisory Board, with each atsefrom a committee
meeting resulting in a deduction of €1,000 fromhsamount; and

- an additional €15,000 and €10,000 are allocatethéoChairman of the Audit

Committee and the Chairman of the Nominations aoih@2nsation Committee,
respectively.

This allocation will remain in effect until a deiga to the contrary by the Supervisory Board or
reduction of the global amount allocated by the Gany’s shareholders’ meeting.
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Table 3 - Summary Table of Compensation of Each Mmamof the Supervisory Board

Members of the Supervisory Board Gross Amounts Paid During  Gross Amounts Paid During
Fiscal Year 2012(in euros) Fiscal Year 2013(in euros)

Sonia Bonnet-Bernard
Attendance Fe« 35,00( 36,97
Other Compensation - -

Bernard-André Deconinck

Attendance Fees - 3,945

Other Compensation 120,185 122,786"@
Didier Deconinck

Attendance Fees - 6,904

Other Compensatic 117,100 122,78(V@
Eric Deconinck

Attendance Fe - 3,452

Other Compensatic 60,28 69,2611

Jacques Garaialde
Attendance Fees - 3,945
Other Compensatic - -

Josselin de Roguemaurel
Attendance Fe« - 3,94t
Other Compensatic - -

Francoise Leroy
AttendanceFee: - 4,43¢
Other Compensation - -

Gérard Buffiere
Attendance Fe - 4,93
Other Compensation - -

Jear-Philippe Delso
Attendance Fees - 3,156
Other Compensation - -

@ Compensation paid bociété d’'Investissement Familig®IF).
@ Compensation paid yociété d’Investissement DeconifskD).

15.1.4 Stock Subscription or Purchase Options Granted Durnig 2013 to Each Member
of the Management Board by the Company or Any GrougEntity

No stock subscription or purchase options weretgohto members of the Management Board in
2013.
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Table 4 - Stock Subscription or Purchase Optionsa@ted During 2013 to Each Member of
the Management Board by the Company or Any GrouptiBn

Name of executive No. and date of Optiontype Valuation of the Number of Exercise price  Exercise

officer plan (subscription or options according options allocated period
purchase) to the method during the
used for financial year
consolidated
financial
statements

Michel Giannuzzi - - - - - R
Fabrice Barthélemy - - - - - -
Vincent Lecerf - - - - - R
Total - - - - R .

15.15 Stock Subscription or Purchase Options Exercised Ding 2013 by Each
Member of the Management Board

Not applicable.

Table 5 - Stock Subscription or Purchase Optionsdesised During 2013 by Each Member of
the Management Board

Name of executive officer No. and date of plan Number of options exerciset Exercise price
during the fiscal year

Michel Giannuzzi - - -
Fabrice Barthélemy - - -
Vincent Lecerf - - R
Total - - R

15.1.6 Performance Shares Allocated to Company Officers Ding 2013
The following table sets forth information on perfmnce shares, all non-qualifying (that is to

say, not falling within the scope of Articles L.2297-1 et seq. of the French Commercial Code),
that were awarded to members of the Company’s Mamagt Board in 2013:
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Table 6 - Performance Shar€sAllocated During the Year to Each Company Officey lthe
Company or by Any Group Company

Name of company No. and date of Number of  Valuation of the Vesting Date  Availability Performance

officer plan shares allocatec shares according Date conditions
during the to the method
year? used for the
consolidated
financial
statements
Plan No. 4—
Michel Giannuzzi® [10/9/1: 61,29( 1,777,410 July 1,201 | July 1,201 @
Plan No. 4—
Fabrice Barthélemy [10/9/13 15,512 449,848 July1,201p  July 1, 2016 @
Plan No. 4—
Vincent Lecerf 10/9/13 15,481 448,949 July 1, 201p July 1, 2016 @
Total 92,283 2,676,207

O The Group has put in place a long-term incentiaa fpbr senior executives and employees (the “200®'). The purpose of the

plan is to give certain executive officers and eaypes of the Group an economic interest in the umederm growth of the
Group and in its future results. For this reasbe, éxecutive officers and employees who are beasgées of the plan were
granted performance shares, subject to the foligwonditions: (i) remaining with the Group duringhaee-year vesting period
and (ii) achievement of performance criteria, stiht the total number of shares delivered will béreen 0 and 1.5 times the
number of shares originally granted, dependinghendegree to which the Company achieves its pedioce objectives. These
objectives are based on the Group’s net debt ajstad EBITDA over the 2013-2016 period. The granade in December
2013 will vest in July 2016.

On the vesting date, the Company has the righayobeneficiaries a cash equivalent instead of théepence shares due to them
pursuant to the 2013 LTIP.

For so long as he remains Chairman of the ManageBward, Mr. Giannuzzi is required to own the eauéwt of 50% of the
shares of the Company granted to him in conneetitinthe Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), after axpact.

)

®

15.1.7 Performance Shares Becoming Available During 2013of Each Company
Officer

Table 7 - Performance Sharddecoming Available During 2013 for Each Company @fér

Due to their various vesting and retention periaus, performance shares belonging to the
company officers became available — that is to sagsferable on the markein 2013.

15.1.8 History of Allocation of Stock Subscription or Purchase Options

No stock subscription or purchase options weretgrhduring the fiscal years ended December
31, 2011, 2012 or 2013.

No stock subscription or purchase option plan iefiect as of the date of this Registration
Document.

Table 8 - History of Allocations of Stock Subscrigt or Purchase Options - Information on
Subscription or Purchase Options

Plan No. 1 Plan No. 2 Plan No. 3 Plan No. 4

Date of shareholders’ meeting........ccccocuvevueenns - - - -
Date of Management Board meef...........cc....... - - - -
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Total number of shares that may be subscribed for
or purchased, including the number that may be

subscribed for or purchased by: - - - -

The Company Officers - - - -
- Michel Giannuzzi - - - -
- Fabrice Barthélemy - - - -
-Vincent Lecerf ..o e - - - -
- SoniaBonne-Bernarc..........ccocevveereenesiennennes - - - -
- Bernarc-André Deconinc.............cccou..... - - - -
- Didier Deconingl..........cccoooveeviieiinceiee e - - - -
- Eric DECONINCK. ....ccuviiieeiie e - - - -
- Jacques Garaialde.........c.cocvvevee s e - - - -
- Josselin de Roquemaurel............ccccocueeemeee. - - - -
- AlaiN VOUICh ..ot - - - -
- FrangoisSe Leroy .......cccccuvvveiiieesevsmmemseveesnveens - - - -
- Gérard BUffiere .......coccooveeiiieii e - - - -
- Eric La Bonnardiére..........ccccvvvevemvceeeneenne. - - - -

Starting date for option exercise..........ccceeevveene - - - -

EXpiration date.........ccceveriieiir i e - - - -

Subscription or purchase price........ccccceevvieveenns - - - -

Terms of exercise (where the plan includes several

TrANCNES ... - - - -

Number of shares subscribed as of the date of this

Registration DOCUME.........cccvvvvieviieeieieieenieenn, - - - -

Cumulative number of stock subscription or

purchase options canceled or expired............... - - - -

Subscription or purchase options remaining at the

end of the fiscal Ye ......cccoocevveiiiiiiiiie e, - - - -

15.1.9 Stock Subscription or Purchase Options Granted tohe Top Ten Employees

No stock subscription or purchase options weretgrhduring the fiscal years ended December
31, 2011, 2012 or 2013.

No stock subscription or purchase option plan iefiect as of the date of this Registration
Document.
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Table 9 - Stock Subscription or Purchase Optionsa@ted to the Top Ten Employees

Total number of Average weighted Plan
options price
granted/shares
subscribed or
purchased

Options granted during the year, by the issuertgnany group
company to the ten employees of the issuer or amypgcompany R R -
awarded the largest number of options (overallréyu

Options on the issuer and the companies previgusiytioned exercised
during the year by the ten employees of the isandrsuch companies
who purchased or subscribed for the greatest nuoflaptions (overall
figure)

15.1.10 Allocations of Free Shares

Table 10 — History of Allocations of Free Shares

Table 10, “History of Allocations of Free Sharesin be found in Section 17.2.3, “Free Shares”.

15.1.11 Employment Agreements, Retirement Payments, and Dapure Compensation
of Members of the Management Board

Table 11 - Employment Agreements, Retirement Payteeand Departure Compensation of
Members of the Management Board

Members of the Management Board  Employment  Supplemental Pensiol Severance or other Compensation under
Agreement Plan benefits due or likely a non-compete clause
to become due as a
result of termination
or change of office

Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

Michel Giannuzzi®

Chairman of the Management Board
Beginning of term: 11/26/2013

End of term: 11/26/2016

Fabrice Barthélemy

Member of the Management Board and

Chief Financial Officer v v v v
Beginning of term: 11/26/2013

End of term: 11/26/2016

Vincent Lecerf

Member of the Management Board and

Executive Vice President of Humr

Resources;

Beginning of term: 11/26/2013

End of term: 11/26/20:

@ Mr. Giannuzzi had an employment agreement v@triété d'Investissement Familia{81F), which was assigned to the
Company in connection with the merger of SIF ifte Company. Effective as of the initial public offg, this employment
agreement was terminated by Mr. Giannuzzi's regignan order to comply with the recommendationstted Afep-Medef
Code. The arrangements described in this Sectioh.115 “Employment Agreements, Retirement Paymaeants, Departure

v v v v
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Compensation of Members of the Management Boamltre terms that apply to Mr. Giannuzzi in his cityaas Chairman of
the Management Board.
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Supplemental Pension Plan
No members of the Management Board benefit fronplempental pension plans.

Severance or other benefits due or likely to becdoeas a result of termination or change of
office

Subject to the performance requirements definedvibeMr. Giannuzzi will be entitled to a
severance payment equal to two years of his grase kalary and bonus during the twelve
months prior to his departure as Chairman of th@adement Board (including, if applicable,
pursuant to his employment contract). In the evdwatt Mr. Giannuzzi is to receive both
severance pay and the non-compete payment desdrédded, the total amount that he receives
will be limited to two years of the gross base saénd bonus received during the twelve months
prior to his departure as Chairman of the Managem®eard (including, if applicable, pursuant to
his employment contract).

Performance is measured by the extent of achievieafeannual performance goals defined by
the Supervisory Board upon the proposal of the Matwns and Compensation Committee,
which serve as the basis for calculating varialenmensation. The amount is equal to the
average performance achieved by Mr. Giannuzzi dutiire three calendar years preceding his
departure. In the event that his departure shouatdirowithin the next three calendar years,
performance will be measured by the extent of agment of the annual performance goals used
as the basis for calculating the variable portidnhs compensation as Chairman of the
Management Board and his compensation as an engp{ege Section 15.1.2, “Compensation of
Each Member of the Management Board for Fiscal ¥2ad2 and 2013").

The severance payment is contingent on achieviff ®0100% of the performance goals (i.e.,

no payment will be made unless the performanceigoabched to the extent of at least 50% and
full payment will be received if the performanceabis achieved to the extent of 100%). The

severance payment will be calculated in strict propn to the extent of achievement of the

performance goal (for example, if the performanoalds achieved to the extent of 90%, the

severance payment will be 90% of the amount defatmxle).

Subject to achievement of the performance condifitibe Company will be required to pay this
severance payment in the event of Mr. Giannuzzircdd departure as Company officer
(including, in particular, as a result of a chanfeontrol or a disagreement as to strategy) on the
initiative of the Supervisory Board, regardlessvdfether Mr. Giannuzzi is removed or his
mandate is not renewed. This payment would notbédable in the event of serious misconduct
(defined as misconduct of such extreme seriousaess preclude remaining in office) or gross
misconduct (defined as extremely serious miscontycan officer with the intent to harm the
Company).

The conditions set forth above are consistent thighrecommendations of the Afep-Medef Code,
except as follows. The Supervisory Board chose rieuee that Mr. Giannuzzi's severance
payment would be due only in the event of his fdrakeparture, in accordance with the
recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code, withoutyéneer, limiting such events to change of
control or disagreement on strategy. The SupenyiBoard believes that, given the performance
conditions to which these payments are subjectbaoed with the exclusion of serious or gross
misconduct, these measures provide the protectimnght by the Afep-Medef Code.

Corporate Officer Unemployment Insurance
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The Company has obtained company officer unemplaymesurance on behalf of Mr.
Giannuzzi, which would cover Mr. Giannuzzi in theest of his forced departure.

Compensation Under a Non-Compete Clause

Mr. Giannuzzi benefits from a clause providing payment in the event that the non-compete
clause provided for in connection with his positiertriggered. Messrs. Barthélemy and Lecerf
also benefit from clauses providing for paymenthi@ event that the non-compete clauses in their
respective employment agreements are triggered.

Mr. Giannuzzi will receive compensation for his raympete clause in an amount equal to his
gross base salary and bonus received during theeweonths prior to his departure from his
position as Chairman of the Management Board (thioty if applicable, pursuant to his
employment contract with SIF). For more informatiaee Section 15.1.2, “Compensation of
Each Member of the Management Board for the Figeakrs 2012 and 2013". This compensation
will be payable in 24 monthly payments for the diora of the non-compete clause and will be
deducted from Mr. Giannuzzi's severance paymenth sihat the total amount received in
severance and non-compete payments will not exteedears of gross base salary and bonus
received during the twelve months preceding hisadepe. The Company has the right to waive
the non-compete clause.

Based on the non-compete clause in his contractBiithélemy would receive, each month for
twelve months, a payment equal to (i) 50% of hisrage monthly salary during the twelve
months preceding the termination of his employmemttract (assuming termination at the
Company'’s initiative) or (ii) one-third of his awae monthly salary during the twelve months
preceding the termination of his employment cortréassuming termination at his own
initiative). The Company has the right to waive tlom-compete clause.

Based on the non-compete clause in his contract, LIcerf would receive, each month for
twelve months, a payment equal to 40% of his avermgnthly salary during the twelve months
preceding the termination of his employment conitrathe Company has the right to waive the
non-compete clause.

15.2 AMOUNT OF PROVISIONS MADE OR RECORDED BY THE COMPANY OR BY ITS
SUBSIDIARIES FOR THE PAYMENT OF PENSIONS, RETIREMENT PLANS OR OTHER
BENEFITS

Members of the Management Board do not receivespagific pension benefits. Mr. Giannuzzi,
as a Company officer, and Messrs. Barthélemy anceife pursuant to their employment
agreements with the Company, benefit from the sastieement benefits as other employees of
the Company. The Company has therefore not set asig amounts for the payment of pension,
retirements or other similar benefits for the meratm# the Management Board.
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16. OPERATION OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS
16.1 TERMS OF OFFICE OF MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS

For the expiration dates of the terms of officetbé Company’s Management Board and
Supervisory Board members, see Section 14.1, “Memagt Board, Supervisory Board and
Executive Committee”.

16.2 INFORMATION ON SERVICE CONTRACTS LINKING MEMBERS OF THE
MANAGEMENT BOARD OR THE SUPERVISORY BOARD TO THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF I TS SUBSIDIARIES

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite Company is a party to an assistance
agreement with SID relating to determination of tbempany’s strategy. See Section 19.1.3,
“Assistance Agreement witlsociété Investissement Deconing@iD)” for a more detailed
description of this agreement. Pursuant to thieemgent, as the controlling shareholder and
under the guidance of its Management Board, whah tred a long and successful relationship
with the Company, SID patrticipates in defining @@mpany'’s strategy.

In addition, Tarkett and SID have entered into wiise agreement pursuant to which Tarkett
provides SID with administrative support servicesluding corporate secretary and accounting
services. See Section 19.1.2, “Service Agreemeitfit 8aciété Investissement Deconi{&kD)”

for a more detailed description of this agreement.

The agreement between the Company @acdiété d’Investissement FamiliglelF) dated March
22, 2012 was terminated on November 21, 2013 pritihe Company’s initial public offering.

16.3 OPERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Articles 11 through 16 of Tarkett's Bylaws (see t&ets 21.2.2.1 to 21.2.2.1.6), within the
framework of applicable laws and regulations, $etth the allocation of tasks among members
of management, the organization and operation efMlanagement Board, and the rights and
obligations of its members.

16.3.1 Duties and Powers of the Management Board

Subject to the powers expressly attributed by the br the Company’'s Bylaws to the
Supervisory Board or the shareholders’ meetingthade requiring the prior authorization of the
Supervisory Board, and within the limits of the pmrate purpose, the Management Board is
vested with the most extensive powers to act iniedlmstances in the name and on behalf of the
Company.

At least once per quarter, the Management Boardepts a report to the Supervisory Board.
Within three months after the close of each fisgdr, the Management Board finalizes and
delivers the annual company and consolidated fiahstatements, as well as the report to be
presented to the annual shareholders’ meetingh@éoSupervisory Board for review. It also
provides the Supervisory Board with a proposedcation of the previous year’s results.

In addition, the Supervisory Board may ask the M@naent Board at any time to provide a
report on its management and current operatiorajdition to provisional accounts, if necessary.
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The Management Board convenes the general shaegholdeeting, sets its agenda and carries
out its decisions.

The Company’s Bylaws set forth the Management Batwisions that are subject to the prior
authorization of the Supervisory Board. A list atk decisions is included in Section 21.2.2.1.5,
“Powers and Duties of the Management Board (Artidbeof the Bylaws and Article 3.2 of the
Supervisory Board'’s Internal Regulations)”.

16.3.2 Separation of Responsibilities Among Managesnt Board Members

In its dealings with third parties, the Companypd@ind by the actions of the Management Board
even where they are not within the corporate pwepasless the Company proves that the third
party knew that the action exceeded such corpgnatigose or could not have been unaware of
that fact in light of the circumstances.

Subject to Supervisory Board authorization, the tvens of the Management Board may allocate
their management tasks among themselves. Howewen, allocation shall in no event have the
effect of altering the collective nature of the Mgement Board’s management of the Company.

16.3.3 Management Board Meetings

The Management Board meets as often as necesstrg interest of the Company. It may be
convened by its Chairman or any other member byraagns, including orally. Management
Board meetings may be held by video conferencahmraneans of telecommunication.

Decisions are taken by the majority of members garesgincluding participation by video or
telephone conference) or represented.

In the event of a tie, the vote of the meeting’aighan does not prevail unless the chair of the
meeting is the Chairman of the Management Board.

Minutes are recorded in a special ledger kept atrtyistered office and are signed by the
secretary or another member of the Management Board

16.3.4 Work Performed by the Management Board Durig the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2013

The Management Board met nine (9) times in 2018. attendance rate was 100%.

Although Tarkett's Management Board did not meeirduthe remainder of 2013 following the
Company’s initial public offering, this RegistratioDocument nevertheless reports on the
Management Board’s activities throughout 2013, udilg its activities with respect to the
Company'’s initial public offering and pre-IPO reanization.

Its annual activities included the following:

- report to the Supervisory Board on the Companytiwities during the fourth quarter of 2012;

- review and closing of the company accounts foffigeal year ended December 31, 2012;

- review and closing of the consolidated accountgHerfiscal year ended December 31, 2012
and the half year ended June 30, 2013;

- proposed allocation of the 2012 results;

- management report on the Company and the Groupjraificresolutions;
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- prevention of business difficulties;
- convening the annual shareholders’ meeting of MN&y2013;
- proposed amount of attendance fees.

Its activities with respect to review of agreemeantd offices included the following:

- related-party transactions within the meaning ofickes L.225-86 et seq. of the French
Commercial Code;

- the terms of office of the members of the Superyi@oard;

- authorization to enter into a service agreemert @I for 2013.

Its activities with respect to the Company’s ifipablic offering included the following:

- Tarkett's pre-IPO reorganization;

- the decision to list the Company’s shares;

- the conversion of preferred shares into ordinagres$ and the related modification to the
Company'’s Bylaws;

- the division of the par value of Tarkett's shargsfdur and the related modification to the
Company’s Bylaws;

- the mechanism for determining that the conditioacpdent of the definitive listing of the
Company'’s shares on Euronext Paris had been édifill

- the issuance of new preferred shares in connegtitin the liquidation of Tarkett's share
grant plan (“Management Equity Plan” or “MEP”) o€®ber 30, 2007;

- adjustments to the rights of the beneficiaries afkétt's 2011, 2012 and 2013 long-term
incentive plans (“LTIPs”).

16.4 OPERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

On November 21, 2013, pursuant to Articles 17 toc23he Company’'s Bylaws, Tarkett's
Supervisory Board adopted Internal Regulations gorg its organization and operation and the
rights and responsibilities of its members. Thesimal Regulations follow best practices, in
particular the recommendations of the Afep-Medeti€owith respect to ensuring compliance
with fundamental principles of corporate governafdeey may be modified at any tie by vote of
the Supervisory Board.

16.4.1 Duties and Powers of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board continuously oversees the dgament Board’s management of the
Company as provided for by the law, the Company&Bs and the Internal Regulations of the
Supervisory Board and its committees. In particulae Supervisory Board is invested with the
following specific powers:

» verification and review of the company and consdbkd interim and annual financial
statements prepared by the Management Board;

» authorization to the Management Board, with thétrigp delegate within limits set by the
Supervisory Board, to sell real property, to stlbaa portion of its equity investments, and
to give security as well as deposits, backing @rgntees in the name of the Company.

» preparation of reports for the Shareholders’ Megtin

o Each year at the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Supenmyi Board presents its
comments on the Management Board’s report and @ecdmpany and consolidated
financial statements for the previous year.

0 The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is requir@chttach an additional report
regarding the conditions under which the work oé tSupervisory Board was
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prepared and organized, as well as the internaraloprocedures put in place by
Tarkett.
e Prior Approval of Key Management Board Decisions
o A list of Management Board decisions requiring pigproval of the Supervisory
Board is included in Article 16 of the Company'sl8ys (see Section 21.2.2.1.5,
“Powers and Duties of the Management Board (Aidé of the Bylaws and 3.2 of
the Supervisory Board'’s Internal Regulations”)

16.4.2 Organization and Operation of the Supervisory Board
16.4.2.1 Information Provided to the Supervisory Board

Following their appointment, on January 30, 2014, Supervisory Board’'s new members (Ms.
Francoise Leroy, Messrs. Gérard Buffiére and JdalipPe Delsol) and Mr. Eric La Bonnardiére
were provided with additional training at the Sedatustrial site regarding the Company and its
subsidiaries, their activities and their industry.

Either the Chairman or the Vice Chairman provides members of the Supervisory Board,
sufficiently in advance, with the information oralonents necessary to enable them to properly
perform their duties.

In addition, at least once per quarter, the ManagerBoard presents a report to the Supervisory
Board on the conduct of the Company’s business.

Finally, members of the Supervisory Board are imed by the Management Board or the
Chairman of the Management Board as to eventsamsactions that are significant for the
Tarkett Group.

16.4.2.2  Supervisory Board Meetings

Supervisory Board meetings may be convened by agng) including email, with at least five
business days’ notice. Meetings take place at thp@ny’s registered office or at any other
location indicated in the notice of meeting. Thatice of meeting must contain the meeting
agenda.

The Supervisory Board may validly deliberate offilgtileast one-half of its members are present.
Decisions are by a majority of members preseneprasented. Each member of the Supervisory
Board has one vote and may not represent morecti@other member. In the event of a tie, only

the vote of the Chairman of the Supervisory BoaaVails; the vote of the meeting’s chair does

not prevail unless the chair of the meeting isGhairman of the Supervisory Board.

Deliberations of the Supervisory Board are recorgechinutes prepared pursuant to applicable
legal requirements and signed by the meeting’srerad at least one member of the Supervisory
Board, or, if the meeting’s chair is unavailable tlivo members of the Supervisory Board.

Copies or extracts of Supervisory Board minutescaréfied by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, the Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Boardgny member of the Management Board.
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16.4.2.3  Supervisory Board Compensation

The shareholders’ meeting may allocate an annualiatrof attendance fees to members of the
Supervisory Board as compensation for their fumstio Based on the recommendation of the
Nominations and Compensation Committee, the SupenyiBoard (i) freely allocates the
attendance fees allocated by the general shareboldeeeting among its members; (ii)
determines the amount of compensation paid to the@r@an and the Vice Chairman; and (jii)
may, in addition, allocate exceptional compensatiooertain of its members for assignments or
offices entrusted to them as it deems appropriate.

16.4.2.4  Observers on the Supervisory Board

The general shareholders’ meeting and the Supeywvidmard may each nominate observers who
may be natural persons or legal entities and irumber not to exceed two. Observers are
appointed for a term of four (4) years. They muesteive notice of each Supervisory Board
meeting pursuant to the same terms and conditietisose that apply to members of such Board.
Moreover, they must comply with the provisions lo¢ internal Regulations of the Supervisory
Board. Mr. Eric La Bonnardiére has been an obsarmehe Supervisory Board since November
26, 2013.

16.4.3 Evaluation of the Organization and Operation of theSupervisory Board

In accordance with Article 8 of its Internal Regdidas, Tarkett's Supervisory Board conducts a
self-evaluation once a year, following the repoft tbe Nominations and Compensation
Committee. This evaluation is carried out on theideof the responses to an individual
anonymous guestionnaire sent to each member &upervisory Board.

Moreover, a formal evaluation is carried out asteavery three years, either under the direction
of an independent member of the Supervisory Boawith the help of an external consultant.

For 2013, the evaluation of the composition, opensand organization of the Supervisory Board
and its committees was not carried out prior tingsof the Company’s shares on Euronext Paris
and the adoption of the Internal Regulations cglifor such evaluation. At its meeting on
February 17, 2014, the new Supervisory Board dgsmlists operation and performance. At the
time of this self-evaluation, and taking into calesation the opinion of the Nominations and
Compensation Committee, the company officers maeddlowing comment: on the basis of the
sole meeting held since the Company’s reorganizaind initial public offering, on December
17, 2013, it appears thihie Supervisory Board functioned well and that giéng required for it

to continue operating well in the future is in madtt was noted that a full evaluation would be
carried out the following year on the basis of layfear of work by the Supervisory Board and its
committees.

16.4.4  Work Performed By the Supervisory Board During the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2013

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 Stingervisory Board met twelve (12) times
pursuant to notice given in accordance with the gamy’'s Bylaws and the Board’s Internal
Regulations. The average attendance rate was 97.75%

The activities of the Supervisory Board of Tarlkasta listed company were quite limited, given
the Company’s initial public offering date of Noveer 21, 2013. Thus, a single meeting of the
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Supervisory Board was held, on December 17, 20i8wveder, this Registration Document
reports on the Supervisory Board’s activities tigloaut 2013, including its activities with respect
to the Company'’s initial public offering and pre@Peorganization.

Its annual activities included the following:

approval of the reports of the Supervisory BoardDafcember 17, 2012 as well as of
February 26, April 25, May 23, June 18, July 30pt8mber 17 and 27, October 9 and
November 21, 2013;

activity of the fourth quarter of 2012 and of tlivstf second and third quarters of 2013;
review and closing of the company and consolidatedounts for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012;

prevention of business difficulties;

renewal of the term of the Vice Chairman of the @ugory Board;

the strategic plan;

approval of the 2014 budget;

approval of “Key Decisions” and various financinsactions.

Its activities relating to approval of related-gaagreements included the following:

Engagement Letter among Tarkett, KKR Internatidflabring 2 Sarl, Deutsche Bank AG,
Paris branch, and J.P Morgan Securities plc. ;

Engagement Letter among Tarkett, KKR InternatioRlloring 2 Sarl ancKKR Capital
Markets Limited;

Underwriting Agreement among Tarkett, KKR Interoatl Flooring 2 Sarl, Deutsche Bank
AG, J.P Morgan Securities plc, HSBC France, Metmgihch International, Crédit Agricole
Corporate & Investment Bank and CommerzBank;

Assistance and Guidance Agreement between SID arichfT;

Services Agreement for Services Billed by TarketsiD;

Services Agreement for Services Billed by SIF tokég SA,

Services Agreement for Services Billed by Tarkéttt8 SID;

Escrow Agreement among SIF, Tarkett SA and the garsa

Its activities with respect to the Company’s ifipablic offering included the following:

the decision to list the Company’s shares;

nomination of two additional independent membersht Supervisory Board following the
IPO;

post-IPO attendance fees; guidelines for the gé&t-Tarkett/SID agreement;
review of future Bylaws and Internal Regulationg€amnection with the IPO;
review of financial resolutions in connection witie IPO;

the agreement as company officer of Michel Gianhimezonnection with the IPO;
Tarkett's pre-IPO reorganization;

corporate governance;

modification of the share capital;

presentation of post-IPO director and officer iasue;

adoption of the market ethics charter;

financial disclosure policy.
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16.5 SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

Pursuant to Article 22 of the Company’s Bylaws aadArticle 9 of the Supervisory Board's
Internal Regulations, the Supervisory Board mayidéedo form committees charged with
examining questions submitted by itself or its @imain.

At its meeting on September 17, 2013, the Compa8ujservisory Board decided to create two
committees — an audit committee and a nominatiorss @mpensation committee. These
committees do not replace the Management BoartheorStpervisory Board, which have sole
legal decision-making power in their respectiveaaref authority, but rather issue proposals,
recommendation and opinions in their areas of digaer

The Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Boandl és committees were adopted at the
Supervisory Board’s meeting of September 17, 2018 entered into effect on November 26,
2013. The descriptions below reflect the InternafjiRations of the committees (see Section 21.2,
“Constitutive Documents and Bylaws” for more infation on the Supervisory Board's Internal
Regulations).

16.5.1 Audit Committee

The Company’s Supervisory Board has establishedwadit Committee and set the following
rules for its internal governance.

16.5.1.1 Composition

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed fpeedod coinciding with their appointment as
members of the Supervisory Board. When selectingiipees of the Audit Committee, particular
consideration is given to their competence in tieasof finance and accounting.

Based on its Internal Regulations, the Audit Corteriis required to have between two and four
members, at least two of whom (including the Chaimjnmust be independent members of the
Supervisory Board.

As of the date of this Registration Document, ttosimittee is composed of Ms. Sonia Bonnet-
Bernard (Chairwoman), Ms. Francoise Leroy and Missélin de Roquemaurel (see Section
14.1.2, “Supervisory Board”, for biographical infeaition). Independent members represent more
than 66% of the Audit Committee. As a result, thedih Committee’s composition complies with
the Afep-Medef Code, which requires a majorityrafependent members within this committee.

The Audit Committee’s Internal Regulations provitteat the secretary may be any person
designated by the chairman of the committee or thighchairman’s approval.

16.5.1.2 Duties

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoritg tpreparation and auditing of accounting
and financial information, as well as for ensurthg efficiency of risk-monitoring and internal
control procedures to facilitate the Supervisoraiis review and approval thereof.

Accordingly, the Audit Committee’s Internal Regudeis set out its main responsibilities as
follows:
* monitoring the preparation of financial informati¢im particular, annual or interim
reports and consolidated financial statements);
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* monitoring internal control, internal audit andkrimanagement systems relating to
financial and accounting information;

e monitoring the review of the individual company ammhsolidated financial statements
by the Company’s statutory auditors; and

* monitoring the independence of the statutory auslito

The Audit Committee regularly reports to the Sufmwy Board and informs it without delay of
any difficulties that it encounters.

16.5.1.3  Operation

The Audit Committee may conduct meetings in persorvia video or telephone conference
pursuant to the same rules as the Supervisory Basngn convened by its Chairman or
secretary, so long as at least half of its memaerpresent.

The Audit Committee makes recommendations to thpe®tisory Board, indicating the number
of votes a particular matter of business has receiv

The Audit Committee meets as often as necessaryiarghy event, at least twice a year in
connection with the Group’s preparation of annual aterim financial statements. The Audit
Committee’s meetings are held prior to the meetihthe Supervisory Board and, to the extent
possible, are held at least two (2) days prior when Audit Committee’s agenda includes
examination of interim or annual financial statetseprior to their review by the Supervisory
Board.

16.5.1.4  Activities of the Audit Committee in 2013

The Audit Committee met four (4) times during 20itBparticular prior to the Supervisory Board
meetings called to approve the financial statemempared by the Management Board, and
reported on its work to the Supervisory Board.

In 2013, the Audit Committee’s work focused priradlp on reviewing (i) the Group’'s 2012
annual consolidated financial statements, (ii) tBeup’s condensed interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 3013, (iii) the 2013 audit plan, (iv) specific
line items including operating income, exceptioibas, financial and tax income, the Group’s
balance sheet, cash flows and the Group’s indebssdand (v) the Group’s annual risk mapping
exercise for 2013.

Audit Committee attendance was 100% in 2013.
16.5.2 Nominating and Compensation Committee

The Company’s Supervisory Board has establishedraihations and Compensation Committee
and set the following rules for its internal govemnoe:

16.5.2.1 Composition
The Nominations and Compensation Committee memdrerappointed for a period coinciding

with their appointment as members of the Superyi®oard. When selecting members of the
Nominations and Compensation Committee, particcdasideration is given to the independence
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of members, as well as their competence in theteteand remuneration of senior executives
and company officers for listed companies.

Based on its Internal Regulations, the Nominatiand Compensation Committee is required to
have between two (2) and four (4) members, at lwast(2) of whom (including the Chairman)
must be independent members of the SupervisorydBéa@r more information on the definition
of independence, see Articles 17 to 19 of the Bglawd Article 1 of the Supervisory Board’'s
Internal Regulations.

As of the date of this Registration Document, tf@riiations and Compensation Committee is
composed of Gérard Buffiere (Chairman), Francoiseol, Jacques Garaialde and Bernard-
André Deconinck (see Section 14.1.2, “Supervisonar@”, for biographical information).
Therefore, the composition of this committee (t&@pifidependent members out of a total of four
(4) members) does not comply with the Afep-Medefd€owhich requires a majority of
independent members (see Section 16.6, “Statenadatiiy to Corporate Governance”).

The Nominations and Compensation Committee’s lateRegulations provide that the secretary
may be any person designated by the Chairman ofCinramittee or with the Chairman’s
approval.

16.5.2.2 Duties

The Nominations and Compensation Committee is aialmed committee of the Supervisory

Board whose main function is to assist the Superyi®8oard in appointing members of the

Executive Committees of the Company and the Graspwell as in determining and regularly

reviewing the compensation and benefits awardetidoCompany’s senior executives (as such
term is defined in the Supervisory Board Internag&ations), including any deferred benefits
and/or voluntary or compulsory redundancy paymewtsrded by the Group.

Accordingly, it carries out the following functions

» proposing the appointment of independent membetheoBSupervisory Board, of the
Management Board and of the Supervisory Board'snaiti®@es, and examining and
assessing the application of non-independent menbehe Supervisory Board;

» conducting an annual assessment of the independeintee Supervisory Board
members;

» examining and proposing all aspects of and conitio the remuneration of principal
senior executives and the Group’s executive managem

* reviewing and making proposals to the SupervisargrB with respect to attendance
fees; and

e reviewing any exceptional compensation relatingiissions given by the Supervisory
Board to any of its members outside the ordinatyrs® of business.

16.5.2.3  Operation
The Nominations and Compensation Committee may uwcineetings in person or via video or
telephone conference pursuant to the same ruldme &upervisory Board, when convened by its

Chairman or secretary, so long as at least hatf ohembers are present.

The Nominations and Compensation Committee makesnmmendations to the Supervisory
Board, indicating the number of votes a particatatter of business has received.
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The Nominations and Compensation Committee meetéters as necessary and, in any event, at
least once (1) a year prior to the Supervisory Bsameeting on its members’ independence and
in advance of any Supervisory Board meeting dusiwtgch matters of Management Board
compensation or Supervisory Board attendance feetosbe decided. For more information on
the definition of independence, see Articles 171 of the Bylaws and Article 1 of the
Supervisory Board Internal Regulations.

16.5.2.4  Activities of the Nominations and Compensation Cattea during 2013

The Nominations and Compensation Committee meettinees during 2013 and reported on its
work to the Supervisory Board.

In 2013, the Nominations and Compensation Comn'étteerk focused, in particular, on (i) the
development of senior executives’ teams within eup, (i) the performance of senior
executives, (iii) the achievement of economic otiyes for senior executives and (iv) changes in
compensation.

Nominations and Compensation Committee attendamsel®0% in 2013.
16.6 STATEMENT RELATING TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company adheres to the Corporate Governancee Gad Listed Companies of the
Association Francaise des Entreprises PrivEé@d-EP”) and of theMouvement des Entreprises
de France(*"MEDEF") (hereinafter, the “Afep-Medef Code”).

The Afep-Medef Code may be consulted on the Intewte http://www.medef.com/. The
Company keeps copies of such code available tmérabers of its governing bodies at all times.

Tarkett believes that it complies with the prinefplof corporate governance defined in the Afep-
Medef Code, since the Code’s stated principlescamapatible with the organization, size and

means of the Tarkett group. The recommendations which the Company does not strictly

comply are set forth and explained below:

» Termination payments for members of the ManagenBmard (Recommendation 23.2.5,
“Termination Payments”). The performance requiretwerset by the Board must be
demanding and may not allow for the indemnificatadran executive director, unless his or
her departure is imposed, regardless of the fortmisfdeparture, and linked to a change in
control or strategy.

o As from the initial public offering, the SupervigoBoard chose to ensure that Mr.
Giannuzzi's termination payment would be due oniythe event of his forced
departure, in accordance with the recommendatidnshe Afep-Medef Code,
without, however, limiting such events to changecohtrol or disagreement on
strategy. The Supervisory Board believes that,rgthe performance requirements to
which these payments are subject, combined with dkelusion of serious
misconduct or gross negligence, these measureglprthe protections sought by the
Afep-Medef Code.

» The proportion of independent members on Nominatod Compensation Committees
(Recommendations 17.1, 18.1).
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0 The Nominations and Compensation Committee is ceagh@f four (4) members,
half of whom are independent, including the ChairmBhe current composition of
this committee (two (2) independent members oua ebtal of four (4) members)
does not comply with the Afep-Medef Code, which uiees a majority of
independent members. This composition reflectswitehes of the shareholders to
have two (2) members appointed by each of the tinzipal shareholders, each with
recognized experience on these subjects.

16.7 ORGANIZATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
16.7.1 Objectives and Frame of Reference

The Company’s risk management and internal corggdtems use a variety of methods,
procedures and actions in order to:

. identify, analyze and control risks that could/dra material effect on the assets, results,
operations or objectives of the business, whethey tare operational, commercial, legal or
financial in nature or whether they relate to caempte with laws and regulations;

. ensure operational efficiency and the efficiese of resources; and

. ensure the reliability of financial information.

The Committee has deployed an internal controlesydbased on the principles defined by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TreadwWommission (“COSQ"), described
below, which are intended to provide reasonablerasse as to achievement of the Group’s
objectives and the reliability of its financial arfnation.

16.7.2 Internal Control and Risk Management System

16.7.2.1  Organizational Framework

Tarkett's organization is decentralized, relyinglooal executives, and set in a framework that
reflects the Group’s philosophy with respect taathorganization and control.

This organizational framework relies on the foliog:

- a set of values and principles disseminated tifrout the Group whenever new employees
arrive and relayed by recurring training and reraisd These principles are embedded in the
Company’s Code of Ethics and policies on anti-tngghpliance and corruption prevention;

- the founding principles at the heart of the @rewalues, such as responsibility and exemplary
behavior, which are relayed throughout the orgainimeand the various areas of responsibility
and support;

- the harmonization of financial processes throimplementation of an integrated information
system used by the majority of the Group’s entitésl

- an internal control manual, Tarkett Risks And €ols Evaluation (“TRACE”), internal

function-specific procedures used by all of the Wps subsidiaries, as well as rules for
delegation of authority and division of duties.
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The primary participants in this system are aofed:

- Senior Management, which is ultimately respomsifoir risk management and internal
control and which relies on the following:

o] the Group and divisional finance departmentgherone hand; and
o] the operational departments (divisional presileand functional departments on the
other.

- The Audit and Internal Control Department is pHrthe Finance Department and reports
functionally to the Audit Committee. It is chargeith the following:

o] guiding the risk management and internal corgystem; and

o] ensuring compliance with Group rules at the eriiivel, evaluating risks in areas
covered by its audits and recommending improvemefasing to internal control.

The Audit and Internal Control Department alsoe®lbn a network of internal divisional auditors
who manage these procedures within their areas.

- the Audit Committee is responsible for monitoritige preparation and audit of
accounting and financial information, as well as émsuring the efficiency of risk-monitoring
and internal control procedures to facilitate thp&visory Board's review and approval thereof.

16.7.2.2  Identification and Evaluation of Risks

Risk Mapping:

In 2010, Tarkett created a risk map that is updatesty two years, or more frequently in the
event of significant changes in the environmente Phocess for identifying risks uses a three-
step method:

- First, the Audit and Internal Control Departmemstipported by outside experts,

interviews members of the Executive Committee amddmployees holding strategic positions at
the Group level and in the divisions in order teritify risks within their areas.

- The Audit and Internal Control Department theeates a synthesis of the main risks,
specifying their definition, frequency, impacts ¢suas financial, human, legal or reputational)
and the degree to which they are controlled.

- The risk map and actions plans are then revieamd approved by the Executive
Committee and presented to the Supervisory Bodnadit Committee.

In 2013, the Group’s risk map was sent to the djmral divisions (geographic zones) in order to
take regional or sectoral specificities into acdcamd to disseminate the Group’s view of its risks
more broadly throughout the Group.

The relevant departments (whether operational idivés or cross-divisional functions) prepare
actions plans based on the primary risks identified

Ongoing Monitoring:
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Risk-awareness is updated on an ongoing basisghrmonitoring procedures relating to both
competition and technology, as well as actionsggcilized departments (such as Insurance and
World Class Manufacturing) that participate in ®ight of fire, security, and environmental
risks, in particular.

Monthly activity reviews enable the Group’s opevatl entities to rapidly report information to
Group management, and facilitate the identificatadnrisks, updating of the risk map and
implementation of action plans to manage the risks.

16.7.2.3  Control Activities

Control activities are defined in the TRACE manuabr each principal process this manual
presents the major risks and objectives, as weall dascription of the related controls, applicable
to the Group as a whole. This mechanism constitsmmon reference for management of the
local entities, which is responsible for supplerimenit locally with additional control activities
for dealing with specific risks.

Self-Evaluations

The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to an anmtalrial control self-evaluation intended to
assess their compliance with the internal contrahual. The self-evaluation is approved by the
management of the relevant entities pursuant to teeponsibility for implementing internal
control and the quality of their self-evaluatiorhid self-evaluation is carried out using dedicated
software such as e-TRACE or Enablon.

All of the Group's subsidiaries are required to tiggzate. In 2013, the Group’s Tandus
subsidiaries in the U.S. and Canada were integratedhe Tarkett internal control system.

The Audit and Internal Control Department analyaed distributes a synthesis of the results to
the interested parties. The results of the sellueimn are reviewed at the divisional level with
the Group’s chief financial officer, the interndlief financial officer and internal controller for
the relevant divisions, and the Audit and Inte@ahtrol Department.

A review is also conducted for each process bydlarant Group-level department.

Action plans resulting from these reviews are immated by local management under the
responsibility of divisional or functional managemhe

Internal Control Testing and Internal Audits

Self-evaluation is supplemented by testing of kegtiols under the TRACE manual, carried out
by internal divisional controllers, as well as byteirnal audits carried out by the Audit and
Internal Control Department.

16.7.2.4  Steering

On the basis of an audit plan approved in advancthé Audit Committee, the four-member
internal audit team carried out 24 audits in 2008 audit plan is composed of repeated audits of
subsidiaries, primarily of a financial nature, asllvas of “transverse” audits with respect to an
operational process or particular risk.
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Each audit is the subject of a report that inclualesction plan prepared by the relevant entities
in order to correct any weaknesses that are disedvéAn action plan monitoring process ensures
that the identified weaknesses are corrected, eiebon:

guarterly reporting on the entities’ progres@aplementing the action plan;

- since the beginning of 2013, follow-up monitoring the division’s internal controllers
within six months following the internal audit; and

- monitoring by internal audit, if necessary, wigspect to critical matters.
Internal Control Performance Indicators

The Audit and Internal Control Department has puplace and follows a series of quarterly
internal control performance indicators, includithg rate of compliance with 50 key controls
identified by the manual, Separation of Duties ([BDrisks, progress on action plans and
coverage of tests carried out by the internal abletns.

16.7.3 Preparation and Processing of Accounting and Finanal Information
Financial information is subject to a rigorous ps& relying on the following:

- A common referencelhe financial statements are prepared in accemlavith IFRS
standards. This reference is communicated to thmuiZs subsidiaries through the Financial
Manual, supplemented by monthly instructions. Mesgpthe TRACE internal control manual
described above includes various processes thattalffe production of financial information (for
example, with respect to closing, cash, payrolpcprement, sales, inventory, fixed assets,
information technology, and consolidation).

- An integrated information system. Most of the sidlaries manage operational and
financial flows using the Group’s integrated SARimation system. The deployment of a single
financial model within SAP (“One Finance”) ensureemogenization and optimization of
practices, as well as improved control.

- A unified reporting and consolidation softwarekage. Financial information is reported
through the SAP/Business Objects Financial Conatitid (“B.O.F.C.”) tool, which is used for
all financial reporting, including budget; forecgsand monthly, quarterly, interim and annual
reports. This all-in-one system ensures consistdmetyveen internal steering and external
communications.

- Monitoring of consistency and analyses of finah@aformation. Automated monitoring
within the reporting tool; detailed activity reviewy the Group and divisional control teams; or
specific analyses, such as with respect to chaingé® scope of consolidation, currency effects
or non-recurring operations, by the Group Constilidateams ensure tight control of the
financial information produced.

The principal participants in the process are Hevs:

- The Finance Department, which relies on the eérfitmctional departments (Financial
Control, which oversees Consolidation and Groufx Rlanagement, Treasury, Taxes, and Audit
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and Internal Control) and the divisional financegakéments, which supervise the subsidiaries’
financial controllers.

- The external auditors, who, through their worntribute to improving the consolidated
account preparation process. The combination oitsofl the individual company accounts and
audits of the consolidated accounts ensures brmaet@ge of the Group.

The reliability of the Group’s accounting and ficéal information depends on the following:

- A strategic three-year plan, led by the Chairmitihe Management Board and the Group
Chief Financial Officer, in coordination with theerational divisions. This plan enables the
Group to set annual strategic goals and the relatedial financial objectives. This plan is
approved annually by the Supervisory Board.

- An annual budgetary process. This process, lethédyGroup and divisional management
teams, focuses on operational financial aggregateB as operating result, changes in working
capital requirements and investment in tangible iatehgible fixed assets. The financial items
are consolidated month by month using the samethaolis used for consolidation of real results
(Business Objects Financial Consolidation) withaanparable level of granularity, permitting

monthly and immediate comparison of monthly perfance of operational financial aggregates
with monthly budget objectives. The annual budggich is generally prepared during the fourth
guarter for the following year, is reviewed and mwed by the Supervisory Board in December.

- Three forecasts processes per year: these ftsdfoass on the same financial aggregates
as the annual budget and therefore use the sarselictztion methods in B.O.F.C, with the same

level of granularity. These forecasts are genenadisformed in March, June and September and
are based on the real results for the months alreaded. Their purpose is to estimate the

remaining months’ results through the end of tHeviant fiscal year in order to compare the re-

estimated year with the annual budgetary objectiVegse forecasts are reviewed and approved
by the Group’s Management Board.

- Complete monthly closings, including a full batarsheet, income statement through net
income, and cash flow, reported and consolidatethénsame way as the annual and interim
accounts in Business Objects Financial Consolidatio

- Monthly performance review meetings: these megstined by the Chairman of the
Management Board, the Chief Financial Officer dmel Group Financial Controller, are carried
out for all operational divisions, which are getigreepresented by their chairman and their chief
financial officer. Variance analyses (such as witspect to volume, product mix, currency
effects, effect of cost of purchases and cost tefssandustrial productivity, effects of monthly
payments, non-recurring items, etc.) are reviewedrder to understand the main drivers of the
month’s performance and to define action plangufture months.
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17. EMPLOYEES
17.1 OVERVIEW
17.1.1 Number and Breakdown of Employees

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had 10.850 eyeplky as compared with 10.670 as of
December 31, 2012 and 9,152 as of December 31, 204 increase is due in particular to the
Group’s acquisition of Tandus in 2012.

The Group paid €507.5 million in salaries in 2048,compared to €445.7 million in 2012 and
€400.8 million in 2011.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s employees Vee@ed in France, Sweden, Belgium, the
United Kingdom, Italy, Luxembourg, Germany, Spafortugal, Greece, Turkey, Norway,
Finland, Denmark, Poland, Brazil, Australia, Chiadia, Singapore, Russia, Serbia, Bosnia,
Hungary, Belarus, Ukraine, Kazakhstan, the UnitedeS, Canada and the Netherlands.

The table below sets forth the number of employddébe Group as of December 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 by professional category.

December 31,

Professional Category 2011 2012 2013
AdMINISIratiVE ..o 692 84¢ 847
Research and development............cc.ooeceemenennnne 194 255 265
Sales and marketing ........cccoocevvervesiieesiee s 1,764 1,885 1,927
[ = 11 (01 11T USRI 4,423 5,128 5,159
WaArENOUSES ......coeeiiiiiiiiieee ettt 2,078 2,554 2,652
TOtAL et e 9,152 10,670 10,850

The table below sets forth the number of employddéle Group as of December 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 by geographic region.

December 31,

Geographic Region 2011 2012 2013
EMEA ... 3,802 3,750 3,723
of which France...........cccoovvvvn e 984 977 961
NOIth AMEFICaA......eeviiiiieecciie e 1,851 3,25¢ 3,18t
IS e ettt 3,172 3,34¢ 3,49(
Latin AMErICaA.......ccvieciie e e et 207 188 211
ASIA-PACITIC ...eveeiiiiciii e 120 129 241
10 ] = LUt 9,152 10,67( 10,85(

The table below shows the percentage of womeneititoup’s workforce over the last two fiscal
years.
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December 31,

Percentage of women 2012 2013
Percentage of women in the total workforce ........ 27% 26%
Percentage of women in management................. 18% 17%

The table below shows the change in the breakdofvthe Group’s workforce by type of
employment contract over the last two fiscal yeéffie category “Other contracts” includes
temporary contracts, which are of different legalis depending on the country.)

December 31,

Percentage by contract type 2012 2013
Open-ended CONIACES .........ccoveerive o e seeeseeesieeenee 95.7% 96.2%
Other CONIACES ........oveiieiieiiie e 4.3% 3.8%

The table below shows the change in the age steicfupermanent employees over the last two
fiscal years.

December 31,

Age of Employees

2012 2013
LeSS than 20........cooviiiiecieeceee e et 0.5% 0.3%
20 = B0 i o ettt ettt 16.0% 16.3%
BL - 40 e ettt 28.8% 28.9Y
A1 = 55—ttt e 29.1% 28.5%
LN A O RS UPPRRTRIN 20.8% 20.9%
60 and ADOVE .......coviviiiiiiiiie e 4.8% 5.2%

17.1.2 Employment and Working Conditions

The table below shows the change in the workfores the last three fiscal years.

Employment 2011 2012 2013
Turnover in open-ended and fixed-term emploffées Not available 10.6% 13.4%
Hire rate including open-ended and fixed-term 12.4% 11.5% 14.4%
EMPIOYEES ...t et

Percentage of disabled employees / total emplafprees

countries where such reporting is authorized).......... 1.5% 1.9% 1.4%

@ Excluding internal transfers.

The table below shows the change in absenteeisntloédast two fiscal years.

Working conditions 2012 2013
Rate of absenteeidh..........c.cocooveveveieeeeeeeeees e 2.4% 2.5%

@ Number of days absent out of the total theoreticahber of working days.

The table below shows the evolution of workpladetyeover the last three fiscal years.
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Workplace safety 2011 2012 2013

Number of accidents leading to an absence from wark 58 58 42
Frequency rafl..........ccoooovieeeeeeeeeseeee e eemeems s 5.5 35 25
Number of fatal aCCIdents .............corveeemmreee s 0 0 0

@ In number of accidents (resulting in at least dag of lost work) per million hours worked.

One of the Group’s key priorities is the health asafety of its employees. The Group
implements procedures and action plans to iderdggess and mitigate the main risks associated
with its activities.

The Group offers its employees training with resgedealth and safety that is adapted to their
own work environment and related hazards. Throtgtraining program, the Group increases
awareness to prevent occupational risks and eesaptoyee safety in the workplace.

The Group has also developed two programs to ingpthe safety of its production sites: the
World Class Manufacturing (“WCM?”) program and thaf&y Action Plan.

Under the WCM program, which was launched in Felyr@2@09, the Group trains its employees

in new production techniques that are more sedtmgloyees trained through this program are

then asked to train employees at other produciies.sThe Group has found these results to be
encouraging and has noted a significant reductiothé number of accidents at its production

sites.

Under the Safety Action Plan, in 2008, the Groupaamted a security expert to conduct an audit
of the operations and behavior of production liperators within the Group’s 30 plants. The
Safety Action Plan was then prepared, in coordimativith employees, to establish a list of
operational standards and best practices to adotbtei workplace. The implementation of this
plan has divided the frequency rate of accidentsfday (including falls, collisions, etc.),
decreasing from 12.8 per one million hours worked0d08 to 2.5 in 2013.

Through these initiatives, the Group has managedgidaificantly decrease accidents at its
production sites. Accidents with lost work time wérom 58 in 2012 to 42 in 2013, a 27.6%
reduction.

Professional Diversity

The Group maintains a policy to respect professidieersity. It conducts country-by-country
outreach plans, including through the Group’s Cofl&thics, and seeks to maintain a dialogue
with social partners in certain countries (includiRrance) on topics such as disabilities, age
discrimination and gender diversity.

This policy has allowed the Group to promote peayth disabilities within the Group.

The Group also pays particular attention to gemtideersity. The number of female executives
now represents 17% of the Group's top 150 execsitiiavo women are members of the
Executive Committee, whereas in 2010 there weriemale members.

This policy has been recognized by the Group’s eygads; in responding to the Group’s internal

survey, 65% of participants believed the Company aatively supporting diversity in the
workplace (with only 11 % of participants takingegative view).
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17.1.3 Training

The Group seeks to constantly develop the skillgsoEmployees. One of the ways the Group
accomplishes this is through a review process wlyeristomized plans are developed for
employees. 2.900 employees completed the revieeepsoin 2013, as compared to 680 in 2010.

The Group has also implemented other trainingaitivtes, including the following:

» the Manager@Tarkett program, a four-day managedaling seminar that over 900
employees have completed;

» the Project Management@Tarkett program, which 70pleyees have completed;
and

e training associated with the WCM program.

In 2013, the total number of employees trained 8496 and the number of training hours was
240,518. At constant scope of consolidation, thelmer of employees trained in 2013 increased
from 38% of the Group’s workforce in 2011 to 60920i.3. In 2012, the increase in training was
primarily due to the Group’s deployment of the WQivbgram and its implementation of the
SAP platform. These efforts continued in 2013.

This increase reflects the Group’s desire to enddme skills of its employees.

Fiscal Year
Training 2011 2012 2013
Employees that completed training programs ................ 3,321 6,523 6,496
Total number of training hours ...........ccoooeieiin i 76,089 272,536 240,518

17.1.4 Employee Relations

Employee representative bodies exist within eadisigiary of the Group in accordance with
applicable regulations. The rights, obligations &mtttioning of these bodies vary from country
to country, depending on applicable local legiskati

The Group has a European Works Council, the “Tarkerum” which meets annually. In
addition, Group management maintains a dialogué thits committee’s five-member bureau,
which meets every quarter.

In France, the employee relations dialogue takeasepboth at “company” level and at “site”
level. At the “company” level, each legal entityshdepending on the number of employees and
the complexity of its structure, either a works mciior a central works council and employee
representatives. Each entity’'s management negetfeeements with the labor unions on topics
such as incentive schemes, professional equalttyeem men and women or the reduction and
scheduling of work hours. At the “site” level, teeare employee representatives and a site works
council. The management of each site chairs theeseptative bodies and may negotiate site
agreements with union representatives.
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Finally, with respect to health and safety, altled Group’s sites in France are covered by health,
safety and working conditions committeesrfités d’hygiéne, de sécurité et des conditions de
travail, or “CHSCT").

The Group encourages ongoing employee dialogueltiresin local labor agreements.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had 10,850 gmpky some of whom were union

members. The Group believes it has satisfactotiogiships with its employees and has not
experienced any significant labor disputes sinaty é008. Following the economic crisis in

2009, this policy enabled the Group to adjust tize sf its workforce downward by 14.2%

without any labor unrest and in compliance withsiteedules and budgets.

17.2 SHAREHOLDINGS AND STOCK SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE OPTIONS HELD BY
MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD AND
CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF THE GROUP

17.2.1 Direct and Indirect Shareholding of the Members ofthe Management Board and
Members of the Supervisory Board in the Company’s Bare Capital

Direct and indirect shareholding of the membershaf Management Board and Supervisory
Board in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

Number of  pgrcentage of Percentage of Number of shares granted under plans
} ordinary share capital  voting rights

Corporate Officers shares with LTIP LTIP LTIP

simple voting 2011® 2012% 201%)

rights(l)

Members of the
Management Board
Michel GiannuzZP® ........ 204,152 0.32% 0.32% 25,200 25,200 61,290
Fabrice Barthélenf§........ 37,276 0.06% 0.06% 8,800 8,800 15,512
Vincent Lecer................. 37,100 0.06% 0.06% 8,800 8,800 15,481
Members of the
Supervisory Board
Sonia Bonnet-Bernard ....... 4 0.00% 0.00% - - -
Didier Deconincl®............ 11,312 0.02% 0.02% - - -
Bernard-André Deconinck. 1,004 0.00% 0.00% - - -
Eric Deconinck................... 1,004 0.00% [s070)] - - -
Jacques Garaialde............... 1,004 0.00% %9.00 - - -
Josselin de Roquemaurel ... 1,004 0.00% 0.00% - - -
Francoise Leroy 1,000
Gérard Buffiere .................. 1,050 0.00% (0073 - - -
Jean-Philippe Delsol 590 0.00% 0.00% - - -
B I0] 7Y 295,910 0.46% 0.46% 42,800 42,800 92,283

@ pursuant to Article 8.4 of the Company’s Bylawseffect as of the date of this Registration Docutndly paid
up shares that have been held in registered fornatfdeast two years following the Company’s iditublic
offering have double voting rights.

@ Including the free shares granted at the time efittitial public offering in connection with the Magement
Equity Plan (“MEP”). These grants were of 112,65@&res for Michel Giannuzzi, 24,416 shares for Feabri
Barthélemy and 24,230 for Vincent Lecerf. (For gaded description of the MEP, see “Employee Shacentive
Plans” in the English Information Document dateddber 4, 2013, page 131.)

©®  The number of free shares that will be definitvgtanted pursuant to the LTIP 2011, the LTIP 2848 the LTIP
2013 may vary between 0 and 1.5 times to the numbshares initially granted as shown in this tablesed on

186



the Company’s performance. Moreover, the Company opa to pay beneficiaries of the LTIP 2012 and Lti¢P
2013 in cash in lieu of the shares due to them$setion 17.2.3, “Free Shares”).
@ Shares held by the chief executive and relatesopet

17.2.2 Stock Subscription or Purchase Options

As of the filing date of this Registration Documemb members of the Management Board or the
Supervisory Board held stock subscription or pusehaptions.

17.2.3 Free Shares

As of the filing date of this Registration Documethie Group has three incentive plans providing
for grants of free shares.

The Group has established a long-term incentive kf@wn as “LTIP 2011.” In connection with
this plan, approximately one hundred executivesemgloyees of the Group received preferred
shares, subject to the following conditions: (ineéning with the Company during a three-year
vesting period (except for non-French tax residerite choose a five-year vesting period), (ii) a
two-year share holding period (except for non-Fretax residents who choose a five-year
vesting period) and (iii) certain performance ciéesuch that the number of shares delivered
may vary between 0 and 1.5 times the number ofshaitially granted, depending on the degree
to which the Company achieves its performance ¢l The grant will vest on July 1,2014,
the date from which the two-year holding periodibsgo run. As an exception, for certain
managers residing outside of France, the finatation of shares will take place on July 1, 2016
with no required holding period.

The Group also put in place a long-term incentilanalled “LTIP 2012” in connection with
which approximately 120 executives and employea® weanted preferred shares, subject to the
following conditions: (i) remaining with the Grouwuring a three-year vesting period and (ii)
performance criteria, such that the total numbestares delivered will be between 0 and 1.5
times the number of shares originally granted, ddjpgy on the degree to which the Company
achieves its performance objectives. The grantweiit on July 1, 2016. On the vesting date, the
Company may opt to pay in cash in lieu of delivgrreferred shares. The shares granted under
the LTIP 2012 Plan are not subject to any holdiegaal.

Moreover, the LTIP 2011 and LTIP 2012 have beennal®é to provide for the grant of existing
shares rather than new shares to their respecivefibiaries.

Finally, the Group put in place a new long-termeiniive plan called “LTIP 2013” in connection
with which approximately 125 executives and empésyerere granted free shares, subject to the
following conditions: (i) remaining with the Grouwuring a three-year vesting period and (ii)
performance criteria, such that the total numbestares delivered will be between 0 and 1.5
times the number of shares originally granted, ddjpey on the degree to which the Company
achieves its performance objectives. The grantweiit on July 1, 2016. On the vesting date, the
Company may opt to pay in cash in lieu of delivgneferred shares. The shares granted under
the LTIP 2013 Plan are not subject to any holdiegaqal.
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The following table sets forth information on theoGp’s share incentive plans as of the filing
date of this Registration Document, including adliiiens made under these plans to the members
of the Supervisory Board, the Management Boardcaniin employees of the Company.

Plan No. 1 Plan No. 2 Plan No. 3
LTIP 2011 LTIP 2012 LTIP 2013
December 22, 2011
and
Date of shareholde’ meeting..............cccoevuenun November 4, 201® N/A N/A
Date of Management Board’s decisian............. December 22,2011 December 4, 20120ctober 9, 2019
Total number of sharegrantet...........ccoecceviveennnns 238,00( 275,60( 406,00(
Number of shares granted to:
- Michel Giannuz®...........ccccccoveviviiieciee 25,20( 25,20( 61,29(
- Fabrice Barthélen§ 8,800 8,800 15,512
-Vincent Lecef........ocoevieiieeiceieceeeeeeen, 8,80( 8,80( 15,48
Date on which shares will véBt.......................... July 1, 2014 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2016
End date of retention Peri..........coocoveeveevn. July 1, 201 July 1, 201 July 1, 201
Performance conditions....................cceeceverennn. ® @ ®
Number of shares vested as of the date of the
on this Registration Document................. 0 0 0
Number of shares canceled or expired 40,600 9,000 0

Number of shares remaining as of the date c
visa on this Registration Document.................. 197,400 266,600 406,000

@ Under certain circumstances, in the event employnseterminated prior to the end of the vestingiqubshares may be granted
on a pro rata basis.

@ The Company’s General Shareholders’ Meeting of Mther 4, 2013 authorized the modification of the RT1011 to provide
for the delivery of existing ordinary shares, sebje the conversion of the Company’s preferredeshanto ordinary shares. The
other terms of the authorization of the Generalr&talders’ Meeting of December 22, 2011 remain iapple, subject to
conforming changes.

®  The distribution will be made on the basis of caampte with a condition of economic performance €oasn the Group’s
medium- to long-term strategic plan), as well gresence requirement for beneficiaries throughoeitthree-year period. The
total number of shares granted under the LTIP 284¢ not exceed 296,100 shares, representing 0.3%edfompany’s share
capital.

@ This plan was put in place in December 2012. Itsesia of grants of free shares that do not comkimvthe scope of Articles
L.225-197-1 et seq. of the French Commercial Codeabthe option of the Company and in compliandth vapplicable
legislation, exceptional compensation in an amaqual to the value of such shares. These shareasbr payments will be
definitively granted or paid in July 2015, subjéstpresence and performance conditions relatinthéoachievement of the
Group’s strategic objectives. These shares or pagments will be effective in July 2015, with ndergtion period. The total
number of shares granted under the LTIP 2012 madyerceed 399,900 shares, representing approximaté% of the
Company’s share capital.

®  This plan was put in place in October 2013. In #idldito the October 2013 grant, an exceptional gadrrights to receive
128,400 shares was made on the date of the Congpanityal public offering to approximately 30 MERa&eholders who were
eligible for the LTIP 2013 plan. The LTIP 2013 cimts of grants of free shares that do not comeimvitie scope of Articles
L.225-197-1 et seq. of the French Commercial Codeabthe option of the Company and in compliandth vapplicable
legislation, exceptional compensation in an amaqutal to the value of such shares. These shareasbr payments will be
definitively granted or paid in July 2016, subjéstpresence and performance conditions relatinthéoachievement of the
Group’s strategic objectives. These shares or pagments will be effective in July 2016, with ndergtion period. The total
number of shares granted under the LTIP 2013 mdyerceed 416,400 shares, representing approximaté§% of the
Company’s share capital.

® Wwith respect to members of the Management Board| . THP 2013 provides for an overall limit of 16.28hthe October 2013
grant and 37% of the additional exceptional granfMEP shareholders (see Note 5 above).

™ As from the date of the Company’s initial publidesing, Mr. Michel Giannuzzi is required to retathroughout his term as
Chairman of the Management Board, a number of shafrthe Company corresponding to 50% of the shgrasted (after tax
impact) in connection with the Long Term Incent®an (LTIP). Furthermore, the members of the Man@ge Board and of the
Executive Committee must retain a number of shafése Company corresponding to 33% of the Comsrayes granted (after
tax impact) in connection with this plan for theation of their terms in office.

®  Not taking into account shares granted under tB®Mhe exact number of which is given in Note Zable 17.2.1, “Direct and
Indirect Shareholding of the Members of the ManagrenBoard and Members of the Supervisory BoartiéenGompany’'s Share
Capital”.
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17.3 PROFIT-SHARING AGREEMENTS AND INCENTIVE SCHEMES
17.3.1 Profit-Sharing Agreements

Pursuant to Articles L.3322-2 and L.3324-1 of tmeneh Labor Code, profit-sharing agreements
are required within companies with more than 50 legges that realize a tax benefit above 5%
of shareholders’ equity. As a result, a profit-ghgragreement was entered into in certain of the
Group’s French entities.

17.3.2 Incentive Schemes

Pursuant to Article L. 3312-1 of the French Labad€, an incentive scheme is an optional
mechanism whose purpose is to give employees tiobc a share in the business’s success,
more specifically its performance and results, syng a formula to calculate immediately
available bonuses. The Company maintains incergsfeemes within certain of its French
entities, each of which has a fixed term of threarg. Each incentive scheme has its own formula
for calculating bonus payments.

17.3.3 Company Savings Plans and Similar Plans

Pursuant to Article L. 3332-3 of the French Lab@d€, companies with profit-sharing plans are
required to maintain company savings plans. A grougompany savings plan is a collective
savings system that offers employees of the comepdmtlonging to the plan the ability, with the
help of their employers, to build investment pditfe. In particular, company savings plans can
receive amounts under a profit-sharing or incergigeeement, as well as voluntary contributions.
Amounts invested in a company savings plan caneavithdrawn for five years, except in the
early-withdrawal cases provided for by law. The @rareated a company savings plan on June
29, 2004 for a term of one year, renewable aut@alifi This plan offers employees who have
been with the Company for over three months thditplib allocate amounts paid to them
immediately and in full to subscribe for sharesdimpany investment fundfofids communs de
placement d’entreprisesr “FCPE").
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18. MAIN SHAREHOLDERS
18.1 ORGANIZATION OF THE TARKETT GROUP
18.1.1 Simplified Group Organizational Chart

The following simplified organizational chart showt& Group’s ownership structure as of the
filing date of this Registration Document.

Ownership percentages are expressed as percewfaties Company’s share capital. For more
information on the Company’s shareholders as offithigy date of this Registration Document,
see Section 18.1.3, “Share Capital Breakdown artchy®ights”.

KKR S.1.D. - Société
International I@LL‘?%GDL Investissement
Flooring 2 o Deconinck

S.a.r.l
21.50% 0.38% 50.10%
v
Public 26,12% . Tarkett < 1,9% Managers

18.1.2 Principal Direct and Indirect Shareholders

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetd the Company’s knowledge, the only
shareholders directly or indirectly holding morartb% of the Company’s share capital or voting
rights areSociété Investissement Deconift&D”) and KKR International Flooring 2 S.a.r.an
affiliate of KKR (“KKR International Flooring”). Inaddition, Tarkett GDL S.A. and certain of
the Company’'s employees and executives hold sheepsesenting less than 2% of the
Company'’s share capital and voting rights.

Société Investissement Deconinck

SID is wholly owned, directly and indirectly, byettlmembers of the Deconinck family. SID is a
French simplified stock compangdciété par actions simplififethe registered office of which is
located at 2, rue de I'Egalité in Nanterre (92748)d which is registered with the Trade and
Companies Register of Nanterre under number 421 288 As of the filing date of this
Registration Document, SID’s share capital is €32,815.07, divided into 277,689 shares of
€152.45 each.

SID’s shares of the Company represent 50.10% oftmpany’s share capital.

KKR International Flooring 2 S.a.r.l. (“KKR Intertimnal Flooring”)

KKR International Flooring is a Luxembourg limitéidbility company §ociété a responsabilité
limitée) affiliated with KKR.
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Founded in 1976 and managed by Henry Kravis anddeeRoberts, the KKR group is a global
investment firm with a long history in France ampmximately $94.3 billion in assets under
management as of December 31, 2013. With officesutdhout the world, the KKR group
manages investment funds and accounts covering tgpeyg of assets. The KKR group seeks to
create value by bringing its operational expettiisthe companies in its portfolio and by actively
monitoring its investments. KKR & Co. L.P. is lidten the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE:
KKR).

KKR International Flooring’s shares of the Compaapresent 21.50% of the Company’s share
capital.

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetiie Company has not been informed of any
other shareholders holding, directly or indirecthgre than 5% of the Company’s share capital or
voting rights, either through CACEIS or through fhérmational mechanism provided for in
Article 7 of the Company’s Bylaws.

Shareholding by Executives and Employees
Certain executives and employees of the Group $twddes of the Company.

On November 26, 2013, the Company made a definigkent of ordinary shares to the
beneficiaries of the share grant plan known as “KEmich Tarkett had put in place in October
2007.

Certain executives and employees were also gramgdtls to receive free shares under the
Company's LTIP plans. The final number of such ebawill depend on the Company’'s
achievement of certain performance criteria. ThdPLR2011 Plan falls within the scope of
Articles L.225-197-1 et seq. of the French Comna&rCiode, but the LTIP 2012 and LTIP 2013
Plans do not.

For a description of the Group’s share plans armhtgrmade thereunder, see Section 17.2.3,
“Free Shares”.

Treasury Shares
Tarkett GDL S.A. (Luxembourg)

Tarkett GDL S.A. Luxembourg (“Tarkett GDL") is a lding company in the form of a
Luxembourg limited liability corporationsfciété anonymewith share capital of €274,123,080.
Its registered office is located at 2, Op der S&rg779 Lentzweiler, and it is registered with the
Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register under nuBi82.165. It is fully controlled by the
Company and holds a number of shareholdings in Gentities. As of the filing date of this
Registration Document, Tarkett GDL holds 240,00@&rek of the Company, representing
approximately 0.38% of the Company’s share capital.

192



18.1.3 Share Capital Breakdown and Voting Rights

The table below shows the Company’s shareholdersf dke filing date of this Registration
Document.

percent of

Shareholders Number of Shares .
share capital

percent of
voting rights

Société Investissement Deconinck

(SID) 31,925,07 50.10% 50.10%
KKR International Flooring 2 13,703,462 21.50% 21.50%
Tarkett GDL 240,000 0.38% 0.00%
Executives and employees of the

Compan® 1,208,88: 1.90% 1.90%
Public float 16,645,247 26.12% 26.12%
Othel 28 0.00% 0.00%
Total 63,722,69 100% 100%

(1) Including former executives and employees of thenGany.

18.1.4 Information on Crossing of Legal Thresholds

To the Company’s knowledge and on the basis offiaations filed with the AMF, no other
shareholder has declared holding more than 5%eoCthmpany’s share capital as of the date of
this Registration Document.

18.1.5 Description of the Reorganization Transactions of Hvember 21, 2013

On the pricing date of its initial public offeringhe Company carried out a corporate
reorganization in order to simplify its ownershipusture. The steps that were involved in this
reorganization are described briefly below.

In the first instance, SIF, the holding companytiyh which KKR International Flooring and
SID held their shares in the Company, was mergtmthe Company, with KKR International
Flooring and the Deconinck family (through SID) eaxchanging their preferred shares in SIF
for newly issued ordinary shares of the Companye 3tares of the Company transferred in this
merger were cancelled, resulting in a decreasénénGompany’s share capital. Subsequently,
307,155 shares held by Tarkett GDL and represerpmyoximately 1.94% of the Company’s
share capital were sold to SID at a price basetherprice for the shares offered in the initial
public offering. Thus, following these transactprthe Deconinck family held, through SID,
50.10% of the Company.

Following the transactions summarized above, theamy distributed an exceptional dividend
in the amount of €130 million, with an ex-divideddte on the pricing date of the initial public
offering, to be paid on the same day.

Next, Partholdi, a holding company through whichrt@ie employees and members of
management held their shares in the Company, wegethénto the Company. In determining the
exchange ratio applicable to the Class A, B andefepred shares, the value of the specific rights
attached to each class of shares under the Bylasgaken into consideration. The shares of the
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Company transferred in this merger were cancellesilting in a decrease in the Company’s
share capital. Partholdi’s shareholders receivedynissued shares of the Company.

In addition, following the various mergers discuksdove, the beneficiaries of the Company’s
MEP share plan set up in October 2007 received fhal allocation of shares under the plan

(see Section 17.2.3, “Free Shares”). Next, alhef Company’s preferred shares were converted
into ordinary shares.

Finally, after the above transactions, the pareafithe Company’s shares, which was then €20,
was divided by four, multiplying the number of ardiry shares of the Company by four, with
each share having a par value of €5.

18.2 SHAREHOLDERS ' VOTING RIGHTS

Article 8 of the Company’s Bylaws provides for aubdte voting right for all fully paid shares
held in registered form by the same holder foeast two years. The duration of the shareholding
prior to the date of the Company’s initial publiffesing will not be taken into account in
determining whether the shares held by a shareho#atey double voting rights.

In accordance with Article L. 225-123 of the FrenCommercial Code, in the event of an
increase in the Company’'s share capital througlorparation of reserves, profits or share
premium, the newly issued shares will carry doubdting rights if they are granted to a
shareholder in relation to existing shares thataaly carry double voting rights.

Double voting rights may be exercised at any shadens’ meeting.

Double voting rights terminate if the shares anevested into bearer form or if their ownership is
transferred.

A merger or spinoff of the Company has no effecttlom double voting right, which may be
exercised within the surviving company if the Bykaef such company so provide.

18.3 CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

As of the filing date of this Registration DocumeSiD, which holds the Deconinck family’s
investment, holds 50.10% of the Company’s sharéalapnd KKR International Flooring holds
21.50%.

SID and KKR International Flooring have entereadiatshareholders’ agreement governing their
relationship (see Section 18.4, “Shareholders’ Agrent”).

The Company is controlled as described above. Hewdlie Company believes that there is no
risk of control being exercised in an abusive manhmethat regard, the Company has provided
that one-third of the members of its Supervisoraioare independent and that each of its two
specialized committees includes two independent lmeesnand is chaired by an independent
member of the Supervisory Board.
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18.4 SHAREHOLDERS' AGREEMENT

In connection with the Company’s initial public efing, on November 26, 2013 SID and KKR
International Flooring entered into a shareholdgneement (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”) to
govern their relationship as shareholders of then@my.

The parties are deemed to act “in concert” underShareholders’ Agreement, which includes
the following terms:

» As of the IPO listing date, the Supervisory Boamswequired to include four members
appointed upon proposal by SID, two members apedinipon proposal by KKR
International Flooring and three independent memb&he Shareholders’ Agreement
does not contain any restriction or voting undengkwith respect to the ongoing
composition of the Supervisory Board;

 KKR International Flooring will have the right toominate one member to each
committee of the Supervisory Board so long as anmare of the members appointed
upon proposal by KKR International Flooring remaarsthe Supervisory Board. Apart
from this, the Shareholders’ Agreement does nottaionany other restriction with
respect to the composition of the Company’s goveriiodies, each party remaining free
to exercise its voting rights for decisions relgtio nomination, co-optation, and removal
of members of the Supervisory Board;

e SID and KKR International Flooring are requireddomnsult with each other to seek a
common position with respect to any matter of besinsubmitted to a Supervisory
Board or shareholders’ meeting, although the partiee free to exercise their voting
rights at such Supervisory Board or shareholdeegting if a common position has not
been reached. It is noted, however, that if théigmwote differently on one or more of
the Key Decisions discussed in Section 21.2.2.1Pgwers and Duties of the
Management Board (Article 16 of the Bylaws and @eti3.2 of the Supervisory Board’s
Internal Regulations)”, both the shareholders’ agrent and the “concert” will be
terminated as described below;

e To the extent reasonably practicable, each of 31D KKR International Flooring is
required to notify the other in the event of a megd sale of the Company’s securities
(except in the case of a transfer to one or marantial institutions with a view towards
offering such securities);

» KKR funds and their affiliates are required to hal@D% of the share capital and voting
rights of KKR International Flooring at all timesdmay only reduce their shareholding
in the Company by causing KKR International Flogrto sell the shares it holds directly
in the Company. If the KKR funds and their affigatwere to hold less than 100% of the
share capital and voting rights of KKR Internatibridooring, KKR International
Flooring would be required to convert all of itsasks of the Company into bearer form.

» Each party is prohibited from acting “in concerégarding the Company with a third
party unless prior approval from the other party been obtained.

The shareholders’ agreement was entered into thrration of four years to end on November

21, 2017 and will be automatically terminated (gslehe parties choose otherwise) upon the
occurrence of certain events, including the follogvi
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One of the parties ceases to hold 5% or more o€Ctrapany’s share capital and voting
rights;

The parties cease to hold a minimum of 50% in thgregate of the Company’s share
capital and voting rights;

The parties, through their respective SupervisorgarB nominees or during a
shareholders’ meeting, adopt contrary positiond wétspect to certain key decisions,
described in further detail in Section 21.2.2.1Pgwers and Duties of the Management
Board (Article 16 of the Bylaws and Article 3.2 tife Supervisory Board's Internal
Regulations)”. For these purposes, abstention waowd be considered a contrary
position;

The members of the Supervisory Board appointed @pproposal by KKR International
Flooring no longer hold their offices prior to thexpiration of the Shareholder
Agreement’s four-year term, and such members ateremlaced by other members
appointed upon proposal by KKR International Flogri

One of the parties agrees to act “in concert” vaitthird party, despite the fact that the
other party has refused to grant its prior approval

SID may terminate the agreement if KKR Internatidflaoring sells more than 5% of its
shareholding to a third party (known by KKR Intetonal Flooring at the moment of the
sale) or allows, to KKR International Flooring’'sdmledge, a third party to hold 10%
(acting alone or “in concert’, publicly disclosedign to the sale) or more of the
Company's share capital and voting rights whenpghichaser(s) have reasonably been
considered hostile in the context of the prelimjnaformation process;

SID may also terminate the agreement if KKR fundg their affiliates no longer hold,

directly or indirectly, 100% of the share capitaldavoting rights of KKR International

Flooring (notwithstanding KKR International Floogis obligation in such a scenario to
convert its shares into bearer form).

AGREEMENTS THAT COULD RESULT IN A CHANGE OF CONTROL

To the Company’s knowledge, as of the filing datehis Registration Document, there are no
agreements whose implementation could, at a laés, desult in a change in control of the
Company.
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18.6

The table below shows, as of the filing date of fRegistration Document, the share acquisitions,

TRANSACTIONS BY MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT IN THE COMPANY 'S SECURITIES

dispositions and exchanges, as well as transadtiaesated financial instruments, that come
within the scope of Articles L.621-18-2 and R.6Z:#of the French Monetary and Financial
Code and Article 223-26 of the AMF General Regolati

Name of reporting | Positions held within| Description of Nature of the Date Place Amount
person the Company financial transaction (in euros)
instrument

Didier Deconinck  |[Chairman of the Shares Acquisition of 11/22/2013 |Euronext Par{s 29,000.00
Supervisory Board 1,000 shares

Jacques Garaialde [Vice Chairman of the Shares Acquisition of 11/28/2013 |Euronext Parls 28,650.00
Supervisory Board 1,000 shares

Bernard-André Member of the Shares Acquisition of 11/22/2013 |Euronext Par{s 29,000.00

Deconinck Supervisory Board 1,000 shares

Eric Deconinck Member of the Shares Acquisition of 11/22/2013 |Euronext Par{s 29,000.00
Supervisory Board 1,000 shares

Josselin de Member of the Shares Acquisition of 11/22/2013 |Euronext Parls 27,000.00

Roquemaurel Supervisory Board 1,000 shares

Francoise Leroy Member of the Shares Acquisitions: 1/10/2014 |Euronext Parls 21,552.13
Supervisory Board - 741 shares 1/13/2014 7,577.41

- 259 share

Gérard Buffiere Member of the Shares Acquisition of 11/28/2013 |Euronext Par{s 30,345.00
Supervisory Board 1,050 shares

DDA BIS Legal entity affiliated Shares Acquisitions: 12/18/2013 |Euronext Par|{s266 108,00
with the Chairman of - 10,000 shares| 12/23/2013 8,283.54
the Supervisory Boarg - 308 shares

197



19
RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

19.1. Principal Related Party Transactions

19.1.1. Guarantees

19.1.2. Service Agreement wiBiociété Investissement Deconi(8kD)
19.1.3. Assistance Agreement wibciété Investissement Deconii8kD)
19.1.4. Cash Management Agreements

19.1.5. Service Agreements

19.2. Statutory Auditors’ Special Report on Regulagd Agreements and
Commitments for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

198



19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
19.1 PRINCIPAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Since January 1, 2011, material transactions ehfiate or ongoing between the Company and
related parties consist of the following.

19.1.1 Guarantees
The Company has given its subsidiaries a numbguafantees:

e A counter guarantee provided to Federal Insuranmeagany (“FIC") pursuant to a
general indemnity agreement for a maximum amound.&. $75.0 million to permit
FIC to issue construction bonds on behalf of FialfiTrarkett Inc. As of the end of
the fiscal year, the amount outstanding subjecthie guarantee was the dollar
equivalent of €40.6 million;

e A guarantee covering 50% of a maximum €10 millioeddt line granted to the
Group’s Laminate Park joint venture;

e A guarantee given to the retirement insurance com@ai-Pensions to insure Tarkett
AB’s employee benefit commitments in the amourBBK 163.2 million;

» A guarantee provided to a raw-materials supplighefCompany’s subsidiary Morton
Extrusiontechnik (MET) in order to secure MET's pants to such supplier, for a
maximum amount of €5 million;

A guarantee given to Tarkett Finance Inc. to enadbleo become an additional
borrower under the Company’s revolving credit flacidated June 27, 2011, in an
amount not to exceed the U.S. dollar equivalen€b90.0 million. However, no
drawdowns under this guarantee were outstanding yesar-end;

» A security given by Tarkett S.A. to a lending basfka credit line. The security is in
the form of an assignment of receivables for a maxi authorized amount of €55
million. The credit line, though entered into todnce the Group, was signed by a
subsidiary for technical reasons. However, no dewts under this guarantee were
outstanding as of year-end; and

» A guarantee given to the banks by Tarkett S.A. emalf of Tarkett Limited (United
Kingdom) and FieldTurf Poligras (Spain) to enableerh to obtain liquidity
arrangements for a total of €3.5 million.

19.1.2 Service Agreement withSociété Investissement Deconin¢RID)
Tarkett and SID have entered into a service agregméfective as of January 1, 2014, pursuant
to which Tarkett provides SID with administrativapport including corporate secretary and

accounting services, for an annual cost of €75,@@0luding taxes. In 2013, the services that
Tarkett SA provided to SID were invoiced in the amipof €22,000, excluding taxes.
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19.1.3 Assistance Agreement wittSociété Investissement Deconin¢RID)

SID and the Company are parties to an assistanmezragnt relating to determination of the
Company's strategy. Under this agreement, SID veseian annual payment of €500,000
(excluding taxes), subject to revision based oringiex chosen by SID and the Company, in
exchange for its services, including the time spgnthe members of its Management Board and
its role in defining the strategy of the Company.

19.1.4 Cash Management Agreements

The Company has cash management agreements invgtacgme of its subsidiaries to organize
financing between the Group’s entities and managéralization of the Group’s treasury.

19.1.5 Service Agreements

The Company is a party to service agreements wéhain of its French and foreign
manufacturing subsidiaries dated January 1, 2082January 1, 2013, in each case for a term of
one year and automatically renewable for additiomaé-year terms. The purpose of these
agreements is to provide management, financialalleguman resources, marketing and
communication services. These agreements represantaggregate amount of €9.8 million in
2013.

In addition, the Company is a party to IT assistaagreements dated January 1, 2013 with
certain of its subsidiaries, for terms of one yeartomatically renewable without limitation for
additional one-year terms. The purpose of theseeagents is to provide IT, project management,
development and consulting services (audit and §Adect preparation). These agreements
represented an aggregate amount of €15.0 milli@918.
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19.2 STATUTORY AUDITORS’ SPECIAL REPORT ON REGULATED AGREEMENTS AND
COMMITMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

Tarkett
Registered office: 2, rue de I'Egalité — 92748 Narg
Share Capital: €318,613,480

Statutory Auditors’ Special Report on Regulated Agreements and Commitmis

General Shareholders’ Meeting held to approve thantial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2013

To the Shareholders:

In our capacity as the Statutory Auditors of younpany, we hereby present to you our report
on regulated agreements and commitments.

The terms of our engagement require us to commignfoayou, based on information provided to
us, the principal terms and conditions of thoseeagrents brought to our attention or which we
may have discovered during the course of our audihout expressing an opinion on their
usefulness and appropriateness or identifying satfer agreements, if any. It is your
responsibility, pursuant to Article R.225-58 of theench Commercial Code, to assess the interest
involved in respect of the conclusion of these aegrents and commitments for the purpose of
approving them.

Our role is also to provide you with the informatistipulated in Article R.225-58 of the French
Commercial Code relating to the implementation miyrthe past year of agreements and
commitments previously approved by the Shareholdiéesting, if any.

We conducted the procedures we deemed necessagcciordance with the professional
guidelines of the French National Institute of Staty Auditors Compagnie Nationale des
Commissaires aux Compjeaglating to this engagement. These proceduresisted in agreeing

the information provided to us with the relevantre@ documents.

AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE APPROVAL OF THE SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETING

Pursuant to Article L.225-88 of the French Comnadr€lode, we have been informed that the
following agreements and commitments were previoapproved by your Supervisory Board.

Service Agreement with Société d’Investissement Faliale S.A. (“S.I.F. S.A.")
» Persons concerned:

Messrs. B.-A. Deconinck, D. Deconinck, E. DeconintkGaraialde and J. de Roquemaurel,
members of the Management Board of S.I.LF. S.A.,mraeebers of Tarkett's Supervisory
Board.
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Nature and purpose:

S.I.LF. S.A., which held more than 10% of Tarketitsting rights prior to the listing of
Tarkett's shares on a regulated market on Nover@the2013, provides certain advice and
assistance services to Tarkett's senior management.

The service agreement was entered into for a éamtalunt of €3,152,000, excluding taxes, for
2013.

The agreement was authorized by your SupervisorgrdBmn February 26, 2013. This
agreement was terminated at the time of Tarketital public offering and the merger of
S.I.F. S.A. into Tarkett with retroactive effecttanuary 1, 2013.

Service Agreement with Société Investissement Deéook (“S.1.D.")

Persons concerned:

Prior to the listing of Tarkett’'s shares on a regedl market on November 21, 2013, Messts.
B.-A. Deconinck, D. Deconinck and E. Deconinck, refmalders of S.I.F. S.A., which held
more than 10% of Tarkett’s voting rights, and S.I9A., which held more than 10% of the
voting rights of S.I.LF. S.A., were members of Tér'keSupervisory Board.

Following Tarkett’s initial public offering and thaerger of S.I.F. S.A. into Tarkett, Messrs.
B.-A. Deconinck, D. Deconinck and E. Deconinck, refalders of S.I.D., which holds more
than 10% of Tarkett's voting rights, are memberJardkett’s Supervisory Board.

Nature and purpose:

Prior to the initial public offering, Tarkett praled administrative support, including
corporate secretary and accounting services, t&.SSLA. Since the merger of S.I.F. into
Tarkett in connection with Tarkett’s initial publiaffering, Tarkett has provided the same
services to S.I.D. S.A.

The service agreement was entered into for a antalunt of €22,000, excluding taxes, for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

The agreement between Tarkett and S.I.F. S.A. wd®Ezed by your Supervisory Board on
September 17, 2013 and the agreement between TartS.I.D. S.A. was authorized by
your Supervisory Board on December 17, 2013.

Commitment for the benefit of Michel Giannuzzi, Charman of Tarkett's Management
Board

Person concerned:
Mr. Michel Giannuzzi, Chairman of Tarkett's ManagathBoard.

Retention bonus

Nature and purpose:

At the time of the listing of Tarkett's shares o S8E Euronext Paris, Mr. Michel Giannuzzi’s
employment agreement was terminated, leaving iceplais corporate office. A retention
bonus in the amount of €300,000 will be paid to bimNovember 1, 2017 if he remains with
Tarkett on such date.

The agreement was authorized by your Supervisosrdon September 27, 2013.
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Severance or other benefits due or likely to becotlne as a result of termination or change of
office (after the initial public offering)

* Nature and purpose:

Subject to the performance requirements definedweMr. Giannuzzi will be entitled to a
severance payment equal to two years of his grass balary and bonus during the twelve
months prior to his departure as Chairman of theddament Board (including, if applicable,
pursuant to his employment contract). In the ewbat Mr. Giannuzzi is to receive both
severance pay and the non-compete payment desdodeds, the total amount that he
receives will be limited to two years of the grosse salary and bonus received during the 12
months prior to his departure as Chairman of theddament Board (including, if applicable,
pursuant to his employment contract).

Performance is measured by the extent of achievieofeannual performance goals defined
by the Supervisory Board upon the proposal of themMations and Compensation

Committee, which serve as the basis for calculatiagable compensation. The amount is
equal to the average performance achieved by Mmrizzi during the three calendar years
preceding his departure. In the event that his mlefashould occur within the next three

calendar years, performance will be measured byetent of achievement of the annual
performance goals used as the basis for calculdtmgariable portion of his compensation as
Chairman of the Management Board and his comp@msasi an employee.

The severance payment is contingent on achievig &0 100% of the performance goals
(i.e., no payment will be made unless the perfogaagpal is reached to the extent of at least
50% and full payment will be received if the perfiance goal is achieved to the extent of
100%). The severance payment will be calculatedstiict proportion to the extent of
achievement of the performance goal.

Subject to achievement of the performance condititme Company will be required to pay

this severance payment in the event of Mr. Gianifsifarced departure as Company officer

(including, in particular, as a result of a chanfieontrol or a disagreement as to strategy) on
the initiative of the Supervisory Board, regardlessvhether Mr. Giannuzzi is removed or his

mandate is not renewed. This payment would notvadadle in the event of serious or gross

misconduct.

Compensation under a non-compete clause

Mr. Giannuzzi benefits from a clause providing payment in the event that the non-compete
clause provided for in connection with his offisatiggered.

Mr. Giannuzzi will receive compensation for his rympete clause in an amount equal to his
gross base salary and bonus received during tHeagwonths prior to his departure from his
position as Chairman of the Management Board (ifinly if applicable, pursuant to his
employment contract with SIF). This compensatioll lagé payable in 24 monthly payments
for the duration of the non-compete clause. Thismpensation will be deducted from Mr.
Giannuzzi's severance payment, such that the sotedunt received as severance and non-
compete payments will not exceed two years of gbase salary and bonus received during
the 12 months preceding his departure. The Compasythe right to waive the non-compete
clause.

Assistance and Guidance Agreement with S.I.D.
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Persons concerned:

Messrs. B.-A. Deconinck, D. Deconinck, and E. Decok, shareholders of S.I.D., are
members of Tarkett's Supervisory Board.

Nature and purpose:

S.1.D., which holds more than 10% of Tarkett's ugtrights, will assist Tarkett in defining its
strategic objectives. The service agreement wasreshtinto for an annual amount of
€500,000, excluding taxes. The charge recordehainregard was €53,425 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2013

The agreement was authorized by your Supervisogydon October 9, 2013.

Engagement Letter with KKR International Flooring 2 Sarl, Deutsche Bank AG, Paris
branch, and J.P Morgan Securities plc.

Persons concerned:

Messrs. J. Garaialde, J. de Roquemaurel and A.ctipemployees of KKR, are members of
Tarkett's Supervisory Board.

Nature and purpose:

In connection with the company’s initial public effng, the banks undertook to provide
assistance with respect to the distribution of chmpany’s shares on the market, as well as
with respect to the preparation of the necessacymientation and disclosure for doing so.

This agreement provides that KKR International 8 &auld pay the banks’ commissions and
that the company would pay the banks fees relatiribe transaction.

The agreement was authorized by your SupervisogrdBon October 9 and October 23,
2013.

Underwriting Agreement with KKR International Floor ing 2 Sarl, Deutsche Bank AG, Paris branch;
J.P Morgan Securities plc; HSBC France; Merryl Lynch International; Crédit Agricole Corporate &
Investment Bank; and CommerzBank

Persons concerned:

Messrs. J. Garaialde, J. de Roquemaurel and A.ctipemployees of KKR, are members of
Tarkett's Supervisory Board.

Nature and purpose:

In connection with the company’s initial public effng, the banks undertook to provide
assistance with respect to the distribution of thmpany’s shares on the market, as well as
with respect to the preparation of the necessacymientation and disclosure for doing so.

This agreement provides that KKR International 8 &auld pay the banks’ commissions and
that the company would pay the banks fees relatirige transaction.

The agreement was authorized by your Supervisosrdon October 23, 2013.

Engagement Letter with KKR International Flooring 2 Sarl and KKR Capital Markets
Limited
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Persons concerned:
Messrs. J. Garaialde, J. de Roquemaurel and A.ctipemployees of KKR, are members of
Tarkett's Supervisory Board.

Nature and purpose:
In connection with the company’s initial public efing, KKR Capital Markets Limited was
engaged to serve as the company'’s adviser.

The engagement letter provides that KKR Internatiétiooring 2 Sarl will pay KKR Capital
Markets Limited’s commissions and that the Compavi} pay KKR Capital Markets
Limited’s fees relating to the transaction, up forat of €100,000.

The agreement was authorized by your Supervisogydon October 23, 2013.
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AGREEMENTS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Pursuant to Article R.225-57 of the French Comnar€ode, we have been informed that the
performance of the following agreements, which waleady approved by the shareholders’
meeting in previous years, continued during thetmexently completed fiscal year.

Implementation of an escrow agreement in connectiowith the Management Equity Plan
* Nature, purpose and terms and conditions:

In connection with the creation of a Tarkett equitgn (the “Management Equity Plan”),
managers of the Company or its subsidiaries wheiciizate in the Free Share Plan each
signed an Escrow Agreement with S.I.LF. S.A. ancctimapany.

This contract relates to the preferred shares witkioting rights acquired from S.I.LF. S.A. In
accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreenmtbatcompany serves as escrow agent on
the instructions of the managers and S.I.F S.A.

The agreement was taken over by Tarkett followimg listing of its shares on a regulated
market and the merger of S.I.F. S.A. into Tarkett.

The Statutory Auditors,

Paris La Défense and Paris, March 21, 2014

KPMG Audit Praxor Audit
Philippe Grandclel Florent Gesbe
Partner Partner
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20. FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE GROUP'S ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS

20.1 GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.1.1 Group Consolidated Financial Statements as of andof the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

The Group’s consolidated financial statements, gmegh in IFRS, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, begin on the following page.

208



Q Tarkett

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013

All figures are presented in million of Euros, except if mentioned otherwise.
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O Tarkett

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Dec 31, 2012

Note  Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Continuing operations
Net revenue 2,516.4 2,291.5
Cost of sales (1,892.8) (1,765.8)
Gross profit 623.7 525.7
Other operating income 5) 8.9 7.6
Selling and distribution expenses (248.8) (213.5)
Research and dewelopment expenses (25.8) (19.8)
General and administrative expenses (162.3) (136.2)
Other operating expenses (5) (14.8) (10.3)
Results from operating activities 3) 180.9 153.5
Financial income 1.6 2.5
Financial expenses (33.0) (26.5)
Net finance costs (6) (31.4) (24.0)
Share of profit of equity accounted investees (net of income tax) 1.4 1.9
Profit before income tax 148.2 127.5
Income tax expenses @) (47.9) (42.3)
Profit from continuing operations 100.3 85.2
Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (net of income tax) - -
Profit for the period 100.3 85.2
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 99.1 83.6
Non-controlling interests (NCI) 1.2 1.6
Profit for the period 100.3 85.2
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.60 1.35
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.58 1.34
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.60 1.35
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) (14) 1.58 1.34

*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 211 3/57



O Tarkett

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Dec 31, 2012

Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Profit for the period 100.3 85.2
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (31.0) (8.9)
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 6.4 0.2
Income tax on other comprehensive income (2.2 -
OCI to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods (26.8) (8.8)
Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) 17.2 (28.9)
Income tax on other comprehensive income (5.0) 8.8
OCI not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods 12.1 (20.2)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 14.7) (28.9)
Total comprehensive income for the period 85.6 56.3
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 84.9 54.8
Non-controlling interests 0.7 1.4
Total comprehensive income for the period 85.6 56.3

*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 212
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O Tarkett

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Dec 31, 2012
Note Dec 31, 2013 restated *

ASSETS

Goodwiill 8) 425.6 449.1
Intangible assets €©)] 110.9 98.4
Property, plant and equipment €©)] 415.4 428.7
Financial assets 9 27.5 29.3
Deferred tax assets (19) 92.7 96.2
Other non-current assets 12) 0.2 -
Non-current assets 1,072.3 1,101.7
Inventories (10) 318.6 333.3
Trade receivables (11) 279.7 287.6
Other receivables 12) 59.2 59.9
Cash and cash equivalents (15) 96.7 81.1
Current assets 754.2 762.0
TOTAL ASSETS 1,826.5 1,863.7

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital (13) 318.6 316.1
Share premium and resenes 145.6 138.8
Retained earnings 126.9 145.0
Net result for the period 99.1 83.6
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 690.2 683.6
Non-controlling interests 6.1 10.1
Total equity 696.3 693.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 501.3 335.7
Other financial liabilities (16) 4.7 6.8
Deferred tax liabilities (19) 10.8 5.4
Employee benefits (21) 122.3 142.2
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (20) 41.2 38.1
Non-current liabilities 680.2 528.1
Trade payables a7 219.8 244.3
Other liabilities (18) 167.0 162.6
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 24.4 187.2
Other financial liabilities (16) 5.0 11.6
Provisions and other current liabilities (20) 33.7 36.2
Current liabilities 450.0 641.9
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,826.5 1,863.7

*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 213 5/57



@ Tarkett

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 148.2 127.5
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 105.5 88.8

(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets (0.3) -

Net finance costs 314 24.0

Change in provisions and other non-cash items 104 7.6

Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of tax 1.4 1.9
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 296.4 250.0
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in trade receivables - 28.3
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in other receivables 2.4 (6.6)
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in inventories 2.0 (20.0)
Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in trade payables (21.4) 28.7
Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in other payables 0.7 16.9
Effect of changesin working capital (16.3) 47.2
Cash generated from operations 280.2 297.2
Interest paid (25.6) (21.9)
Income taxes paid (47.8) (45.3)
Other items 1.2) 0.8
Other operating items (74.5) (66.5)
Net cash from operating activities 205.6 230.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 2 (3.5) (259.2)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9) (100.5) (84.8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9) 0.9 0.7
Net cash used in investing activities (103.1) (343.3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 4.4) -
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 504.0 211.8
Repayment of loans and borrowings (496.3) (70.3)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (0.4) (0.8)
Disposal of treasury shares 38.1 -
Dividends paid (124.8) -
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (83.8) 140.7
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18.8 28.1
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 81.1 53.7
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 3.2) (0.6)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 96.7 81.1

*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 214 6/57



O Tarkett

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share S.h are Translation Retained Non—_ Total
capital premium and resene eamings Total c_ontrolllng equity
resenes interests

Balance at January 1, 2012 - Restated * 316.1 138.8 (63.0) 234.1 626.0 8.7 634.8
Net profit for the period - - - 83.6 83.6 1.6 85.2
Other comprehensive income - - 8.7) (20.1) (28.8) (0.2) (28.9)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 8.7) 63.5 54.8 1.4 56.3
Own shares (acquired) / sold - - - (0.9) (0.9) - (0.9)
Share based payment transactions - - - 2.5 2.5 - 2.5
Acquisition of NCI without a change in control - - - 1.2 1.2 - 1.2
Acquisition of subsidiary with NCI - - - 0.2) 0.2) - 0.2)
Total transactions with shareholders - - - 2.7 2.7 - 2.7
Balance at December 31, 2012 - Restated * 316.1 138.8 (71.8) 300.3 683.6 10.1 693.7
Balance at January 1, 2013 316.1 138.8 (71.8) 300.3 683.4 10.1 693.7
Net profit for the period - - - 99.1 99.1 1.2 100.3
Other comprehensive income - - (30.5) 16.4 (14.2) (0.5) (14.7)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - (30.5) 115.4 84.9 0.7 85.6
Dividends - - - (124.8) (124.8) - (124.8)
Own shares (acquired) / sold - - - 38.1 38.1 - 38.1
Share based payment - - - 6.2 6.2 - 6.2
Acquisition of NCI without a change in control - - - (0.5) (0.5) (4.8) (5.3)
Issue of shares / SIF and Partholdi mergers into Tarkett 2.5 6.8 - (5.6) 3.6 - 3.6
Other - - - (0.9) (0.9) - (0.9)
Total transactions with shareholders 2.5 6.8 - (87.4) (78.1) (4.8) (83.0)
Balance at December 31, 2013 318.6 145.6 (102.3) 328.3 690.2 6.1 696.3
*Comparative periods were restated following the retrospective application of IFRS 11. Please refer to note 1.5.24
Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 7157
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O Tarkett

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tarkett's consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereafter the “Group”) as well as its interests in associates and joint ventures.

Tarkett is a leading global flooring company, providing integrated flooring and sports surface solutions to
professionals and end-users in the residential and commercial markets. The Group is domiciled in France. The
company’s registered office is at 2 rue de I'égalité, Nanterre.

February 17", 2014, the Board of Directors established and authorized the publication of the Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013, which will be submitted for approval to the
shareholders’ meeting to be held on May 13" 2014.

NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

11 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group (including the notes thereto) have been prepared in
accordance with the IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) as adopted by the European Union as of
December 31, 2013.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
121 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by the Group in the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2013,
are the same as those used as of December 31, 2012 with the exception of the changes described below:

a Effective amendments or revisions to existing standards and interpretations applied during the
period

The Group has applied the following amendments or revisions to existing standards and interpretations in the
preparation of its consolidated financial statements. Those amendments and interpretations were approved by the
European Union and their application was mandatory:

- As a result of the amendment to IFRS 7 “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, the
Group has expanded its disclosures about the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. This
amendment has no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”: This amendment requires that an
entity presents separately the items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit and loss,
in the future if certain conditions are met, from those that would never be reclassified to profit and loss. The
amendment also changes the title of the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income.

- Amendment to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”: IAS 19 revised (2011) requires all remeasurements to be
recognized directly in other comprehensive income. As Tarkett was already using this method this amendment
has no impact for the Group. Furthermore IAS 19 (2011) requires that remaining unvested past service costs
that used to be spread over the vesting period, are to be recognized directly in P&L. This change has a non-
significant impact of €0,5m as at December 31, 2012. IAS 19 (2011) also changes the basis for determining the
income or expense related to defined benefit plans. As a result of the change, the Group now determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period. It takes into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. The net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) comprises: interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on
plan assets. Previously, the Group determined interest income on plan assets based on their long-term rate of
expected return. This change has a €1.1m impact for the year ended December 31, 2012.

- IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”: IFRS 13 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
and sets out related disclosure requirements. IFRS 13 does not give rise to any new requirements as to when
fair value measurements are required or permitted under other IFRSs. It replaces the sometimes inconsistent
fair value measurement guidance currently included in individuals IFRSs, with a single source of authoritative
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guidance on how to measure fair value. This amendment requires further disclosure requirements (specifically
fair value of financial assets and liabilities by level of fair value hierarchy), as detailed in Note 15. In accordance
with IFRS 13 transitional provisions, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement guidance
prospectively and has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures and there has been no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Annual improvements: no significant impact on the annual consolidated financial statements.
b Early adoption of standards or interpretations during the period

The Group has early adopted the standard IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements” and IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interest in
other entities”.

Under IFRS 11, interests in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations (if the Group has rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights only to
the net assets of an arrangement). The Group has analyzed its only joint venture and concludes to qualify it as a
joint operation. This change implies the restatement of comparative period of reporting. Relative impacts are
described below. This change only concerns Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG, jointly controlled with the group Sonae
in Germany.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group
has power over an investees, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ability
to use its power to affect those returns. There has been no impact on the Group control system.

As a result of IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interest in other entities”, the Group has expanded its disclosures about its
interests in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees. The Group consolidates several structured entities holding
funds which use is restricted. The risk associated with these entities is limited to credit risk considered very low to
the extent that funds are placed with leading financial institutions.

Impacts on 2012 published figures are detailed in part 1.5.24.

The Group also applied IFRS 10, 12, IAS 27R and IAS 28R.

c. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following table lists the recent change to IFRS available to early adoption but not mandatory and not applied by
the Group.

January 1%, 2014 | Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)

January 1%, 2014 | Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

January 1%, 2014 | Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36)

January 1%, 2014 | IFRIC 21 Levies

1.2.2 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities at the date of preparation of the financial
statements and reported income and expenses for the period. The management reviews these estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis, by reference to past experience and various other factors considered as
reasonable which form the basis for assessing the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ
significantly from these estimates, if different assumptions or circumstances apply.

These judgments and estimates relate principally to:

- Measurement of the fair value of the consideration transferred, NCI and assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Such allocations may involve the use of assumptions in respect of future cash flows (note 2).

- Impairment testing of assets: Group management has undertaken those tests on the basis of its best estimates
of the future activity of the relevant cash-generating units and of appropriate discount rates (note 8 and note 9).

- Accounting treatment of financial instruments: the Group has performed the requisite valuation procedures and
has tested the effectiveness of its hedging instruments (note 24).
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Provisions for employee benefits: provisions have been estimated with the assistance of an external actuary
(note 21).

- The net tax position reflects the Group’s best estimate of the trend of its future results for tax purposes (note 19).

- All other provisions, such as warranties and litigations, have been booked upon management best estimate
using when necessary statistical approaches (note 20).

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those applied to the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012.
Where the accounting treatment of a specific transaction is not addressed by any accounting standard or
interpretation, the management applies its judgment to define and apply accounting policies that will lead to relevant
and reliable information, so that the financial statements:

- provide a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows;

- reflect the substance of transactions;

- are prepared on a prudent basis;

- and are complete in all material aspects.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis with the exception of
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: derivatives, investments held for trading
and available-for-sale financial assets, pension plan assets and other assets when required.

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities subject to fair value hedging has been adjusted in line with the changes
in fair value attributable to the hedged risks.

1.3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Income statement

Expenses are classified in the income statement according to their function.

Statement of financial position

The balance sheet distinguishes current and non-current assets and current and non-current liabilities. Current
assets comprise assets intended to be sold or consumed during the Group’s normal operating cycle and cash or
cash equivalents. Other assets are classified as non-current assets. Current liabilities comprise liabilities with
maturities during the Group’s normal operating cycle or within twelve months of the balance sheet date. Other
liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, as required by IAS 1 “Financial
Statements Presentation”, are exclusively classified as non-current.

Statement of cash flow

The statement of cash flow is presented using the indirect method.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The statement of comprehensive income includes other Income or expenses that are not recognized in profit and
loss as authorized by the IFRS.

14 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has right to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over

the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests, even if
doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

In case of a loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interest and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary.

Any surplus or deficit arising from the loss of control is recognised in profit and loss. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint venture.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the
financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the group has joint control, whereby the
Group has right to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initially
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity accounted investees, until the date on which
significant influence or joint control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

15 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies described hereafter have been applied to all the periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements and have been uniformly applied by all Group entities.

151 BUSINESS COMBINATION
Consideration

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when control
is transferred to the Group.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

- the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

- if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less

- the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the
acquiree’'s employees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the
acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination.
Consolidated financial statements

Year ended December 31, 2013 219 11/57



O Tarkett

This determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based
value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

15.2 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either:
at fair value; or
at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

153 OPTIONS
Share put options granted by the Group

The Group may write a put option or enter into a forward purchase agreement with the non-controlling shareholders
in an existing subsidiary on their equity interests in that subsidiary. If the put option or the purchase forward provides
for settlement in cash or another financial asset by the Group, then a financial liability is recognized for the present
value of the exercise price of the option or of the forward price. The counterpart is a derecognition of corresponding
non-controlling interests (i.e. the underlying interests are deemed to have been acquired already. The Group
consolidates the entity as though the non-controlling interests had already been acquired and recognises a liability
for the present value of the price payable in the event that the non-controlling interests exercise their option. This
liability is discounted over the option or forward period and any change in its valuation is accounted for through
equity.

154 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

These financial statements are presented in euro and the functional currency of Tarkett SA and its subsidiaries
located in the Euro zone is Euro. Group entities operate on an autonomous basis and therefore the functional
currency of entities operating outside the Euro zone is generally their local currency, with the exception of the
entities located in Eastern Europe which use the Euro as their functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at the
foreign exchange rate as of the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange rate differences arising on these
transactions are recognized either in the operating profit for operational transactions or in the financial result for
financing transactions.

Some items are covered by hedging transactions; the accounting treatment for those transactions is described in
note 1.5.19.

Non-monetary items are translated using the historical exchange rates whilst monetary items are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

Financial statements or foreign operations

On the balance sheet date, assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the closing rate, and income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the period.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI), and presented in the translation
reserve in equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related
to that foreign operation is reclassified to P&L as part of the gain/loss on disposal classified as financial expenses.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining
control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests.

Net investment in foreign operations

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in
the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such monetary item are considered to form
part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and
presented in the translation reserve.
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155 SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 requires an entity to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. Reportable
segments are operating segments or an aggregation of operating segments that do not meet some quantitative
thresholds.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group within the meaning of IFRS 8 is the CEO, Michel Giannuzzi

IFRS 8 defines an operating segment as follows. An operating segment is a component of an entity:
- that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
- whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the entity’'s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assets, its performance,
- for which discrete financial information is available.
In addition, IFRS 8 requires the entity to report selected information by geographical areas.

The Group’s activities have been segmented based on its management structure or divisions and differences in
products reflecting the Tarkett Group’s internal structure.
So far, the Group was reporting into two different segments, Flooring and Sports activities. In order to provide more
detailed information in line with its organization, the Group has decided to split the segment Flooring into three new
geographical segments:

- Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA);

- North America;

- CIS & Other.

For each reportable business segment, separate disclosure is provided of the related net revenue, gross profit,
adjusted EBITDA, EBITDA, EBIT and capital expenditures.

Grouping of Eastern Europe and APAC/LATAM divisions in CIS & Others

The reporting reviewed by the CFO is organized by Division. There are currently five divisions: EMEA, North
America, Eastern Europe, Asia Pacific/Latin America and Sports.
The Eastern Europe and APAC/LATAM divisions have been grouped in the “CIS & Others” segment for the following
reasons:
- The corresponding markets of these two divisions have similar economic characteristics (growth trends of
the concerned markets);
- The products sold, the production processes, the typology of the customers and the distribution ways in
these two zones are similar.

In addition, the weight relatively low of the sales and operating profits of the Asia Pacific/Latin America division (less
than 10% of the net sales and of the adjusted EBITDA reported by the Group in 2012) reinforced the fact that it was
not necessary to present this division in a specific segment.

156 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in profit or loss when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from services rendered or from construction contracts is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the
stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to surveys of work performed. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Net sales comprise revenue from the sale of goods and services net of rebates, and after elimination of intragroup
sales.

1.5.7 GRANTS

Grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Grants relating to assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment. The grants are
thus recognised as income over the lives of the assets by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Other grants are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs which they are intended to compensate.
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1.5.8 EXPENSES
Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises the cost of manufactured products, the acquisition cost of purchased goods which have
been sold, and the supply chain costs for logistic and freight.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses comprise the expenses of the marketing department and the sales force, as well
as advertising expenses, distribution expenses, sales commissions and bad debts.

Research and development expenses

Research and development costs are recognised as expenses when incurred, unless the criteria are met for them to
be capitalised, as per note 1.5.10.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses comprise the remuneration and overhead expenses associated with
management and administrative personnel with the exception of amounts charged to other cost centres.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.
Please refer to note 1.5.11Property, plant and equipment  for more precision on lease contract classification.

Capital lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability.
Please refer to note 1.5.11Property, plant and equipment  for more precision on lease contract classification.

Financial income and expense

Net financial items comprise interest payable on borrowings and receivable on financial investments, dividend
income, foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities.

Financial expense includes bank fees and interest payable on borrowings accounted for at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other financial income and expense include the income and expenses associated with loans and receivables
accounted for at amortised cost, the gains recognised in respect of investment of cash and cash equivalents,
impairment losses relating to financial assets, dividends.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial items are presented net, considering that those gains and losses
are neutralized by the related impacts of the FX hedging instruments or they are hedged or arise from non-significant
individual transactions, and by interpretation of IAS 1.35.

159 INCOME TAXES

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which
case it is recognized in these headings.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable with respect to previous years.
Income tax expense /income are defined part 1.5.22 Deferred taxes.

Income tax is calculated based on the rules applicable in each country where the Group operates.
The “Cotisation sur la Valeur Ajoutée des Entreprises (C.V.A.E.)" tax contribution enacted in France on the basis of
the value added as determined based on the statutory accounts of French entities the statutory accounts meets the

definition of Income Tax and are classified on the current income tax line. Similar treatment has been adopted for
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similar other tax contributions based on a net of products and costs amount even if this amount could be different
from the accounting net income.

1.5.10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

For the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, Tarkett applies IFRS 3 Revised, see 1.5.1, except for
acquisitions accounted for before December 31, 2009 for which IFRS 3 (2004) was applied.

Negative goodwill (badwill) is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not amortised, but instead is tested at least annually for
impairment on the basis described in note 1.5.15.

Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and an impairment loss on such investment is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that forms
part of the carrying amount of the equity accounted investee.

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development are expensed as incurred (IAS 38.5 and IAS 38.11-38.23) except when
the criteria for capitalisation of such expenditure are met.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the assets. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit and loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Patents

Patents obtained by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Capitalized
costs for internally generated patents principally relate to the costs of legal counsel. Patents capitalized are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the length of the patent. Amortization starts when the patent is issued.

Softwares

Softwares are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Softwares are amortized from
the date they are available for use on a straight line basis.

Amortization

Other intangible assets are amortized from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Patents and trademarks: Length of the patent
Development costs: 3to 6%° years
IT Softwares: 3to 5 years

1511 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Acquisition cost

Acquisition cost includes purchase cost or production cost plus the other costs incurred for bringing the items to their
operating location and condition. The cost of a self-constructed asset includes the costs of raw materials and direct
labour, the initially estimated cost of any obligation for dismantling, removing and restoring the site on which the
asset is located, and an appropriate allocation for directly attributable production overhead.
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Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment that meets the definition of
qualifying asset under IAS 23 are capitalized.

When an item of property, plant and equipment includes material components with different useful lives, each major
component is accounted for separately.

Subsequent costs

Replacements and improvements are capitalized, while general repairs, day to day servicing and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurred.

Depreciation

Assets are depreciated and charged to profit or loss over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Industrial plant and equipment 6 2/3-10 years
Printing cylinders 2 years

Other equipment and supplies 3-5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate.
Finance and operating leases

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases are recognised as items of property, plant and equipment at an amount equal
to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

The bases of depreciation and subsequent measurement of the related assets are similar to those applying to other
tangible fixed assets except in the case where the lease period is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life and it
is not reasonably certain that transfer of title will take place at the end of the lease.

Leases for which a significant portion of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets remains
with the lessor are classified as operating leases, with lease payments recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Determining wheter an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines wheter the arrangement is or contains a lease.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Group separates payments and other
consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their
relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments
reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset;
subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on liability is recognised
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

15.12 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of assets (and groups of related assets and
liabilities) are revised in accordance with the applicable standards. Then, on initial classification as held for sale,
non-current assets and disposal groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale are included in profit or loss.

A discontinued operation is a component of a Group’s business that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a
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discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale, if earlier.

1.5.13 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at their as a proxy of amortised cost less any allowance for doubtful accounts.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the management’s assessment of the recoverability of specific
customer accounts and the ageing of the accounts receivable. If there is deterioration in a major customer’s
creditworthiness or if actual defaults are higher than the historical experience, the management’s estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due to the Company could be adversely affected.
Provision for doubtful receivables

Provisions for doubtful receivables are constituted as follow:

- Bad debts identified and provisioned at 100%;
- A statistical provision, based on the age of the outstanding receivables, defined as follows.

Overdue from 61 to 180 days 25% depreciation of the gross amount

Overdue due from 181 to 270 days 50% depreciation of the gross amount

Overdue due from 271 to 360 days 75% depreciation of the gross amount

Overdue due over 360 days 100% depreciation of the gross amount
15.14 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated on a FIFO basis (first in, first out) at the lower of manufacturing/acquisition costs and net
realizable value. Manufacturing costs of self-produced inventories comprise all costs which are directly attributable
and a systematic allocation of production overhead and depreciation of production facilities based on normal
operating capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Inventories can be classified into raw material, consumables, semi-finished goods & work in progress, and finished
goods.

15.15 IMPAIRMENT
a) Non-financial assets
Annual impairment testing

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are systematically tested for impairment once a year.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than financial and deferred tax assets and liabilities, are reviewed
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Value in use is calculated by discounting estimated future cash flows for each cash-generating unit with the
exception of borrowing costs and income tax. For this purpose, use is made of 3-year plans (extrapolated by an
additional year), as well as of a terminal value for each cash-generating unit.

The main assumptions used are a pre-tax discount rate of 11% in 2013. This one was equal to 10% in 2012 and
2011. The growth rates on sales are between -2% (short term perspectives on the European Union markets) and
+13% (emerging countries mainly) over a 4-year period (2013 to 2016), depending on the area and the year. After
the 3-year period, a similar growth than between 2014 and 2015 has been assumed.

The assessment of the terminal value uses the projection to infinity with a yearly growth rate of 3%, which considers
that the Group operates on mature and growing business and markets (the same rate of 3% was used in 2012).

In assessing value in use, the estimated cash flows associated with cash-generating units recognised for operating
purposes are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital (WACC) discount
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rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to each financing
means.

For this purpose, goodwill has been allocated over cash-generating units.

On September 2012, 28th the Group acquired the Tandus Group in the United States of America in order to enlarge
its development on the US flooring markets as Tandus is specialized in the production and the sale of carpet
products, tiles and modular. This business meets the definition of a CGU, as the sale of carpet is an independent
business which generates cash flows and is managed independently from other businesses.

From January 1%, 2012, the business Sport Indoor has been mainly incorporated into business Residential
Heterogenous and it is not tested seperatelly.

Generating units impairment tests

For the impairment test, assets are tested at cash-generating units ("CGU") to reflect the segment organization of
the Group and its products.

The Group has 15 CGU'’s which correspond to product lines within the Group reporting segments.
Impairment process

The Group holds cash flows from the latest forecasts, over a period of three years, corresponding to the best
estimate of a full business cycle. These have been established taking into account cyclical variations affecting selling
prices, volumes and raw material costs. Beyond three years, the Group determines a standard year calculated by
extending the third year on the assumption of a stable revenue and margin, a need for working capital and
investments determined on normative renewal based on historical observations. This standard year is then projected
to infinity according to the method of Gordon Shapiro, applying a growth rate of 3% for all cash generating units.

The discounted future cash flows is performed at a rate before tax, reflecting current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset, determined on the weighted average cost of applicable capital.
The discount rate used by the Group in 2013 is a pre-tax rate of 11% and in 2012 a pre-tax rate of 10%.

The sensitivity analysis was carried out on two assumptions:
- The discount rate (WACC);
- The perpetual growth rate.

Tarkett takes into account the risks and performance specific to each activity through the following:
- Changes in revenue and operating profit (EBITDA) considered for the next 3 years, by specific
segment/product, testing for impairment by CGU, and defined by the Group as part of its strategic plan;
- Working capital (including inventory) defined according to the known history of the different segments and
based on assumptions change in turnover by CGU;
- Renewal investments, in line with the recent investments by CGU and consideration of potential brake on
investment especially considering some existing CGU maturity investments.

The single growth rate of 3 % is a normative assumption of growth. It is likely that growth will be greater on
incorporated CGU in some segments (especially CIS & Other, Sports) but the Group chose to retain this unique rate.
In addition, Tarkett perform a sensitivity analysis on the assumption of growth in order to take into account
reasonably possible changes.

For each CGU (or groups of CGUSs) operational assumptions that were considered key by the Group are as follows:

- Evolution of the markets in which these CGU are involved on the basis of internal estimates, supported if
possible by external forecasts on the concerned segments / products.

- Evolution of the Group in its various markets,

- General hypothesis stability of inflation balance (purchase price stable, or if changes are considered, total
compensation by changes in selling prices to balance the impact value)

- Establishment of continuous productivity plans for factories working on these CGU to improve profitability.
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Change in the discount rate and growth rate

In 2013, the combination of an increase in the discount rate by 100 basis points and a decrease in the growth rate of
100 basis points would result in an additional impairment of the CGU Laminate of the segment CIS & Others for an
amount of €12.1m.

Changes in 100 basis points in the discount rate and growth rate are reasonably possible variations for the Group.
Tarkett operates in various countries, with a balance between three main areas (European Union, North America
and CIS & Others). The economic developments in these areas can mitigate them, as it has also been demonstrated
in the past.

Impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit on a prorata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

b) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. For an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline on its fair value below its costs is indicative of impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate.

Impairment loss on available for sale financial assets is measured as the difference between its carrying amount and
its fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised and recognised by reclassifying the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

15.16 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and
share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. When share capital recognized as
equity is repurchased, the amount of consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, is net of any tax
effects, and is recognized as a deduction from equity classified as own shares. When own shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or
deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings.

1.5.17 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is generally
recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the shares awarded.
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of shares awarded for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that amount ultimately recognised is
based on the number of shares awarded that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the
vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share
based payment would be measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of SARs, which are settled in cash is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based
on the fair value of the SARs. Any changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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Share-based payment programs include both programs allowing Group employees to acquire shares of the
Company under specific conditions and programs awarding free shares to Group employees. The current existing
programs are described in the note 23 of the Group financial statements.

1.5.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Within the Tarkett Group, various systems for providing for retirement benefits depending on the legal, economic and
tax environment of each country exist. In accordance with the laws and uses applied in each country, Tarkett SA
participates in pension, welfare, health and retirement benefit plans whose benefits are dependent on various factors
such as length of service, salary and the contributions paid to institutions.

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

These contributions, based on services rendered by employees, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group assumes the obligation of providing
employees with future benefits and thus also assumes the related actuarial and investment risks. The defined benefit
liability is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present value from which the
amount of past service cost for the period may also be deduced.

The detailed actuarial calculation requires the use of actuarial hypotheses for demographic variables (mortality,
employee turnover) and economic variables (future increases in salaries and medical costs, discount rate).

When defined benefit plans are totally or partially funded by contributions paid to a separate fund or insurance
company, those entities’ assets are measured at their fair value and their amount is deducted from the obligation to
define net liability disclosed in the Group’s balance sheet. Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest) are recognized immediately in OCI.

The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.”

The Group’s obligation in respect of such arrangements is calculated by independent actuaries, according to IAS 19.
Actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit liabilities and plan assets comprise both the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions and the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has
actually occurred.

Actuarial gains and losses for retirement benefit plans are immediately recognised in other comprehensive income.

Past service cost

When changes occur to a defined benefit plan, past service cost for the changed benefit liability is recognised as an
expense immediately in profit and loss.

Curtailment and liquidation

The effects of any liquidation of plans or reduction of benefits are recognised in profit or loss at the date of liquidation
or reduction.

1.5.19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has applied IFRS 7 and IFRS 13 which define the disclosures to be made in respect of financial assets
and liabilities.
Financial transactions are recorded based on the effective date of payment.
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Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value plus any applicable transaction costs except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss for which transactions costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the date of acquisition the Group classifies its financial assets in one of the four categories provided for by IAS 39.
The classification determines the basis of measurement of each financial asset at the subsequent balance sheet
dates, whether at amortised cost or at fair value.

Held-to-maturity investments are exclusively securities with fixed or determinable payments (other than items
defined as loans and receivables) acquired with the intention of holding them to maturity. They are accounted for at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The net income recognised in respect of such assets comprises
the aggregate of interest receivable and any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are accounted for at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses reflecting the risk of non-recovery. The category includes trade and
other loans and receivables. The net income recognised in respect of such assets comprises the aggregate of
interest receivable and any impairment losses.

Subsequent to initial recognition, available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value, and changes therein,
other than impairment losses (see 1.5.15) are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The category mainly comprises non-consolidated long-term investments which are measured in the balance sheet at
their acquisition cost assuming the absence of an active market for the securities held. The net income recognised
in respect of such assets comprises the aggregate of dividends receivable, any impairment losses and the gains or
losses arising on disposal.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include both items held for trading, i.e. that the
Group has from the outset the intention to sell in the near future (including derivatives not qualified as hedging
instruments), and assets specifically designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These assets are adjusted to
their fair value at each balance sheet date and the resulting gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

This category notably includes cash and cash equivalents. The net income recognised in respect of such assets
comprises the aggregate of interest receivable, changes in fair value and the gains or losses arising on disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, term deposits and other monetary investments with
initial maturities not exceeding three months and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For purposes of cash flows statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents are defined on the same basis as in
the balance sheet.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise financial debt and trade and other operating payables.
With the exception of items classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans payable and
other financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value less any applicable transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Given their short maturities, trade and other operating payables are measured at historical cost since use of the
amortised cost basis would produce very similar results.

Derivative instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to the foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk associated with its purchases and sales denominated in foreign currencies and with its financing and investment
transactions.

The derivatives employed comprise in particular interest rate swaps and options, other forward contracts and foreign
currency options.

In accordance with its policy in respect of financial instruments, the Group neither uses nor issues derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes, but derivatives which do not meet the criteria qualifying them for hedge
accounting are nevertheless accounted for similarly to speculative instruments.

Derivatives are recognised in the balance sheet at their fair value (whether positive or negative) with changes in fair
value immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative instruments which qualify for hedge accounting and meet the applicable effectiveness tests are classified
either as fair value hedges (when their purpose is to hedge an existing asset or liability’s exposure to the risk of
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changes in its fair value) or cash flow hedges (when their purpose is to hedge the exposure to changes in the cash
flows associated with highly probable future transactions).

Changes in the fair value of fair value hedges of exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk are recognised
as part of financial income or expense. The hedged assets and liabilities are also adjusted to their fair value and the
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk(s) are equally recognised as part of financial income or expense.
Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges of exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk are recognised
within other comprehensive income with the exception of any ineffective portion of changes in fair value which is
recognised in financial income or expense.

The gains and losses initially recognised directly in other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss
during the period in which the hedged item itself produces an impact on profit or loss.

If a derivative instrument ceases to meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative amount recognised in
other comprehensive income at that date remains in other comprehensive income until the date of occurrence of the
transaction initially hedged, but if the transaction is no longer expected to occur then the amount is immediately
transferred in full to profit or loss.

Derivative instruments which cease to meet the criteria for hedge accounting are reclassified as held for trading and
changes in their fair value are recognised as part of financial income or expense.

Finally, the effective portion of the foreign exchange gain or loss associated with hedges of net investments in
foreign operations is recognised directly in other comprehensive income; the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value method

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable date as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
- level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or the liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
- level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)”.
However, if the fair value of an equity instrument cannot be reasonably estimated, it is measured at cost.
The fair value of all the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is determined as at the balance sheet date either for
inclusion in the balance sheet or for disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of interest rate swaps and of interest rate and foreign currency options is the estimated amount that
the Group would expect to receive or have to pay in order to cancel each derivative instrument at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the current level of interest rates and the credit risk associated with the swaps’
counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their market value at the balance sheet date, i.e. the
present value of their quoted forward prices.

The derivative financial instruments (swaps, caps, floors etc.) employed by Tarkett are entered into by private
arrangement and are thus not subject to quoted prices. They are therefore measured using the valuation models
commonly employed by operators in the market and in particular:

- Interest rate swaps are measured on the basis of the present value of the contractual future cash flows;

- Options are measured using Black and Scholes type valuation models based on published market quotations
and/or on quotations provided by third party financial institutions;

- Other foreign currency and interest rate derivative instruments are measured on the basis of the present value
of the associated interest rate differentials.

Derivative instruments are entered into exclusively with first class banks or other financial institutions, and with the
sole purpose of providing security for the Group’s current operations and for the financing thereof.

The fair value of non-quoted borrowings is calculated on the basis of the present value of the contractual cash flows
discounted at the market rate of interest, including the applicable risk premium.

In the case of receivables and payables with maturities of less than a year and certain floating rate receivables and
payables, historical cost is considered as a reasonable approximation of their fair value given the limited credit
periods granted and received within the Group.

1.5.20 PROVISIONS

Provisions and non-current liabilities are comprised of liabilities for which the amount or the timing are uncertain.
They arise from environmental risks, legal and tax risks, litigation and other risks.

Consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2013 230 22/57



O Tarkett

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. Provisions are reversed when they are no longer required.

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products are sold. The provision is based on historical
warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan,
and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced. Future operating losses are not provided for.

1521 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are stated at their repayment amounts. Payables of uncertain timing or amount are shown as
accrued charges.

15.22 DEFERRED TAXES

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

The following temporary differences are not provided for:
- Goodwill not deductible for tax purposes;

- The initial recognition of assets or liabilities, other than in the context of transactions involving business
combinations, that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit;
- Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
A deferred income tax asset is recognized only to the extent that there will be future taxable profits over the next five
years against which this asset can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer likely that a sufficient taxable benefit will support the asset recovery.

15.23 NET DEBT

The Net debt is defined netting up the interest bearing loans, borrowings and bank overdraft, minus the cash and
cash equivalents.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings refer to any obligation for the repayment of funds received or raised which are
subject to repayment terms and interest charges. They also include liabilities on finance lease.

15.24 RECONCILIATION OF EARLY ADOPTION OF IFRS 11 AND RECLASSIFICATIONS
Early adoption of standards or interpretations

The Group has early adopted the standard IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements” and IFRS 12 “Disclosure of interest in
other entities”. Under IFRS 11, interests in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations (if the Group
has rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group
has rights only to the net assets of an arrangement). The Group has analyzed its only joint venture and concludes to
qualify it as a joint operation. This change implies the restatement of comparative period of reporting. Relative
impacts are described below. This change only concerns Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG, jointly controlled with the
group Sonae in Germany. Relative impacts are described below.

2011 has not been restated since the impact in the Consolidated Financial Statement is not significant and
concerned the same aggregates than 2012.

The Group also applied IFRS 10, 12, IAS 27R and IAS 28R.
Reclassifications

The reclassifications in the balance sheet and the Cash Flow are done in order to reconcile the different categories
of working capital between these two statements.
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other reclassifications in the

balance sheet as at December 31, 2012

Dec 2012 Dec 2012

Note published IFRS 11 adoption Reclassifications restated
ASSETS
Goodwill ®) 449.1 - - 449.1
Intangible assets 9 98.5 0.1) - 98.4
Property, plant and equipment 9 429.4 (0.6) - 428.7
Financial assets 9 35.2 (5.9 - 29.3
Deferred tax assets (19) 96.7 (0.6) - 96.2
Non-current assets 1,108.8 (7.2) - 1,101.7
Inventories (10) 339.1 (5.7) - 333.3
Trade receivables (12) 283.1 (1.8) 6.3 287.6
Other receivables (12) 66.7 (0.5) (6.3) 59.9
Cash and cash equivalents (15) 81.4 0.3) - 81.1
Current assets 770.4 8.3) - 762.0
TOTAL ASSETS 1,879.2 (15.5) - 1,863.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 13) 316.1 - - 316.1
Share premium and reserves 138.8 - - 138.8
Retained earnings 144.9 0.0 - 145.0
Net result for the period 83.7 - - 83.7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 683.6 0.0 - 683.6
Non-controlling interests 10.1 - - 10.1
Total equity 693.7 (0.0) - 693.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 342.8 (7.1) - 335.7
Other financial liabilities (16) 6.8 - - 6.8
Deferred tax liabilities (29) 5.4 - - 5.4
Employee benefits (21) 142.2 - - 142.2
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (20) 38.1 - - 38.1
Non-current liabilities 535.2 (7.2) - 528.1
Trade payables a7 221.7 (3.4) 26.0 244.3
Other liabilities 18) 189.9 @.3) (26.0) 162.6
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (15) 190.8 (3.6) - 187.2
Other financial liabilities (16) 11.6 - - 11.6
Provisions and other current liabilities (20) 36.2 - - 36.2
Current liabilities 650.3 8.4) - 641.9
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,879.2 (15.5) - 1,863.7
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other reclassifications in the P&L in

2012
Dec 2012 Dec 2012

Note published IFRS 11 adoption restated
Continuing operations
Net revenue 2,318.5 (27.0) 2,291.5
Cost of sales (1,792.2) 26.4 (1,765.8)
Gross profit 526.2 (0.5) 525.7
Other operating income (5) 6.4 1.2 7.6
Selling and distribution expenses (214.3) 0.8 (213.5)
Research and development expenses (19.8) - (19.8)
General and administrative expenses (136.7) 0.5 (136.2)
Other expenses 5) (10.5) 0.2 (10.3)
Results from operating activities 9) 151.3 2.1 153.5
Financial income 2.2 0.2 25
Financial expenses (27.0) 0.5 (26.5)
Net finance costs (6) (24.7) 0.7 (24.0)
Share of profit of equity accounted investees (net of income tax) - 1.9 1.9
Profit before income tax 126.6 0.9 127.5
Income tax expenses @) (41.4) 0.9) (42.3)
Profit from continuing operations 85.2 0.0) 85.2
Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (net of income tax) - - -
Profit for the period 85.2 - 85.2
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 83.6 - 83.6
Non-controlling interests 1.6 - 1.6
Profit for the period 85.2 - 85.2
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) (8) 1.35 - 1.35
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) (8) 1.34 - 1.34
Earnings per share - Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share (in EUR) (8) 1.35 - 1.35
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR) (8) 1.34 - 1.34

Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other reclassifications in the OCI in

2012

The change in consolidated method of Laminate Park has no impact on the Other Comprehensive Income.
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Summary of impacts arising from changes in accounting standards and other reclassifications in the cash

flow in 2012

Dec 2012 Dec 2012
published IFRS 11 adoption Reclassifications restated

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 126.6 0.8 - 127.5
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 88.8 - - 88.8

(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets - - - -

Net finance costs 24.8 (0.7) - 24.0

Change in provisions and other non-cash items 7.6 - - 7.6

Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of tax - 1.9 - 1.9
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 247.9 2.1 - 250.0
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in trade receivables 38.1 (0.6) (9.1) 28.3
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in other receivables (4.9) (0.2) (1.5) (6.6)
Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in inventories (21.2) 1.1 - (20.0)
Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in trade payables 28.6 (1.4) 1.5 28.7
Increase (+) / Decrease (-) in other payables 7.8 (0.1) 9.1 16.9
Effect of changes in working capital 48.4 (1.2) - 47.2
Cash generated from operations 296.2 1.0 - 297.2
Interest paid (22.6) 0.7 - (21.9)
Income taxes paid (45.3) - - (45.3)
Other items 0.7 0.1 - 0.8
Other operating items (67.2) 0.8 - (66.5)
Net cash from operating activities 229.0 1.7 - 230.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 2) (259.2) - - (259.2)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9) (85.0) 0.2 - (84.8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9) 0.7 - - 0.7
Net cash used in investing activities (343.5) 0.2 - (343.3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 213.8 (2.0) - 211.8
Repayment of loans and borrowings (70.3) - - (70.3)
Payment of finance lease liabilities (0.8) - - (0.8)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 142.7 (2.0) - 140.6
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28.1 (0.1) - 28.0
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 53.9 (0.2) - 53.7
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (0.6) - - (0.6)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 81.4 (0.3) - 81.1
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NOTE 2 — CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

The Tarkett Group’s consolidation scope is as follows. Note 29 provides a list of main consolidated entities.

Number of companies Dec 31, 2012 IFRS 11 Dec 31, 2012

published adoption restated Creation Mergers Dec 31, 2013
Fully consolidated companies 72 - 72 1 3) 70
Equity-accounted companies - 1 1 - - 1
Jointly controlled companies subject to proportionate consolidation 1 1)
TOTAL 73 - 73 1 (3) 71

2.1 SCOPE VARIATION

Merger

In Qanuary 2013, “Les Installations Sportives Defargo Inc.” merged with and into “Tarkett Inc,” the Canadian parent
ang%'y 2013, “Tandus Group Inc.” merged with and into “Tandus Flooring Inc”.

In July 2013, “Tarkett Texas Holding Inc.” merged with and into “Texas Tile Manufacturing LLC".

In November 2013, SIF and Partholdi merged with and into Tarkett.

Creation

In December 2013, Tarkett Services has been created.

2.2 PURCHASE ACCOUNTING OF TANDUS ACQUISITION

On September 28, 2012, Tarkett has acquired the US group Tandus, specialized in the production and the sale of
carpet products in order to enlarge its development on the US flooring markets.

Tandus group comprises 10 legal entities, including 6 plants, mainly based in North America and sales entities
located in North America and in Asia. All these companies are fully consolidated and held at 100% since their
acquisition by Tarkett.

The initial consideration paid for Tandus group amounts to €274.1m and includes the reimbursement of Tandus debt
of €129.8m. An additional amount has been paid in 2013 which was defined in the acquisition contract and
corresponds to tax refunds for an amount of €(3.5)m, this complementary amount is presented in the line
« Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired » of the 2013 cash flow statement.

Acquisition costs have been reported in « General and administrative expenses » for an amount of €3.2m.

The acquisition impact in the consolidated cash flow statement was presented, as of December 31, 2012, in the line
« Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired » for an amount of €(258.3)m.

Acquisition of Tandus group (144.2)
Tandus loan reimbursement (129.8)
Cash acquired, less stock-options paid 15.8

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (258.3)

As of December 31, 2012 this acquisition has been recorded in accordance with IFRS3-r on provisional basis. The
resulting goodwill at the end of 2012 was equal to €170.1m.

On 2013, Tarkett has finalized identification work and evaluation of acquired assets and liabilities, these results in a
decrease in goodwill. At the end of December 2013, it amounts to €152.3m. This goodwill is not tax deductible.
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Initial goodwill at December 31, 2012 170.7
Additionnal consideration 3.5

Fair value of assets (14.9)
Intangible assets (16.1)
Deferred tax assets (0.5)
Inventories (Impairment) 2.0

Deferred tax liabilities 1.6

Other liabilities (1.8)
Exchange variations (7.0)
Final goodwill 152.3

This goodwill corresponds mainly to:
- Specific technology and know-how,
- Expected sales synergies in North America ("cross selling af Tandus and tarkett products”), added to
potential development of Tandus outside North America,
- Market shares already acquired by the Tandus group.

Purchase price adjustments are detailed below:

Fair value of

Accounting acquired
value PPA assets and

before PPA adjustments FX change liabilities
Goodwill 71.7 (71.7) - -
Intangible assets 1.3 16.1 0.7) 16.8
Tangible assets 37.5 8.0 (2.8) 42.7
Other financial assets 0.4 - (0.0) 0.3
Deferred tax assets 6.7 0.8 (0.5) 7.0
Inventories 38.0 0.9 (2.5) 36.4
Trade receivables 29.9 - (1.9) 28.0
Other operating assets 51 - (0.3) 4.8
Cash and cash equivalents 21.0 - (1.3) 19.7
Loans and borrowings (129.9) 0.7) 8.2 (122.4)
Deferred tax liabilities (24.3) 12.0 0.8 (11.6)
Other non courant liabilities (7.9) - 0.5 (7.4)
Trade payables (10.0) - 0.6 9.4)
Other operating liabilities (21.5) 1.8 1.3 (18.4)
Net assets at fair value (B) 17.7 (32.7) 1.3 (13.7)
Consideration paid (A) 144.2 3.5 (9.1) 138.6
Consolidated goodwill (A) - (B) 126.5 36.2 (10.4) 152.3

Main fair value adjustments concern:
- Cancellation of historical goodwill reported in Tandus accounts for €71.7m,
- Reevaluation of tangible assets, as machinery and equipments based on expert analysis for €8.0m,
- Identification of intangible assets for €16.1m relative to:
v' patents, representative of technology brought by Tandus, amortized on 6 years,
v" and several Tandus trademarks: Tandus name (amortized on 10 years), Sero trademark (amortized on
7 years), and Powerbond and Ethos trademarks (indefinite useful life),
- Fair value adjustment on inventories taking into account ageing and slow moving risks for €0.8m.
Update of deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on adjustments mentioned above.

Impact of Tandus acquisition on P&L:

Between the 28" of September 2012 and the 31% of December 2012, Tandus has contributed to the Group
performance for €66.1m of net sales and €5.4m of net result.

If acquisition has taken place on 1st of January 2012, the net sales and the net result of the Group would have
increased respectively for €205.7m and €23.6m.
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2.3 RECLASSIFICATION OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY INTO JOINT VENTURE

Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG jointly held with Sonae group in Germany was the only remaining jointly controlled
entity. Impacts of the reclassification of the jointly controlled entity as per IAS 31 into joint venture as per IFRS 11
are detailed in section 1.5.24 Early adoption of standards or interpretations.

Laminate Park GmbH & Co KG products laminate and board at the destination of EMEA market.

The impact of the jointly controlled entities on Tarkett consolidated statements of financial position and income is the
following (the following balance sheet and P&L figures are consolidated at 50%):

Balance sheet

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012

% of ownership interest 50% 50%
ASSETS

Intangible assets 0.1 0.1

Property, plant and equipment 0.7 0.6

Deferred tax assets 0.3 0.6

Non-current assets 1.2 1.2

Inventories 5.5 5.7

Trade receivables 2.2 2.9

Other receivables 0.2 0.5

Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 0.3

Current assets 8.0 9.5

TOTAL ASSETS 9.2 10.7

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Retained earnings (13.0) (11.0)
Net result for the period 1.6 (1.9)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (11.3) (13.0)
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity (11.3) (13.0)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 14.2 14.2
Non-current liabilities 14.2 14.2
Trade payables 2.6 5.2
Other liabilities 0.5 0.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 3.1 3.6
Other financial liabilities 0.1 -
Current liabilities 6.3 9.5
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9.2 10.7
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Profit and Loss

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012

Net revenue 22.7 27.0
Cost of sales (21.4) (26.4)
Gross profit 1.4 0.5

Other operating income 1.1 0.1

Selling and distribution expenses 0.2) (0.8)
Research and dewvelopment expenses - 0.2)
General and administrative expenses (0.5) (0.5)
Other operating expenses (2.2) (1.4)
Results from operating activities (0.4) (2.1)
Financial income 3.7 0.7

Financial expenses 1.4) 1.4)
Net finance costs 2.3 0.7)

Share of profit of equity accounted investees (net of income tax) - -

Profit before income tax 1.9 (2.8)
Income tax expenses 0.3) 0.9
Profit from continuing operations 1.6 1.9

NOTE 3 — ADJUSTED EBITDA

The adjusted EBITDA is a key indicator for the Group to measure its operating and recurring performance.

It is defined considering the operating income before depreciation and amortization and removing revenues and
expenses that are considered as adjustments in nature, i.e.:

- Restructuring costs to improve the future profitability of the Group,

- Gains or losses on significant asset disposals,

- Impairment and reversal of impairment based on Group impairment test only,

- Costs related to business combination and legal reorganization, including legal fees, transactions costs and

consulting fees,
- Specifically in 2013, costs related to IPO,
- Expenses related to share-based payments due to their non-cash nature.
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The Group’s adjusted EBITDA breaks down as follows:

Impairment &
Restructuring Customer's list

Of which adjustments

Business
combinations

Share-based
payments

Others (*)

Dec 31, 2013

Dec 31, 2013 amortization Adjusted
Net sales 2,516.4 - - - - - 2,516.4
Cost of sales (1,892.8) (1.8) 4.8) - - 0.6) (1,885.5)
Gross profit 623.7 (1.8) (4.8) - - (0.6) 631.0
Other operating income 8.9 - - - - 0.1 8.8
Selling and distribution expenses (248.8) (2.3) - - - 0.8) (245.8)
Research and development expenses (25.8) - - - - - (25.8)
General and administrative expenses (162.3) (1.1 1.3 (0.5 6.2) 8.8 (144.5)
Other expenses (14.8) - - - - 1.9 (12.9)
Result from operating activities 180.9 (5.3) (6.1) (0.5) (6.1) (11.9) 210.9
Depreciation and amortization 105.5 - 6.4 - - - 99.1
EBITDA 286.4 (5.3) 0.2 (0.5) (6.1) (11.9) 310.0
(**) included IPO costs
Of which adjustments
Impairment & Business Share-based
Restructuring Customer's list L Others Dec ?1’ 2012
Dec 31, 2012 amortization combinations payments Adjusted
restated* restated*
Net sales 2,291.5 - - - - - 2,291.5
Cost of sales (1,765.8) (5.0 - (3.8) - - (1,757.0)
Gross profit 525.7 (5.0 - (3.8) - - 534.5
Other operating income 7.6 - - (0.5) - 15 6.6
Selling and distribution expenses (213.5) (0.8) - - - - (212.7)
Research and development expenses (19.8) - - - - - (19.8)
General and administrative expenses (136.2) 0.9 x.7 (3.3 2.5 (2.8 (125.0)
Other expenses (10.3) - - - - 1.9 8.9)
Result from operating activities 153.4 (6.6) 1.7 (7.6) (2.5 (3.2 175.2
Depreciation and amortization 88.8 - 1.7 - - - 87.1
EBITDA 242.2 (6.6) - (7.6) (2.5) (3.2) 262.2
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NOTE 4 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

Dec 31, 2013
Net revenue

Activity (*)

Gross profit
% of net sales

Adjusted EBITDA
% of net sales

EBITDA
% of net sales

EBIT
% of net sales

Capital expenditures

(*) including inter-segment revenue

Dec 31, 2012
restated *
Net revenue

Activity (*)

Gross profit
% of net sales

Adjusted EBITDA
% of net sales

EBITDA
% of net sales

EBIT
% of net sales

Capital expenditures

(*) including inter-segment revenue

Information on the activity in France and in other significant countries

EMEA
669.6

746.5

181.7
27.1%

71.3
10.6%

69.4
10.4%

34.6
5.2%

19.2

EMEA
679.0

756.9

181.1
26.7%

76.3
11.2%

70.5
10.4%

41.5
6.1%

25.3

Flooring

North
America
673.6

674.0

180.7
26.8%

74.0
11.0%

68.6
10.2%

38.9
5.8%

20.9

Flooring

North
America
477.4

477.5

95.9
20.1%

30.1
6.3%

23.8
5.0%

4.8
1.0%

19.5

CIS &
Others
887.5
900.7

215.6
24.3%

190.1
21.4%

188.9
21.3%

143.2
16.1%

37.3

CIS &
Others
874.1
882.9

206.5
23.6%

180.0
20.6%

177.8
20.3%

130.6
14.9%

30.7

The activity of the Group in France is lower than 10% of sales.

The non-current assets, excluding the non-affected Goodwill coming from the merger between Tarkett and Sommer
on the early 2000’s, represents also less than 10% of the total non-current assets of the Group in 2013 and in 2012.

Within Tarkett, we consider a threshold of 25% of the net sales as significant. Only one country is concerned: the
United States of America. This country actually represents 30.8% of the net sales in 2013 and 30.4% of the proforma
net sales in 2012. The non-current assets of the United States of America represent 42.2% of the total non-current
assets of the Group on December 31, 2013 and 42.0% on December 31, 2012.
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Sports

285.8
288.1

45.7
16.0%

15.0
5.2%

14.6
5.1%

(1.2)
0.4)%

4.4

Sports

260.9
263.0

42.1
16.1%

10.1
3.9%

9.2
3.5%

(4.6)
(1.8)%

4.2

Central

(40.3)

(55.1)

(34.7)

5.9

Central

(34.2)

(39.0)

(18.9)

5.0

Group

2,516.4

623.7
24.8%

310.0
12.3%

286.4
11.4%

180.9
7.2%

87.8

Group

2,291.5

525.7
22.9%

262.2
11.4%

242.2
10.6%

153.4
6.7%

84.8
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None of Tarkett's customers represents more than 10% of its sales.
The largest customer represents less than 5% of the sales in 2013, as in the previous years.

NOTE 5 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME — OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Other operating income
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 0.3 -
Other operating income 8.6 7.6
8.9 7.6

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses (14.8) (10.3)

(14.8) (10.3)
Total other operating income and expenses (5.9) (2.8)

This category includes all operating income and expenses that cannot be directly attributed to business functions.

NOTE 6 — FINANCIAL RESULT

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
FINANCIAL INCOME
Interest income on loans assets & cash equivalents 1.3 2.0
Other financial income 0.3 0.5
1.6 25

FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest expenses on loans and overdrafts (16.2) (12.9)
Interest expenses on capital leases 0.2) (0.2)
Commissions expenses on financial liabilities (5.0 (6.6)
Interest on provisions for pensions (6.4) (3.8
Foreign exchange rate losses 4.2) (2.5)
Other net financial expenses 0.3 (0.6)
Impairment on financial assets 0.2) (0.2)
Profit/Gain on disposal of shares - (0.2)
Net loss on interest rate instruments (0.8) 0.2

(33.0) (26.5)
Net finance costs (31.4) (24.0)
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NOTE 7 — INCOME TAX

Income tax (current and deferred) is detailed as follows:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Current tax (51.9) (52.5)
Deferred tax 4.1 10.2
Total income tax (47.9) (42.3)

Theoretical income taxes determined using the French income tax rate of 34.43% for 2013 and 2012 can be
reconciled as follows to the actual income tax charge:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *

Income tax at French income tax rate (51.0) (43.9)
Effect of:

Taxation of foreign companies at different rates * 313 24.8

Recognition of deferred tax assets relating to previous years 19.6 17.2

Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets (21.5) (26.8)

Permanent differences-non deductible items (4.6) 3.1

Tax costs related to dividends (WHT, french surtax 3%) (17.8) (12.7)

Other items (3.8) (4.0
Income tax expenses (47.9) (42.3)
*The difference with the tax rate at 34.43% is presented here.

NOTE 8 —- GOODWILL
The evolution of Goodwill can be analysed as follows:
Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *

Opening carrying amount 449.1 276.8
New goodwiill - 174.1
Adjustment to initial purchase price allocation of Tandus (12.5) -
Effects of movements in exchange rates (10.9) (5.5)
Other - 3.7
Closing carrying amount 425.6 449.1

The main variation is explained by the allocation of goodwill following purchase price allocation of Tandus group and
results in a goodwill decrease of €(12.5)m for which details are given in note 2.2 “Purchase accounting of Tandus
acquisition”.

No impairment losses have been recognised during 2013 and 2012.

An increase of 1% of the discount rate pre-tax would have not generated an additional impairment of the goodwill of
the Group.

The allocation of goodwill between the various CGU's is as follows:
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Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated *
Gross value Net value Gross value Net value
EMEA 62.5 61.9 62.9 62.3
North America 216.2 199.1 238.2 221.1
CIS & Others 96.5 95.5 96.5 95.5
Sports 74.8 69.1 75.8 70.1
TOTAL 449.9 425.6 473.6 449.1

At the end of December 2013, there is an amount of €7.4m of intangible asset in gross and net value with an
indefinite life positioned in Tandus Group CGU’s. At the end of 2012, there was no intangible asset with an indefinite
life.

NOTE 9 — INTANGIBLE, TANGIBLE AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

Carrying amounts

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Research & development 4.3 4.2
Patents 44.0 52.9
Trademarks 17.8 7.8
Computer software 31.0 24.9
Other intangible assets 6.6 8.5
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 7.1 0.1
Intangible assets 110.9 98.4
Real property and rights equivalents to real property 181.0 193.4
Leased buildings 4.8 5.8
Technical equipment and machinery 191.6 200.7
Leased land and equipment 4.9 5.4
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 33.1 23.4
Property, plant and equipment (*) 415.4 428.7
Bonds, debenture loan & oth sec. Invest - Long-term 2.7 11
Financial investments and receivables - Long-term 22.1 23.9
Loan receivables - Long-term 0.3 0.5
Security deposit - Long-term 2.4 3.8
Other financial assets 27.5 29.3

(*) Equipment which is currently under construction has been allocated to individual items.

Impairment losses recognised during 2013 and 2012 can be broken down as follows:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
EMEA(*) (5.1) -
Total (5.1) -

() CGUO8 Wood - EMEA
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The variations in gross value, depreciation and amortization break down as follow:

Balance at Change in Change in Foreign Balance at
Dec 31,2012  Additions  Disposals Transfer  accounting  exchange
scope - ) Dec 31, 2013
Gross Book Value restated* policies  differences
Research & development 8.2 14 - - 0.3) 9.3
Patents 120.4 0.2 0.5 3.0 (5.4) 117.8
Trademarks 17.2 0. 13.2 (1.6) 28.7
Leasehold & similar rights - - - - - -
Computer software 51.3 9.8 0.5) 7.9 .7 66.8
Other intangible assets 75 - 0.1) - (0.5) 6.9
Intangible assets in process 0.1 6.1 - 1.0 - 0.1) 7.1
Intangible assets 204.7 17.5 0.7) 8.4 16.1 (9.5) 236.6
Real property and rights equivalents to real property 389.4 33 2.1 0. 47 0.2 6.1) 389.2
Leased buildings 20.2 0.1 - - - - 0.8) 195
Technical equipment and machinery 1,066.5 18.8 (12.3) 0.8) 33.0 0.8 (25.2) 1,080.8
Leased land and equipment 13.1 1.9 - - - - 14.9
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 234 58.9 0.1) - (48.1) - (1.0) 331
Property, plant and equipment 1,512.5 83.0 (14.6) (0.9 (10.5) 1.0 (33.1) 1,537.5
Bonds, debenture loan & oth sec. invest- Long-term 11 4.6 8.0 (8.5) 0.4 2.7
Financial investments and receivables - Long-term 239 2.1 15 (0] 221
Loan receivables - Long-term 0.5 - - 0.3
Security deposit - Long-term 7.0 0.2 - - (1.4) (0.6) 5.1
Other financial assets 324 2.7 (3.3 8.0 T (84) (1.3 30.2
Balance at . Change in Foreign
Dec 31, 2012 Depreciation Disposals ~ Reversal Impairment Change in accounting Transfer exchange Balance at Dec
- - scope L ) 31,2013
Accumulated depreciation and amortization restated* policies differences
Research & development 4.0) (2.0) 0.1 (5.0)
Patents (67.5) 9.6 33 (73.8)
Trademarks 9.3 (2.2 0.6 (10.9)
Leasehold & similar rights (0.0) - - - - -
Computer software (26.4) 9.5) 0.5 (1.1 0.7 (35.8)
Other intangible assets 1.0 (1.6) 0.1 - 0.1 0.3)
Intangible assets (106.3) (23.8) 0.6 (L.1) 4.9 (125.7)
Real property and rights equivalents to real property (195.9) (16.9) 18 11 0.1 0.3) (2.3 42 (208.2)
Leased buildings (14.3) (1.1 - 0.2 - - - 0.5 (14.7)
Technical equipment and machinery (865.8) (67.6) 12.3 5.1 0.9 0.8) 5.2 215 (889.2)
Leased land and equipment (7.7) (2.3) - - - - - - (10.0)
Property, plant and equipment (1,083.8) (88.0) 14.0 6.5 0.9 0.9) 2.9 26.3 (1,122.1)
Security deposit - Long-term (3.1) 0.1) 0.5 (2.7)
Other financial assets (3.1) 0.1) 0.5 (2.7)
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Balance at Change in Foreign Balance at
Dec 31,2011  Additions Disposals cope Transfer exchange  Dec 31, 2012
Gross Book Value restated* differences resated*
Research & development 6.9 2.4 (1.4) 0.2 0.1 8.2
Patents 124.3 0.1 (0.0) 0.1 2.2 120.4
Trademarks 18.8 0.1 17.2
Leasehold & similar rights 0.5 - - - -
Computer software 318 14.9 0.3 7.6 0.4) 51.3
Other intangible assets 10.0 - (2.6) 0.2) 75
Intangible assets in process - 0.4 - - - 0.1
Intangible assets 192.2 17.8 4.3 45 (3.2) 204.7
Real property and rights equivalents to real property 356.2 2.4 0.3 24.2 7.1 0.3 380.4
Leased buildings 20.1 - - - - - 20.2
Technical equipment and machinery 934.7 22.1 (18.7) 106.4 19.1 2.8 1,066.5
Leased land and equipment 13.0 0.0 - - 0.1 - 131
Advance payments and fixed assets in progress 5.5 42.1 0.2 13 (24.9) 0.3 234
Property, plant and equipment 1,329.5 66.6 (19.2) 131.9 15 2.2 15125
Bonds, debenture loan & oth sec. invest- Long-term 15 (0.5) - 11
Financial investments and receivables - Long-term 17.0 7.3 - (0.4) 239
Loan receivables - Long-term 0.1 - 0.1) - 0.5 - 0.5
Security deposit - Long-term 6.7 0.4 0.1) 0.4 0.0 (0.4) 7.0
Other financial assets 25.3 7.3 (0.2) 0.4 0.5 (0.8) 32.4
Balance at Change in Foreign Balance at
Dec 31,2011 Depreciation  Disposals Reversal  Impairment scope Transfer exchange  Dec 31, 2012
Accumulated depreciation and amortization restated* differences restated*
Research & development 3.3 (0.5) - 0.1 (0.2) 0.1) (4.0)
Patents (59.5) 9.2) - - - 12 (67.5)
Trademarks 9.2) (0.6) - 0.4 - 0.1 9.3
Leasehold & similar rights 0.3 - - - - 0.3 - (0.0)
Computer software (13.9) 6.7) 0.3 (6.3) 0.2) 0.2 (26.4)
Other intangible assets 0.2 L7) 2.5 - - 0.1) 0.1 1.0
Intangible assets (86.0) (18.6) 2.8 0.4 (6.3) (0.2) 15 (106.3)
Real property and rights equivalents to real property (168.0) (16.3) 0.2 1.0 (12.5) 0.2 (0.5) (195.9)
Leased buildings (13.2) 1.2) - 0.2 - - (0.2 (14.3)
Technical equipment and machinery (795.3) (58.0) 18.5 5.6 (73.9) 0.8 (36 (865.8)
Leased land and equipment (5.8) (1.9) - - - - (1.7)
Property, plant and equipment (942.3) (77.4) 18.7 6.8 (86.4) 11 4.2) (1,083.8)
Security deposit - Long-term (3.4) 0.4 (3.1)
Other financial assets (3.4) 0.4 (3.1)
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NOTE 10 — INVENTORIES

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Raw materials and supplies 88.3 100.8
Work in progress 48.7 41.5
Finished goods 201.5 208.2
Samples 6.1 1.9
Displays - 1.6
Consumables and spare parts 21.4 19.6
Total Gross value 366.0 373.5
Provisions for inventory depreciation (47.5) (40.2)
Total Inventories 318.6 333.3
Detail of the provision for inventory depreciation
Dec 31, 2012

restated * Allowance Reversal FX impacts Dec 31, 2013
Raw materials and supplies 8.2 4.2 4.2 0.2 (7.9)
Work in progress 4.2) (3.8) 2.3 0.8) (6.5)
Finished goods (20.3) (15.8) 10.3 0.4 (25.3)
Samples (1.0) (2.3 0.4 0.1 (1.9
Displays (1.2 - 1.2 0.0 -
Consumables and spare parts (5.2 (1.2 0.5 0.1 (5.8)
Total provisions for inventory depreciation (40.2) (26.1) 18.9 0.0 (47.5)

The rate of inventory provisions is applied in a similar way for the different periods. The change between 2012 and
2013 is mainly explained by the application of the Group accounting rules in Tandus. This has been adjusted via the
finalisation of the purchase accounting of Tandus (cf 2.2.).

The cost of sales in 2013 amounts to €1,162.3m.

NOTE 11 — TRADE RECEIVABLES

Dec 31, 2012
*

Dec 31, 2013 restated
Related party receivables 7.6 8.4
Third party receivables 294.0 299.3
Total Gross value 301.6 307.6
Provisions for doubtful receivables (21.9) (20.0)
Total Trade receivables 279.7 287.6

The variation of the provision for doubtful receivables amounts €1.9m and is mainly explained as follow :
- €(4.6)m of allowance,
- £€2.5m of reversal,
- €(0.2)m of change impact.
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Detail of unimpaired overdues

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Receivables, trade overdue 0 - 180 days 24.3 28.7
Receivables, trade overdue 181 - 270 days - 0.6
Receivables, trade overdue 271 - 360 days 0.1 1.1
Receivables, trade overdue > 360 days (3.2 (2.4)
Receivables, bankrupcy procedure / legal cases 3.8 (0.2)
Receivables due 25.0 27.7
NOTE 12 — OTHER RECEIVABLES
Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Total Other receivables non current 0.2 -
Prepaid expenses current 18.1 14.2
Income tax receivable current 13.4 9.3
VAT receivable current 17.4 20.3
Other accounts receivables and other assets current 10.3 16.1
Total Other receivables current 59.2 59.9

NOTE 13 — SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital

As of December 31%, 2013, the Company’s share capital is of €318,613,480 (€316,108,260 as of December 31%,
2012) and is divided into 63,722,696 shares of a nominal value of €5 each (15,805,413 shares of a nominal value of

€20 each as of December 31%, 2012).

NOTE 14 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share as of December 2013 are calculated on the basis of the Group’s share of net profit and on
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period (i.e. after deduction of the weighted average

number of treasury shares).

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (basic)

In thousands of shares Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Weighted average number of shares 63,276 63,222
W eighted average number of treasury shares held by Tarkett (1,335) (2,437)
Weighted average number of shares 61,941 61,784
Consolidated financial statements
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Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share as of December 2013 are calculated on the basis of the Group’s share of net profit and
on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period and weighted average number of potential
shares outstanding (i.e. after deduction of the weighted average number of treasury shares).

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (diluted)

Dec 31, 2012
In thousands of shares Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Weighted average number of shares (basic) 63,276 63,222
Weighted average number of treasury shares held by Tarkett (1,335) (1,437)
Effect of shares plan issue 624 560
Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 62,565 62,344

NOTE 15 — NET DEBT — INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

15.1 Net debt

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - non-current 501.3 335.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - current 24.4 187.2
Cash and cash equivalents (96.7) (81.1)
Total Net Debt 429.0 441.8
15.2 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Bank loans (unsecured) 498.7 22.8 333.7 177.5
Other loans (unsecured) 0.6 - 1.0 8.1
Bank owerdrafts (unsecured) - 1.1 - 0.7
Finance lease obligations 2.0 0.6 1.0 1.0
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 501.3 24.4 335.7 187.2

The unsecured bank loans include mainly:
(i) a €360.0m tranche drawn against a €450.0m syndicated Term facility executed in October 2013 and
maturing in full in October 2018. A second tranche of €90.0m, with the same maturity, was confirmed in
December 2013 for a drawing in 2014;
(ii) €25m drawn against a multicurrency and multi-borrower syndicated revolving facility executed by Tarkett
on June 2011 for up to €450.0m and maturing in June 2016;
(i) an amortisable term loan maturing in May 2016 consisting of a tranche of €100.0m and a tranche of
US$40.0m, out of which 15% are repaid in May 2014 and 25% in May 2015. This loan includes certain
prepayment clauses in the case Tarkett would issue a capital increase or bonds in the capital debt market.
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15.3 Details of loans and borrowings

Interest Dec 31, 12 months 2 ye-ars 3tos . More than

Currency Rate 2013 or less until until years until 5 years
Dec 31, 2013 12/31/14 12/31/15 12/31/16
Unsecured loans
Term Facilities Europe EUR 0.7%-2.1% © 465.0 16.3 "7 26.2 422.5 -
Term Facilities Europe UsD 2.6% 29.0 4.4 73" 17.3 -
Rewling Facilities Europe EUR 1.1% 25.0 - - 25.0 -
Rewling Facilities Europe UsD - - - - -
Other bank loans 3.7%-5.3% ” 2.6 2.0 0.3 0.3 -
Secured loans
Bank loans North America - - - - -
Bank loans Eastern Europe - - - - -
Total Bank loans 521.6 22.7 33.8 465.1 -
Asset backed facilities (1) - - - - -
Other loans EUR 0.7%-4.5% " 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 -
Bank overdrafts " 1.1 1.1 - - -
Finance lease obligations v 2.6 0.6 0.6 1.2 0.2
Total Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 525.7 24.5 34.5 466.5 0.2

(1) one-year renewable facility
Interest Dec 31, 12 months 2 ye_ars 305 . More than

Currency Rate 2012 or less until until years until 5 years
Dec 31, 2012 restated 12/31/13 12/31/14 12/31/15
Unsecured loans
Term Facilities Europe EUR 1.4%-2.8% 264.0 150.0 114.0 - -
Rewlving Facilities Europe EUR 1.0% 120.0 - - 120.0 -
Rewlving Facilities Europe UsD 1.1% 99.3 - - 99.3 -
Other bank loans EUR 3.4%-5.1% 3.1 2.1 0.4 0.6 -
Secured loans
Bank loans North America UsD 6.9% 0.1 0.1 - - -
Bank loans Eastern Europe UAH-RSD - - - - -
Total Bank loans 486.5 152.2 114.4 219.9 -
Asset backed facilities (1) EUR 0.6% 25.2 25.2 - - -
Other loans EUR 0.2%-2.6% 8.5 8.1 0.1 0.3 -
Bank overdrafts 0.7 0.7 - - -
Finance lease obligations 2.0 1.0 0.3 0.4 0.3
Total Interest-bearing loans and borrowings i 522.9 7 187.2 7 114.8 7 220.6 ' 0.3

(1) one-year renewable facility

The facilities mentioned from (i) to (iii) above contain covenants which are binding on the borrowing company, in
which financial covenants related to a ratio Net Debt on adjusted Ebitda not to exceed 3.0x, and a ratio Ebit/Net

Interests not to be lower than 2.5x..

15.4 Covenants

The Group complies with all covenants requirements as at December 31, 2013, and with Financial covenants as

reported below:

Net Debt/ Adjusted EBITDA

Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 published restated*
Net Debt 429.0 452.2 441.8
Adjusted EBITDA 310.0 260.1 262.2
Ratio (1) 1.4 1.7 1.7
(1) has to be below 3
EBIT / Net interests
Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 published restated*
EBIT 210.9 173.1 175.2
Net interests 15.0 11.7 11.1
Ratio (2) 14.1 14.8 15.8
(2) has to be over 2.5
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15.5 Cash and cash equivalent by nature

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*

Current cash 35.6 28.9
Remunerated cash balances 35.5 29.3
Short term treasury notes and Money Market funds 25.5 22.9
Cash and cash equivalents 96.7 81.1

NOTE 16 — OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*

Fair value of derivatives non current 2.0 9.1
Other financial liabilities non current 4.7 6.8
Total Other financial liabilities non current 6.7 16.0
Accrued interest expenses current 1.6 0.8
Fair value of derivatives current 0.3 (0.4)
Other financial liabilities current 1.1 2.0
Total Other financial liabilities current 3.0 2.4

NOTE 17 — TRADE PAYABLES

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*

Trade payables 216.3 240.6
Trade notes payable 3.5 3.8
Total Trade payables 219.8 244.3

NOTE 18 — OTHER LIABILITIES

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*

Liabilities related to employees 80.1 78.7
Income tax 18.6 12.6
VAT and other taxes 13.8 11.0
Sales rebates 27.9 33.7
Other liabilities 26.6 26.5
Total Other liabilities 167.0 162.6

Written put options or forward contracts granted to non-controlling shareholders
Share put options on non-controlling interests

At the end of December 2013 and December 2012, the amount of debt booked in the Group consolidated financial
statements relative to share put options on non-controlling shareholders is respectively equal to €2.1m and €2.3m.

As per 31 December 2013, this debt is composed of 2 options, granted to non-controlling shareholders of:
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- Morton Extrusionstechnik (MET) for €2.1m, corresponding to 49% of residual shares held by non-controlling

interests ;
- Fieldturf Benelux BV for €0.04m, corresponding to 49% of residual shares held by non-controlling interests.

The debt relative to the company MET corresponds to the discounted value of the formula included in the initial
agreement updated following 2012 MET business plan.

NOTE 19 — DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is shown on the balance sheet separately from current tax assets and liabilities and categorized
among non-current items.

Dec 31, 2012

Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Deferred tax assets
Net operating losses and credits carried forward 184.9 173.9
Prousion for valuation allowance on NOLCF (130.4) (116.0)
DTA for pensions and healthcare benefits 32.6 25.8
Other items temporarily non deductible 64.7 71.0
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets (18.1) (12.7)
Internal profit eliminations 3.1 4.6
Netted against deferred tax liabilities (44.1) (50.4)
Total Deferred tax assets 92.7 96.1
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed assets revaluation 39.8 42.8
Other deferred tax liabilities 15.1 13.1
Netted against deferred tax assets (44.1) (50.4)
Total Deferred tax liabilities 10.8 5.4

Net deferred tax assets for tax losses and unused tax credits carried forward are recognized for a cumulated amount
of €54.5m of which €37.9m related to the affiliates within the US tax Group, €1.4m related to the French tax Group,
and €7.3m related to the Canadian affiliate.

The €54.5m are split between €52.8m of net deferred tax assets for tax losses, and €1.7m of net unused tax credits.
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NOTE 20 — PROVISIONS

Balance at Change in Foreign Balance at
Dec 31, 2012 Allowance Decrease accounting Transfer exchange
- ) Dec 31, 2013
restated* policies gain & loss
Product warranty provision - Long-term 2.2 0.8 - (0.3) 0.1 (0.1) 2.8
Restructuring provisions - Long-term - 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Claims & litigations provisions - Long-term 2.3 0.3 (0.4) - - (0.1) 2.1
Other provisions - Long-term 3.6 0.3 0.2) 0.7 (0.7) - 3.6
Provision for additional tax assessments - Long-term 1.0 1.4 (0.3) - 0.4 - 2.4
Financial liabilities - Long term 29.0 2.0 - - - 1.3) 29.7
Total Provisions - Long-term 38.1 5.3 (0.9) 0.4 (0.3) (1.5) 41.2
Product warranty provisions - short-term 10.6 1.7 3.2 - 0.7 0.4) 9.4
Restructuring provisions - short-term 3.5 2.2 (2.4) - - 0.1) 3.2
Claims & litigations provisions - short-term 21.7 9.0 8.7) - (0.5) (0.6) 20.9
Other oper. provisions - short-term 0.4 0.2 (0.1) - (0.3) - 0.1
Total Provisions - Short-term 36.2 13.2 (14.5) - (0.0) (1.1) 33.7
Total Provision current & non-current 74.3 18.5 (15.4) 0.4 (0.3) (2.6) 74.8
Balance at Change in Foreign Balance at
Dec 31, 2011 Allowance Decrease scope Transfer exchange Dec 31, 2012
restated* gain & loss restated*
Product warranty provision - Long-term 1.7 0.1 (0.3) 0.7 - - 2.2
Claims & litigations provisions - Long-term 2.2 1.1 (0.9) - - - 2.3
Other provisions - Long-term 4.5 0.1 (0.3) - (0.8) - 3.6
Provision for additional tax assessments - Long-term 5.1 0.9 (0.1) - (5.0) 0.1 1.0
Financial liabilities - Long term 21.8 7.8 - - - (0.6) 29.0
Total Provisions - Long-term 35.2 10.1 (1.6) 0.7 (5.8) (0.5) 38.1
Product warranty provisions - Short-term 5.5 0.2 (0.8) 2.1 3.4 - 10.6
Restructuring provisions - Short-term 3.7 2.8 (2.5) - (0.6) - 3.5
Claims & litigations provisions - Short-term 21.7 7.5 6.2) - (1.0) 0.2) 21.7
Other oper. provisions - Short-term 0.2 0.4 (0.2) - - - 0.4
Total Provisions - Short-term 31.1 10.9 (9.6) 2.1 1.8 (0.2) 36.2
Total Provision current & non-current 66.4 21.0 (11.2) 2.8 (4.0) (0.6) 74.3

At the end of December 2013, the variations in the account Financial liabilities — Long term concern Asbestos
provision booked in Tarkett Domco Products Texas Inc. (Cf. NOTE 26 — OTHER CONTINGENCIES).

NOTE 21 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Tarkett participates in, or maintains,
employee benefit plans providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, other long term benefits (jubilees)
and post-employment benefits (retirement indemnities, pre-retirement) to eligible employees, former employees,
retirees and their beneficiaries fulfilling the required conditions.

These employee benefits plan exposes Tarkett to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk.

Valuation of these obligations is carried out yearly at the balance sheet date by independent actuaries.
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Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status

Effect of asset ceiling

Net liability/(asset)

Represented by:

Net liability

Net (asset)

Amounts recognised in the income statement
Current senvice cost

Past senice cost

(Gain) / loss on settlements

Net interest cost

Remeasurements of Other Long Term Benefits
Administrative expenses and taxes

Total expensesincluded in income statement

Amounts recognized in statement of comprehensive income (gross of tax)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions

Effect of changes in financial assumptions

Effect of experience adjustments

(Return) on plan assets (excluding interest income)

Changes in asset ceiling (excluding interest income)

Total pension cost recognized in the OCI

Change in net liabilities recognized in the balance sheet
Balance sheet liability/asset at beginning of year

Total expenses recognized in income statement

Amounts recognised in OCI in the financial year

Business combinations / divestitures / transfers

Employer contributions made in the financial year
Benefits paid directly by company in the financial year
Exchange rate adjustment - (gain)/loss

Balance sheet liability/asset as at end of year

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Current senice cost

Past senice cost

(Gain) / loss on settlements

Interest expense

Benefit payments from plan

Benefit payments from employer

Plan settlement

Plan participants' contributions

Expenses paid

Business combinations / divestitures / transfers
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions
Effect of changes in financial assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments

Exchange rate changes

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Interest income

Employer contributions

Employer direct benefit payments

Plan participants' contributions

Benefit payments from plan

Benefit payments from employer

Plan settlement

Expenses paid

Business combinations / divestitures / transfers
(Return) on plan assets (excluding interest income)
Exchange rate changes

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
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Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions  employment TOTAL pensions  Smployment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
201.9 3.3 205.2 224.7 3.8 228.5
83.0 - 83.0 86.7 - 86.7
118.9 3.3 122.2 138.0 3.8 141.8
0.4 N 0.4
118.9 3.3 122.2 138.4 3.8 142.2
118.9 3.3 122.2 138.4 3.8 142.2
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions  employment TOTAL pensions  Smployment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
3.4 0.1 3.5 1.8 - 1.8
0.4) - (0.4) - - -
(0.0 - (0.0 - - -
4.8 0.1 4.9 3.7 0.1 3.7
0.7 - 0.7 0.0 - 0.0
0.8 - 0.8 - - -
9.3 0.2 9.5 5.5 0.1 5.6
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions  employment TOTAL Pensions employment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
1.5 0.0 1.5 - - -
(15.2) 0.2) (15.3) v 26.2 0.2 26.4
1.0 (0.3) 0.8 7.0 - 7.0
(4.4) - (4.4) (3.6) - (3.6)
- - - (0.8) - (0.8)
(17.0) (0.4) (17.5) 28.7 0.2 28.9
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions ~ employment TOTAL pensions ~ Smployment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
138.4 3.8 142.2 107.7 1.7 109.3
9.3 0.2 9.5 5.5 0.1 5.6
(17.0) (0.9) 17.5) T 287 0.2 28.9
0.2 - 0.2 v 5.4 2.0 7.4
(5.0) 0.2) (5.2) (5.1) 0.1) (5.2)
(4.6) - (4.6) 4.2) - 4.2)
(2.3) 0.2) (2.4) 0.4 0.1) 0.3
118.9 3.3 122.2 138.4 3.8 142.2
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions  employment TOTAL pensions  Smployment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
224.7 3.8 228.5 174.4 1.7 176.1
3.4 0.1 3.5 1.8 - 1.8
0.9) - 0.9 - - _
(0.0 - (0.0 - - -
8.0 0.1 8.1 7.9 0.1 8.0
(6.4) 0.2) (6.5) (6.0) 0.1) (6.1)
(4.6) - (4.6) 4.2) - 4.2)
(5.9) - (5.9) - - -
0.2 - 0.2 0.1 - 0.1
0.2) - 0.2) (0.1) - (0.1)
0.2 - 0.2 19.4 2.0 21.4
1.5 0.0 1.5 - - -
(15.2) 0.2) (15.3) 25.0 0.2 25.2
2.1 0.3) 1.9 6.9 B 6.9
(5.5) 0.2) (5.6) (0.6) (0.1) (0.6)
201.9 3.3 205.2 224.7 3.8 228.5
Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Post- Post-
pensions ~ employment TOTAL pensions ~ €mPployment TOTAL
healthcare healthcare
benefits benefits
86.7 - 86.7 68.0 - 68.0
3.2 - 3.2 4.2 - 4.2
5.0 0.2 5.2 5.1 0.1 5.2
4.6 - 4.6 4.2 - 4.2
0.2 - 0.2 0.1 - 0.1
(6.4) 0.2) (6.5) (6.0) 0.1) (6.1)
(4.6) - (4.6) 4.2) - 4.2)
(5.9) - (5.9) - - -
(1.1) - (1.1) 0.1) - (0.1)
- - - 12.7 - 12.7
4.4 - 4.4 3.7 - 3.7
(3.2 - (3.2 (0.9) - (0.9)
83.0 - 83.0 86.7 - 86.7
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Main actuarial assumptions

The actuarial accounting valuations are based on assumed future increases in salaries and benefits as well as on a
long-term interest rate. The main assumptions are in average as follows:

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Pensions Post-employment Pensions Post-employment
healthcare benefits healthcare benefits
Discount rate 4.30% 3.65%
Including:
us 5.00% 5.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Germany 3.10% 2.80%
Sweden 4.00% 3.50%
UK 4.40% 3.90%
Salary increases 3.03% 2.98%
Inflation 2.21% 2.11%

At December 31, 2013 the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 13.3 years.
Percentage of plan assets by asset allocation

The funds are allocated to:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31. 2013 restated*
- Equity 48.5% 48.2%
- Bonds 28.4% 28.2%
- Real Estate 3.2% 2.7%
- Other 19.8% 20.9%

The expected return on plan assets is determined for each plan according to the portfolio composition and the
expected performance of each component.

All equity and bonds have quoted prices in active markets. Assets under “Other” category are held by and large
insurance contracts in Germany, ie 10.8%. Others corresponds to cash and cash equivalent linked to pensions plans
in US and Canada.

Expected employer contributions for 2014 amount to €11.3m.

Sensitivity to discount rate assumptions

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 *

Increase of 50 basis point
Increase/(Decrease) in Defined Benefit Obligation (12.5) (13.2)

Decrease of 50 basis point
Increase/(Decrease) in Defined Benefit Obligation 14.2 14.7

* exclusing Tandus
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NOTE 22 —- PERSONNEL COSTS AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Wages and salaries (507.5) (445.7)
Pension costs (9.5) (6.3)
Total Personnel costs (517.0) (451.9)
Number
Employees (average number) 11,134.0 9,896.0

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel includes the members of the Executive Management Committee and the members
of the Supervisory Board.

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated *
Short term employee benefits 7.1 6.5
Share-based payments 2.3 0.9
Total 9.4 7.5

Compensation of the Group’s key management personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to a
post-employment defined benefit plan.

NOTE 23 — SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

MANAGEMENT EQUITY PLAN

The Management Equity Plan implemented early 2008 and according to which certain managers have been entitled
to purchase shares of the Group with associated rights to get free shares at the exit of one of the two main
shareholders before the I1.P.O. (KKR) has been effectively materialized in November 2013 at the time of Tarkett's
introduction on the Paris stock exchange.

This materialized in the attribution of 347 072 free shares, increasing the share capital for a total value €1,7m with a
counterpart in retained earnings.

Across the lifetime of the plan, the total expense booked to consider the counterpart of the benefit granted amounted
to €5.3m.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS

As an initial precision, all figures described below have been recalculated considering the division by 4 of the
nominal value of the Tarkett shares taking place November 21%, 2013.

From December 22, 2011 a Long-Term Incentive Plan, named LTIP 2011, has been implemented for selected key
executives of the Group.

The ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period ending June 30th, 2014,
provided that an economic performance condition is satisfied (based on Group 3 years plan) and the beneficiaries
have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2014. This plan has been placed under IFRS2 treatment “share-
based payment” (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be calculated mid-2014 and the granted shares
can be sold after July 2016 (to be noted that the Group has not issued any definite commitment that the shares
would be repurchased after 2016).
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The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 193 333 as at December 31st, 2013 (211 600 as at
December 31st, 2012).

The fair market value at the time of the issuance of the plan is calculated as follows: 7x adjusted EBITDA less Net
debt. This has been accordingly estimated at €15 per share.

The expense in 2013 amounts to €0.9m before tax (€1.9m in 2012), and has been booked as administrative
expense in the P&L with a counterpart in equity.

From December 17, 2012 a second Long-Term Incentive Plan, named LTIP 2012, has been implemented for
selected key executives of the Group.

The ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period of June 30th, 2015,
provided that an economic performance condition is satisfied (based on the Group 3 years business plan) and the
beneficiaries have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2015. This plan has been placed under IFRS2
treatment “share-based payment” (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be calculated mid-2015 and the
granted shares can be sold immediately after being granted.

The Group may decide in 2015 to grant, instead of shares, the equivalent value in cash calculated on the market
price, the company being now listed.

The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 374 532 as at December 31%, 2013 (275 600 as at
December 31%, 2012) The fair market value at the time of the issuance of the plan is calculated as follows:
7XEBITDA* less Net debt. This has been accordingly estimated at €23.5 per share based on December 31st, 2012
figures.

The expense in 2013 amounts to €3.5m before tax (€0.1m in 2012), and has been booked as administrative
expense in the P&L with a counterpart in equity.

Approved October 9th, 2013, a new Long-Term Incentive Plan, named LTIP 2013, has been implemented for
selected key executives of the Group.

The plan follows globally the same conditions than the previous LTIP 2012.

Accordingly, the ordinary free shares shall be awarded to the beneficiaries at the end of a vesting period of June
30th, 2016, provided that an economic performance condition is satisfied (based on the most recent Group 3 years
business plan) and the beneficiaries have been continuously employed until June 30th, 2016. This plan is to be
placed under IFRS2 treatment “share-based payment” (equity settled plan). The final amount granted will be
calculated mid 2016 and the granted shares can be sold immediately after being granted.

The Group may decide in 2016 to grant, instead of shares, the equivalent value in cash calculated on the market
price.

The target amount of free shares to distribute is estimated at 406 112 as at December 31st, 2013. The market value
at the time of the issuance of the plan has been defined at the introduction price of the company on the Paris stock
exchange November 22nd, which is €29 per share.

The expense in 2013 amounts to €1.0m before tax and has been booked as administrative expense in the P&L with
a counterpart in equity.

NOTE 24 — FINANCIAL RISKS AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to interest rate, currency, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of Tarkett's activities.
Derivative financial instruments are used to reduce the exposure to fluctuations in both foreign exchange and
interest rates. While transactions are subject to the risk of market changes, such changes are generally offset by
opposite effects on the hedged items. Liquidity and credit risk are managed following risk management policies
approved by the Group’s executive board.

1- FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS

Fair values of the derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used by Group for risk hedging purposes only, and are recognized according to
hedge accounting rules. The fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments are recorded into the balance

sheet in “Other financial liabilities, current” for what concerns derivatives hedging future cash flows, and in the
relevant accounts for what concerns derivatives hedging recorded items.
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It amounts to the following figures:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Currency swaps (0.2) (0.1)
Options (0.2) 0.5
Total foreign currency derivatives (0.3) 0.4
Cash flow hedge swaps - (3.7)
Options cash flow hedge (2.0) (5.3)
Total interest rate derivatives (2.0) 9.1)

1.1 Interest rate risk

The exposure to the interest rate risk is managed in a centralized manner by the Group. The general debt strategy
defined by the Group consists of giving preference to variable interest rate debt over fixed interest rate debt, but also
to protect a part of the debt over a period of three to five years against a rate increase which would result in an
extensive damage. The hedging tools used are mainly cap or tunnel type derivatives. In certain circumstances,
swaps have been entered into to fix rates. The Interest rate derivatives outstanding at closing are all purposed for
cash flow hedging and none is purposed for fair value hedging.

Following is the interest rate structure of the net debt. Net debt is defined as interest-bearing loans minus cash and
cash equivalents.

Before interest rate hedge:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Fix rate debt 2.0 3.0
Floating rate debt 523.7 519.9
Cash and cash equivalents (96.7) (81.1)
Net debt 429.0 441.8
After interest rate hedge:
Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Fix rate debt 2.0 117.0
Floating rate debt capped 167.0 102.7
Floating rate debt 356.7 303.2
Cash and cash equivalents (96.7) (81.1)
Net debt 429.0 441.8

Interest rate derivatives

The financial instruments hedging floating rate debt are classified as cash flow hedges and recognised at fair value.
At the balance sheet date, they represented a total notional amount of €167.0m maturing over the next four years,
and consisting of caps or collars. Their fair value is calculated using the market rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date as obtained from financial service companies. The fair value of the Group’s interest rate cash flow hedges at
the balance sheet date amounted to a latent liability of € 2.0m (2012: liability of €9.0m). The net effect of their
variations in the income statement of the year represents a gain of €0.4m (2012: charge of €0.2m).
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Sensitivity analysis

The Group incurs a risk on its results with the fluctuation of interest rates on interest-bearing financial instruments
indexed on floating rates. Further, the interest rate derivatives qualified as cash flow hedges have an impact on
equity.

The sensitivity to interest rates variation of the financial instruments is calculated on the basis of interest-bearing
non-derivatives and derivative financial instruments. Non derivative financial instruments are the interest-bearing
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, and net of interest bearing loans granted to third parties or joint-
ventures. The analysis is based on the assumption of a constant debt nominal and debt management over 1 year
from December 31, 2013.

Based on this, due to the current level in interest rates and the rate fixing of the currently outstanding financial
instruments, an instantaneous increase of all interest rates by 1% would result in an increase of €3.5m before tax
(2012: €2.2m), and an instantaneous decrease of all interest rates by 1% or to 0% when applicable would result in a
decrease of €0.7m before tax (2012: €0.2m).

1.2  Exchange rate risk
Transaction risk

Exchange rate fluctuations have a direct impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements, derived from
transactions regarding the Group entities which incur revenues and expenses in currencies other than their
functional currency.

The Group has attempted to develop its production capacities in the same geographic and monetary areas where it
distributes its products. Moreover, through the choice of the invoicing currency for certain intra-Group transactions,
the Group aims to offset revenues with costs in the same currency. In certain unstable currency countries, the Group
may also compensate the local currencies variations with price indexations. Therefore the remaining exposure on
cross-border transactions is moderate. The currencies to which the Group is most exposed are the US dollar, the
British pound, the Australian dollar, the Norwegian crown, the Polish zloty, the Russian rubble and the euro as a
foreign currency for the Swedish, Russian, Serbian and some American subsidiaries.

The Group has attempted to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations of currencies on its revenue through a
centralized management of exchange risks and the use of derivatives. Nevertheless, in the long-term, the significant
and long lasting variations in exchange rates could affect the Group’s competitive position in the foreign markets and
its results of operations.

The Group hedges its remaining net estimated short term exposure according to the decisions of a dedicated
committee. The hedging cover is generally at least 75% of the exposure. This exposure includes a recorded
exposure, which is made of all recognized trade receivables, trade payable and borrowings denominated in a foreign
currency, and an unrecorded exposure, which is the forecasted sales and purchases over a six-month period.

Foreign exchange exposures and derivatives

As at closing date, the exposure recorded in the balance sheet over the main currencies hedged with derivatives,
and the nominal amount of the derivatives hedging such recorded exposures, are as follows:

Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012 restated*
Exposition currency USD GBP AUD EUR USD GBP AUD EUR
Financial receivables and liabilities 1344 (3.9) - 13.0 556 (5.3) 24 0.2
Trade receivables and payables 3.5 2.4 2.1 3.4 0.7y 24 29 (4.6)
Nominal amount of derivatives (133.3) 14 (2.3) (13.4) (58.8) 0.7 (6.3) 0.7
Net recorded exposure on main currencies 4.6 (0.1) (0.2) 3.0 39 (2 1.0 @7

Tarkett uses forward exchange contracts and options when hedging with derivatives its exposure to foreign currency
risk in respect of both recognized receivables and payables and forecasted transactions covering a forward six-
month period. When necessary, forward exchange contracts are rolled over.

Tarkett classifies the currency hedging contracts covering operating transactions as cash flow hedges and records
them at fair value in the balance sheet. The fair value of these contracts at the balance sheet date amounted to a
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latent liability of €0.05m (2012: asset of €0.5m). Of this fair value, the amount reported directly in equity is an
unrealised loss of €0.1m (2012: unrealised loss of €0.1m). The difference is recognised in the income statement and
represents the change in the time value of currency options hedging forecasted transactions and in the fair value of
forward contracts or options hedging recognised transactions.

The net effect of fair value variations in the income statement of the year represents a charge of €0.5m (2012:
revenue of €0.1m). All the potential gains and losses reported directly in equity are expected to enter into the
determination of profit and loss of the coming 12 months.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

When financing its foreign subsidiaries, the Group incurs exposure to foreign currency risk on intra-group loans and
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies. The Group minimises this risk either (i) by borrowing in the same
currency or (ii) by entering into currency swaps or forwards reflecting the maturity of the hedged item, with the aim
that fluctuations in the swaps’ fair values will offset, in profit or loss, the foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from conversion of the hedged monetary items.

At December 31, 2013, the main financial exposures so covered are Euro against US dollar for €134.4m, against

British pound for €3.9m and against Swedish crown for €0.1m. The fair value of these contracts, at the balance
sheet date amounted to a latent liability of €0.3m.

2 - LIQUIDITY RISKS
2.1 Future cash flows over financial instruments

The following figures show the estimated future cash flows over the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. The
amounts in currency are converted at closing rate.

The estimate of the future cash flows on interests is based on the forecasted debt amortization, and the future
floating rate interests are calculated on the assumption of a crystallisation of the interest rates outstanding as of the
closing date, except if a better estimate is available.

Financial liabilities Dec 31, 2013 12 months or less 2 years 3to 5 years More than 5 years
Carrying Contractual . . . . . . . .
nominal interests nominal interests nominal interest nominal interest
amount cash flow
Interest bearing loans
Bank Loans 521.6 562.0 22.7 10.2 33.8 9.4 465.1 20.8 - -
Other Loans 0.4 0.4 0.1 - 0.1 - 0.2 - - -
Bank overdrafts 11 1.1 11 - - - - - - -
Finance lease obligations 2.6 2.6 0.6 - 0.6 - 1.2 - 0.2 -
Total 525.7 566.1 24.5 10.2 34.5 9.4 466.5 20.8 0.2 -
Other Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable 219.8 219.8 219.8 - - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities non current 4.7 4.7 - - 0.6 - 3.7 - 0.4 -
Other Financial Liabilities current 5.0 5.0 5.0 - - - - - - -
Total 229.6 229.6 224.9 - 0.6 - 3.7 - 0.4 -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 755.3 795.7 249.4 10.2 35.1 9.4 470.2 20.8 0.6 -
Financial liabilities Dec 31, 2012 restated* 12 months or less 2 years 3to 5 years More than 5 years
Carrying Contractual . . . . . . . .
nominal interests nominal interests nominal interests nominal interests
amount cash flow
Interest bearing loans
Bank Loans 486.5 500.1 152.2 6.1 114.4 4.0 219.9 35 - -
Asset backed facility 25.2 253 25.2 0.1 - - - - - -
Other Loans 8.5 8.5 8.1 - 0.1 - 0.3 - - -
Bank overdrafts 0.7 0.7 0.7 - - - - - - -
Finance lease obligations 2.0 2.0 1.0 - 0.3 - 0.4 0.3 -
Total 522.9 536.6 187.2 6.2 114.8 4.0 220.6 3.5 0.3 -
Other Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable 221.7 221.7 221.7 - - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities non current 6.8 6.8 - - 4.5 - 2.3 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities current 11.6 11.6 11.6 - - - - - - -
Total 240.2 240.2 233.4 - 4.5 - 2.3 - - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 763.1 776.8 420.6 6.2 119.3 4.0 222.9 3.5 0.3 -

2.2 Liquidity position
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As of December 31, 2013 the consolidated net debt (current and non-current loans and financial interest-bearing
debts minus cash and cash equivalents) of the Group is equal to €429.0m over a total debt capacity of €1168.0m
used in the amount of €525.7m (see note 15). The liquidity position of the Group amounts to €739.0m, and is
enough to cover the financial obligations related to the financial debt in 2013.

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Amount available on credit facilities 642.3 339.1
Cash and cash equivalents 96.7 81.1
739.0 420.2

The €450.0m syndicated facility, the €100.0m and US$40.0m term loans contain obligations which are all based on
the main following covenants:
- the ratio Net debt / EBITDA (as adjusted according to the definition of the credit agreements) must be lower
than 3.0
- the ratio EBITDA / Net interests expenses (as adjusted according to the definition of the credit agreements)
must be higher than 2.5
- cross-acceleration above certain materiality thresholds and material adverse change clauses.

As at December 31, 2013, the Group complies with these covenants.

3- CREDIT RISK

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss for the Group in case counterparty to a financial instrument would
default in paying its contractual obligations.

The financial assets potentially bearing this risk are mainly:
- cash deposits and investments,
- financial derivatives,
- accounts receivables,
- loans granted.

The maximum potential credit risk on the financial assets is equal to their net accounting value, diminished by the
indemnification receivable from credit insurances.

3.1 Customer credit risk

The Group considers that the exposure to counterparty risk in accounts receivables is limited, because of the great
number of customers, its dispersion in many geographical areas, and its follow-up policy. The Group has established
a credit policy which includes, among other, one credit limit for each customer, collections processes, and a
computer-aided credit scoring and customer payment behaviour follow-up. Moreover, the Group credit insurance
scheme not only provides a hedge of the maximum potential loss in certain countries or business zones but also
assistance and coordination in case of negotiations with counterparties at risk. Therefore the maximum potential
counterparty risk on the accounts receivables is equal to the net accounting value of these assets minus the
maximum indemnification receivable under the insurance scheme.

The total of receivables overdue over 60 days amounts to 8.3% of the total amount of accounts receivables at the
December 31, 2013 (8.4% of the total amount of accounts receivables at December 31, 2012).
The Group considers that there is no presumption of risks on outstanding receivables for less than 60 days.

As for outstanding receivables for more than 60 days, the Group considers that risks are limited given existing
procedures of customer risk management (as detailed above).

3.2  Credit risk management on equities and derivatives

The counterparts of the Group’s financial derivatives are first rank banks or partly state-owned, and all being in
business relation with the Group for lending or for cash management. The policy of the Group with regard to
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investments and cash deposits is to only invest in liquid securities and only with the first rank credit institutions that
exist in the country where the investment is done.

The Group is not exposed to a material risk due to any significant concentration of the risk over a specified
counterparty, and does not anticipate any counterparty default.

The impacts of the Credit and Debit Valuation Adjustments (CVA/DVA) in the measurement of the fair value of the
derivative financial instruments were made on the basis of market datas available ( including the credit default swap
rates (CDS) of the counterpart financial institutions). This impact was not material as at the closing date and was
therefore not booked.

Gross amounts as
presented in Balance  Impact of offsetting

Dec 31, 2013 Sheet rules Net amount
Fair value of derivative assets 0.6 (0.6) -

Fair value of derivative liabilities (2.9) 0.6 (2.3)
Total (2.3) - (2.3)

Gross amounts of
financial instruments

in the statement of Impact of offsetting
Dec 31, 2012 restated* financial position rules Net amount
Fair value of derivative assets 0.5 (0.5) -
Fair value of derivative liabilities 9.2) 0.5 (8.7)
Total (8.7) - (8.7)

4 — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Assets
designated
Cash and at fair value Liabilities at
Hedging cash  through profit Loans and  amortized Carrying Fair

Dec 31, 2013 Derivatives equivalents & loss receivables cost amount value Level1 Level2 Level3
Non current financial assets valued at amortized value - - - 7.6 - 7.6 7.6 - T 7.6 -
Non current financial assets valued at fair value 0.7 - 19.2 - - 19.9 19.9 -7 19.9
Accounts receivables - - - 279.7 - 279.7 279.7 - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 96.7 - - - 96.7 96.7 -7 9.7
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - 525.7 525.7 525.7 -7 5257

Other financial liabilities, non current - - - - 4.7 4.7 4.7 - T 4.7

Other financial liabilities, current 3.1 - - - 1.9 5.0 5.0 -7 3.1
Accounts payables - - - - 219.8 219.8 219.8 -

Assets
designated
Cash and at fair value Liabilities at
Hedging cash  through profit Loans and  amortized Carrying Fair

Dec 31, 2012 restated* Derivatives equivalents & loss receivables cost amount value Level1 Level2 Level3
Non current financial assets valued at amortized value - - - 7.2 - 7.2 7.2 - T 7.2

Non current financial assets valued at fair value - 22.1 - - 22.1 22.1 -7 21
Accounts receivables 0.1) 287.7 - 287.6 287.6 -

Cash and cash equivalents - 81.1 - - - 81.1 81.1 -7 el
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - 522.9 522.9 522.9 -7 529

Other financial liabilities, non current - - - - 6.8 6.8 6.8 " 6.8

Other financial liabilities, current 8.8 - - - 2.8 11.6 11.6 4 8.8
Accounts payables - - - - 244.3 244.3 244.3 -
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NOTE 25 — LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group’s operating lease commitments are mainly commitments for buildings, vehicles, computer hardwares and
softwares, offices.
Future minimum rental commitments under operating leases with initial or remaining non-cancellable terms in
excess of one year, are summarised below:

Operating leases

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Future minimum lease payments
Less than 1 year 13.6 14.2
1to 5 years 21.9 24.3
More than 5 years 3.4 3.1
Total future minimum lease payments 38.9 41.6

NOTE 26 — OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Asbestos

One of the Group subsidiaries has been named co-defendant in asbestos related lawsuits involving personal
injuries. Expected costs of the current or future cases are covered by Group’s insurances, sellers’ guarantee granted
by third-parties and by provisions that management, based on the advice and information provided by its legal
counsels, considers as sufficient.

Guarantees

Tarkett:

- has granted a General Indemnity Agreement of a maximum amount up to $75.0m in favour of Federal
Insurance Company in consideration of this company to execute security bonds in favour of Fieldturf
Tarkett Inc and other subsidiaries. The outstanding security bonds at closing date amounts to $53.6m,

- has provided its guarantee on 50% of a credit facility of up to €10.0m granted to its joint venture
subsidiary Laminate Park, and

- has provided its guarantee to the pensions insurer Pri-Pensionsgaranti to secure the pensions
commitments of Tarkett AB for an amount of SEK163.2m.

- has provided its guarantee to a raw material supplier of its subsidiary Morton Extrusion Technik to
secure its payables up to €5.0m.

- has provided its guarantee to the lending banks of the Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility signed on
June 27, 2011 in order to allow Tarkett Finance Inc to become an additional borrower up to $100.0m.
However, Tarkett Finance Inc was not borrowing under this facility as at closing date.

- has provided its guarantee to the lending bank of an asset backed facility of €55.0m to the extent that
this facility, aimed to finance the Group, was subscribed by its subsidiary Tarkett France SAS for
technical reasons. Tarkett has also provided its guarantee to the bank of Tarkett Limited (UK) and
Poligras (Spain) to secure technical overdraft facilities in these companies, for a total amount of €3.8mn
or equivalent.

- Besides, in the ordinary course of their business, Tarkett and several other subsidiaries have given
payment guarantees to diverse customs, utilities, rental, cash pooling or trade finance operators, those
guarantees being unmaterial on an individual and aggregated level.

Other

In late March 2013, the “Autorité de la concurrence” (French Competition Authority) launched investigations against
several flooring manufacturers, including Tarkett, in relation to possible anti-competitive practices in the French
market for vinyl flooring.

The investigations are still ongoing. The timing of their finalization is currently not known and it is not yet possible to
evaluate their potential outcome.
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NOTE 27 — RELATED PARTIES

In compliance with IAS 24, the Group has identified the following related parties:
- Joint ventures (see 81).
- Société d’'Investissement Deconinck S.I1.D. SA (see §2).
- Kohlberg Kravis Roberts KKR (see §3).
- Members of the Executive Management Committee and of the Supervisory Board of Tarkett.

1 — Joint ventures

All transactions between fully consolidated entities are eliminated in consolidation.
Transactions with the joint venture are entered into on an arm’s length basis.

Joint ventures
The only entity with activity which remains jointly controlled is the entity Laminate Park jointly held with Sonae group
in Germany.

Loans to Laminate Park at the end of December 2013 amounts to €14.2m and are declared as long term loans.
They represent 1.4% of the Group interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The sale of goods to Tarkett at the end of December 2013 amounts to €32.9m (€32.1m at the end of December
2012). They represent 0.6% of the Group sale of goods.

The purchase of services from Tarkett at the end of December 2013 amounts to €(2.1)m (€(2.5)m at the end of
December 2012).

The Group’s transactions with the joint venture may be summarised as follows:

Dec 31, 2012
Dec 31, 2013 restated*
Joint ventures
Sale of goods to Tarkett 32.9 32.1
Purchase of senices from Tarkett (2.1) (2.5)
Loans from Tarkett 14.2 14.2

2-S.1.D.

Société d’Investissement Deconinck S.I.D. holds 50.1% of Tarkett's share capital and as such, controls and
coordinates the activities of the Tarkett Group. Tarkett is linked by a contract to S.I.D. in respect of management
services which are remunerated on the basis of the actual costs incurred by S.I.D.

In 2013, S.1.D. invoiced a total of €0.1m of management services.

3 — KKR International Flooring 2 SARL

KKR International Flooring 2 SARL holds 21.5% of Tarkett's share capital and as such, controls and coordinates the
activities of the Tarkett Group. Tarkett is linked by a contract to KKR in respect of management services which are

remunerated on the basis of the actual costs incurred by KKR.

In 2013, KKR International Flooring 2 SARL invoiced a total of €0.6m of management services (€0.6m in 2012).

NOTE 28 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no subsequent event to be disclosed.
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NOTE 29 - MAIN CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Companies Country Consolidation % Ownership % Ownership at
method at Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012

G: Fully consolidated

E: Accounted for using the Equity Method

NC: Non consolidated
C001 Tarkett AB Sweden G 100% 100%
C002 Tarkett AS Norway G 100% 100%
C003 Tarkett Oy Finland G 100% 100%
C009 Tarkett Inc. Delaware United States G 100% 100%
Cco12 Tarkett Australia Pty. Ltd Australia G 100% 100%
C018 Tarkett A/S Denmark G 100% 100%
Cc037 Tarkett Polska Sp.Z.0.0. Poland G 100% 100%
C061 Fademac Brazil G 100% 100%
C062 Tarkett Aspen Turkey G 70% 70%
co81 Laminate Park Gmbh & Co KG Germany E 50% 50%
C214 Tarkett Holding GmbH Germany G 100% 100%
C220 Tarkett France Mother company 100% 100%
c221 Tarkett Senvices France G 100% -
C409 Tarkett GDL SA Luxembourg G 100% 100%
C411 Tarkett Capital SA Luxembourg G 100% 100%
Cc417 Tarkett SpA Italy G 100% 100%
C418 Tarkett Produtos Internacionais S.A. Portugal G 100% 100%
C419 Tarkett Monoprosopi Ltd. Greece G 100% 100%
C425 Tarkett Floors S.A. Spain G 100% 100%
c427 Tarkett Asia Pacific Ltd Hong Kong G 100% 100%
C428 Tarkett Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong G 70% 70%
C429 Tarkett Floor covering (Shanghai) Co China G 70% 70%
C433 Tarkett France France G 100% 100%
C434 Tarkett Bois SAS France G 100% 100%
C438 Fieldturf Tarkett SAS France G 100% 100%
C441 Tarkett Inc. Canada G 100% 100%
C452 ZAO Tarkett Russia G 100% 100%
C453 ZAO Tarkett Rus Russia G 100% 100%
C454 Tarkett Sommer OOO Russia G 100% 100%
C455 Tarkett d.o.o. Serbia G 100% 100%
C456 Tarkett SEE Serbia G 100% 100%
C457 Tarkett UA Ukraine G 100% 100%
C459 Tarkett Kaz Kazakhstan G 100% 100%
C460 Tarkett Kft Hungary G 100% 100%
C461 Tarkett BEL Rep. of Belarus G 100% 100%
C471 Fieldturf Poligras SA Spain G 100% 96%
C473 Morton ExtrusionsTechnik GmbH Germany G 100% 100%
C474 Fieldturf Benelux B.V. Netherlands G 100% 100%
C606 Tarkett Ltd. United Kingdom G 100% 100%
C656 Somalré Luxembourg G 100% 100%
C754 Sintelon RS Serbia G 100% 100%
C755 Sintelon d.o.o. Serbia G 100% 100%
C756 Galerija Podova d.o.o. Serbia G 100% 100%
C757 Galerija Podova - Sintelon Doo Bosnia G 100% 100%
C758 Sintelon UA Ukraine G 100% 100%
C759 Vinisin Ooo Ukraine G 100% 100%
C801 Tandus Flooring, Inc United States G 100% 100%
C802 Nova Scotia Ltd United States G 100% 100%
C803 Tandus Flooring Asia Pte Ltd Singapore G 100% 100%
C804 Tandus Flooring US, LLC United States G 100% 100%
C805 CAF Extrusion LLC United States G 100% 100%
C806 Tandus Flooring Limited United States G 100% 100%
C807 Tandus Flooring Suzhou China G 100% 100%
C808 Tandus Flooring Canada, GP Canada G 100% 100%
C809 Tandus Flooring India Private Limited India G 100% 100%
C846 Tarkett Enterprises Inc. United States G 100% 100%
c847 Domco Products Texas LP United States G 100% 100%
C848 Tarkett Alabama Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C849 Tarkett Finance Inc United States G 100% 100%
C850 Tarkett USA Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C854 Tarkett Texas Holding Inc. United States NC - 100%
C862 Texas Tile Manufacturing LLC United States G 100% 75%
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Companies Country Consolidation % Ownership % Ownership at
method at Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2012
C863 Tarkett IFA Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C872 Fieldturf Inc. Canada G 100% 100%
C878 Les Installations Sportives Defargo Inc. Canada NC - 100%
C886 Easy Turf Inc. United States G 51% 51%
C889 Beynon Sports Surfaces Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C890 Fieldturf Tarkett USA Holdings Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C893 Fieldturf USA, Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C896 Air Fieldturf Inc. United States NC - 100%
C950 Johnsonite Inc. United States G 100% 100%
C951 Johnsonite Canada Inc. Canada G 100% 100%
C960 Diamond W Supply Co. United States G 100% 100%

The percentages of equity and voting rights held for each entity of the Group are identical. They include put options

where applicable.
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20.1.2 Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements as
of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to yugdur annual general meeting, we hereby
report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2013

» the audit of the accompanying consolidated findraet&tements of Tarkett;
» the justification of our assessments;
» the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have bgamweed by the Management Boa€lir role
is to express an opinion on these consolidatediahstatements based on our audit.

Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with profesgistandards applicable in France; these
standards require that we plan and perform the &audbtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free afernal misstatement. An audit involves
performing procedures, using sampling techniquestloer methods of selection, to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures indheotidated financial statements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness aflatting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made, as well as the overalieptation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidenceave bbtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeagive a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities and of the financial position of the @ip as at 31 December 2013 and of the results of
its operations for the year then ended in accomlamith International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attemt to the notes “1.2.1. Accounting Policies”
and “1.5.24 Reconciliation of early adoption of BFR1 and reclassifications” to the consolidated
financial statements, describing the changes inwating policies implemented as at 1st January
2013 and their impacts on both the consolidatednfifal statements and the comparative
financial information.
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Justification of our assessments
In accordance with the requirements of article B-820f the French Commercial Codédde de
commerck we bring to your attention the following matters

e Accounting estimates

Notes “1.2.2 Use of estimates and judgments” aridOgher contingencies” to the consolidated
financial statements disclose the assessments ignificant estimates made by Tarkett's
management.

In connection with our audit, we considered thasthassessments and estimates related mainly
to intangible and tangible assets (note 1.5.1Q0,11,51.5.15, 8 and 9), deferred tax assets (notes
1.5.22, 7 and 19), provisions (notes 1.5.20 anca@@)employee benefits (notes 1.5.18 and 21).

For these accounts, our work consisted in assesbiglata and assumptions underlying the
assessments and estimates, reviewing on a sampig, fae calculations performed by the
Company, comparing prior years accounting estimatiés the corresponding actual results,
reviewing management’s approval procedures for sastimates and reviewing that the
disclosures relating to these estimates in thesrtotéhe financial statements are appropriate.

These assessments were made as part of our audé obnsolidated financial statements taken

as a whole, and therefore contributed to the opimie formed which is expressed in the first part
of this report.

Specific verification
As required by law, we have also verified, in ademice with professional standards applicable in
France, the information relative to the Group, giwethe parent company’s management report.

We have no matters to report as to its fair pregem and consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

The statutory auditors,
Paris La Défense and Paris on the 17 February 2014

KPMG Audit Praxor Audit
Department of KPMG S.A.

Philippe Grandclerc Florent Gesbert
Partner Partner
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20.2 STATUTORY AUDITOR FEES

KPMG S.A.

Amount in thousands of euros (excludin

PRAXOR AUDIT S.A.
Amount in thousands of euros

taxes) (excluding taxes)
(including costs and expens

2013 2013
Audit
Statutory audit, certification,
audit of the individual
company and consolidated
financial statements ............... 2,431 248
Other services directly related
to the statutory audit
assignment......cocceevveereenieeens 107 10
51010100 ] - 2,53¢ 25¢
Other services rendered by the firms to fully condadated subsidiaries
Legal, tax, employe-relatec.. 19 -

19 -

Total oo 2 557 258
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20.3 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION PoLicy

The following table presents total dividends and didends per share distributed by the
Company during the last three fiscal years.

Year distributed

2011 2012 201:
Total dividendsif millions of euroy..................... 102.50Y oWw® 124.80Y
Net dividends per she® (in euro9 ..........cccoe...... 1.62 0 2.0C

@ The amounts presented in the table above represtahtlividends after deduction of the dividendtmasury shar
held by Tarkett GDL (for more information on treasahares, see Section 18.1.2, “Principal Sharehsij

@ The total amount of the dividend w@$30.0 million. The amount shown in the table repres the total amount at
deduction of the share of the dividend paid toliddi, which merged into Tarkett in November 2013.

® The net dividend per share is shown before dimisid the par value by four in connection with the{PQO
reorganization on November 21, 2013, which hadeffect of multiplying the number of existing ordigashares ¢
the Company by four.

In accordance with French law and the Company'sa®sgladopted on November 21, 2013, the
shareholders’ meeting may decide to distributevaddind upon a proposal of the Management
Board and in view of the Supervisory Board’s report

The Company’s dividend distribution policy refledtee Company’s results of operations and
financial condition, the realization of its objaes and the dividend distribution policies of its
principal subsidiaries. Assuming no major acqussi, the Company’s goal is to distribute
annual dividends representing approximately 40%thed Group’s consolidated net profit

attributable to owners of the Company. The Compamy give no assurance, however, that this
objective will be met. Future dividends will depend the general condition of the Group's

business and other factors deemed relevant by gralement Board.

For 2013, the Management Board will propose a divitlof €0.62 per share, corresponding to
39.9% of the Group’s consolidated net profit atttéble to owners of the Company.
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20.4 JUDICIAL AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS

The Group may be involved in legal, administratiweregulatory proceedings in the ordinary
course of its business. The Group sets aside daspovfor the cases that it considers likely to
result in financial loss for Tarkett or one of sisbsidiaries.

The aggregate amount of provisions relating to llggaceedings was €23.0 million as of
December 31, 2013.

As of the date of this Registration Document, afrarn the matters described below, the Group
is not aware of any governmental, legal or arbdraproceedings (including any threatened or
suspended proceedings) that could have or havanhibd past 12 months a material effect on the
Group'’s financial condition or the profitability dfarkett or the Group.

Germany
Appraisal Procedure Relating to Valuation of Tatkéblding GmbH Shares

In August 2006, a former minority shareholder ofkedt AG (now known as Tarkett Holding
GmbH) initiated an appraisal procedure relatintheovaluation of Tarkett Holding GmbH shares
before the Court of Frankenthal in Germany. Theppse of the procedure is to determine
whether the share price paid by Tarkett S.A. tanfar minority shareholders of Tarkett AG in
connection with the privatization of Tarkett AG 2005 was appropriate. Fifty-five shareholders
are currently party to the procedure. Accordinghi® initial opinion of a court-appointed expert
in October 2011, the share price paid was inseffici After objections by the parties, the expert
submitted a supplemental report in August 2012vhich the value of the shares was determined
to be higher than the value initially presentedthie October 2011 report. Following further
objections, the court ruled on July 1, 2013 thatgthare price paid by Tarkett should have been
€1.62 higher than the share price of €19.50 that actually paid. As the procedure covers
1,150,000 shares, the potential impact of thissieeiis approximately €1.9 million, excluding
interest. Tarkett has filed an appeal, pending wthe judgment cannot be executed.

France

French Competition Authority Investigation

In late March 2013, the French Competition Authoiititiated an investigation of several
flooring manufacturers, including Tarkett, in réat to potentially anti-competitive practices in
the French vinyl flooring market. To date, the istvgation is continuing, and it is currently
unclear when it will be concluded. It is too eaftyr the Group to evaluate the potential
consequences of the investigation. In the eventGiteaip were to be found liable, the financial
consequences could be significant.

Canada

Claim Relating to “Phantom” Shares by Former Empdey of FieldTurf

In a series of transactions beginning in 2004, &arlacquired the shares of FieldTurf Inc.
(“FieldTurf”). Pursuant to a share purchase agreg¢mated March 13, 2007 between Tarkett and
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the shareholders of FieldTurf (the “SPA”), certpayments were to be paid to key employees of
FieldTurf in 2009 based on the value of a numbeipbintom” shares. The SPA provided that
the CEO of FieldTurf would determine which key eoydes would be entitled to receive
phantom shares and the number of such sharesawdreled to each of these key employees. In
2009, certain former employees of FieldTurf who keftithe company or had been laid off filed
a claim against FieldTurf to recover the valuehaf phantom shares. In 2012, the Superior Court
of Quebec, District of Montreal, ordered FieldTwof pay the plaintiffs an aggregate sum of
approximately CAD$1.8 million on the basis that giaintiffs were entitled to receive all of the
benefits that had accrued during their notice plsridn May 2012, FieldTurf appealed the
decision. On January 22, 2014, the Court of Appé&uebec affirmed the lower court’s ruling.
As a result, FieldTurf paid CAD$3.2 million in dages, interest and other costs in final
settlement of this litigation.

United States
Asbestos Litigation

Domco Products Texas, Inc. (“Domco”), a subsididagt Tarkett acquired in 1991 (then known

as Azrock Industries (“Azrock™), is subject to eeal lawsuits related to its production of vinyl

floor tiles containing asbestos between 1940 arg218s of December 31, 2013, there were
1,008 pending lawsuits filed against Domco in nplétiU.S. jurisdictions. Of the 1,008 lawsuits

pending, 35 are cases involving both an identificabf Azrock products and a diagnosis of

mesothelioma. Among all of the claims filed ovepigximately the last 15 years, three reached
the verdict stage—two of which were granted in fasbDomco, and one of which was granted
to a plaintiff in the State of Washington, requiribomco to pay an amount of $1,071,705
($371,000 after offsets).

As of December 31, 2013, Domco had succeeded wirobg dismissal of approximately 683
cases since 2009, and had entered into approxiyriteb 28 settlements per year since 2009 for
an aggregate amount of $9 million (or an averag8108 million per year). Domco maintains
insurance (including cost-sharing policies) to eotre liabilities associated with these claims.
Domco also covers a portion of these expensed.i8emco is currently involved in a dispute
with an insurer that has refused coverage and ithénprocess of negotiating a cost-sharing
agreement with another insurer (for further infotioa on the Group’s management of these
cases, see Section 10.9, “Off-Balance Sheet Conenisf).

Defective Fiber Litigation

In March 2011, three of Tarkett's artificial turfilssidiaries (“FieldTurf”) brought an action
against three companies within the Tencate groider¢ate”) in U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia. The claim relatesthe alleged defectiveness of an artificial grass
fiber sold by Tencate to FieldTurf, which in tuendered FieldTurf's artificial grass unfit for use
and requiring complete replacement. FieldTurf'segdld damages, relating to fraud, false
representations and breach of contract, are beliécweexceed $30 million. Tencate filed 11
counterclaims, which have since been dismissedviiiig a motion to dismiss in August 2011
and a motion for summary judgment in May 2013.iAl wlate is set for April 21.

20.5 MATERIAL CHANGE IN FINANCIAL OR COMMERCIAL POSITION

None.
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21. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
21.1 SHARE CAPITAL

21.1.1 Issued Share Capital and Authorized but Unissued e Capital (Article 3 of
the Bylaws)

The Company’s share capital amounts to three hdndighteen million six hundred thirteen
thousand four hundred eighty euros (€318,613,48d)ided into sixty-three million seven
hundred twenty-two thousand six hundred ninety{88722,696) shares of par value €5 each, all
of the same class and fully paid up.

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetiie Company’s Management Board, pursuant
to a delegation by the ¥3Resolution of the General Shareholders’ MeetingNofember 4,
2013, had the following financial authorization:ihzrease the share capital by incorporation of
premiums, reserves, profits or otherwise. The marinpar value of the capital increases that
may be carried out pursuant to such authorizatiey mot exceed one hundred sixty million
euros (€160,000,000) or the equivalent in any othegrency or monetary unit established by
reference to multiple currencies; to this limit ke added, if applicable, the par value of the
shares that may be issued in the event of newdiahtransactions to preserve, in accordance
with legal and regulatory provisions, and, if apphle, with applicable contractual provisions,
the rights of the holders of securities giving asce the share capital.

Such delegation was given for a period of twenkyssionths as from General Shareholders’
Meeting of November 4, 2013; thus, the expiratiatedf this delegation is January 4, 2016. The
Management Board did not use this delegation atithe of the reorganization transactions in

connection with the Company’s initial public offiegi of November 21, 2013. For a detailed

description of the evolution of the Company’s sheapital at the time of the reorganization

transactions, see Section 21.1.8, “History of thar& Capital Over the Past Three Fiscal Years”.

21.1.2 Securities Not Representing Share Capital

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite Company has not issued any non-equity
securities.

21.1.3 Shares Controlled by the Company, Treasury Sharesra Purchase by the
Company of Its Own Shares

As of the filing date of this Registration Documenharkett does not directly hold any of its own
shares. Tarkett GDL S.A., a wholly owned subsid@ryarkett, holds 0.38% of Tarkett.

21.1.4 Other Securities Giving Access to Share Capital
None.

21.1.5 Terms Governing Any Right of Purchase and/or any Oligation Attached to
Subscribed but Not Paid-Up Capital

See Section 17.2.3, “Free Shares”.
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21.1.6 Share Capital of any Company of the Group that ishie Subject of an Option or
of an Agreement to Put it under Option

21.1.6.1 Morton Extrusionstechnik GmbH

On July 9, 2010, FieldTurf Tarkett S.A.S. and Martdolding GmbH (“MHG”) entered into a
shareholders’ agreement governing their relatignshas shareholders of Morton
Extrusionstechnik GmbH (“MET"). FieldTurf Tarkett&AS. and MHG hold 51% and 49% of
MET’s share capital, respectively. MET manufactufésers for synthetic turf. It is fully
consolidated in the Group’s consolidated finanstatements included in Section 20.1, “Group
Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The shareholders’ agreement provides for put afidopions on MET's shares, which were
updated by notarized deed dated January 28, 2044 result, as from December 31, 2018, or
earlier in the event of a change of control of &lelrf Tarkett S.A.S. (other than in connection
with a change of control of the entire Sports Stefasegment), MHG may exercise a put option
requiring FieldTurf Tarkett S.A.S. to acquire itstiee 49% stake in MET. The exercise price for
the put option was fixed at a total amount of €8,880 and a maximum total amount of
€7,000,000, based on the achievement of performenitegia through December 31, 2018.

In the event of a change in the CEO of MET occgrtirefore December 31, 2018, FieldTurf
Tarkett S.A.S. may exercise a call option enablinig acquire all of MHG's shares of MET. The
exercise price for the call option is fixed accagltio the same terms as the exercise price for the
put option descried above, with achievement ofghdormance criteria being assessed on the
option exercise date.

21.1.6.2 EasyTurf, Inc.

On May 19, 2010, FieldTurf USA Inc. and DPH Holdingnc. (“DPH") entered into a
shareholders’ agreement governing their relatignali shareholders of EasyTurf, Inc. FieldTurf
Tarkett USA Inc. and DPH hold 51% and 49% of Easfi$ushare capital, respectively.
EasyTurf, Inc. is a manufacturer of synthetic gfasgesidential users. It is fully consolidated in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements getlin Section 20.1, “Group Consolidated
Financial Statements”.

The shareholders’ agreement provides for put alicbptons on EasyTurf's shares. As a result,
until May 19, 2016 DPH may exercise a put optiaquigng FieldTurf USA Inc. to acquire all of

its shares of EasyTurf, Inc. After such date, DPHi mave such a put option in the event of a
change of control of FieldTurf USA Inc.

Between May 19, 2014 and May 19, 2016, FieldTurfAUSc. may exercise a call option to
acquire all of DPH'’s shares of EasyTurf, Inc.

The exercise price for these options will be calted based on EasyTurf Inc.’s EBITDA,
revenue and indebtedness.

21.1.6.3 Tarkett Hong-Kong Limited

On March 31, 2011, Tarkett GDL S.A., Double Baydstment Company Limited and Mr.
Lingbo Sun, who owns all of the shares of Doublg Bavestment Company Limited, entered
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into a shareholders’ agreement governing theitioglship as shareholders of Tarkett Hong Kong
Limited. Tarkett GDL S.A. and Double Bay Investm&umpany Limited hold 70% and 30% of
the share capital of Tarkett Hong Kong Limited, pextively. Tarkett Hong Kong Limited
markets and sells Tarkett-brand flooring productd ®VC wall coverings in China. Tarkett
Hong Kong Limited created a subsidiary, TarkettoFl@€overing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., which
acquired the inventory and other assets of the eoiep held by Mr. Sun.

21.1.7 Pledges, Guarantees and Sureties

In connection with its Management Equity Plan (“MESf June 2007, the Company had entered
into share grant plans dated June 20, 2008 ®abiété d'Investissement Familig|8IF) and
certain executives of the Group. On November 2632¢he Company made a definitive grant of
ordinary shares to the beneficiaries of the MEBamnection with the pre-IPO reorganization.

The Company had also entered into escrow agreenuiesd June 20, 2008 witBociété
d’'Investissement Familial€SIF) and the relevant executives. The purpodbasfe agreements is
to place the preferred shares subscribed for byeteeant executives, as well as the shares that
would be granted under this plan, into escrow. &kecutives may not sell or transfer such shares
for the duration of the escrow. SIF was merged ihtokett in connection with the pre-IPO
reorganization. As a result, these agreements takemn over by Tarkett. The escrow agreements
will terminate when Tarkett lifts the escrow on tieéevant executives’ shares.

21.1.8 History of the Share Capital over the Past Three [Sical Years

Date Nature of  Share capital Issuance/merger Number of Number of Par value  Share capital
the prior to premium shares shares after after after
transaction transaction before transaction transaction transaction
(in euros) transaction

(in euros) (in euros) (in euros)

Capital

316,235,640 N/A 15,811,782 15,805,413 20 316,1@8,26
decrease

5/26/2010

Capital
increase
(SIF-Tarkett
merger)

11/21/2013 316,108,260 383,641,563 15,805,413 31,066,703 20 1,382,060

Capital
decrease
(SIF-Tarkett
merger)

11/21/2013 621,334,060 (359,648,645) 31,066,703 16,253,564 20 325,071,280

Capital
increase
11/21/2013 (Partholdi- 325,071,280 6,285,465 16,253,564 16,413,906 20 2388120
Tarkett
merger)

Capital

11/21/2013  decrease 328,278,120 (23,512,500) 16,413,906 15,843,906 20 16,838,120
(Partholdi-
Tarkett
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merger)

11/21/2013 iﬁ;ﬂ;as'e 316,878,120 N/A 15,843,906 15,930,674 20 318,61B,48
11/21/2013 %‘;‘fgl‘u‘g 318,613,480 N/A 15,843,906 63,722,696 5 318,613,480

Following is a list of significant changes to theripany’s share capital between January 1, 2010
and the date of the visa on this Registration Damtm

— capital decrease of €127,380 by cancellation 06%,8rdinary shares adopted by the
general shareholders’ meeting of May 26, 2010, tduthe June 15, 2009 expiration of
the share purchase plan put in place by the Comipa2§04;

— successive capital increases and decreases dhe ®IF-Tarkett and Partholdi-Tarkett

mergers, followed by the division of the par vahyefour, as detailed in the table above,
at the shareholders’ meeting of November 21, 2013.
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21.2 INCORPORATION DOCUMENTS AND BYLAWS

The Company’s Bylaws were drafted in accordancé wiench laws and regulations applicable
to limited liability corporationsdqociétés anonymesvith Management and Supervisory Boards.
The primary provisions described below are takemfthe Company’s Bylaws as adopted on
November 21, 2013.

21.2.1 Corporate Purpose (Article 3 of the Bylaws)
The Company’s purpose, in France and abroad,fidlass:

e to research, design, develop, operate, direct amdage all commercial, industrial,
real estate or financial matters or businessedingldo activities in the coating
industry;

» to participate directly or indirectly in all traretons or undertakings by means of the
creation of companies, establishments or groupsreél estate, commercial, industrial
or financial nature or to participate in their diea or in the capital increase of
existing companies;

» to manage a portfolio of equity investments andisges and the transactions related
thereto;

e to own and manage any real property; and

» generally, to carry out any industrial, commercfalancial, securities or real estate
transactions that may be directly or indirecthatetl to the purposes listed above.

21.2.2 Management and Supervisory Boards (Articles 11 to2of the Bylaws)
21.2.2.1 Management Board
21.2.2.1.1 Nomination (Articles 11 and 12 of the Bylaws)

The Company is administered and managed by a MarageBoard under the supervision of a
Supervisory Board. The Management Board is compadedt least two and at most five
members appointed by the Supervisory Board.

Members of the Management Board are appointed fi@rra of three years. The Supervisory
Board must fill any vacancy within two months. Qtise, any interested party may petition the
presiding judge of the commercial court, ruling an interim basis, to make a temporary
appointment to fill the vacancy. The person thugcited may be replaced at any time by the
Supervisory Board.

Members of the Management Board must be naturabpsr Their terms are always renewable.
Any member of the Management Board is automaticidlgmed to have resigned as of the close

of the shareholders’ meeting approving the findnstiatements for the fiscal year during which
such member reached the age of 65.
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Each member of the Company’'s Management Board bgesuto applicable regulations with
regard to the holding of multiple offices or pasits. Members of the Management Board may
not serve as a Managing Director, member of a Mamegt Board, CEO or member of a
Supervisory Board of any listed company outsidthefGroup.

Each member of the Management Board must receiveparion from the Supervisory Board
before accepting any new office or position witlisted company that is not directly or indirectly
controlled by the Company.

21.2.2.1.2 Removal (Article 11 of the Bylaws)

Members of the Management Board may be removetidgéneral shareholders’ meeting or by
the Supervisory Board. In the absence of causi,rdraoval may give rise to damages.

The removal of a member of the Management Board dothave the effect of terminating such
member’s employment agreement, if any, with the Qamy.

21.2.2.1.3 Chairman of the Management Board and Managing Dinexc (Article 14 of the
Bylaws)

The Supervisory Board appoints one of the membfetiseoManagement Board to the position of
Chairman.

The Chairman of the Management Board representCtmpany in its relations with third
parties. The Supervisory Board may grant the s@mesentative power to one or more members
of the Management Board, which members shall tiodeh the title of Managing Director.

The Chairman of the Management Board or the MawggBinector(s) may delegate powers to a
third party. The powers granted pursuant to sudbga¢ion, however, must be limited and relate
to one or more specific purposes.

The Chairman of the Management Board or any memhared a Managing Director by the
Supervisory Board may validly make undertakingthtal parties on behalf of the Company.

21.2.2.1.4 Management Board Meetings (Article 15 of the ByJaws

The Management Board meets as often as necesstrg interest of the Company. It may be
convened by its Chairman or by another member ynaans, including orally.

Management Board meetings may be held at the eegistoffice or at any other location
indicated in the notice of meeting.

A member of the Management Board may appoint anatieenber of the Management Board to
represent him at a meeting. No member of the Manage Board may represent more than one
other member. In the event of the Chairman’s aliseghe Management Board designates one of
its members to chair the meeting. The ManagemeatdBmay also designate a secretary, who
need not be a member of the Management Board.

The Management Board may validly meet so long asagority of its current members are
present (including by means of video or telepharm@dearence) or represented.
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Decisions are taken by a majority of the membeesqnmt (including participation by video or
telephone conference) or represented.

In the event of a tie, the vote of the meeting’aichan does not prevail unless the meeting is
chaired by the Chairman of the Management Board.

Minutes of Management Board meetings are recordeal special ledger kept at the registered
office and are signed by the Chairman of the Mamege Board and by the secretary or another
member of the Management Board. Copies or extrattminutes may be certified by the
Chairman, a Managing Director, or a member of ttdjement Board.

21.2.2.1.5 Powers and Duties of the Management Board (Artlfleof the Bylaws and Article
3.2 of the Supervisory Board’s Internal Regulatjons

Subject to the powers that the law or the CompaBylaws grant expressly to the Supervisory
Board or the shareholders’ meeting, and withinlitmiés of the Key Decisions that require the
prior authorization of the Supervisory Board, tharfdgement Board has the broadest powers to
act in all circumstances in the name and on betidlarkett.

The Company is bound by the actions of the Managemeard even where they are not within
the corporate purpose, unless the Company proastlie third party knew that the action
exceeded such corporate purpose or could not haea bnaware of that fact in light of the
circumstances.

However, without prejudice to matters with respeéat which prior authorization of the
Supervisory Board is required by law, the ManagenBsrard must seek the prior authorization
of the Supervisory Board before making any of tlko¥ing decisions (“Key Decisions”) within
the Company and/or its controlled subsidiarieshinithe meaning of Article L.233-3 of the
French Commercial Code (together, the “Tarkett @thu

(@) grants by any company of the Group of guaranteasakceed an annual aggregate
threshold set by the Supervisory Board (althoughrgutees granted above such
threshold will be deemed valid in respect of thgedties acting in good faith);

(b) transactions that result in a significant changeéhim primary business of the Group
(flooring and sports surfaces) (although pursuimgjdental new activities does not
require the Supervisory Board’'s prior authorizatiomless it is otherwise a Key
Decision);

(c) provided that it exceeds a certain threshold (eigtabal or per transaction type) set by
the Supervisory Board (or failing that, by the i Regulations of the Supervisory
Board), the acquisition or sale (and generally agsfer of ownership or investment)
or collateralization of any asset of the Group ast @f a project, such as asset
contributions governed by the rules applicable pin-®ffs, mergers, corporate
restructurings (either internal or involving a thparty);

(d) listing shares of any Group company (apart from @@mpany) on a securities
exchange;

(e) entering into any loan whose nominal amount (i)eexts a certain threshold set by the
Supervisory Board (or failing that, by the Interfégulations of the Supervisory
Board) or (ii) results in an increase of the aggteghominal amount of loans above
the maximum global amount (in principal) authorizgcthe Supervisory Board for the
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(m)
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(0)

(P)

(@)

(1

applicable period (or failing that, by the InterrRegulations of the Supervisory
Board), as well as any material modification theyret

decisions pertaining to, or resulting in, amendment the Company’s Bylaws and
those of any Group company (i) whose assets’ ba@llevis greater than a certain
threshold set forth in the Internal Regulationstted Supervisory Board or (ii) that
owns assets of strategic value for the Group, arsaf such modifications alter the
rights of the Group company that controls such islidny;

approving joint venture agreements or agreemenmtottoer significant partnerships
(i.e., those that involve asset contributions by amtity of the Group (including when
made by way of a cash payment or of a set-off) ékaeed a certain threshold set by
the Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Board);

any material change in the accounting principlgdiag by the Company in preparing
its consolidated financial statements (annual tarim), apart from changes required
under IAS or IFRS;

adopting the Group’s annual budget and any sigmifichanges thereto;

adopting the Group’s strategic medium-or long-t@fam as well as the annual update
thereof (together with the annual budget);

the inscription on the shareholders’ meeting agemuth the exercise of delegations
granted by the shareholders’ meeting relating ¢oishuance of shares or other equity-
linked securities by the Company (or by anotherupreompany) to a non-Tarkett
related party;

any acquisition or sale (and generally any transfewnership) of derivatives, foreign
exchange contracts, swaps, option agreements oro#mr speculative financial
instrument except when made (i) for the Group’sgivegl purposes or (ii) as part of a
buy-back program relating to the Company’s shares;

implementing any bankruptcy proceeding of a Groamgany (i) whose number of
employees exceeds a certain number set by thenéhtBegulations of the Supervisory
Board or (ii) with assets of strategic value fa tBroup (insofar as these modifications
affect the rights of the Group company that costsaich subsidiary).

any loan granted by the Group to a third party faem customer advances,
employee advances and any loan granted in theasydaourse of business);

(i) recruiting or dismissing the Group’s senior extives defined under the Internal
Regulations of the Supervisory Board, or (i) anigngicant change to their
compensation (including pension plans or specijgadture conditions);

implementing or amending the management incentlae @including any share or
bonus incentive plan);

creating or amending any stock option plan or slaavard plan relating to shares of
the Company or any Group company (or any similaustes) for the benefit of
executives or employees of the Group, or of anggmaty of them;

entering into or modifying any significant colleai bargaining agreement, pension
plan or redundancy plan that exceeds a certain aunftemployees set by the Internal
Regulations of the Supervisory Board;
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(s) initiating, stopping or settling any dispute oridétion (including any tax-related
dispute) or waiving certain claims that exceedashecase a certain threshold set by
the Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Board;

(t) appointing, re-nominating or revoking the Comparstautory auditors; and
(u) any grants, corporate sponsorships and other fiygeration that exceeds €100,000.

At least once per quarter, the Management Boardepts a report to the Supervisory Board.
Within three months after the close of each fisgsdr, the Management Board presents the
annual financial statements to the Supervisory 8éarpurposes of verification and review.

21.2.2.1.6 Compensation of Members of the Management Boatitl@d2 of the Bylaws)

In its nomination decision, the Supervisory Boagtsshe form and amount of compensation for
each member of the Management Board.

21.2.2.2  Supervisory Board
21.2.2.2.1 Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Board

The Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Bogrec#y the conditions pursuant to which such
Board operates.

21.2.2.2.2 Composition and Term in Office (Articles 17 to 13he Bylaws and Article 1 of the
Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Board)

Members of the Supervisory Board serve for a tefnfioor years. By way of exception, the
general shareholders’ meeting may decide when afipgicertain members of the Supervisory
Board that their term of office will be shorter thiour years, in order to permit rolling renewal of
the terms of the various members of the SuperviBogrd.

Part of the Supervisory Board is renewed each yaat that the entire Supervisory Board is
renewed on a rolling basis over a period of fowarge

Members of the Supervisory Board may always beeoted.

The number of Supervisory Board members older #amay not be greater than one-third of
the Board’s then-current membership.

No member of the Supervisory Board may be a membtre Management Board. If a member
of the Supervisory Board is appointed to the Mansgg Board, such member’s term on the
Supervisory Board ends as soon as the new appaintaies effect.

In the event of a vacancy in one or more seateagan of death or resignation, the Supervisory
Board may, between two shareholders’ meetings, nimi&em appointments.

Interim appointments made by the Supervisory B@asdsubmitted for ratification by the next
ordinary shareholders’ meeting. A member appoirtedeplace another member remains in
office only for the time remaining in predecessadesm.

If the number of members of the Supervisory Boailts fbelow three, the Management Board
must immediately convene an ordinary shareholdeegting to fill the vacancies.
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If temporary appointments are not ratified, theopriotes and actions of the Supervisory Board
remain valid.

The Supervisory Board ensures, to the extent plessiat at least one-third of its membership is
composed of independent members and that the ATmlihmittee and the Nominations and

Compensation Committee each include at least twledandent members (including, in each
case, the chairman). It is noted that the chaiiaeté&on of independence does not imply a value
judgment as to the qualities and skills of the meralof the Board.

At the time of each renewal or nomination of a membf the Supervisory Board and at least
once per year prior to the publication of the Comypsm annual report, the Board must evaluate
the independence of each of its members (or catedideDuring such evaluation, the Board, after
receiving the opinion of the Nominations and Congagion Committee, examines the status of
each of its members (or candidates) on a caseds/zasis with regard to the criteria referred to
below, the specific circumstances and the positibthe member or candidate in relation to the
Company. The conclusions of this examination acaigint to the attention of the shareholders in
the annual report and, where applicable, to theesloéders’ meeting in connection with the
election of members to the Supervisory Board.

21.2.2.2.3 Removal (Article 18 of the Bylaws)

Members of the Supervisory Board may be removeahgttime by the ordinary shareholders’
meeting.

21.2.2.2.4 Supervisory Board Officers (Article 20 of the By$awnd Article 1.3 of the
Supervisory Board'’s Internal Regulations)

The Supervisory Board elects a Chairman and a Cicairman from among its members, in
accordance with the provisions of its Internal Hatjons.

21.2.2.2.5 Powers and Duties of the Supervisory Board (Articlé and 22 of the Bylaws and
Articles 1.4, 2.8, 2.9 and 3 of the Supervisoryr8zanternal Regulations)

The Supervisory Board oversees the Management Boar@hagement of the Company on an
ongoing basis.

At any time during the year, the Supervisory Boeaitties out the controls and verifications that
it deems appropriate and may obtain any documbatsttdeems useful for such purpose.

Within limits set by the Supervisory Board and witle power to sub-delegate, the Supervisory
Board may authorize the Management Board to sall peoperty, to sell all or a portion of its
equity investments, and to give security as welllgggosits, backing or guarantees in the name of
the Company.

A list of Management Board decisions that requir@rpapproval of the Supervisory Board is
included in Article 16 of the Company’'s Bylaws aAdicle 3.2 of the Supervisory Board's

Internal Regulations (see Section 21.2.2.1.5, “Psvand Duties of the Management Board
(Articles 16 of the Bylaws and 3.2 of the SupermysBoard’s Internal Regulations)”).

Each year at the Shareholders’ Meeting, the SupanwiBoard presents its comments on the
Management Board’s report and on the financiakstahts for the previous year.
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It may delegate special authority to one or mordét®fmembers to accomplish one or more
specific objectives.

The Supervisory Board may establish Internal Regwla providing, in particular, for the
creation of one or more Supervisory Board comnstteé which it determines the composition
and powers and, where applicable, the compensafi@ach of its members. Members of the
Supervisory Board and of the Management Board, elsas observers, are required to comply
with such Internal Regulations.

Each member of the Supervisory Board must holdagt|1,000 Company shares. Until he or she
holds 1,000 Company shares, each member of thenSsmy Board must use half of his
attendance fees to acquire Company shares. Whgnake office, members of the Supervisory
Board must convert their shares of the Company riegistered form. Shares acquired at a later
date must also be held in registered form.

Each member of the Supervisory Board must compti applicable regulations with respect to

market abuse and inside information. Moreover, @aeimber must report to the Company any
transaction in the Company’s securities, in acaocdawith applicable laws and regulations. The
members of the Supervisory Board are remindededdlprovisions on an annual basis and from
time to time in the event of any significant change

21.2.2.2.6 Information of the Supervisory Board (Article 4.4 the Supervisory Board’s
Internal Regulations)

The Management Board regularly apprises the SugmmmgvBoard of developments in the Group’s
activity, financial results and financial conditiaas well as of any commitments of the Company
or the Group, in accordance with applicable prawisiof the law, the Company’s Bylaws or the
Internal Regulations of the Supervisory Board icitmmittees.

21.2.2.2.7 Supervisory Board Meetings (Articles 20 and 21hef Bylaws and Article 5 of the
Supervisory Board'’s Internal Regulations)

Supervisory Board meetings are convened by ther@hai

However, the Chairman is required to convene theeBisory Board whenever at least one
member of the Management Board or at least ond-tfithe members of the Supervisory Board
deliver a written reasoned request to the Chairmathjn 15 days of receipt of such request. If
the Chairman does not respond to such requestautieors of the request may convene the
meeting themselves, indicating the meeting’s agenda

Supervisory Board meetings may be convened by agng) including email, with at least five
(5) business days’ notice. The notice period maghmtened on the proposal of the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board if all members of the Sumamy Board are present or represented at the
Supervisory Board meeting or if the members whoadigent and not represented consent to the
meeting being held in their absence.

Meetings take place at the Company'’s registereideofir at any other location indicated in the
notice of meeting.

The notice of meeting must contain the meeting dgen
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The Supervisory Board may validly deliberate offilgtileast one-half of its members are present.
To the extent authorized by the law, members ppaiing in a meeting by video conference,
telephone conference, or any other means pernfittéalw are deemed to be present for purposes
of calculating quorum and majority.

Decisions of the Supervisory Board are taken byingple majority of members present or
represented. In the event of a tie, the vote ofGhairman of the Supervisory Board prevails; the
vote of the meeting’s chair does not prevail untbesmeeting is chaired by the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board.

Decisions of the Supervisory Board are recordedninutes to be prepared within 15 days
following the meeting and signed by the chairmantled meeting and one member of the
Supervisory Board (or, in the event that the meg&irhairman is unavailable, by at least two
members of the Board), and kept in a special registld at the Company’s registered office.

Copies or extracts of Supervisory Board minutescartfied by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, the Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Boardany member of the Management Board.

21.2.2.2.8 Compensation of Members of the Supervisory Boartic{@ 23 of the Bylaws and
Article 7 of the Supervisory Board'’s Internal Reggidns)

The shareholders’ meeting may allocate an annualbatrof attendance fees to members of the
Supervisory Board as compensation for their pasitio

Upon the recommendation of the Nominations and Gusation Committee, the Supervisory
Board:

» freely distributes to its members the attendanes falocated to the Board by the
shareholders’ meeting. A proportion determinedhsyBoard and deducted from the
amount of the attendance fees allocated to the BB@arpaid to the Committee
members based in particular on their attendan€@atmittee meetings;

» determines the compensation of the Chairman attted¥ice Chairman;

* may, moreover, allocate exceptional compensatiorcedain of its members for
specific assignments or duties entrusted to them.

Such compensation will be paid in addition to theredance fees and pursuant to conditions
provided for by law.

21.2.2.3 Observers (Article 26 of the Bylaws and Article @b the Supervisory Board’s
Internal Regulations)

The general shareholders’ meeting and the SupeyvBumard may each nominate observers (who
may be individuals or entities) in a number no¢xceed two.

Observers are nominated for a renewable term afyfears, although the body that appoints them
may remove them at any time.

Observers are convened to Supervisory Board mesting@bservers and may be consulted by the
Supervisory Board. They may present observationthdéoshareholders’ meeting on proposals
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submitted to them. They must receive notice of eaebting of the Supervisory Board pursuant
to the same terms and conditions as those thay &pphembers of the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board may entrust specific assignmentdservers.

The Supervisory Board may, on the recommendatiothef Nominations and Compensation
Committee, authorize reimbursement of expensesrriediuby observers in the interest of the
Company.

21.2.3 Rights, Privileges and Restrictions on Shares (Arties 6 to 9 of the Bylaws)

As of the filing date of this Registration Documetite Company’s share capital is composed
entirely of ordinary shares.

The Company'’s ordinary shares are freely negotiakhe transfer of ordinary shares is carried
out by transfer from account to account. Shares Ineaiyn registered or bearer form, at the option
of the shareholder, pursuant to applicable reguriati

Whenever it is necessary to hold a specific numlbehares to exercise any right, or in the event
of an exchange or grant of securities giving tigltrto new shares in return for the return of a
specific number of existing shares, any odd-lorehar shares that fall short of the minimum
number required will not provide shareholders wiihts vis-a-vis the Company. It is the
responsibility of shareholders to group their shareto purchase or sell the necessary number of
shares.

All fully paid shares that have been held contirslpin registered form by the same holder for at
least two years benefit from double voting rightsie duration of the shareholding prior to
November 22, 2013 is not taken into account in rdgténg whether the shares held by a
shareholder carry double voting rights.

In accordance with Article L. 225-123 paragraphf Zhe French Commercial Code, in the event
of an increase in the Company’s share capital tiirancorporation of reserves, profits or share
premium, the newly issued shares will carry doubdting rights if they are granted to a

shareholder in relation to existing shares thataaly carry double voting rights.

Double voting rights may be exercised at any shddens’ meeting. Double voting rights
terminate if the shares are converted into bearen br if their ownership is transferred.

Each share gives the right to a portion equal eodhare of the capital that it represents with
respect to ownership of corporate assets and hdjoitl proceeds.

Shares are indivisible vis-a-vis the Company.
21.2.4 Modifications to the Rights of Shareholders

To the extent that the Bylaws are silent, modifaatof the rights attached to the Company’s
shares is subject to applicable law.

21.2.5 Shareholders’ Meetings (Article 25 of the Bylaws)

Shareholders’ meetings are convened subject todhéitions provided for by law. They meet at
the Company'’s registered office or at any otheafion indicated in the notice of meeting.
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The Management Board is authorized to decide dtite2it convenes the shareholders’ meeting
to broadcast the meeting publicly by video confeeear any other means of telecommunication
or transmission, including the Internet. A shardeolmay give a proxy to another shareholder or
to any other individual or entity to represent hitrthe shareholders’ meeting.

The proxy, as well as, where applicable, its retionamust be in writing and delivered to the
Company in accordance with the conditions provifdedy applicable regulations.

Shareholders may participate in meetings eithgreirson or by proxy by proving their identity
and their ownership of shares in the form in whicich shares are held, pursuant to applicable
laws and regulations.

Joint owners of indivisible shares are represeatatieetings by one of the joint owners or by a
proxy chosen by mutual agreement of the joint ownkr the event that the joint owners fail to
reach an agreement as to the choice of a proxyp®ypmay be designated by order of the
presiding judge of the commercial court, ruling @m interim basis at the request of the more
diligent joint owner.

If the Management Board so provides in the notfceeeting, shareholders may also participate
in such meeting by video conference or other meangelecommunication or electronic
transmission, including the Internet, pursuant égal and regulatory requirements. Such
shareholders are deemed present for purposescolatiihg quorum and majority.

Meetings are chaired by the Chairman of the SuperyiBoard, or, in his absence, by the Vice
Chairman, or, in his absence, by any member ofSilygervisory Board specially delegated for
such purpose by the Supervisory Board. Otherwigenteeting elects its own chairman.

The two members of the meeting who are presengedgr serve such role and have the greatest
number of voting rights serve as scrutineers.

The meeting officers designate a secretary, whd neebe a shareholder.

An attendance sheet is kept at each meeting camgatime information required by law.

Copies or extracts of the minutes of sharehold®mettings may be certified by the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board, the Vice Chairman, a mendfethe Management Board acting as

Managing Director or by the secretary of the shaldgrs’ meeting.

Ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ meetingiing pursuant to their respective quorum
and majority requirements exercise the powers asditp them by the law.

21.2.6 Statutory Provisions Likely to Have an Impact on thke Control of the Company
None.

21.2.7 Shareholding Thresholds and Identification of Sharbolders

21.2.7.1  Crossing of Thresholds (Article 7 of the Bylaws)

Any individual or entity, acting alone or in conterith others, who comes to own, directly or
indirectly, 1% or more of the share capital or mgtirights of the Company and thereafter
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increases or decreases its shareholding by an dngoeater than or equal to 1% of the share
capital or voting rights, including above the letfakeshold, must notify the Company thereof and
provide the information required by the AMF by gired mail with acknowledgment of receipt,
within four trading days from the date on which agh threshold is met or crossed.

The sanctions provided for by law for failure tongaly with reporting obligations when legal
thresholds are crossed shall not apply to threshmidvided for in the Bylaws except by request,
recorded in the minutes of the shareholders’ mgetihone or more shareholders holding at least
1% of the Company’s capital or voting rights.

Subject to the above provisions, this statutorygaltion is governed by the same provisions as
those governing the legal obligation, includingdegr regulatory provisions with respect to
assimilation with previously owned shares.

The Company reserves the right to disclose to thglip and to the shareholders either the
information reported to it or any failure by thergen in question to comply with the above
obligation.

21.2.7.2 Identification of Shareholders (Article 7 of thelBws)

The Company has the right to apply applicable mguris to identify the holders of securities
granting voting rights at shareholders’ meetingihee immediately or in the future.

Holders who fail to comply with Tarkett's requeddr finformation within the time period
provided for by applicable laws and regulationswdro transmit incomplete or inaccurate
information will not be permitted to exercise vatirights with respect to any such shares or other
equity-linked securities and to receive dividendstgining thereto (if any) until the date on
which such holders comply with Tarkett's requestifidormation.

21.2.8 Changes in Share Capital

To the extent that the Bylaws are silent, the stagital may be increased, decreased or
redeemed by any means authorized by law.

21.2.9 Distribution of Profits (Article 28 of the Bylaws)

Each fiscal year's net income is determined in etamace with applicable legal and regulatory
provisions.

Under French law, Tarkett is required to alloca#e &f its net income in each fiscal year, after
reduction for losses carried forward from previgesars, if any, to a legal reserve fund until the
amount in that fund equals 1/10 of the nominal amofiits share capital.

Upon proposal by Tarkett's Management Board andgint of the report of the Supervisory

Board, Tarkett's shareholders may decide to aladitor part of distributable profits to special
or general reserves, to carry them forward to tlet fiscal year as retained earnings, or to
allocate them to the shareholders as dividends.

Under Tarkett's Bylaws, the annual shareholderséting for approval of the annual financial

statements may grant an option to the sharehotdersceive all or part of their dividends or
interim dividends in cash or shares, in accordawite French law. Moreover, it may decide that
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for all or part of the dividends or interim divid#s) reserves or premiums to be distributed, or for

any share decrease, this distribution or decredlsbavmade in kind in the form of securities or
assets of the Company.

Each shareholder’'s share of the Company’s profits @ntribution to the Company’s losses is
equal to the proportion of the share capital held.
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22. MAJOR CONTRACTS

See Section 10.4, “Revolving Syndicated Multi-Come Credit Facility” and Section 10.5,
“New Term Loan”.
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23. INFORMATION FROM THIRD PARTIES, EXPERT CERTIFICATIO NS
AND INTEREST DECLARATIONS

None.

292



24
PUBLICLY AVAILABLE
DOCUMENTS

293



24. PUBLICLY AVAILABLE DOCUMENTS

Copies of this Registration Document are availaileno charge at the Company’s registered
office. This document may also be consulted orCbmpany’s website (www.tarkett.com).

During the period of validity of this Registratiddocument, the following French-language
documents (or copies thereof) may be consulted:

» the Company’s Bylaws;
« all reports, correspondence and other documenssorttal financial information,
evaluations and declarations prepared by an egpéne Company’s request of which
a portion is included or referred to in this Regisbn Document; and
» the historical financial information included inghRegistration Document.
All of such legal and financial documents (in Frierand in English versions where available)
relating to the Company and required to be madédadla to shareholders under applicable

regulations may be consulted at the Company’s tergid office.

Regulated informationirfformation réglementdewithin the meaning of the AMF's General
Regulation is available on the Company’s website.
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25. INFORMATION ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Information concerning entities in which the Compéwolds a fraction of the share capital likely
to have a significant impact on the valuation sfassets and liabilities, financial condition or
results of operations is included in Section 9.XAcquisitions” and Section 20.1, “Group
Consolidated Financial Statements”.
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